
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Executive 
Committee 
 
 
 
Wed 26th May 
2010 
7.00 pm 
 
Committee Room 2 
Town Hall 
Redditch 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 
 
 

Access to Information - Your Rights 
 

The Local Government 
(Access to Information) Act 
1985 widened the rights of 
press and public to attend 
Local Authority meetings 
and to see certain 
documents.  Recently the 
Freedom of Information Act 
2000, has further broadened 
these rights, and limited 
exemptions under the 1985 
Act. 

Your main rights are set out 
below:- 

• Automatic right to attend 
all Council and 
Committee meetings 
unless the business 
would disclose 
confidential or “exempt” 
information. 

• Automatic right to inspect 
agenda and public reports 
at least five days before 
the date of the meeting. 

• Automatic right to inspect 
minutes of the Council 
and its Committees (or 
summaries of business  

 

undertaken in private) for 
up to six years following a 
meeting. 

• Automatic right to inspect 
lists of background 
papers used in the 
preparation of public 
reports. 

• Access, upon request, to 
the background papers 
on which reports are 
based for a period of up 
to four years from the 
date of the meeting. 

• Access to a public 
register stating the names 
and addresses and 
electoral areas of all 
Councillors with details of 
the membership of all 
Committees etc. 

• A reasonable number of 
copies of agenda and 
reports relating to items to 
be considered in public 
must be made available 
to the public attending 
meetings of the Council 
and its Committees etc. 

• Access to a list specifying 
those powers which the 
Council has delegated to its 
Officers indicating also the 
titles of the Officers 
concerned. 

• Access to a summary of the 
rights of the public to attend 
meetings of the Council and 
its Committees etc. and to 
inspect and copy 
documents. 

• In addition, the public now 
has a right to be present 
when the Council 
determines “Key Decisions” 
unless the business would 
disclose confidential or 
“exempt” information. 

• Unless otherwise stated, all 
items of business before the 
Executive Committee are 
Key Decisions.  

• (Copies of Agenda Lists are 
published in advance of the 
meetings on the Council’s 
Website: 
www.redditchbc.gov.uk 

 
If you have any queries on this Agenda or any of the decisions taken or wish to 

exercise any of the above rights of access to information, please contact  
Ivor Westmore  

Committee Support Services  
 

Town Hall, Walter Stranz Square, Redditch, B98 8AH 
Tel: 01527 64252 (Extn. 3269) Fax: (01527) 65216 

e.mail: ivor.westmore@redditchbc.gov.uk                Minicom: 595528 
 



 

Welcome to today’s meeting. 
Guidance for the Public 
 
 
Agenda Papers 

The Agenda List at the front 
of the Agenda summarises 
the issues to be discussed 
and is followed by the 
Officers’ full supporting 
Reports. 
 
Chair 

The Chair is responsible for 
the proper conduct of the 
meeting. Generally to one 
side of the Chair is the 
Committee Support Officer 
who gives advice on the 
proper conduct of the 
meeting and ensures that 
the debate and the 
decisions are properly 
recorded.  On the Chair’s 
other side are the relevant 
Council Officers.  The 
Councillors (“Members”) of 
the Committee occupy the 
remaining seats around the 
table. 
 
Running Order 

Items will normally be taken 
in the order printed but, in 
particular circumstances, the 
Chair may agree to vary the 
order. 
 
Refreshments : tea, coffee 
and water are normally 
available at meetings - 
please serve yourself. 
 

 
Decisions 

Decisions at the meeting will 
be taken by the Councillors 
who are the democratically 
elected representatives. 
They are advised by 
Officers who are paid 
professionals and do not 
have a vote. 
 
Members of the Public 

Members of the public may, 
by prior arrangement, speak 
at meetings of the Council or 
its Committees.  Specific 
procedures exist for Appeals 
Hearings or for meetings 
involving Licence or 
Planning Applications.  For 
further information on this 
point, please speak to the 
Committee Support Officer. 
 
Special Arrangements 

If you have any particular 
needs, please contact the 
Committee Support Officer. 
 
Infra-red devices for the 
hearing impaired are 
available on request at the 
meeting. Other facilities may 
require prior arrangement. 
 
Further Information 

If you require any further 
information, please contact 
the Committee Support 
Officer (see foot of page 
opposite). 

Fire/ Emergency  
instructions 
 
If the alarm is sounded, 
please leave the building 
by the nearest available 
exit – these are clearly 
indicated within all the 
Committee Rooms. 
 
If you discover a fire, 
inform a member of staff 
or operate the nearest 
alarm call point (wall 
mounted red rectangular 
box).  In the event of the 
fire alarm sounding, leave 
the building immediately 
following the fire exit 
signs.  Officers have been 
appointed with 
responsibility to ensure 
that all visitors are 
escorted from the 
building. 
 
Do Not stop to collect 
personal belongings. 
 
Do Not use lifts. 
 
Do Not re-enter the 
building until told to do 
so.  
 
The emergency 
Assembly Area is on 
Walter Stranz Square. 

 
 
 



 
 
 

Declaration of Interests: 
Guidance for Councillors 
 
 
DO I HAVE A “PERSONAL INTEREST” ? 
 
• Where the item relates or is likely to affect your  registered interests 

(what you have declared on the formal Register of Interests) 
OR 
 
• Where a decision in relation to the item might reasonably be regarded as affecting your 

own well-being or financial position, or that of your family, or your close associates more 
than most other people affected by the issue, 

 
you have a personal interest. 
 
WHAT MUST I DO?  Declare the existence, and nature, of your interest and stay 
 
• The declaration must relate to specific business being decided - 

a general scattergun approach is not needed 
 
• Exception - where interest arises only because of your membership of another public 

body, there is no need to declare unless you speak on the matter. 
 
• You can vote on the matter. 
 
 
IS IT A “PREJUDICIAL INTEREST” ? 
 
In general only if:- 
 
• It is a personal interest and 
 
• The item affects your financial position (or conveys other benefits), or the position of your 

family, close associates or bodies through which you have a registered interest (or 
relates to the exercise of regulatory functions in relation to these groups) 

 
 and 
 
• A member of public, with knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably believe the 

interest was likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest. 
 
 
WHAT MUST I DO?  Declare and Withdraw 
 
BUT you may make representations to the meeting before withdrawing, if the public have similar 
rights (such as the right to speak at Planning Committee). 



 
 

 
 
 

Executive 
Committee 

 

 

 

26th May 2010 

7.00 pm 

Committee Room 2 Town Hall 

 

Agenda Membership: 

   
To be appointed at the Annual Meeting of the Council on 
24th May 2010. 
 
 
 

1. Apologies  To receive the apologies of any Member who is unable to 
attend this meeting. 
 
  

2. Declarations of Interest  To invite Councillors to declare any interests they may have 
in items on the agenda. 
 
  

3. Leader's Announcements  1. To give notice of any items for future meetings or for 
the Forward Plan, including any scheduled for this 
meeting, but now carried forward or deleted; and 

 
2 any other relevant announcements. 
 
(Oral report) 
  

4. Minutes  

(Pages 1 - 6)  

Chief Executive 

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of 
the Executive Committee held on 31st March 2010. 
 
(Minutes attached) 
 
 
  

5. Council Plan 2010 / 2013  

(Pages 7 - 80)  

Director of Policy, 
Performance and 
Partnerships 

To consider the adoption of the Council Plan 2010 to 2013 
incorporating the vision, values, priorities, the strategic action 
plan and key performance indicators. 
 
(Report attached) 
 
All Wards  
 



 
 
Executive 
Committee  

 

 

26th May 2010 
 
 

6. Stratford-on-Avon 
District Draft Core 
Strategy - Consultation 
Response  

(Pages 81 - 92)  

Head of Planning and 
Regeneration 

To consider the Council’s response to Stratford-on-Avon 
District Draft Core Strategy consultation. 
 
Appendix 2 to this report contains exempt information as 
defined in S.100 of the Local Government Act 1972, as 
amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, as it relates to potential negotiations 
for the acquisition of land or property. 
 
(Report attached) 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance)  

7. Employment Land 
Review Update  

(Pages 93 - 98)  

Head of Planning and 
Regeneration 

To consider a factual update of the Employment Land 
Review; this ensures that the Local Development Framework 
evidence base is up to date. 
 
(Report attached – Appendix available on the Council’s 
website and in the Group rooms. A map will be displayed at 
the meeting for Members’ information) 
 
All Wards  

8. Local Development 
Framework Evidence 
Base - Winyates Green 
Triangle Transport 
Assessment  

(Pages 99 - 104)  

Head of Planning and 
Regeneration 

To seek endorsement of the Winyates Green Triangle 
Transport Assessment as part of the evidence base for the 
Local Development Framework. 
 
(Report attached – Appendix available on the Council’s 
website and in the Group rooms) 
 
(Winyates Ward)  

9. Worcestershire 
Supporting People 
Strategy 2010 to 2013  

(Pages 105 - 118)  

Director of Policy, 
Performance and 
Partnerships 

To endorse the Worcestershire Supporting People Strategy 
2010 to 2013 which informs and embeds the commissioning 
intentions and priorities for helping the most vulnerable and 
excluded to contribute to the wider society within 
Worcestershire. 
 
(Report attached – Appendix available on the Council’s 
website and in the Group rooms) 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance)  



 
 
Executive 
Committee  

 

 

26th May 2010 
 
 

10. Capital Budget Provision 
2009/10 and 2011/12 for 
Asbestos Removal  

(Pages 119 - 124)  

Head of Housing 

To report on the actual expenditure and overspend for 
asbestos removal in 2009/10 and seek approval for 
additional capital funding in 2010/11. 
 
(Report attached) 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance)  

11. Spring Industry Public 
Art Project  

(Pages 125 - 134)  

Head of Planning and 
Regeneration 

To seek approval for a public art project to celebrate and 
commemorate the spring industry in Redditch. 
 
(Report attached) 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance)  

12. WETT Regulatory Service 
- Delegation to Joint 
Committee  

(Pages 135 - 140)  

Head of Legal, Equalities 
and Democratic Services 

To consider delegation to the Joint Committee which has 
been established to deliver this service on behalf of the 
participating Councils, the functions of the Regulatory service 
that are Executive functions. 
 
(Report attached) 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance)  

13. Irrecoverable Debts  
(Pages 141 - 154)  

Head of Housing 

To consider irrecoverable debts to be written off. 
 
The appendix to this report contains exempt information as 
defined in S.100 of the Local Government Act 1972, as 
amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, as it contains the personal details of 
individuals.   
 
(Report attached) 
 
All Wards  

14. Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee  

(Pages 155 - 180)  

Chief Executive 

To receive the minutes of the meetings of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on 17th and 22nd March and 7th 
April 2010. 
 
There are recommendations for the Executive Committee to 
consider. 
 
(Minutes attached) 
 
  



 
 
Executive 
Committee  

 

 

26th May 2010 
 
 

15. Shared Services Board - 
Recommendations  

(Pages 181 - 198)  

Chief Executive 

To consider recommendations from the Shared Services 
Board meeting on 20th April 2010. 
 
(Minutes and draft Framework Agreement attached) 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance)  

16. Minutes / Referrals - 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, Executive 
Panels, Neighbourhood 
Groups etc.  

Chief Executive 

To receive and consider any outstanding minutes or referrals 
from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Executive 
Panels, Neighbourhood Groups, etc. since the last meeting 
of the Executive Committee, other than as detailed in the 
items above. 
 
  

17. Advisory Panels - update 
report  

(Pages 199 - 202)  

Chief Executive 

To consider, for monitoring / management purposes, an 
update on the work of the Executive Committee’s Advisory 
Panels and similar bodies, which report via the Executive 
Committee. 
 
(Report attached) 
  

18. Action Monitoring  
(Pages 203 - 204)  

Chief Executive 

To consider an update on the actions arising from previous 
meetings of the Committee. 
 
(Report attached) 
  

19. Exclusion of the Public  It may be necessary, in the opinion of the Chief Executive, to 
consider excluding the public from the meeting in relation to 
the following items of business on the grounds that exempt 
information is likely to be divulged. It may be necessary, 
therefore, to move the following resolution: 

“that, under S.100 I of the Local Government Act 1972, 
as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following matter(s) on 
the grounds that it/they involve(s) the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in the relevant 
paragraphs (to be specified) of Part 1 of Schedule 12 (A) 
of the said Act, as amended.”  

20. Confidential Minutes / 
Referrals (if any)  

To consider confidential matters not dealt with earlier in the 
evening and not separately listed below (if any).  

 



 
 

 

 

Executive 
Committee 

  

 

31st March 2010 
 

 

 Chair 
 

 

MINUTES Present: 
  

Councillor Carole Gandy (Chair), Councillor Michael Braley (Vice-Chair) 
and Councillors P Anderson, J Brunner, B Clayton, W Hartnett, N Hicks, 
C MacMillan and M Shurmer 
 

 Also Present: 
 

 Councillor W Norton (Chair – Local Strategic Partnership Task and Finish 
Group)  
 

 Officers: 
 

 C Flanagan, K Dicks, S Hanley, A Marklew, E Baker and L Brockett, 
J Bayley 
 

 Committee Services Officer: 
 

 D Sunman 
 

 
276. APOLOGIES  

 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 

277. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no Declarations of Interest. 
 

278. LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
The Chair advised that the following item of business, scheduled on 
the Forward Plan to be dealt with at this meeting, had been 
rescheduled to a later meeting of the Committee: 
 

• Business Centre Review; 
• Church Green Improvements; 
• Redditch Borough Council Logo; and 
• Provision of New Accommodation for Gypsies, Travellers 

and Show People. 
 

Agenda Item 4Page 1



   

ExecutiveExecutiveExecutiveExecutive    
Committee 

 
 

 
31st March 2010 

 
279. MINUTES  

 
RESOLVED that 
 
the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 10th 
March 2010 be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the 
Chair. 
 

280. LOCAL DEVELOPMENT SCHEME NO 4  
 
The Committee considered a report that outlined the timescales for 
the production of a range of Development Plan Documents for the 
Local Development Scheme (LDS) No 4. 
 
Officers were congratulated for their professionalism in the 
production of the LDS No 4. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
1) the timescales detailed within the Local Development 

Scheme No. 4 for a range of Development Plan 
Documents be agreed; and 

 
RECOMMENDED that 
 
2) Local Development Scheme No.4 be submitted to the 

Government Office for the West Midlands (GOWM) for 
approval.  
 

281. PREFERRED DRAFT CORE STRATEGY  
 
Members considered a report which sought endorsement of the 
Officer responses to the Preferred Draft Core Strategy consultation. 
 
Officers were asked to ensure that all Members of the Joint 
Planning Advisory Panel (JPAP) be made aware when further 
discussion would take place on specific sites and that a further 
report be made to Executive Committee following that meeting. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the Officer responses to the Preferred Draft Core Strategy be 
approved. 
 

282. COMMUNICATIONS STRATEGY 2010 - 2013  
 
The Committee considered a report which sought approval of a 
Communications Strategy and Action Plan for 2010 to 2013. 
 

Page 2



   

ExecutiveExecutiveExecutiveExecutive    
Committee 

 
 

 
31st March 2010 

 
Officers reported that the Communications Strategy was needed to 
provide effective internal and external communications for the 
Council and that the Action Plan would be updated annually.  
Members were informed that a separate Community Engagement 
Strategy would be produced jointly by Bromsgrove District and 
Redditch Borough Councils. 
 
Members felt it important to measure and assess the value and 
success of communications. 
 
RECOMMENDED that 
 
the Communications Strategy 2010 – 2013 be adopted and 
added to the Council’s policy framework from April 2010. 
 

283. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 
RESOLVED that 
 
1) the minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

held on 24th February be noted; and 
 

RECOMMENDED that 
 
2) Councillor J Pearce be appointed as Vice-Chair of the 

Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Panel. 
 

284. REFERRAL FROM THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE - LOCAL STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP TASK AND 
FINISH GROUP - INTERIM REPORT  
 
Councillor Norton, Chair of the Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) 
Task and Finish Group, presented an Interim Report to the 
Committee. 
 
He explained that the recommendations that had been suggested 
by the Task and Finish Group on Engagement and Accountability, if 
approved, could be implemented for the new municipal year. 
 
Members were informed that the recommendations had been 
designed to increase local Councillors’ familiarity and involvement 
with the Redditch Partnership. 
 
A further report that would include recommendations for improving 
performance management of the Redditch Partnership would be 
made to the Executive Committee in June 2010. 
 

Page 3



   

ExecutiveExecutiveExecutiveExecutive    
Committee 

 
 

 
31st March 2010 

 
RECOMMENDED that 
 
the recommendations listed below be referred to the Local 
Strategic Partnership (LSP) for consideration at its next 
meeting: 
 
Engagement 
 
1) following pre-scrutiny by the LSP Task and Finish 

Group, the proposed format and content of the Redditch 
Partnership’s revamped website coverage, to be hosted 
by Redditch Borough Council, be endorsed; 
 

2) an event, along the lines of the ‘We are Redditch’ 
exhibition, be held every year in a form determined 
appropriate by Officers; 
 

3) the Redditch Partnership and appropriate partners 
publicise their work and invite public reaction by 
providing regular updates in Redditch Matters; 
 

4) the Redditch Partnership hold and advertise an Annual 
Meeting, as required by the terms of the Partnership’s 
protocol, which partners, potential partners and 
members of the public be positively encouraged to 
attend; 

 
Accountability 
 
5) a copy of the minutes of the LSP Board’s minutes be 

attached to the full Council agenda as part of Leader’s 
Items to deliver regular updates on the work of Redditch 
Partnership; 
 

6) the Leader of the Council formally provide an Annual 
Report to the last scheduled full Council meeting of the 
municipal year covering the work of the Redditch 
Partnership by formalising the current practice of 
delivering an annual “State of the Borough” address; 
 

7) information about the Redditch Partnership and LSPs be 
provided to for Members’ consideration as part of the 
Member induction process; and 
 

8) a training event focusing on LSPs be provided as a 
standard part of the Member training programme each 
year. 
 

Page 4



   

ExecutiveExecutiveExecutiveExecutive    
Committee 

 
 

 
31st March 2010 

 
285. MINUTES / REFERRALS - OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE, EXECUTIVE PANELS, NEIGHBOURHOOD 
GROUPS ETC.  
 
There were no minutes of referrals. 
 

286. ADVISORY PANELS - UPDATE REPORT  
 
Members received an update on the activity of the Council’s 
Advisory Panels and other bodies. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 
 

287. ACTION MONITORING  
 
Members considered the latest Action Monitoring report. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 
 

288. CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES / REFERRALS (IF ANY)  
 
There were no confidential minutes or referrals. 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting commenced at 7.00 pm 
and closed at 8.40 pm 

Page 5



Page 6



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE  26th MAY 2010  

 

 

COUNCIL PLAN 2010-2013 
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  Cllr Carole Gandy, Leader of the 

Council 
Relevant Head of Service Hugh Bennett, Director of Policy, 

Performance and Partnerships 
Non-Key Decision  

 
1.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
1.1 To agree the Council Plan for 2010-2013 which includes a high level action 

plan for the Council’s new priorities. 
  
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
2.1 The Executive Committee is asked to RECOMMEND that 

 
the Council Plan 2010-2013 attached at Appendix 1 be approved. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Executive and Full Council have approved three priorities:- 
 

• An Enterprising Community 
• Safe 
• Clean and Green 
 

With a fourth overaching priority: A Well Managed Organisation. 
 
3.2 The Council Plan sets out the targets relating to these priorities and the 

proposed strategic actions over the next three years.  The same format has 
been followed to the previous year’s corporate plan, but there are three 
additional appendices: a scorecard that sets out on one page of A4 the 
Council’s priorities and enablers that support these; a strategic action plan 
(which is used by officers to develop the Improvement Plan, which will be 
reported to Executive this year by exception); and a summary of the key 
performance indicators and targets selected for the priorities. 

 
3.3 In line with the new Comprehensive Area Assessment guidance the 

‘Financial’ perspective” of the scorecard (Appendix 1) has been extended to 
encompass ‘Performance’ and the sections under this perspective are now 
‘Managing Finances’, ‘Governing the Business’, ‘Managing Resources’ and 
‘Managing Performance’.  ‘Value for Money’ pervades all of these priorities.   

Agenda Item 5Page 7



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE  26th MAY 2010  

 

 

The Process perspective includes sections on the ‘Shared Services’ project 
and Worcestershire Enhanced Two Tier (WETT).   

  
4. KEY ISSUES 
 
4.1 The Council Plan should reflect strategic discussions on the budget, but 

represented by measures and planned actions, rather than money. 
 
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 These are as set out in the Medium Term Financial Plan approved at Full 

Council.  
 

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 There are no legal implications arising directly from this report. 
 
7. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 None arising directly from this report. 
 
8. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
8.1  The Council plan outlines four Council wide priorities, key deliverables in 

support of each of these and specific actions and measures in relation to 
each key deliverable.    

  
9. RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY 

CONSIDERATIONS 
  
9.1  The Council Plan will be supported by the Council’s strategic risk register.   
 
9.2 There are no Health & Safety considerations. 
 
10. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 The Council Plan contains a number of key performance indicators in 

relation to the Customer Service Centre and a series of planned actions to 
support the development of a customer culture across the Council. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE  26th MAY 2010  

 

 

11. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 None arising directly from this report, but the Council Plan does contain key 

performance indicators relating the equalities agenda. 
 
12. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET 

MANAGEMENT 
 
12.1 None arising directly from the report, but again, the Council Plan contains 

key performance indicators relating to value for money, in particular, Shared 
Services and Worcestershire Enhanced Two Tier. 

 
13. CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY 
 
13.1  The Council Plan contains targets for reducing the Council’s CO2 

emissions. 
 
14. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 
  
14.1 The Council Plan contains a target for increasing productivity by reducing 

sickness absence and improved human resource practices, including: 
workforce planning, the employee survey and corporate training. 

 
15. GOVERNANCE/PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
  
15.1 The Council Plan is the business plan for the whole Council and forms a key 

part of the Council’s governance arrangements. 
 
16. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF 

CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998 
  
16.1 The second priority is “Safe” and contains a range of actions and targets in 

support of this. 
 
17. HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
  
17.1 The Council Plan contains an action to review the Sustainable Community 

Strategy and therefore map the Council’s and our partners current 
interventions in the Borough designed to reduce health inequalities.  Once 
mapped, the Redditch Partnership will need to agree a range of additional 
interventions. 

 
 
 

Page 9



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE  26th MAY 2010  

 

 

18. LESSONS LEARNT 
 
18.1 As part of the 2011/2012 strategic planning process we will need to align the 

formats and production of the two council plans for Bromsgrove District 
Council and Redditch Borough Council, in order to make their production 
more efficient.  

 
19. COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 
 
19.1  None directly in relation to this report, but the priorities are based on 

community engagement work. 
 
20. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

At Portfolio Holder 
Briefing. 
 

Chief Executive 
 

Yes, scorecard and 
KPIs approved by 
CMT. 
 

Executive Director (S151 Officer) 
 

Yes, scorecard and 
KPIs approved by 
CMT. 
 

Executive Director – Leisure, Cultural, 
Environmental and Community Services 
 

Yes, scorecard and 
KPIs approved by 
CMT. 
 

Executive Director – Planning & Regeneration, 
Regulatory and Housing Services  
 

Yes, scorecard and 
KPIs approved by 
CMT. 
 

Director of Policy, Performance and 
Partnerships 
 

Yes 

Head of Service 
 

Yes, scorecard and 
KPIs approved by 
CMT. 
 

Head of Resources  
  

Yes, scorecard and 
KPIs approved by 
CMT. 
 

Page 10



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE  26th MAY 2010  

 

 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

Yes, scorecard and 
KPIs approved by 
CMT. 
 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

N/a 

 
21. WARDS AFFECTED 
 
 All 
  
22. APPENDICES 
  

Appendix 1  Council Plan 2010-2013  
 
 
23. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Corporate Plan 2009-2012  
 

24. KEY 
 

CMT – Corporate Management Team 
KPIs – Key Performance Indicators 
MTFP – Medium Term Financial Plan 

 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name: Hugh Bennett, Director of Policy, Performance and Partnerships 
email: h.bennett@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel: (01527) 881400 

 

Page 11



Page 12



 
1 

Page 13



 
2 

  
C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

  
1.
 
T
he
 C
ou
nc
il’
s 
V
is
io
n 
 

 
2.
 
N
ot
e 
fr
om
 th
e 
C
hi
ef
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

 
3.
 
W
ha
t i
s 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
P
la
n?
 

 
4.
 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
- 
In
tr
od
uc
in
g 
th
e 
B
or
ou
gh
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
5.
 
W
ho
 W
e 
A
re
 

 
6.
 
O
ur
 P
rio
rit
ie
s 
20
10
-2
01
3 

 
7.
 
W
ha
t W

e 
D
o 

 
8.
 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 W
or
ki
ng
 

 
9.
 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 

 
10
. H
ow
 W
e 
W
ill
 D
el
iv
er
 O
ur
 P
rio
rit
ie
s 

 
11
. R
is
k 
M
an
ag
em
en
t 

 
12
. E
qu
al
iti
es
 

 
13
. P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 M
an
ag
em
en
t F
ra
m
ew
or
k 

 A
pp
en
di
x 
1 
– 
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 S
co
re
ca
rd
 

 A
pp
en
di
x 
2 
– 
S
tr
at
eg
ic
 A
ct
io
n 
P
la
n 

 A
pp
en
di
x 
3 
– 
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 M
ea
su
re
s 
S
um
m
ar
y 

       

Page 14



 
3 

 1.
 

T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l’s
 V

is
io

n
 

 “T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l i
s 
co

m
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 e
n
su

ri
n
g
 t
h
at
 R

ed
d
it
ch

 r
em

ai
n
s 
a 
vi
b
ra
n
t 
p
la
ce

 t
o
 

liv
e,
 w

o
rk
 a
n
d
 v
is
it
. W

it
h
 t
h
is
 in

 m
in
d
, w

e 
h
av

e 
d
ra
w
n
 u
p
 a
 n
ew

 v
is
io
n
 o
f 
R
ed

d
it
ch

 
as

 ‘a
n
 e
n
te
rp

ri
si
n
g
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y,
 w

h
ic
h
 is

 s
af
e,
 c
le
an

 a
n
d
 g
re
en

’. 
T
h
is
 p
la
n
 s
et
s 
o
u
t 
h
o
w
 w

e 
w
ill
 w

o
rk
 w

it
h
 o
u
r 
p
ar
tn
er
s 
to
 m

ak
e 
th
is
 v
is
io
n
 a
 

re
al
it
y.
” 

  T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
P
la
n 
fo
r 
20
10
-1
3 
is
 th
e 
`b
ed
ro
ck
` 
fo
r 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il’
s 
w
or
k,
 

pr
og
ra
m
m
es
 a
nd
 a
ct
iv
iti
es
 o
ve
r 
th
e 
ne
xt
 th
re
e 
ye
ar
s;
 fr
om
 w
ha
t w
e 
st
an
d 
fo
r 
an
d 

re
pr
es
en
t (
ou
r 
vi
si
on
 a
nd
 p
rio
rit
ie
s)
 to
 w
ha
t w
e 
ai
m
 to
 a
ch
ie
ve
 (
ou
r 
st
ra
te
gi
c 
ac
tio
n 

pl
an
) 
an
d 
ho
w
 w
e 
w
ill
 k
no
w
 if
 w
e 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
su
cc
es
sf
ul
 a
nd
 d
el
iv
er
ed
 g
re
at
 o
ut
co
m
es
 

fo
r 
th
e 
pe
op
le
 o
f R
ed
di
tc
h 
(o
ur
 c
or
po
ra
te
 p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 in
di
ca
to
rs
 a
nd
 v
al
ue
 fo
r 
m
on
ey
 

st
ra
te
gy
).
   

C
on
tin
ui
ng
 th
e 
bu
ild
in
g 
an
al
og
y,
 w
e 
ha
ve
 m
uc
h 
to
 lo
ok
 fo
rw
ar
d 
to
 a
s 
a 
C
ou
nc
il 
ov
er
 

th
e 
ne
xt
 th
re
e 
ye
ar
s.
 In
 fa
ct
 o
ne
 o
f o
ur
 m
aj
or
 p
ro
je
ct
s 
is
 th
e 
tr
an
sf
or
m
at
io
n 
of
 A
bb
ey
 

S
ta
di
um
, o
ne
 o
f o
ur
 th
re
e 
le
is
ur
e 
ce
nt
re
s,
 to
 in
co
rp
or
at
e 
a 
st
at
e-
of
-t
he
 a
rt
 s
w
im
m
in
g 

po
ol
 a
nd
 r
ev
am
pe
d 
le
is
ur
e 
of
fe
rin
g 
fr
om
 2
01
2 
- 
in
 ti
m
e 
fo
r 
th
e 
O
ly
m
pi
cs
 -
 a
nd
 p
ro
vi
di
ng
 

a 
m
od
er
n 
sw
im
m
in
g 
fa
ci
lit
y 
th
e 
pe
op
le
 o
f R
ed
di
tc
h 
fu
lly
 d
es
er
ve
. 

W
e 
ha
ve
 e
m
ba
rk
ed
 o
n 
th
e 
re
ju
ve
na
tio
n 
of
 th
e 
C
hu
rc
h 
H
ill
 s
ho
pp
in
g 
ce
nt
re
, a
nd
 a
re
 

bu
sy
 fo
llo
w
in
g 
up
 in
te
re
st
 fr
om
 th
e 
pr
iv
at
e 
se
ct
or
 to
 d
ev
el
op
 a
 s
ite
 th
at
 e
m
er
ge
d 
du
rin
g 

ou
r 
ne
w
 to
w
n 
de
ve
lo
pm
en
t i
n 
th
e 
19
70
s 
bu
t n
ow
 n
ee
ds
 r
ev
ita
lis
in
g 
fo
r 
th
e 
21

st
 c
en
tu
ry
.  

W
e 
ha
ve
 h
ig
h 
ho
pe
s 
fo
r 
th
e 
de
ve
lo
pm
en
t o
f W

in
ya
te
s 
an
d 
ha
ve
 s
up
po
rt
ed
 a
 

su
cc
es
sf
ul
 £
85
0,
00
0 
bi
d 
th
ro
ug
h 
th
e 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 a
nd
 W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
s,
 th
e 
lo
ca
l a
nd
 c
ou
nt
y 
st
ra
te
gi
c 
pa
rt
ne
rs
hi
ps
. T
he
 e
xt
er
na
l f
un
di
ng
 w
ill
 b
e 

sp
en
t o
n 
im
pr
ov
em
en
ts
 to
 th
e 
ph
ys
ic
al
 a
pp
ea
ra
nc
e 
an
d 
se
cu
rit
y 
in
 p
ar
ts
 o
f t
hi
s 
W
ar
d.
 

A
 fi
ve
 y
ea
r 
pr
oj
ec
t, 
it 
w
ill
 a
ls
o 
ai
m
 to
 b
oo
st
 c
om
m
un
ity
 p
ar
tic
ip
at
io
n 
an
d 
in
vo
lv
em
en
t i
n 

th
e 
w
or
k 
to
 b
e 
ca
rr
ie
d 
ou
t. 
 

T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
is
 k
ee
n 
to
 r
ai
se
 th
e 
pr
of
ile
 o
f R
ed
di
tc
h.
 O
ur
 p
rio
rit
y 
of
 `
en
te
rp
ris
in
g 

co
m
m
un
ity
` 
is
 b
ei
ng
 p
ro
gr
es
se
d 
w
ith
 a
m
bi
tio
us
 p
la
ns
 to
 d
ev
el
op
 th
e 
to
w
n 
ce
nt
re
 

th
ro
ug
h 
a 
T
ow
n 
C
en
tr
e 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
. U
nd
er
 th
e 
pr
io
rit
y 
`c
le
an
 a
nd
 g
re
en
`,
 th
er
e 
is
 th
e 

en
tr
y 
in
 th
e 
B
rit
ai
n 
in
 B
lo
om
 c
om
pe
tit
io
n 
w
hi
ch
 g
ro
w
s 
- 
ex
cu
si
ng
 th
e 
pu
n 
– 
ou
r 

re
pu
ta
tio
n 
fo
r 
gr
ee
n 
sp
ac
es
 a
nd
 c
ol
ou
rf
ul
 fl
or
al
 b
ed
s.
 W
hi
le
 fo
r 
`s
af
e`
, w
e 
w
ill
 c
on
tin
ue
 

to
 s
up
po
rt
 e
ffo
rt
s 
to
 fu
rt
he
r 
re
du
ce
 c
rim
e 
le
ve
ls
 a
nd
 m
ak
e 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
a 
sa
fe
 p
la
ce
 to
 li
ve
.  

T
he
re
 is
 in
de
ed
 m
uc
h 
to
 b
e 
pr
ou
d 
ab
ou
t i
n 
R
ed
di
tc
h.
 I 
si
nc
er
el
y 
ho
pe
 y
ou
 e
nj
oy
 

  

Page 15



 
4 

re
ad
in
g 
ou
r 
P
la
n 
an
d 
am
bi
tio
ns
 fo
r 
th
e 
ne
xt
 fe
w
 y
ea
rs
. 

 

 
 C
ou
nc
ill
or
 C
ar
ol
e 
G
an
dy
  

Le
ad
er
 o
f R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 

      
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

            
   
 

    
 

Page 16



 
5 

2.
 

N
o

te
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e 
C

h
ie

f 
E

xe
cu

ti
ve

  
  R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
is
 c
om
m
itt
ed
 to
 p
ro
vi
di
ng
 e
ffe
ct
iv
e 
an
d 
ef
fic
ie
nt
 s
er
vi
ce
s.
  

W
e 
w
ill
 c
on
tin
ue
 to
 s
ee
k 
im
pr
ov
em
en
ts
, m
ai
nt
ai
ni
ng
 h
ig
h 
st
an
da
rd
s 
of
 s
er
vi
ce
 a
nd
 

va
lu
e 
fo
r 
m
on
ey
 fo
r 
ou
r 
re
si
de
nt
s 
bo
th
 in
 o
ur
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
an
d 
in
 th
e 
w
ay
 w
e 
de
liv
er
 th
em
.  
 

 A
s 
C
hi
ef
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
fo
r 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
an
d 
B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 D
is
tr
ic
t C
ou
nc
il,
 I 

am
 w
or
ki
ng
 w
ith
 m
y 
ne
w
 s
in
gl
e 
m
an
ag
em
en
t t
ea
m
 to
 d
ev
el
op
 a
 th
re
e 
ye
ar
 p
ro
gr
am
m
e 

of
 s
ha
re
d 
se
rv
ic
es
 a
cr
os
s 
bo
th
 c
ou
nc
ils
.  
S
ha
re
d 
S
er
vi
ce
s 
is
 a
bo
ut
 m
ak
in
g 
be
tte
r 
us
e 
of
 

ex
is
tin
g 
re
so
ur
ce
s,
 in
 o
rd
er
 to
 b
et
te
r 
m
ee
t t
he
 n
ee
ds
 o
f o
ur
 r
es
id
en
ts
.  
W
e 
em
ba
rk
ed
 o
n 

th
is
 p
ro
gr
am
m
e 
in
 a
dv
an
ce
 o
f t
he
 c
re
di
t c
ru
nc
h,
 w
hi
ch
 m
ea
ns
 w
e 
ar
e 
no
w
 w
el
l p
la
ce
d 

to
 r
es
po
nd
 to
 th
e 
an
tic
ip
at
ed
 r
ed
uc
tio
ns
 in
 p
ub
lic
 s
pe
nd
in
g;
 h
ow
ev
er
, I
 e
xp
ec
t t
he
 n
ex
t 

fiv
e 
ye
ar
s 
to
 b
e 
a 
di
ffi
cu
lt 
tim
e 
fo
r 
lo
ca
l g
ov
er
nm
en
t, 
as
 w
e 
ba
la
nc
e 
th
e 
ne
ed
 to
 r
ed
uc
e 

th
e 
pu
bl
ic
 s
ec
to
r 
bo
rr
ow
in
g 
re
qu
ire
m
en
t, 
w
hi
ls
t t
ry
in
g 
to
 m
ai
nt
ai
n 
se
rv
ic
es
 to
 o
ur
 

re
si
de
nt
s.
   

 F
in
al
ly
, i
t i
s 
im
po
rt
an
t t
o 
re
m
in
d 
ev
er
yo
ne
 th
at
 th
e 
S
ha
re
d 
S
er
vi
ce
s 
ag
en
da
 is
 n
ot
 a
bo
ut
 

a 
m
er
ge
r 
of
 th
e 
tw
o 
C
ou
nc
ils
, b
ut
 s
im
pl
y 
a 
w
ay
 o
f l
oo
ki
ng
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
es
 

pr
ov
id
ed
 in
 p
ur
su
it 
of
 e
ac
h 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
ob
je
ct
iv
es
 a
re
 o
f h
ig
h 
qu
al
ity
, c
os
t e
ffe
ct
iv
e 
an
d 

re
sp
on
si
ve
 to
 c
us
to
m
er
 n
ee
ds
. 

  

 
 K
ev
in
 D
ic
ks
 

C
hi
ef
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 

              
   

  

Page 17



 
6 

3.
 

W
h

at
 Is

 T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l P
la

n
?

 
 T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
P
la
n 
fo
rm
s 
on
e 
lin
k 
in
 a
 c
ha
in
 o
f p
la
ns
 a
nd
 s
tr
at
eg
ie
s 
th
at
 li
nk
 to
 

ea
ch
 o
th
er
 to
 a
ch
ie
ve
 a
 v
is
io
n 
fo
r 
th
e 
C
ou
nt
y 
of
 W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
.  
T
he
 p
rio
rit
ie
s 

se
t o
ut
 in
 e
ac
h 
pl
an
 c
on
tr
ib
ut
e 
to
 a
nd
 c
om
pl
em
en
t t
ho
se
 s
et
 in
 th
e 
le
ve
l a
bo
ve
 

th
em
 in
 th
e 
hi
er
ar
ch
y.
   

 T
h
e 
h
ie
ra
rc
h
y 
o
f 
p
la
n
s 
an

d
 s
tr
at
eg

ie
s 

 

 

 

R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
P
la
n 
fo
r 
20
10
 to
 2
01
3 
is
 e
ffe
ct
iv
el
y 
th
e 

bu
si
ne
ss
 p
la
n 
fo
r 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
an
d 
de
m
on
st
ra
te
s 
ho
w
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
w
ill
 

w
or
k 
to
w
ar
ds
 a
ch
ie
vi
ng
 th
e 
ov
er
al
l v
is
io
n 
fo
r 
th
e 
B
or
ou
gh
 s
et
 o
ut
 in
 th
e 

S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 C
om
m
un
ity
 S
tr
at
eg
y 
w
hi
ch
 w
as
 d
ev
el
op
ed
 o
n 
th
e 
ba
si
s 
of
 

ex
te
ns
iv
e 
co
ns
ul
ta
tio
n 
w
ith
 o
ur
 r
es
id
en
ts
. 

T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
P
la
n 
id
en
tif
ie
s 
ou
r 
co
nt
rib
ut
io
n 
to
 th
is
 v
is
io
n,
 a
nd
 g
iv
es
 

fir
m
 c
om
m
itm
en
ts
 o
n 
ho
w
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
w
ill
 d
el
iv
er
 o
n 
its
 o
w
n 
vi
si
on
 o
f 

“A
n 
en
te
rp
ris
in
g 
co
m
m
un
ity
 w
hi
ch
 is
 s
af
e,
 c
le
an
 a
nd
 g
re
en
”.
  T
he
 

C
ou
nc
il 
ha
s 
th
re
e 
pr
io
rit
y 
ar
ea
s:
  

 
E
nt
er
pr
is
in
g 
C
om
m
un
ity
 

 
S
af
e 

 
C
le
an
 a
nd
 G
re
en
 

 It
 a
ls
o 
ex
pl
ai
ns
 w
ha
t t
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
w
ill
 b
e 
do
in
g 
to
 k
ee
p 
its
 o
w
n 
ho
us
e 
in
 

or
de
r,
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
w
e 
co
nt
in
ue
 to
 b
e 
a 
w
el
l m
an
ag
ed
 o
rg
an
is
at
io
n.
 

T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
P
la
n 
w
ill
 b
e 
up
da
te
d 
on
 a
n 
an
nu
al
 b
as
is
.  
A
 s
ep
ar
at
e 

A
nn
ua
l R
ep
or
t w
ill
 r
ep
or
t o
n 
ou
r 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 a
ga
in
st
 o
ur
 ta
rg
et
s 

de
m
on
st
ra
tin
g 
ou
r 
'd
ire
ct
io
n 
of
 tr
av
el
' a
ga
in
st
 o
ur
 p
rio
rit
ie
s.
 T
he
 P
la
n 

se
ts
 o
ut
 o
ne
 to
 th
re
e 
ye
ar
 ta
rg
et
s,
 d
em
on
st
ra
tin
g 
th
at
 c
on
tin
ue
d 

im
pr
ov
em
en
t o
f t
he
 B
or
ou
gh
 is
 n
ot
 a
 q
ui
ck
 fi
x,
 b
ut
 th
e 
re
su
lt 
of
 

fo
cu
ss
ed
, l
on
g-
te
rm
 a
m
bi
tio
n.
 

In
 d
ev
el
op
in
g 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
P
la
n,
 w
e 
ha
ve
 ta
ke
n 
in
to
 a
cc
ou
nt
 n
ot
 o
nl
y 

th
e 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 C
om
m
un
ity
 S
tr
at
eg
y,
 b
ut
 a
ls
o 
th
e 
as
pi
ra
tio
ns
 

of
 o
ur
 r
es
id
en
ts
 a
nd
 th
e 
pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
 fe
at
ur
es
 o
f R
ed
di
tc
h 
as
 a
 fo
rm
er
 

N
ew
 T
ow
n.
 

T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
P
la
n 
pr
ed
om
in
an
tly
 a
dd
re
ss
es
 th
e 
sh
or
t a
nd
 m
ed
iu
m
 te
rm
 

(u
p 
to
 th
re
e 
ye
ar
s)
 a
im
s 
an
d 
ob
je
ct
iv
es
 o
f t
he
 B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il,
 b
ut
 

re
co
gn
is
es
 w
he
re
 is
su
es
 a
re
 li
ke
ly
 to
 b
e 
on
go
in
g 
in
 th
e 
lo
ng
 te
rm
.  
T
he
 

P
la
n 
al
so
 o
ut
lin
es
 h
ow
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
w
ill
 p
ro
ac
tiv
el
y 

m
an
ag
e 
its
 r
es
ou
rc
es
 in
 o
rd
er
 to
 a
ch
ie
ve
 it
s 
ob
je
ct
iv
es
 a
nd
 s
et
s 
ta
rg
et
s 

w
hi
ch
 th
e 
pu
bl
ic
 c
an
 u
se
 to
 m
ea
su
re
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
.  
 

T
he
 P
la
n 
se
ek
s 
th
ro
ug
ho
ut
 to
 a
dd
re
ss
 th
e 
is
su
es
 a
nd
 v
ie
w
s 
of
 a
 w
id
e 

va
rie
ty
 o
f s
ta
ke
ho
ld
er
s,
 in
cl
ud
in
g 
re
si
de
nt
s,
 M
em
be
rs
 o
f t
he
 C
ou
nc
il 

an
d 
pa
rt
ne
r 
or
ga
ni
sa
tio
ns
. 

  

C
o

u
n

ci
l P

la
n

 
an

d
 M

T
F

P
 

S
er

vi
ce

 B
u

si
n

es
s 

P
la

n
s 

T
ea

m
 P

la
n

s 
an

d
 P

er
so

n
al

 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
(P

D
R

s)
 

S
u

st
ai

n
ab

le
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y 

Page 18



 
7 

4.
 

R
ed

d
it

ch
 –

 In
tr

o
d

u
ci

n
g

 t
h

e 
B

o
ro

u
g

h
 

  F
ig

u
re

 1
: 

M
ap

 o
f 

R
ed

d
it

ch
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

 

 
           

E
co

n
o
m
y 

 R
ed
di
tc
h 
ha
s 
be
en
 id
en
tif
ie
d 
in
 th
e 
W
es
t M
id
la
nd
s 
R
eg
io
na
l S
pa
tia
l 

S
tr
at
eg
y 
(R
S
S
) 
as
 a
 S
tr
at
eg
ic
 T
ow
n 
C
en
tr
e.
  T
he
 R
S
S
 is
 in
te
nd
ed
 to
 

pr
om
ot
e 
th
e 
de
ve
lo
pm
en
t o
f a
 r
eg
io
n-
w
id
e 
ne
tw
or
k 
of
 s
tr
at
eg
ic
 c
en
tr
es
 

ac
ro
ss
 th
e 
W
es
t M
id
la
nd
s,
 w
hi
ch
 a
re
 s
ee
n 
as
 a
 fo
cu
s 
fo
r 
m
aj
or
 n
ew
 r
et
ai
l 

de
ve
lo
pm
en
ts
 a
nd
 r
eg
en
er
at
io
n.
 

R
ed
di
tc
h 
en
jo
ys
 e
xc
el
le
nt
 tr
an
sp
or
t l
in
ks
 lo
ca
lly
 w
ith
 v
er
y 
lit
tle
 c
on
ge
st
io
n,
 

in
cl
ud
in
g 
a 
st
ro
ng
 n
et
w
or
k 
of
 d
ua
l c
ar
ria
ge
w
ay
s 
an
d 
A
-r
oa
ds
.  
T
he
 n
ea
rb
y 

M
42
 a
nd
 M
5 
m
ot
or
w
ay
s 
pr
ov
id
e 
ac
ce
ss
 fu
rt
he
r 
af
ie
ld
 a
nd
 B
irm
in
gh
am
 

A
irp
or
t f
ac
ili
ta
te
s 
na
tio
na
l a
nd
 in
te
rn
at
io
na
l t
ra
ve
l. 
 P
ub
lic
 tr
an
sp
or
t i
s 

pr
ov
id
ed
 v
ia
 a
 tr
ai
n 
an
d 
bu
s 
ne
tw
or
k.
 

U
nd
er
 P
ha
se
 2
 o
f t
he
 R
eg
io
na
l S
pa
tia
l S
tr
at
eg
y 
(R
S
S
),
 if
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
is
   

de
si
gn
at
ed
 “
S
et
tle
m
en
t o
f S
ig
ni
fic
an
t D
ev
el
op
m
en
t”
 it
 is
 e
xp
ec
te
d 
to
 b
e 
th
e 

lo
ca
tio
n 
fo
r 
si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
 h
ou
si
ng
 g
ro
w
th
 to
 m
ee
t i
ts
 o
w
n 
ne
ed
s 
be
tw
ee
n 

20
06
 a
nd
 2
02
6.
  T
hi
s 
w
ou
ld
 h
av
e 
a 
di
re
ct
 im
pa
ct
 o
n 
is
su
es
 s
uc
h 
as
 

po
pu
la
tio
n,
 e
m
pl
oy
m
en
t, 
tr
an
sp
or
t, 
w
as
te
 a
nd
 o
th
er
 s
er
vi
ce
 p
ro
vi
si
on
.  
 

T
he
re
 is
 a
ls
o 
lik
el
y 
to
 b
e 
a 
si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
 im
pa
ct
 o
n 
th
e 
ne
ig
hb
ou
rin
g 

au
th
or
iti
es
 o
f B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 a
nd
 S
tr
at
fo
rd
 u
po
n 
A
vo
n.
  T
hi
s 
w
ill
 b
e 
m
ad
e 
vi
a 

th
e 
R
S
S
 p
ro
ce
ss
 a
nd
 a
ut
ho
rit
ie
s 
w
ill
 m
ak
e 
th
ei
r 
ow
n 
de
te
rm
in
at
io
ns
.  
T
he
 

la
ck
 o
f s
pa
ce
 fo
r 
ho
us
in
g 
de
ve
lo
pm
en
t w
ith
in
 th
e 
B
or
ou
gh
 w
ill
 n
ec
es
si
ta
te
 

so
m
e 
of
 th
e 
ne
w
 h
ou
si
ng
 b
ei
ng
 s
ite
d 
w
ith
in
 th
e 
bo
un
da
rie
s 
of
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 

D
is
tr
ic
t. 

 T
he
re
 is
 a
 s
tr
on
g 
m
an
uf
ac
tu
rin
g 
ba
se
 to
 R
ed
di
tc
h’
s 
ec
on
om
y.
  T
he
 

pr
op
or
tio
n 
of
 in
di
vi
du
al
s 
em
pl
oy
ed
 in
 m
an
uf
ac
tu
rin
g 
in
du
st
ry
 (
25
%
) 
is
 

co
ns
id
er
ab
ly
 h
ig
he
r 
th
an
 b
ot
h 
th
e 
C
ou
nt
y 
an
d 
W
es
t M
id
la
nd
s 
re
gi
on
 

av
er
ag
e.
  R
ed
di
tc
h 
ha
s 
fe
w
er
 in
di
vi
du
al
s 
em
pl
oy
ed
 in
 d
is
tr
ib
ut
io
n,
 h
ot
el
s 

an
d 
re
st
au
ra
nt
s 
co
m
pa
re
d 
to
 o
th
er
 a
re
as
 o
f W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
.  
T
he
 e
co
no
m
ic
 

do
w
nt
ur
n 
ov
er
 th
e 
la
st
 y
ea
r 
is
 a
ffe
ct
in
g 
ev
er
yo
ne
; h
ow
ev
er
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
ha
s 

be
en
 h
it 
ha
rd
es
t w
he
n 
co
m
pa
re
d 
to
 W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 a
s 
a 
w
ho
le
. 

  

Page 19



 
8 

G
eo

g
ra
p
h
y 

 T
he
 B
or
ou
gh
 o
f R
ed
di
tc
h 
is
 s
itu
at
ed
 in
 th
e 
W
es
t M
id
la
nd
s 
R
eg
io
n 

ap
pr
ox
im
at
el
y 
24
 k
m
 (
15
 m
ile
s)
 s
ou
th
 o
f B
irm
in
gh
am
. I
t l
ie
s 
w
ith
in
 th
e 

ad
m
in
is
tr
at
iv
e 
bo
un
da
ry
 o
f W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 C
ou
nt
y 
C
ou
nc
il 
an
d 
is
 a
dj
ac
en
t 

to
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 D
is
tr
ic
t t
o 
its
 n
or
th
 a
nd
 w
es
t, 
S
tr
at
fo
rd
-u
po
n-
A
vo
n 
D
is
tr
ic
t t
o 
 

th
e 
ea
st
 a
nd
 W
yc
ha
vo
n 
D
is
tr
ic
t t
o 
th
e 
so
ut
h.
 T
he
 B
or
ou
gh
 h
as
 a
 p
op
ul
at
io
n 

of
 7
9,
60
0 
w
ith
 a
 h
ig
he
r 
pe
rc
en
ta
ge
 o
f y
ou
ng
 p
eo
pl
e 
(a
ge
 0
-1
9 
ye
ar
s)
 

co
m
pa
re
d 
to
 th
e 
re
st
 o
f t
he
 C
ou
nt
y.
  M
os
t o
f t
he
 p
op
ul
at
io
n 
(9
3%
) 
liv
es
 

w
ith
in
 th
e 
to
w
n 
of
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
w
hi
ch
 a
cc
ou
nt
s 
fo
r 
ap
pr
ox
im
at
el
y 
ha
lf 
th
e 

ge
og
ra
ph
ic
al
 a
re
a 
of
 th
e 
B
or
ou
gh
.  

 R
ed
di
tc
h,
 a
lth
ou
gh
 a
 N
ew
 T
ow
n,
 h
as
 r
et
ai
ne
d 
m
an
y 
im
po
rt
an
t e
co
lo
gi
ca
l 

an
d 
la
nd
sc
ap
e 
fe
at
ur
es
, w
ith
 th
e 
na
tiv
e 
flo
ra
 r
et
ai
ne
d 
an
d 
la
rg
el
y 
un
al
te
re
d 

fr
om
 th
at
 o
f a
n 
ec
ol
og
ic
al
 s
ur
ve
y 
in
 1
96
6.
  P
on
ds
, h
ed
ge
s 
an
d 
gr
ee
n 

sp
ac
es
 a
ll 
he
lp
 to
 h
ol
d 
to
ge
th
er
 th
e 
im
po
rt
an
t e
co
lo
gi
ca
l i
nf
ra
st
ru
ct
ur
e.
  

R
ed
di
tc
h 
ha
s 
5.
7 
he
ct
ar
es
 o
f o
pe
n 
sp
ac
e 
pe
r 
1,
00
0 
po
pu
la
tio
n.
 

 

 

L
ei
su

re
 

 C
ul
tu
ra
l a
ttr
ac
tio
ns
 w
ith
in
 th
e 
B
or
ou
gh
 in
cl
ud
e 
th
e 
F
or
ge
 M
ill
 N
ee
dl
e 

M
us
eu
m
, B
or
de
sl
ey
 A
bb
ey
, A
rr
ow
 V
al
le
y 
P
ar
k 
w
hi
ch
 c
en
tr
es
 a
ro
un
d 
th
e 
12
 

he
ct
ar
e 
(3
0 
ac
re
) 
la
ke
 a
nd
 a
dj
ac
en
t C
ou
nt
ry
si
de
 C
en
tr
e.
  T
he
 to
w
n 
ce
nt
re
 

of
fe
rs
 th
e 
P
al
ac
e 
T
he
at
re
 a
s 
w
el
l a
s 
a 
m
ul
ti-
sc
re
en
 c
in
em
a 
an
d 
th
er
e 
is
 a
 

w
id
e 
ra
ng
e 
of
 s
po
rt
s 
fa
ci
lit
ie
s 
ac
ro
ss
 th
e 
B
or
ou
gh
 in
cl
ud
in
g 
sp
or
ts
 c
en
tr
es
, 

sw
im
m
in
g 
po
ol
s,
 fo
ot
ba
ll 
pi
tc
he
s,
 g
ol
f c
ou
rs
es
 a
nd
 a
 s
ka
te
 p
ar
k.
  T
he
 to
w
n 

al
so
 h
as
 n
um
er
ou
s 
pl
ay
 fa
ci
lit
ie
s 
w
ith
in
 it
s 
ne
ig
hb
ou
rh
oo
ds
 a
nd
 r
es
id
en
ts
 c
an
 

ac
ce
ss
 a
 fu
ll 
ra
ng
e 
of
 a
ct
iv
iti
es
 c
ov
er
in
g 
A
rt
s,
 S
po
rt
s 
an
d 
P
la
y 
de
ve
lo
pm
en
t. 
 

 

 

  

 

Page 20



 
9 

5.
 

W
h

o
 W

e 
A

re
 

 T
he
re
 a
re
 2
9 
E
le
ct
ed
 M
em
be
rs
 o
f R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il.
 F
ec
ke
nh
am
 

P
ar
is
h 
C
ou
nc
il 
is
 th
e 
on
ly
 P
ar
is
h 
C
ou
nc
il 
w
ith
in
 th
e 
B
or
ou
gh
.  
S
in
ce
 J
un
e 

20
02
 th
e 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
ha
s 
op
er
at
ed
 a
n 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
C
om
m
itt
ee
 (
“L
ea
de
r 

an
d 
C
ab
in
et
”)
 a
nd
 O
ve
rv
ie
w
 a
nd
 S
cr
ut
in
y 
st
ru
ct
ur
e.
   
O
ve
ra
ll 
co
nt
ro
l o
f t
he
 

C
ou
nc
il 
m
ov
ed
 to
 th
e 
C
on
se
rv
at
iv
es
 in
 M
ay
 2
00
8 
fo
r 
th
e 
fir
st
 ti
m
e 
si
nc
e 

19
82
. 

 C
ur
re
nt
ly
, n
in
e 
C
ou
nc
ill
or
s 
si
t o
n 
th
e 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
C
om
m
itt
ee
, s
ix
 o
f w
ho
m
 

ha
ve
 a
 s
et
 o
f r
es
po
ns
ib
ili
tie
s 
re
fe
rr
ed
 to
 a
s 
a 
“P
or
tfo
lio
”.
   
D
ec
is
io
ns
 a
re
 

m
ad
e 
by
 th
e 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
C
om
m
itt
ee
 c
ol
le
ct
iv
el
y 
an
d 
P
or
tfo
lio
 h
ol
de
rs
 d
o 
no
t 

ha
ve
 d
el
eg
at
ed
 a
ut
ho
rit
y 
to
 m
ak
e 
de
ci
si
on
s 
on
 b
eh
al
f o
f t
he
 C
om
m
itt
ee
.  

 P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
rs
 a
re
 a
pp
oi
nt
ed
 a
nn
ua
lly
 b
y 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
an
d 
be
tw
ee
n 
th
em
 

co
ve
r 
al
l a
re
as
 o
f t
he
 C
ou
nc
il’
s 
w
or
k 
an
d 
re
sp
on
si
bi
lit
y.
  “
P
or
tfo
lio
” 
in
di
ca
te
s 
a 

sp
ec
ifi
ed
 a
re
a 
of
 r
es
po
ns
ib
ili
ty
 a
llo
tte
d 
by
 fo
rm
al
 r
es
ol
ut
io
n,
 fo
r 
th
e 
pu
rp
os
es
 

lis
te
d 
be
lo
w
: 

 • 
M
on
ito
rin
g 
C
ou
nc
il 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 

• 
M
on
ito
rin
g 
th
e 
im
pl
em
en
ta
tio
n 
of
 C
ou
nc
il 
po
lic
y 
an
d 
de
ci
si
on
s 

• 
A
ct
 a
s 
co
ns
ul
te
e 
fo
r 
M
em
be
rs
 a
nd
 O
ffi
ce
rs
 

• 
A
ct
 a
s 
“S
po
ke
sp
er
so
n”
  f
or
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
(b
ut
 n
ot
 e
xc
lu
si
ve
ly
) 

• 
A
ct
 a
s 
“R
ap
po
rt
eu
r”
 to
 O
ve
rv
ie
w
 a
nd
 S
cr
ut
in
y 
an
d 
as
 a
 c
ha
nn
el
 fo
r 

fe
ed
ba
ck
 fr
om
 r
ep
re
se
nt
at
iv
es
 o
f o
ut
si
de
 b
od
ie
s 

• 
U
nd
er
ta
ke
 a
 h
ig
he
r 
le
ve
l o
f i
nv
ol
ve
m
en
t w
ith
 th
e 
Lo
ca
l S
tr
at
eg
ic
 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 

 

 

 T
he
 s
ix
 P
or
tfo
lio
s 
an
d 
th
e 
fu
nc
tio
ns
 th
ey
 c
ov
er
 a
re
: 

 • 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
L

ea
d

er
sh

ip
 a

n
d

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip
   

T
hi
s 
po
rt
fo
lio
 c
ov
er
s 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
re
la
tio
ns
hi
ps
 w
ith
 o
th
er
 p
ar
tn
er
s 

an
d 
st
ak
eh
ol
de
rs
, b
ot
h 
lo
ca
lly
 w
ith
in
 th
e 
C
ou
nt
y,
 r
eg
io
na
lly
 a
nd
 

na
tio
na
lly
. 

 
• 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
af

et
y 
  

T
hi
s 
po
rt
fo
lio
 c
ov
er
s 
th
e 
ar
ea
s 
of
 C
rim
e 
&
 D
is
or
de
r,
 S
af
er
 

C
om
m
un
iti
es
 a
nd
 th
e 
Li
ce
ns
in
g 
fu
nc
tio
n.
 

 • 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
  

T
hi
s 
po
rt
fo
lio
 c
ov
er
s 
in
te
rn
al
 s
ys
te
m
s 
an
d 
su
pp
or
t s
er
vi
ce
s,
 

in
cl
ud
in
g 
A
dm
in
is
tr
at
io
n,
 A
ud
it,
 F
in
an
ce
, H
um
an
 R
es
ou
rc
es
, I
T
 

S
er
vi
ce
s,
 A
ss
et
 M
an
ag
em
en
t a
nd
 C
us
to
m
er
 S
er
vi
ce
s.
 

 • 
H

o
u

si
n

g
, L

o
ca

l E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

an
d

 H
ea

lt
h

  -
   

   
   

   
   

T
hi
s 
po
rt
fo
lio
 c
ov
er
s 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
H
ou
si
ng
 M
an
ag
em
en
t r
ol
e 
as
   

La
nd
lo
rd
, S
tr
at
eg
ic
 H
ou
si
ng
 r
es
po
ns
ib
ili
tie
s,
 H
ea
lth
-r
el
at
ed
 

S
er
vi
ce
s,
 S
us
ta
in
ab
ili
ty
, B
et
te
r 
E
nv
iro
nm
en
t, 
La
nd
sc
ap
e,
 C
le
an
si
ng
, 

W
as
te
 M
an
ag
em
en
t, 
O
pe
n 
S
pa
ce
 a
nd
 L
oc
al
 A
ge
nd
a 
21
. 

 
• 

L
ei

su
re

 a
n

d
  

T
hi
s 
po
rt
fo
lio
 c
ov
er
s 
C
ul
tu
re
 a
nd
 R
ec
re
at
io
n,
 C
om
m
un
ity
 T
ra
in
in
g,
 

E
du
ca
tio
n,
 L
ea
rn
in
g 
an
d 
S
ki
lls
, t
he
 V
ol
un
ta
ry
 S
ec
to
r 
an
d 
C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 

C
en
tr
es
. 

 • 
P

la
n

n
in

g
, E

co
n

o
m

ic
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
an

d
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
   

 
   

   
   

   
 T
hi
s 
po
rt
fo
lio
 c
ov
er
s 
P
la
nn
in
g,
 E
co
no
m
ic
 D
ev
el
op
m
en
t a
nd
 P
ub
lic
 

T
ra
ns
po
rt
. 

 
 

Page 21



 
10
 

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 T

E
A

M
  S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

 
 

 

K
ev

in
 D

ic
ks

 
C

h
ie

f 
E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 
(H

ea
d

 o
f 

P
ai

d
 S

er
vi

ce
) 

 

Ja
yn

e 
P

ic
ke

ri
n

g
 

 
E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 D
ir

ec
to

r 
(S

ec
ti

o
n

 1
51

 O
ff

ic
er

) 
 

 

Jo
h

n
 

G
o

d
w

in
 

 
H

ea
d

 o
f 

L
ei

su
re

 
an

d
 

C
u

lt
u

ra
l 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

H
u

g
h

 B
en

n
et

t 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o

f 
P

o
lic

y,
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
n

d
 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 

G
u

y 
R

ev
an

s 
 

H
ea

d
 o

f 
E

n
vi

ro
-

m
en

ta
l 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

T
er

es
a 

K
ri

st
u

n
as

 
 

H
ea

d
 o

f 
R

es
o

u
rc

es
 

C
la

ir
e 

F
el

to
n

 
H

ea
d

 o
f 

L
eg

al
,  

E
q

u
al

it
ie

s 
 

&
 

D
em

o
cr

at
ic

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

 
(M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

O
ff

ic
er

) 

 

Jo
h

n
 S

ta
n

ila
n

d
 

 
E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 D
ir

ec
to

r 

S
u

e 
H

an
le

y 
 

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 D

ir
ec

to
r 

&
 

D
ep

u
ty

 C
h

ie
f 

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 

 

R
u

th
 

B
am

fo
rd

 
  

H
ea

d
 o

f 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 

an
d

 
R

eg
en

. 

A
m

an
d

a 
 

D
e 

W
ar

r 
 

H
ea

d
 o

f 
C

u
st

o
m

er
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

(s
ta
rt
s 

Ju
n
e/
Ju

ly
) 

A
n

g
ie

 
H

ei
g

h
w

ay
 

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

 

   
R

eg
u

la
to

ry
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 

 

L
iz

 
T

o
m

p
ki

n
 

 
H

ea
d

 o
f 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

 

D
eb

 P
o
o
le
 

  
H

ea
d

 o
f 

 
B

u
si

n
es

s 
T

ra
n

sf
o

rm
at

io
n

 

Page 22



 
11
 

6.
 

O
u

r 
P

ri
o

ri
ti

es
 2

01
0-

20
13

 
In
 2
00
8 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
re
vi
ew
ed
 it
s 
pr
io
rit
ie
s 
an
d 
ha
s 
se
t o
ut
 n
ew
 

pr
io
rit
ie
s.
  W

ith
 e
ffe
ct
 fr
om
 1
 A
pr
il 
20
09
, t
he
 C
ou
nc
il’
s 
pr
io
rit
ie
s 
w
er
e:
 

 

• 
E
nt
er
pr
is
in
g 
C
om
m
un
ity
 

• 
S
af
e 

• 
C
le
an
 a
nd
 G
re
en
 

T
he
se
 p
rio
rit
ie
s 
re
m
ai
n 
un
ch
an
ge
d.
 

T
he
se
 p
rio
rit
ie
s 
en
co
m
pa
ss
 th
e 
fo
llo
w
in
g 
ai
m
s:
- 

 
 

E
n

te
rp

ri
si

n
g

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

• 
W
e 
w
an
t R
ed
di
tc
h 
to
 b
e 
a 
vi
br
an
t a
nd
 v
ita
l B
or
ou
gh
 w
he
re
 

its
 p
op
ul
at
io
n 
is
 w
el
l e
du
ca
te
d 
ha
s 
hi
gh
 s
ki
ll 
le
ve
ls
, i
s 

he
al
th
y 
an
d 
fit
, h
ou
si
ng
 is
 e
xc
el
le
nt
 a
nd
 v
ar
ie
d 
an
d 
th
e 

co
m
m
un
ity
 is
 s
er
ve
d 
by
 a
 p
ro
sp
er
ou
s 
to
w
n 
ce
nt
re
 a
nd
 h
as
 

ac
ce
ss
 to
 fi
rs
t c
la
ss
 le
is
ur
e 
fa
ci
lit
ie
s.
  W

e 
al
so
 w
an
t t
he
 

C
ou
nc
il’
s 
vo
ic
e 
to
 b
e 
in
flu
en
tia
l a
nd
 r
es
pe
ct
ed
 b
y 
re
si
de
nt
s,
 

pa
rt
ne
rs
, o
th
er
 g
ov
er
nm
en
ta
l a
ge
nc
ie
s 
an
d 
su
pp
lie
rs
.  
T
he
 

T
ow
n’
s 
ec
on
om
y 
sh
ou
ld
 p
ro
vi
de
 s
uf
fic
ie
nt
 h
ig
h 
qu
al
ity
 jo
bs
 

fo
r 
re
si
de
nt
s 
w
ith
 g
oo
d 
le
ve
ls
 o
f p
ay
 a
nd
 r
ew
ar
d 
lo
ca
tin
g 
in
 

th
e 
B
or
ou
gh
. 

 

 
S

af
e 

T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
w
ill
 w
or
k 
in
 p
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 w
ith
 o
th
er
 a
ge
nc
ie
s 

th
ro
ug
h 
th
e 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
C
om
m
un
ity
 S
af
et
y 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 to
 r
ed
uc
e 

cr
im
e 
an
d 
di
so
rd
er
.  
T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
w
ill
 id
en
tif
y 
ke
y 
pr
oj
ec
ts
 to
 

bu
ild
 c
om
m
un
ity
 c
on
fid
en
ce
 a
nd
 a
llo
w
 r
es
id
en
ts
 a
nd
 v
is
ito
rs
 to
 

be
 s
af
e 
an
d 
fe
el
 s
af
e.
   

  

 
 

C
le

an
 a

n
d

 g
re

en
 

T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
w
ill
 d
ev
el
op
 a
ttr
ac
tiv
e 
op
en
 s
pa
ce
s,
 ta
ki
ng
 

en
fo
rc
em
en
t a
ct
io
n 
ag
ai
ns
t l
itt
er
in
g,
 fl
y 
tip
pi
ng
 a
nd
 o
th
er
 

be
ha
vi
ou
r 
de
tr
im
en
ta
l t
o 
th
e 
en
vi
ro
nm
en
t, 
w
he
re
 a
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
, 

an
d 
su
pp
or
tin
g 
m
ea
su
re
s 
to
 ta
ck
le
 c
lim
at
e 
ch
an
ge
. 

T
o 
un
de
rp
in
 th
e 
de
liv
er
y 
of
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
pr
io
rit
ie
s 
it 
is
 r
ec
og
ni
se
d 

th
at
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
ne
ed
s 
to
 b
e:
 

 
A

 W
el

l M
an

ag
ed

 O
rg

an
is

at
io

n
 

W
e 
w
an
t R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
to
 b
e 
an
 o
rg
an
is
at
io
n 

th
at
 u
se
s 
its
 r
es
ou
rc
es
 e
ffe
ct
iv
el
y 
in
 o
rd
er
 to
 a
ch
ie
ve
 it
s 

pr
io
rit
ie
s 
an
d 
va
lu
es
 a
nd
 d
el
iv
er
s 
hi
gh
 q
ua
lit
y 
se
rv
ic
es
 th
at
 

m
ee
t t
he
 n
ee
ds
 o
f i
ts
 r
es
id
en
ts
 a
nd
 p
ro
vi
de
 v
al
ue
 fo
r 

m
on
ey
.  
 

T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l’s
 V

al
u

es
 

T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
ha
s 
a 
se
t o
f v
al
ue
s 
th
at
 s
up
po
rt
 th
e 
V
is
io
n 
an
d 

P
rio
rit
ie
s 
an
d 
pr
ov
id
e 
th
e 
fr
am
ew
or
k 
in
 w
hi
ch
 d
ec
is
io
ns
 w
ill
 b
e 

m
ad
e.
  T
he
se
 v
al
ue
s 
ar
e:
 

• 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

 
W
or
ki
ng
 e
ffe
ct
iv
el
y 
w
ith
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
in
 th
e 
pu
bl
ic
, p
riv
at
e 
an
d 

vo
lu
nt
ar
y 
se
ct
or
s 
to
 d
el
iv
er
 o
ur
 p
rio
rit
ie
s 

• 
F

ai
rn

es
s 

   
 

E
qu
al
ity
 o
f t
re
at
m
en
t i
n 
th
e 
pr
ov
is
io
n 
of
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
an
d 

em
pl
oy
m
en
t f
or
 e
ve
ry
on
e 
in
 th
e 
B
or
ou
gh
. 

• 
Q

u
al

it
y 

o
f 

S
er

vi
ce
  (
B
es
t V
al
ue
) 

 
P
ro
vi
di
ng
 a
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
 a
nd
 e
ffe
ct
iv
e 
se
rv
ic
es
 th
at
 a
ch
ie
ve
 

va
lu
e 
fo
r 
m
on
ey
. 

• 
M

o
d

er
n

is
at

io
n
 (
C
on
su
lta
tio
n)
 

 
C
on
su
lti
ng
 w
ith
 r
es
id
en
ts
 a
nd
 o
th
er
 s
ta
ke
ho
ld
er
s 
on
 h
ow
 w
e 

ca
n 
im
pr
ov
e 
ou
r 
se
rv
ic
es
 a
nd
 th
e 
w
ay
 in
 w
hi
ch
 w
e 
de
liv
er
 

th
em
.  

It 
is
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
in
te
nt
io
n 
to
 r
ev
ie
w
 th
es
e 
va
lu
es
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
ey
 

co
nt
in
ue
 to
 r
ef
le
ct
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
as
pi
ra
tio
ns
. 

Page 23



 
12
 

7.
 

W
h

at
 W

e 
D

o
 

O
u
r 
S
er
vi
ce

s 
A
ll 
D
is
tr
ic
t C
ou
nc
ils
 p
ro
vi
de
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
to
 th
e 
pu
bl
ic
 –
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
is
 o
bl
ig
ed
 to
 

pr
ov
id
e 
so
m
e 
of
 th
em
 b
ut
 h
as
 a
 c
ho
ic
e 
ab
ou
t w
he
th
er
 o
r 
no
t i
t p
ro
vi
de
s 
th
e 

ot
he
rs
.  
T
he
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
pr
ov
id
ed
 b
y 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
in
cl
ud
e:
 

• 
E
nv
iro
nm
en
ta
l H
ea
lth
 

• 
H
om
el
es
sn
es
s 
an
d 
ho
us
in
g 
ad
vi
ce
 

• 
Li
ce
ns
in
g 
S
er
vi
ce
s 

• 
P
la
nn
in
g 
S
er
vi
ce
s 

• 
R
ev
en
ue
 C
ol
le
ct
io
n 

• 
W
as
te
 C
ol
le
ct
io
n 

• 
S
tr
ee
t c
le
an
si
ng
 

• 
W
or
ki
ng
 in
 p
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 w
ith
 th
e 
P
ol
ic
e 
an
d 
ot
he
r 
or
ga
ni
sa
tio
ns
 to
 

im
pr
ov
e 
co
m
m
un
ity
 s
af
et
y 

• 
E
co
no
m
ic
 D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

• 
C
ou
nc
il 
H
ou
si
ng
 M
an
ag
em
en
t 

• 
C
us
to
m
er
 S
er
vi
ce
 C
en
tr
e 
to
 p
ro
vi
de
 a
 s
in
gl
e 
po
in
t o
f c
on
ta
ct
 fo
r 

C
ou
nc
il 
S
er
vi
ce
s 
( 
te
le
ph
on
e 
an
d 
fa
ce
 to
 fa
ce
 )
 

• 
O
ne
 S
to
p 
S
ho
ps
 a
nd
 C
on
ta
ct
 C
en
tr
e 
to
 p
ro
vi
de
 a
 s
in
gl
e 
po
in
t o
f 

co
nt
ac
t f
or
 C
ou
nc
il 
S
er
vi
ce
s 

• 
F
re
e 
bu
s 
fa
re
s 
sc
he
m
e 
fo
r 
ol
de
r 
pe
op
le
 a
nd
 th
os
e 
w
ith
 s
pe
ci
fie
d 

di
sa
bi
lit
ie
s 

• 
S
ho
pm
ob
ili
ty
 d
is
ab
ili
ty
 s
co
ot
er
s 
an
d 
w
he
el
ch
ai
rs
 to
 e
na
bl
e 

di
sa
bl
ed
 p
eo
pl
e 
to
 a
cc
es
s 
th
e 
T
ow
n 
C
en
tr
e 

• 
D
ia
l-A
-R
id
e 
tr
an
sp
or
t s
er
vi
ce
 fo
r 
ol
de
r 
an
d 
pe
op
le
 w
ith
 d
is
ab
ili
tie
s 

w
ho
 h
av
e 
di
ffi
cu
lty
 in
 u
si
ng
 p
ub
lic
 tr
an
sp
or
t 

• 
C
om
m
un
ity
 C
en
tr
es
 

• 
T
he
 P
al
ac
e 
T
he
at
re
 

    

• 
F
or
ge
 M
ill
 N
ee
dl
e 
M
us
eu
m
 a
nd
 B
or
de
sl
ey
 A
bb
ey
 V
is
ito
r 
C
en
tr
e 
 

• 
S
po
rt
s 
C
en
tr
es
 a
nd
 s
w
im
m
in
g 
po
ol
s 
 

• 
A
rr
ow
 V
al
le
y 
P
ar
k 
an
d 
M
or
to
n 
S
ta
nl
ey
 P
ar
k 

• 
A
rr
ow
 V
al
le
y 
C
ou
nt
ry
si
de
 V
is
ito
rs
 C
en
tr
e 
 

• 
C
re
m
at
or
iu
m
 a
nd
 c
em
et
er
ie
s 

• 
S
up
po
rt
in
g 
an
d 
pr
om
ot
in
g 
th
e 
A
rt
s 
an
d 
Y
ou
th
 T
he
at
re
 

• 
P
la
y 
A
re
as
 a
nd
 m
ul
ti 
ac
tiv
ity
 p
la
y 
ar
ea
s 

• 
P
la
yi
ng
 p
itc
he
s 
an
d 
as
so
ci
at
ed
 c
ha
ng
in
g 
fa
ci
lit
ie
s 

• 
 R
E
D
I C
en
tr
e 

• 
R
ed
di
ca
rd
 le
is
ur
e 
pa
ss
 s
ch
em
e 

• 
M
an
ag
em
en
t o
f f
ou
r 
C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 
C
en
tr
es
 a
cr
os
s 
th
e 
B
or
ou
gh
 

• 
C
C
T
V
/L
ife
lin
e 

• 
C
om
m
un
ity
 S
er
vi
ce
s 

• 
La
nd
sc
ap
e 
m
ai
nt
en
an
ce
/im
pr
ov
em
en
ts
 

• 
M
ar
ke
t S
er
vi
ce
s 

 R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
is
 th
e 
on
ly
 D
is
tr
ic
t C
ou
nc
il 
w
ith
in
 W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 

th
at
 s
til
l m
ai
nt
ai
ns
 it
s 
ow
n 
st
oc
k 
of
 r
en
te
d 
ho
us
in
g.
 

 T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
al
so
 h
as
 a
 c
om
m
un
ity
 le
ad
er
sh
ip
 r
ol
e.
  T
hi
s 
co
m
m
its
 u
s 
to
 

de
ve
lo
p,
 to
ge
th
er
 w
ith
 o
ur
 p
ar
tn
er
s,
 a
 S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 C
om
m
un
ity
 S
tr
at
eg
y.
  T
hi
s 

se
ts
 o
ut
 th
e 
ke
y 
is
su
es
 fa
ce
d 
in
 th
e 
B
or
ou
gh
 a
nd
 a
 p
la
n 
to
 ta
ck
le
 th
em
.  
T
he
 

G
ov
er
nm
en
t a
ls
o 
pl
ac
es
 a
 r
es
po
ns
ib
ili
ty
 o
n 
lo
ca
l a
ut
ho
rit
ie
s 
to
 s
ha
pe
 th
ei
r 

co
m
m
un
iti
es
 a
ro
un
d 
th
e 
ne
ed
s 
an
d 
as
pi
ra
tio
ns
 o
f t
he
ir 
re
si
de
nt
s.
 

Page 24



 
13
 

8.
 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 W
o

rk
in

g
 

 R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
ha
s 
a 
re
sp
on
si
bi
lit
y 
an
d 
a 
lo
ng
 h
is
to
ry
 o
f s
ha
pi
ng
 

th
e 
co
m
m
un
ity
 a
ro
un
d 
th
e 
ne
ed
s 
an
d 
as
pi
ra
tio
ns
 o
f t
he
 B
or
ou
gh
’s
 

re
si
de
nt
s,
 in
 p
ur
su
an
ce
 o
f i
ts
 r
ol
e 
of
 c
om
m
un
ity
 le
ad
er
sh
ip
.  
It 
al
so
 n
ee
ds
 to
 

w
or
k 
ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y 
w
ith
 o
th
er
s 
to
 d
el
iv
er
 th
e 
hi
gh
es
t q
ua
lit
y 
se
rv
ic
es
 to
 lo
ca
l 

re
si
de
nt
s 
an
d 
th
os
e 
w
ho
 w
or
k 
in
 th
e 
B
or
ou
gh
.  
T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
re
co
gn
is
es
 th
at
 

it 
ca
nn
ot
 d
o 
th
is
 a
lo
ne
 a
nd
 th
er
ef
or
e 
w
or
ks
 in
 p
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 w
ith
 o
rg
an
is
at
io
ns
 

fr
om
 th
e 
pu
bl
ic
, p
riv
at
e 
an
d 
vo
lu
nt
ar
y 
an
d 
co
m
m
un
ity
 s
ec
to
rs
 to
 a
ch
ie
ve
 it
s 

as
pi
ra
tio
ns
. 

 O
ne
 w
ay
 in
 w
hi
ch
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
w
or
ks
 w
ith
 o
th
er
 o
rg
an
is
at
io
ns
 is
 th
ro
ug
h 

fo
rm
al
 p
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 w
or
ki
ng
.  
T
hi
s 
de
liv
er
s 
th
e 
fo
llo
w
in
g 
be
ne
fit
s:
 

 • 
M
or
e 
ef
fic
ie
nt
 a
nd
 e
ffe
ct
iv
e 
us
e 
of
 r
es
ou
rc
es
, b
y 
im
pr
ov
in
g 

co
m
m
un
ic
at
io
n 
an
d 
re
du
ci
ng
 d
up
lic
at
io
n 
w
ith
 o
th
er
 s
er
vi
ce
s;
 

 • 
Im
pr
ov
in
g 
ho
w
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
ar
e 
de
liv
er
ed
, b
y 
lin
ki
ng
 w
ith
 

co
m
pl
em
en
ta
ry
 s
er
vi
ce
s;
 

 • 
Im
pr
ov
in
g 
th
e 
qu
al
ity
 o
f l
ife
 fo
r 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
re
si
de
nt
s 
th
ro
ug
h 
m
ut
ua
l 

su
pp
or
t o
f s
er
vi
ce
s 
th
at
 b
en
ef
it 
th
e 
B
or
ou
gh
. 

 In
 s
um
m
ar
y,
 b
y 
w
or
ki
ng
 to
ge
th
er
, m
or
e 
ca
n 
be
 a
ch
ie
ve
d 
th
an
 b
y 
ea
ch
 

or
ga
ni
sa
tio
n 
w
or
ki
ng
 in
 is
ol
at
io
n.
  F
or
 th
is
 r
ea
so
n,
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 

C
ou
nc
il 
is
 c
om
m
itt
ed
 to
 p
la
yi
ng
 a
n 
ac
tiv
e 
ro
le
 in
 p
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
. 

 R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
is
 a
 m
em
be
r 
of
 th
e 
fo
llo
w
in
g 
m
ai
n 
pa
rt
ne
rs
hi
ps
: 

 
• 

W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 

 
• 

R
ed
di
tc
h 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 

 
• 

R
ed
di
tc
h 
C
om
m
un
ity
 S
af
et
y 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 

 
• 

H
er
ef
or
d 
an
d 
W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 C
ou
nt
y 
S
po
rt
s 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 

   T
he
 W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 L
oc
al
 A
re
a 
A
gr
ee
m
en
t (
LA
A
) 
is
 th
e 
th
re
e-
ye
ar
 s
tr
at
eg
y 

ag
re
ed
 b
y 
W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 w
ith
 C
en
tr
al
 G
ov
er
nm
en
t t
ha
t s
et
s 

ou
t t
he
 p
rio
rit
ie
s 
fo
r W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
.  
T
he
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 C
om
m
un
ity
 

S
tr
at
eg
y 
an
d 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
C
or
po
ra
te
 P
la
n 
su
pp
or
t a
nd
 c
on
tr
ib
ut
e 
to
 th
e 

LA
A
 o
bj
ec
tiv
es
.  
 

 T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
w
or
ks
 w
ith
 a
 d
iv
er
se
 r
an
ge
 o
f p
ar
tn
er
s 
an
d 
st
ak
eh
ol
de
rs
 to
 

ac
hi
ev
e 
its
 p
rio
rit
ie
s.
  T
he
se
 in
cl
ud
e:
 

 
• 

W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 C
ou
nt
y 
C
ou
nc
il 

• 
W
es
t M
er
ci
a 
C
on
st
ab
ul
ar
y 

• 
W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 P
rim
ar
y 
C
ar
e 
T
ru
st
 

• 
H
er
ef
or
d 
&
 W
or
ce
st
er
 F
ire
 a
nd
 R
es
cu
e 

• 
H
er
ef
or
d 
&
 W
or
ce
st
er
 C
ha
m
be
r 
of
 C
om
m
er
ce
 

• 
B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 a
nd
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
N
et
w
or
k 
(B
A
R
N
) 

• 
K
in
gf
is
he
r 
S
ho
pp
in
g 
C
en
tr
e 

• 
N
E
W
 C
ol
le
ge
 

• 
V
ol
un
ta
ry
 a
nd
 C
om
m
un
ity
 S
ec
to
r 
O
rg
an
is
at
io
ns
 

• 
B
us
in
es
s 
R
ep
re
se
nt
at
iv
es
 

  

Page 25



 
14
 

9.
  

 

W
o

rk
in

g
 t

o
g

et
h

er
 t

o
 h

el
p

 s
h

ap
e 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 o

f 
R

ed
d

it
ch

 
 

 O
ur
 v
is
io
n 
is
 fo
r 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
to
 b
e 
su
cc
es
sf
ul
 a
nd
 v
ib
ra
nt
, 

w
ith
 s
us
ta
in
ab
le
 c
om

m
un
iti
es
 b
ui
lt 
on
 p
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 a
nd
 

sh
ar
ed
 r
es
po
ns
ib
ili
ty
.  
W
e 
w
an
t p

eo
pl
e 
to
 b
e 
pr
ou
d 
th
at
 

th
ey
 li
ve
 o
r 
w
or
k 
in
 R
ed
di
tc
h 

 

 W
o

rk
in

g
 t

o
g

et
h

er
 t

o
 h

el
p

 s
h

ap
e 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 o

f 
R

ed
d

it
ch

 
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 b
rin
gs
 to
ge
th
er
 r
ep
re
se
nt
at
iv
es
 fr
om
 p
ub
lic
, p
riv
at
e,
 

co
m
m
un
ity
 a
nd
 v
ol
un
ta
ry
 a
ge
nc
ie
s 
to
 w
or
k 
to
ge
th
er
 e
ffe
ct
iv
el
y 
to
 d
el
iv
er
 a
 

ra
ng
e 
of
 lo
ca
l p
ro
je
ct
s,
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
an
d 
in
iti
at
iv
es
.  
It 
ai
m
s 
to
 p
ro
vi
de
 a
 

le
ad
er
sh
ip
 a
nd
 g
ov
er
ni
ng
 r
ol
e 
th
ro
ug
h 
sh
ar
in
g 
in
fo
rm
at
io
n,
 r
es
ou
rc
es
 a
nd
 

ef
fo
rt
 to
 e
ffi
ci
en
tly
 a
nd
 e
ffe
ct
iv
el
y 
m
ee
t t
he
 n
ee
ds
 a
nd
 a
sp
ira
tio
ns
 o
f l
oc
al
 

co
m
m
un
iti
es
. 

T
h
e 
R
ed

d
it
ch

 S
u
st
ai
n
ab

le
 C

o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
S
tr
at
eg

y 
 T
he
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 C
om
m
un
ity
 S
tr
at
eg
y,
 p
ro
du
ce
d 
by
 R
ed
di
tc
h 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
, e
st
ab
lis
he
s 
th
e 
ov
er
al
l s
tr
at
eg
ic
 d
ire
ct
io
n 
an
d 
lo
ng
 te
rm
 v
is
io
n 

fo
r 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 a
nd
 o
ut
lin
es
 th
e 
sh
ar
ed
 c
om
m
itm
en
ts
 m
ad
e 
by
 th
e 

P
ar
tn
er
s.
 It
 s
et
s 
th
e 
fr
am
ew
or
k 
w
ith
in
 w
hi
ch
 P
ar
tn
er
s 
w
ill
 d
el
iv
er
 o
n 
ke
y 

ob
je
ct
iv
es
, b
y 
sh
ar
in
g 
re
so
ur
ce
s,
 s
ki
lls
, k
no
w
le
dg
e 
an
d 
ef
fo
rt
 to
 c
ol
le
ct
iv
el
y 

de
liv
er
 th
e 
be
st
 p
os
si
bl
e 
ou
tc
om
es
 fo
r 
th
e 
B
or
ou
gh
. 

T
he
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 C
om
m
un
ity
 S
tr
at
eg
y 
ca
n 
be
 v
ie
w
ed
 a
t 

w
w
w
.r
ed
di
tc
hp
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
.o
rg
.u
k.
 

 T
he
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 C
om
m
un
ity
 S
tr
at
eg
y 
is
 in
te
nd
ed
 to
 in
flu
en
ce
 th
e 

st
ra
te
gy
 a
nd
 b
ud
ge
t p
la
ns
 o
f a
ll 
m
em
be
rs
 o
f R
ed
di
tc
h 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
. T
he
 

C
ou
nc
il’
s 
pr
io
rit
ie
s 
co
nt
rib
ut
e 
to
 th
os
e 
se
t o
ut
 in
 th
e 
S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 C
om
m
un
ity
 

S
tr
at
eg
y.
  T
hi
s 
is
 r
ef
le
ct
ed
 a
s 
fo
llo
w
s:
 

  
R

ed
d

it
ch

 S
u

st
ai

n
ab

le
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
T

h
em

es
 

R
ed

d
it

ch
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 

C
o

u
n

ci
l’s

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
es

 

 
 

 C
om
m
un
iti
es
 th
at
 a
re
 s
af
e 
an
d 

fe
el
 s
af
e 

 S
af
e 

 
 

 A
 b
et
te
r 
en
vi
ro
nm
en
t –
 fo
r 

to
da
y 
an
d 
to
m
or
ro
w

 

 C
le
an
 a
nd
 g
re
en
 

 
   

 E
co
no
m
ic
 s
uc
ce
ss
 th
at
 is
 

sh
ar
ed
 b
y 
al
l 

  E
nt
er
pr
is
in
g 
C
om
m
un
ity
 

 
 

 Im
pr
ov
in
g 
he
al
th
 a
nd
 

w
el
lb
ei
ng

 

 S
af
e 

C
le
an
 a
nd
 g
re
en
 

 
 

 M
ee
tin
g 
th
e 
ne
ed
s 
of
 c
hi
ld
re
n 

an
d 
yo
un
g 
pe
op
le
 

 E
nt
er
pr
is
in
g 
C
om
m
un
ity
 

S
af
e 

C
le
an
 a
nd
 g
re
en
 

 

 S
tr
on
ge
r 
C
om
m
un
iti
es
. 

 

 E
nt
er
pr
is
in
g 
C
om
m
un
ity
 

S
af
e 

 M
on
ito
rin
g 
an
d 
re
po
rt
in
g 
ar
ra
ng
em
en
ts
 w
ill
 b
e 
su
bj
ec
t t
o 
go
ve
rn
an
ce
 a
nd
 

in
sp
ec
tio
n 
ar
ra
ng
em
en
ts
 w
ith
in
 th
e 
C
om
pr
eh
en
si
ve
 A
re
a 
A
ss
es
sm
en
t (
C
A
A
) 

an
d 
Lo
ca
l A
re
a 
A
ss
es
sm
en
t (
LA
A
) 
re
po
rt
in
g 
m
ec
ha
ni
sm
s.
 

   

Page 26



 
15
 

   C
o

m
p

re
h

en
si

ve
 A

re
a 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

 T
he
 G
ov
er
nm
en
t h
as
 r
ec
en
tly
 c
ha
ng
ed
 th
e 
re
gu
la
to
ry
 fr
am
ew
or
k 
fo
r 
lo
ca
l 

se
rv
ic
es
 a
nd
 in
tr
od
uc
ed
 C
om
pr
eh
en
si
ve
 A
re
a 
A
ss
es
sm
en
ts
 (
C
A
A
).
  A
s 
th
e 

na
m
e 
su
gg
es
ts
, t
he
se
 p
ro
vi
de
 a
n 
as
se
ss
m
en
t o
f t
he
 q
ua
lit
y 
of
 li
fe
 fo
r 

re
si
de
nt
s 
in
 a
ny
 g
iv
en
 a
re
a 
of
 E
ng
la
nd
.  
In
 D
ec
em
be
r 
20
09
 th
e 
C
A
A
 fo
r 

W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 g
av
e 
a 
“r
ed
 fl
ag
” 
to
 R
ed
di
tc
h,
 id
en
tif
yi
ng
 th
at
 o
ur
 c
hi
ld
re
n’
s 

ed
uc
at
io
na
l a
tta
in
m
en
t w
as
 c
om
pa
ra
tiv
el
y 
lo
w
 a
nd
 th
at
 th
er
e 
w
er
e 
gr
ea
te
r 

he
al
th
 in
eq
ua
lit
ie
s 
in
 R
ed
di
tc
h,
 c
om
pa
re
d 
to
 o
th
er
 a
re
as
 o
f t
he
 C
ou
nt
y.
  

A
lth
ou
gh
 th
e 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
is
 n
ot
 d
ire
ct
ly
 r
es
po
ns
ib
le
 fo
r 
ei
th
er
 o
f t
he
se
 

se
rv
ic
e 
ar
ea
s,
 w
e 
ha
ve
 a
 r
ol
e 
to
 p
la
y,
 b
ot
h 
th
ro
ug
h 
pa
rt
ne
rs
hi
p 
w
or
ki
ng
 a
nd
 

th
ro
ug
h 
se
rv
ic
e 
de
liv
er
y 
th
at
 s
up
po
rt
s 
th
es
e,
 fo
r 
ex
am
pl
e,
 im
pr
ov
ed
 le
is
ur
e 

pr
ov
is
io
n 
w
hi
ch
 im
pr
ov
es
 o
ur
 r
es
id
en
ts
’ h
ea
lth
. 

T
he
 B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
is
 le
ad
in
g 
on
 u
pd
at
in
g 
th
e 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 

S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 C
om
m
un
ity
 S
tr
at
eg
y,
 s
o 
th
at
 it
 m
ap
s 
ho
w
 w
e 
ar
e 
cu
rr
en
tly
 

ta
ck
lin
g 
th
es
e 
is
su
es
 a
nd
 h
ow
 w
e 
ca
n 
w
or
k 
be
tte
r 
w
ith
 o
ur
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
to
 

in
cr
ea
se
 th
e 
fo
cu
s 
on
 e
du
ca
tio
na
l a
tta
in
m
en
t, 
im
pr
ov
in
g 
ou
r 
ch
ild
re
n’
s’
 

as
pi
ra
tio
ns
 a
nd
 o
n 
he
al
th
 o
ut
co
m
es
 fo
r 
ou
r 
re
si
de
nt
s.
  E
qu
al
ly
, w
e 
w
ill
 e
xp
ec
t 

ou
r 
pa
rt
ne
rs
 to
 b
rin
g 
th
er
e 
th
in
ki
ng
, e
xp
er
tis
e 
an
d 
fo
cu
s 
to
 th
e 
ta
bl
e 
on
 h
ow
 

th
ey
 c
an
 ta
ck
le
 th
e 
is
su
es
 id
en
tif
ie
d 
by
 th
e 
C
A
A
. 

A
s 
pa
rt
 o
f o
ur
 r
es
ea
rc
h 
w
e 
w
ill
 b
e 
vi
si
tin
g 
ot
he
r 
ar
ea
s 
th
at
 h
av
e 
a 
tr
ac
k 
re
co
rd
 

in
 s
oc
ia
l r
eg
en
er
at
io
n 
an
d 
w
or
k 
w
ith
 s
pe
ci
al
is
t a
dv
is
er
s 
w
ho
 c
an
 o
ffe
r 
us
 

in
si
gh
t i
nt
o 
w
ha
t h
as
 w
or
ke
d 
el
se
w
he
re
.  
W
e 
ar
e 
al
so
 e
ng
ag
in
g 
w
ith
 lo
ca
l 

sc
ho
ol
 h
ea
ds
 a
nd
 te
ac
he
rs
 a
nd
 fi
na
lly
, w
e 
ar
e 
lo
ok
in
g 
to
 s
ta
rt
 a
 r
an
ge
 o
f 

ac
tio
ns
 n
ow
, f
or
 e
xa
m
pl
e,
 c
ar
ee
rs
 fa
re
s,
 h
ea
lth
 c
he
ck
s 
an
d 
se
ek
in
g 
m
or
e 

sc
ho
ol
 g
ov
er
no
rs
. 

  

Page 27



 
16
 

10
. 

H
o

w
 W

e 
W

ill
 D

el
iv

er
 O

u
r 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
es

 
 
 

E
nt
er
pr
is
in
g 
C
om
m
un
ity
 

 
S
af
e 

 
C
le
an
 a
nd
 G
re
en
 

 F
or
 e
ac
h 
of
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
pr
io
rit
y 
th
em
es
, a
 s
et
 o
f k
ey
 o
ut
co
m
es
 

ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
de
ve
lo
pe
d.
   
S
om
e 
of
 th
es
e 
ar
e 
cr
os
s-
cu
tti
ng
 th
ro
ug
ho
ut
 

th
e 
or
ga
ni
sa
tio
n 
w
hi
ls
t o
th
er
s 
ar
e 
sp
ec
ifi
c 
to
 a
 s
er
vi
ce
.  
K
ey
 

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 in
di
ca
to
rs
 h
av
e 
be
en
 d
ev
el
op
ed
 to
 m
ea
su
re
 p
ro
gr
es
s 

ag
ai
ns
t t
ar
ge
ts
 a
nd
 e
na
bl
e 
C
ou
nc
ill
or
s,
 r
es
id
en
ts
 a
nd
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
to
 

tr
ac
k 
ou
r 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 a
ga
in
st
 th
e 
C
or
po
ra
te
 P
la
n.
 

 P
ro
je
ct
s 
an
d 
ta
sk
s 
to
 s
up
po
rt
 th
es
e 
ke
y 
de
liv
er
ab
le
s 
ar
e 
in
cl
ud
ed
 in
 

th
e 
re
le
va
nt
 S
er
vi
ce
 P
la
ns
.  
P
ro
gr
es
s 
ag
ai
ns
t t
he
m
 w
ill
 b
e 
m
on
ito
re
d 

on
 a
 q
ua
rt
er
ly
 b
as
is
 b
y 
th
e 
C
or
po
ra
te
 M
an
ag
em
en
t T
ea
m
, O
ve
rv
ie
w
 

an
d 
S
cr
ut
in
y 
C
om
m
itt
ee
 a
nd
 th
e 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
C
om
m
itt
ee
. 

 T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
m
on
ito
rs
 a
nd
 m
an
ag
es
 p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 a
ga
in
st
 a
 r
an
ge
 o
f 

na
tio
na
l i
nd
ic
at
or
s 
an
d 
lo
ca
l p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 in
di
ca
to
rs
.  

 T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
P
la
n 
in
cl
ud
es
 h
ig
h 
le
ve
l a
ct
io
ns
 a
nd
 in
di
ca
to
rs
 w
ith
 

ot
he
rs
 b
ei
ng
 d
et
ai
le
d 
in
 th
e 
re
le
va
nt
 S
er
vi
ce
 P
la
ns
.  
C
op
ie
s 
of
 th
e 

S
er
vi
ce
 P
la
ns
 c
an
 b
e 
fo
un
d 
on
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
w
eb
si
te
 a
t 

w
w
w
.r
ed
di
tc
hb
c.
go
v.
uk
. 

 T
ho
se
 p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 in
di
ca
to
rs
 a
nd
 a
ct
io
ns
 th
at
 d
o 
no
t f
ea
tu
re
 in
 th
e 

C
ou
nc
il 
P
la
n 
ar
e 
st
ill
 m
on
ito
re
d;
 h
ow
ev
er
 th
ey
 a
re
 o
nl
y 
re
po
rt
ed
 o
n 

an
 e
xc
ep
tio
n 
ba
si
s.
  T
hi
s 
pr
io
rit
is
ed
 a
pp
ro
ac
h 
ai
ds
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
in
 

di
re
ct
in
g 
its
 r
es
ou
rc
es
 in
to
 a
ct
iv
iti
es
 th
at
 d
ire
ct
ly
 s
up
po
rt
 

ac
hi
ev
em
en
t a
ga
in
st
 o
ur
 p
rio
rit
ie
s.
 

  

 T
he
 k
ey
 o
ut
co
m
es
 fo
r 
th
e 
ne
xt
 o
ne
 to
 th
re
e 
ye
ar
s 
ar
e 
de
ta
ile
d 
ov
er
 

th
e 
fo
llo
w
in
g 
pa
ge
s.
 

 T
he
 ta
bl
e 
sh
ow
s,
 fo
r 
ea
ch
 p
rio
rit
y,
 th
e 
ou
tc
om
es
 to
 b
e 
ac
hi
ev
ed
; t
he
 

ke
y 
ob
je
ct
iv
es
 th
at
 c
on
tr
ib
ut
e 
to
 th
os
e 
ou
tc
om
es
; a
nd
 th
e 
ke
y 

ac
tio
ns
 n
ee
de
d 
to
 a
ch
ie
ve
 th
e 
ob
je
ct
iv
es
.  

   

   

Page 28



 
17
 

 P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 A
R

E
A

: 
  

E
n

te
rp

ri
si

n
g

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

(E
C

) 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

s:
   
 

• 
Im
pr
ov
in
g 
ed
uc
at
io
na
l a
tta
in
m
en
t, 
im
pr
ov
in
g 
ou
r 
ch
ild
re
n’
s 
as
pi
ra
tio
ns
 a
nd
 r
ed
uc
in
g 
he
al
th
 

in
eq
ua
lit
ie
s.
 

• 
B
et
te
r 
ut
ili
sa
tio
n 
of
 o
ur
 C
ou
nc
il 
ho
us
in
g 
st
oc
k.
  

• 
S
up
po
rt
in
g 
lo
ng
 te
rm
 e
co
no
m
ic
 g
ro
w
th
. 

• 
S
up
po
rt
in
g 
ex
is
tin
g 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
bu
si
ne
ss
es
. 

• 
F
irs
t c
la
ss
 le
is
ur
e 
fa
ci
lit
ie
s.
  

• 
S
up
po
rt
in
g 
a 
pr
os
pe
ro
us
 to
w
n 
ce
nt
re
.  

• 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
gr
an
t p
ol
ic
y 

 
 

K
ey

 Im
p

ac
ts
 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
 E

C
1 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
L

o
ca

l A
re

a 
A

g
re

em
en

t 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

T
ar

g
et

 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3 

Im
pr
ov
in
g 
ed
uc
at
io
na
l a
tta
in
m
en
t, 
im
pr
ov
in
g 

ou
r 
ch
ild
re
n’
s 
as
pi
ra
tio
ns
 a
nd
 r
ed
uc
in
g 

he
al
th
 in
eq
ua
lit
ie
s.
 

 

   
 

   
  � ���

 

 

 � ���
 

 

In
di
ca
to
rs
 to
 b
e 
de
ta
ile
d 
as
 p
ar
t o
f 

de
ve
lo
pm
en
t o
f “
C
lo
si
ng
 th
e 
G
ap
” 
st
ra
te
gy
 

or
 S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 C
om
m
un
ity
 S
tr
at
eg
y 

N
/a
 

N
/a
 

N
/a
 

K
ey

 A
ct

io
n

s 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
R

es
o

u
rc

es
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 t
o

 
b

as
e 

b
u

d
g

et
 

L
ea

d
 O

ff
ic

er
 

• 
D
ev
el
op
m
en
t o
f “
C
lo
si
ng
 th
e 
G
ap
” 
S
tr
at
eg
y 
or
 S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 

C
om
m
un
ity
 S
tr
at
eg
y.
 

 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

T
B
D
 

K
ev
in
 D
ic
ks
 

  

K
ey

 Im
p

ac
ts
 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
E

C
2 

  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

L
o

ca
l A

re
a 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

T
ar

g
et

 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3 

B
et
te
r 
ut
ili
sa
tio
n 
of
 o
ur
 C
ou
nc
il 
ho
us
in
g 

st
oc
k.
  

 

   
  � ���

 
   

 � ���
 

 

• 
N

I 1
56

 N
o.
 o
f h
ou
se
ho
ld
s 
liv
in
g 
in
 

te
m
po
ra
ry
 a
cc
om
m
od
at
io
n 

• 
N

I1
60

 L
oc
al
 a
ut
ho
rit
y 
te
na
nt
s 

sa
tis
fa
ct
io
n 
w
ith
 la
nd
lo
rd
s 
se
rv
ic
e 

15
  

T
B
C
 

 

15
  

T
B
C
  

15
  

T
B
C
  

Page 29



 
18
 

 

K
ey

 A
ct

io
n

s 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
R

es
o

u
rc

es
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 t
o

 
b

as
e 

b
u

d
g

et
 

L
ea

d
 O

ff
ic

er
 

• 
H
ou
si
ng
 Q
ua
lit
y 
N
et
w
or
k 
A
ss
es
sm
en
t a
nd
 J
oi
nt
 B
en
ef
its
 / 

H
ou
si
ng
 A
ud
it 
C
om
m
is
si
on
 In
sp
ec
tio
n 

31
 M
ay
 2
01
0 

01
 O
ct
ob
er
 2
01
0 

 

 
Jo
hn
 S
ta
ni
la
nd
 

• 
R
es
ol
ut
io
n 
of
 lo
ng
 te
rm
 fi
na
nc
in
g 
of
 H
ou
si
ng
 S
er
vi
ce
. 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

 
Jo
hn
 S
ta
ni
la
nd
 

• 
D
ev
el
op
m
en
t o
f T
en
an
t I
nv
ol
ve
m
en
t S
tr
at
eg
y 

31
 A
ug
us
t 2
01
 

 
Jo
hn
 S
ta
ni
la
nd
 

     

K
ey

 Im
p

ac
ts
 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
 E

C
3 

  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

L
o

ca
l A

re
a 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

T
ar

g
et

 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3 

S
up
po
rt
in
g 
lo
ng
 te
rm
 e
co
no
m
ic
 g
ro
w
th
 

    
  � ���

 
     

 � ���
 

 

• 
N

I1
51

 –
 o
ve
ra
ll 
em
pl
oy
m
en
t r
at
e 

(w
or
ki
ng
 a
ge
) 

• 
N

I1
52

 –
 W
or
ki
ng
 a
ge
 p
eo
pl
e 
on
 o
ut
 o
f 

w
or
k 
be
ne
fit
s 

• 
N

I1
53

 –
 W
or
ki
ng
 a
ge
 p
eo
pl
e 
cl
ai
m
in
g 

ou
t o
f w
or
k 
be
ne
fit
s 
in
 th
e 
w
or
st
 

pe
rf
or
m
in
g 
ne
ig
hb
ou
rh
oo
ds
 

• 
N

I1
71
 –
 N
ew
 b
us
in
es
s 
re
gi
st
ra
tio
n 
ra
te
 

• 
N

I1
72

 -
 %
 o
f s
m
al
l b
us
in
es
se
s 
in
 a
n 

ar
ea
 s
ho
w
in
g 
em
pl
oy
m
en
t g
ro
w
th
 

• 
N

I1
73

 –
 fl
ow
s 
on
to
 in
ca
pa
ci
ty
 b
en
ef
its
 

fr
om
 e
m
pl
oy
m
en
tN

I1
41

 -
 %
 o
f 

vu
ln
er
ab
le
 p
eo
pl
e 
 a
ch
ie
vi
ng
 

in
de
pe
nd
en
t l
iv
in
g 

M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 

ab
ov
e 

G
ro
ss
 

V
al
ue
 

A
dd
ed
  

av
er
ag
e 

M
ai
nt
ai
n 

at
 a
bo
ve
 

G
ro
ss
 

V
al
ue
 

A
dd
ed
 

av
er
ag
e 

M
ai
nt
ai
n 

at
 a
bo
ve
 

G
ro
ss
 

V
al
ue
 

A
dd
ed
 

av
er
ag
e 

Page 30



 
19
 

K
ey

 A
ct

io
n

s 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
R

es
o

u
rc

es
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 t
o

 
b

as
e 

b
u

d
g

et
 

L
ea

d
 O

ff
ic

er
 

• 
N
or
th
 W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 E
co
no
m
ic
 D
ev
el
op
m
en
t S
tr
at
eg
y 
pr
op
os
al
s 

ap
pr
ov
ed
.  

 

 S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
12
 

T
B
D
 

Jo
hn
 S
ta
ni
la
nd
 

• 
E
ns
ur
e 
an
 a
de
qu
at
e 
su
pp
ly
 o
f l
an
d 
fo
r 
ec
on
om
ic
 g
ro
w
th
 

20
12
 (
de
pe
nd
en
t o
n 

R
eg
io
na
l S
pa
tia
l 

S
tr
at
eg
y)
 

T
B
D
 

Jo
hn
 S
ta
ni
la
nd
 

 

K
ey

 Im
p

ac
ts
 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
 E

C
4 

  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

L
o

ca
l A

re
a 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

T
ar

g
et

 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3 

S
up
po
rt
in
g 
ex
is
tin
g 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
bu
si
ne
ss
es
 

    
  � ���

 
     

 � ���
 

 

• 
N

I1
51

 –
 o
ve
ra
ll 
em
pl
oy
m
en
t r
at
e 

(w
or
ki
ng
 a
ge
) 

• 
N

I1
52

 –
 W
or
ki
ng
 a
ge
 p
eo
pl
e 
on
 o
ut
 o
f 

w
or
k 
be
ne
fit
s 

• 
N

I1
53

 –
 W
or
ki
ng
 a
ge
 p
eo
pl
e 
cl
ai
m
in
g 

ou
t o
f w
or
k 
be
ne
fit
s 
in
 th
e 
w
or
st
 

pe
rf
or
m
in
g 
ne
ig
hb
ou
rh
oo
ds
 

• 
N

I1
71
 –
 N
ew
 b
us
in
es
s 
re
gi
st
ra
tio
n 
ra
te
 

• 
N

I1
71

 -
 %
 o
f s
m
al
l b
us
in
es
se
s 
in
 a
n 

ar
ea
 s
ho
w
in
g 
em
pl
oy
m
en
t g
ro
w
th
 

 

M
ai
nt
ai
n 
at
 

ab
ov
e 
G
V
 

av
er
ag
e 

M
ai
nt
ai
n 

at
 a
bo
ve
 

G
V
 

av
er
ag
e 

M
ai
nt
ai
n 

at
 a
bo
ve
 

G
V
 

av
er
ag
e 

K
ey

 A
ct

io
n

s 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
R

es
o

u
rc

es
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 t
o

 
b

as
e 

b
u

d
g

et
 

L
ea

d
 O

ff
ic

er
 

• 
M
in
im
um
 o
f 3
 b
us
in
es
s 
ev
en
ts
 p
er
 y
ea
r.
  

 
31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 
(a
nd
 

an
nu
al
ly
 th
er
ea
fte
r)
 

 
Jo
hn
 S
ta
ni
la
nd
 

• 
R
ev
ie
w
 o
pe
ra
tio
n 
of
 b
us
in
es
s 
ce
nt
re
s.
 

Ju
ne
 2
01
0 

 
Jo
hn
 S
ta
ni
la
nd
 

    

Page 31



 
20
 

    

K
ey

 Im
p

ac
ts
 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

 E
C

5 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

L
o

ca
l A

re
a 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

T
ar

g
et

 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3 

 T
o 
op
en
 th
e 
pr
op
os
ed
 n
ew
 A
bb
ey
 

S
ta
di
um
 L
ei
su
re
 C
en
tr
e 

    
 � ���

 
 

 
N

I 8
 –
 in
cr
ea
se
 a
du
lt 
pa
rt
ic
ip
at
io
n 
in
 s
po
rt
 

    

21
%
 o
f  

B
or
ou
gh
’s
 

ad
ul
t 

po
pu
la
tio
n 

   

+v
e      

+v
e      

K
ey

 A
ct

io
n

s 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
R

es
o

u
rc

es
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 t
o

 b
as

e 
b

u
d

g
et

 
L

ea
d

 O
ff

ic
er

 

• 
D
el
iv
er
y 
of
 p
ro
je
ct
 p
la
n 
fo
r 
op
en
in
g 
of
 s
ta
di
um
. 

 J
an
ua
ry
 2
01
2 

£6
.6
m
 a
pp
ro
ve
d 
ca
pi
ta
l s
ch
em
e.
 

S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

  

K
ey

 Im
p

ac
ts
 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

 E
C

6 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

L
o

ca
l A

re
a 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

T
ar

g
et

 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3 

T
o 
de
ve
lo
p 
th
e 
T
ow
n 
C
en
tr
e 
an
d 
C
hu
rc
h 

H
ill
 D
is
tr
ic
t C
en
tr
e 

    
 � ���

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

K
ey

 A
ct

io
n

s 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
R

es
o

u
rc

es
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 t
o

 
b

as
e 

b
u

d
g

et
 

L
ea

d
 O

ff
ic

er
 

• 
A
nn
ua
l r
ev
ie
w
 o
f T
ow
n 
C
en
tr
e 
S
tr
at
eg
y 
ac
tio
n 
pl
an

 
 3
1 
M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 
 

 
Jo
hn
 S
ta
ni
la
nd
 

• 
C
om
pl
et
io
n 
of
 e
xi
st
in
g 
pu
bl
ic
 r
ea
lm
 s
tu
di
es
 a
nd
 d
ev
el
op
m
en
t o
f 

pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
of
 w
or
k.
 

 3
1 
M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 
 

 
Jo
hn
 S
ta
ni
la
nd
 

• 
R
ed
ev
el
op
 C
hu
rc
h 
H
ill
 d
is
tr
ic
t c
en
tr
e.
 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 

C
ap
ita
l P
ro
gr
am
m
e 

Jo
hn
 S
ta
ni
la
nd
 

    

Page 32



 
21
 

 

K
ey

 Im
p

ac
ts
 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

 E
C

7 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

L
o

ca
l A

re
a 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

T
ar

g
et

 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3 

T
o 
re
vi
ew
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
gr
an
t p
ol
ic
y 
in
 li
ne
 

w
ith
 s
ho
pp
in
g,
 in
ve
st
in
g 
an
d 
gi
vi
ng
. 

    
 � ���

 
 

 
N
I6
 P
ar
tic
ip
at
io
n 
in
 r
eg
ul
at
or
 v
ol
un
te
er
in
g.
 

N
I7
 E
nv
iro
nm
en
t f
or
 a
 th
riv
in
g 
th
ird
 s
ec
to
r.
 

+v
e 

+v
e 

+v
e 

+v
e 

+v
e 

+v
e 

K
ey

 A
ct

io
n

s 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
R

es
o

u
rc

es
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 t
o

 
b

as
e 

b
u

d
g

et
 

L
ea

d
 O

ff
ic

er
 

• 
S

co
p

e 
is

su
es

 r
el

at
in

g
 t

o
 c

u
rr

en
t 

p
o

lic
y.

 
31
 A
ug
us
t 2
01
0.
 

 
S
ue
 H
an
le
y.
 

• 
C
om
pl
et
e 
ne
w
 p
ol
ic
y.
 

30
 S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
10
 

 
S
ue
 H
an
le
y.
 

• 
C
on
su
lt 
st
ak
eh
ol
de
rs
 o
n 
po
lic
y.
 

30
 S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
10
 

 
S
ue
 H
an
le
y.
 

• 
C
om
m
itt
ee
 to
 a
do
pt
 p
ol
ic
y.
 

31
 O
ct
ob
er
 2
01
0 

 
S
ue
 H
an
le
y.
 

Page 33



 
22
 

 P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 A
R

E
A

: 
  S

af
e 

(S
) 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

s:
   
 

• 
R
ed
uc
in
g 
ac
tu
al
 c
rim
e 
le
ve
ls
. 

• 
A
dd
re
ss
in
g 
pe
rc
ep
tio
ns
 o
f c
rim
e.
 

• 
R
ed
uc
in
g 
re
-o
ffe
nd
in
g.
 

• 
D
ev
el
op
in
g 
co
m
m
un
ity
 c
oh
es
io
n.
 

• 
R
ed
uc
in
g 
an
ti-
so
ci
al
 b
eh
av
io
ur
. 

• 
M
an
ag
in
g 
th
e 
ni
gh
t t
im
e 
ec
on
om
y.
 

 
K

ey
 Im

p
ac

ts
 

 K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

 S
1 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
L

o
ca

l A
re

a 
A

g
re

em
en

t 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

T
ar

g
et

 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3 

 R
ed
uc
in
g 
ac
tu
al
 c
rim
e 
le
ve
ls
 

   
 

   
  � ���

 
   

  
   

   
  � ���

   
 

T
ot
al
 C
rim
e 

T
B
C
 

T
B
C
 

T
B
C
 

K
ey

 A
ct

io
n

s 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
R

es
o

u
rc

es
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 t
o

 
b

as
e 

b
u

d
g

et
 

L
ea

d
 O

ff
ic

er
 

• 
R
ev
is
e 
an
d 
up
da
te
 C
om
m
un
ity
 S
af
et
y 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 P
la
n.
 

 by
 3
1s
t  M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

 
 S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

 
K

ey
 Im

p
ac

ts
 

 K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

 S
2 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
L

o
ca

l A
re

a 
A

g
re

em
en

t 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

T
ar

g
et

 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3 

 A
dd
re
ss
in
g 
pe
rc
ep
tio
ns
 o
f c
rim
e 

   
 

   
  � ���

 
   

  
   

   
  � ���

   
 

N
I1

7 
P
er
ce
pt
io
ns
 o
f a
nt
i-s
oc
ia
l b
eh
av
io
ur
. 

 N
I2

1 
D
ea
lin
g 
w
ith
 lo
ca
l c
on
ce
rn
s 
ab
ou
t a
nt
i 

so
ci
al
 b
eh
av
io
ur
. 

 N
I2

7 
U
nd
er
st
an
di
ng
 o
f l
oc
al
 c
on
ce
rn
s 
ab
ou
t 

an
ti-
so
ci
al
 b
eh
av
io
ur
 

 

+v
e 

 +v
e 

 +v
e 

+v
e 

 +v
e 

 +v
e 

+v
e 

 +v
e 

 +v
e 

K
ey

 A
ct

io
n

s 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
R

es
o

u
rc

es
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 t
o

 
b

as
e 

b
u

d
g

et
 

L
ea

d
 O

ff
ic

er
 

• 
D
ev
el
op
 a
 c
om
m
un
ity
 s
af
et
y 
co
m
m
un
ic
at
io
ns
 s
tr
at
eg
y 
ac
tio
n 
pl
an
. 

31
st
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

£3
2,
00
0 
A
re
a 
B
as
ed
 G
ra
nt
 

S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

Page 34



 
23
 

• 
Im
pr
ov
e 
se
cu
rit
y 
in
 th
e 
W
in
ya
te
s 
E
st
at
e 

31
st
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 

£5
00
,0
00
 L
A
A
 R
ew
ar
d 
G
ra
nt
 

S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

 
K

ey
 Im

p
ac

ts
 

 K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

 S
4 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
L

o
ca

l A
re

a 
A

g
re

em
en

t 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

T
ar

g
et

 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3 

 D
ev
el
op
in
g 
co
m
m
un
ity
 c
oh
es
io
n 

   
 

   
  � ���

 
   

  
   

   
  � ���

   
 

N
I0

1 
%
 o
f p
eo
pl
e 
w
ho
 b
el
ie
ve
 p
eo
pl
e 
fr
om
 

di
ffe
re
nt
 b
ac
kg
ro
un
ds
 g
et
 o
n 
w
el
l t
og
et
he
r 

in
 th
ei
r 
lo
ca
l a
re
a.
 

 

+v
e 

+v
e 

+v
e 

K
ey

 A
ct

io
n

s 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
R

es
o

u
rc

es
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 t
o

 
b

as
e 

b
u

d
g

et
 

L
ea

d
 O

ff
ic

er
 

• 
C
ou
nt
y 
C
ou
nc
il 
to
 d
el
iv
er
 C
om
m
un
ity
 C
oh
es
io
n 
S
tr
at
eg
y 
w
ith
 

B
or
ou
gh
 d
im
en
si
on
. 

 by
 3
1s
t  M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

 
 S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

 
K

ey
 Im

p
ac

ts
 

 K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

 S
5 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
L

o
ca

l A
re

a 
A

g
re

em
en

t 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

T
ar

g
et

 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3 

 T
o 
re
du
ce
 a
nt
i-s
oc
ia
l b
eh
av
io
ur
 

   
 

   
  � ���

 
   

  
   

   
  � ���

   
 

N
I1

7 
P
er
ce
pt
io
ns
 o
f a
nt
i-s
oc
ia
l b
eh
av
io
ur
. 

 N
I2

1 
D
ea
lin
g 
w
ith
 lo
ca
l c
on
ce
rn
s 
ab
ou
t a
nt
i 

so
ci
al
 b
eh
av
io
ur
. 

 N
I2

7 
U
nd
er
st
an
di
ng
 o
f l
oc
al
 c
on
ce
rn
s 
ab
ou
t 

an
ti-
so
ci
al
 b
eh
av
io
ur
 

 

+v
e 

 +v
e 

 +v
e 

+v
e 

 +v
e 

 +v
e 

+v
e 

 +v
e 

 +v
e 

K
ey

 A
ct

io
n

s 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
R

es
o

u
rc

es
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 t
o

 
b

as
e 

b
u

d
g

et
 

L
ea

d
 O

ff
ic

er
 

• 
D
ev
el
op
 a
nd
 im
pl
em
en
t a
n 
A
nt
i-S
oc
ia
l B
eh
av
io
ur
 S
tr
at
eg
y 
w
or
ki
ng
 

in
 p
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 w
ith
 a
ll 
st
ak
eh
ol
de
rs
 (
st
at
ut
or
y 
pl
an
).
 

 by
 3
1s
t  M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

 
 S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

    

Page 35



 
24
 

K
ey

 Im
p

ac
ts
 

 K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

 S
6 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
L

o
ca

l A
re

a 
A

g
re

em
en

t 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

T
ar

g
et

 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3 

M
an
ag
in
g 
th
e 
ni
gh
t t
im
e 
ec
on
om
y 
 

   
 

   
  � ���

 
   

  
   

   
  � ���

   
 

N
I4

1 
P
er
ce
pt
io
ns
 o
f d
ru
nk
 a
nd
 r
ow
dy
 

be
ha
vi
ou
r 
as
 a
 p
ro
bl
em
 (
an
d 
al
so
 L
A
A
 

in
di
ca
to
r 
04
 –
 a
ss
au
lt 
w
ith
 le
ss
 s
er
io
us
 

in
ju
ry
) 

 

-v
e 

-v
e 

-v
e 

K
ey

 A
ct

io
n

s 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
R

es
o

u
rc

es
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 t
o

 
b

as
e 

b
u

d
g

et
 

L
ea

d
 O

ff
ic

er
 

• 
Li
ce
ns
in
g 
au
di
ts
. 

  O
n-
go
in
g 

 
Jo
hn
 S
ta
ni
la
nd
 

• 
Li
ce
ns
in
g 
po
lic
y 
re
vi
ew
. 

 31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 
 

 
Jo
hn
 S
ta
ni
la
nd
 

  

Page 36



 
25
 

 P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 A
R

E
A

: 
   

C
le

an
 a

n
d

 G
re

en
 (

C
G

) 

K
ey

 O
u

tc
o

m
es

: 
   

• 
M
or
to
n 
S
ta
nl
ey
 F
es
tiv
al
. 

• 
C
ou
nt
ry
si
de
 C
en
tr
e.
 

• 
W
as
te
 R
ec
yc
lin
g 
an
d 
R
ed
uc
tio
n.
 

• 
C
lim
at
e 
C
ha
ng
e.
 

• 
La
nd
sc
ap
in
g.
 

• 
D
et
rit
us
. 

 
 

K
ey

 Im
p

ac
ts
 

K
ey

 O
b

je
ct

iv
e 

C
G

1 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

L
o

ca
l A

re
a 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

T
ar

g
et

 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3 

 M
or
to
n 
S
ta
nl
ey
 F
es
tiv
al
 

    
 � ���

 
 

    
   

 

 N
um
be
rs
 a
tte
nd
in
g 

T
B

C
 

T
B

C
 

T
B

C
 

K
ey

 A
ct

io
n

s 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
R

es
o

u
rc

es
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 t
o

 b
as

e 
b

u
d

g
et

 
L

ea
d

 O
ff

ic
er

 

• 
D
ev
el
op
m
en
t o
f p
ro
je
ct
 p
la
n 
to
 in
cl
ud
e 
co
nf
irm
at
io
n 
of
 a
ct
s,
 

co
nf
irm
at
io
n 
of
 li
ce
ns
es
 a
nd
 in
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re
 h
ea
lth
 a
nd
 s
af
et
y 
ag
re
ed
. 

A
ug
us
t e
ac
h 

ye
ar
. 

 

 
S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

              

Page 37



 
26
 

K
ey

 Im
p

ac
ts
 

K
ey

 O
b

je
ct

iv
e 

C
G

2 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

L
o

ca
l A

re
a 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

T
ar

g
et

 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3 

 C
ou
nt
ry
si
de
 C
en
tr
e 

    
 � ���

 
 

    
  � ���

 
 

N
um
be
r 
of
 v
is
ito
rs
. 

T
B

C
 

T
B

C
 

T
B

C
 

K
ey

 A
ct

io
n

s 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
R

es
o

u
rc

es
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 t
o

 b
as

e 
b

u
d

g
et

 
L

ea
d

 O
ff

ic
er

 

• 
R
ep
or
t t
o 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
on
 C
ou
nt
ry
si
de
 C
en
tr
e.
 

• 
P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t e
xe
rc
is
e 
to
 fa
ci
lit
at
e 
an
 a
lte
rn
at
iv
e 
pr
ov
id
er
. 

S
ep
t 2
01
0 

M
ar
 2
01
1 

 

 
S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

  

K
ey

 Im
p

ac
ts
 

K
ey

 O
b

je
ct

iv
e 

C
G

3 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

L
o

ca
l A

re
a 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

T
ar

g
et

 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3 

 D
el
iv
er
 im
pr
ov
ed
 a
nd
 s
us
ta
in
ab
le
 w
as
te
 

m
an
ag
em
en
t s
er
vi
ce
s 

 

    
 � ���

 
 

    
  � ���

 
 

 N
I 1

91
 –
 R
es
id
ua
l h
ou
se
ho
ld
 w
as
te
 p
er
 

ho
us
eh
ol
d 

N
I 1

92
 -
 %
of
 h
ou
se
ho
ld
 w
as
te
 s
en
t f
or
 

re
us
e/
 r
ec
yc
lin
g/
 c
om
po
st
in
g 

 

 <5
75
kg
 

 >2
8%

 

 <5
75
kg
 

 >2
8%

 

 <5
75
kg
 

 >2
8%

 
  

K
ey

 A
ct

io
n

s 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
R

es
o

u
rc

es
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 t
o

 b
as

e 
b

u
d

g
et

 
L

ea
d

 O
ff

ic
er

 

• 
D
el
iv
er
y 
of
 w
as
te
 m
in
im
is
at
io
n 
ca
m
pa
ig
n.
 

3 
ye
ar
 r
ol
lin
g 

pr
og
ra
m
m
e.
 

 
S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

• 
R
ol
l o
ut
 o
f g
ar
de
n 
w
as
te
 s
ch
em
e.
 

31
 M
ar
ch
 

20
11
 

 
S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

• 
D
ev
el
op
 s
er
vi
ce
 s
ta
nd
ar
ds
, b
in
 s
iz
es
 a
nd
 fo
cu
s 
on
 r
ed
uc
in
g 
ro
ad
 

sw
ee
pe
r 
de
tr
itu
s.
 

20
11
/1
2 

 
S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

   

Page 38



 
27
 

K
ey

 Im
p

ac
ts
 

K
ey

 O
b

je
ct

iv
e 

C
G

4 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

L
o

ca
l A

re
a 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

T
ar

g
et

 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3 

T
o 
im
pr
ov
e 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 w
ith
 

re
ga
rd
 to
 m
iti
ga
tio
n 
an
d 
ad
ap
ta
tio
n 
to
 th
e 

C
lim
at
e 
C
ha
ng
e 
A
ge
nd
a 

   
 

   
   
� ���

 

 

   
  

   
  � ���

 
 

N
I 1

85
 –
 C
O
2 
 r
ed
uc
tio
n 
fr
om
 L
oc
al
 

A
ut
ho
rit
y 
op
er
at
io
ns
 

 N
I 1

86
 –
 P
er
 c
ap
ita
 r
ed
uc
tio
n 
in
 C
O
2 
 

em
is
si
on
s 
in
 th
e 
Lo
ca
l A
ut
ho
rit
y 
ar
ea
 

   N
I 1

88
 –
 P
la
nn
in
g 
to
 a
da
pt
 to
 c
lim
at
e 

ch
an
ge
 

3%
 

   
9%

 
re
du
ct
io
n 

on
 2
00
5 

ba
se
lin
e.
 

 
Le
ve
l 2
 

  

3%
 
   

9%
 

re
du
ct
io
n 

on
 2
00
5 

ba
se
lin
e.
 

 
Le
ve
l 2
 

 

3%
 
   

9%
 

re
du
ct
io
n 

on
 2
00
5 

ba
se
lin
e.
 

 
Le
ve
l 3
 

 

K
ey

 A
ct

io
n

s 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
R

es
o

u
rc

es
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 t
o

 
b

as
e 

b
u

d
g

et
 

L
ea

d
 O

ff
ic

er
 

• 
D
ev
el
op
 a
 lo
ca
l C
lim
at
e 
C
ha
ng
e 
S
tr
at
eg
y 
an
d 
ac
tio
n 
pl
an
 to
 s
up
po
rt
 

th
e 
C
ou
nt
y-
w
id
e 
pl
an
 to
 a
ch
ie
ve
 L
A
A
 ta
rg
et
s 
an
d 
N
at
io
na
l I
nd
ic
at
or
s 

re
la
tin
g 
to
 c
lim
at
e 
ch
an
ge
 

31
 N
ov
em
be
r 
20
11
 

  
H
ug
h 
B
en
ne
tt 

  
K

ey
 Im

p
ac

ts
 

K
ey

 O
b

je
ct

iv
e 

C
G

5 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
L

o
ca

l A
re

a 
A

g
re

em
en

t 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

T
ar

g
et

 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3 

 La
nd
sc
ap
in
g 

    
 � ���

 
 

    
   

 

 S
at
is
fa
ct
io
n 
w
ith
 p
ar
ks
 a
nd
 o
pe
n 
sp
ac
es
. 

 

   

  
  

K
ey

 A
ct

io
n

s 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
R

es
o

u
rc

es
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 t
o

 
b

as
e 

b
u

d
g

et
 

L
ea

d
 O

ff
ic

er
 

• 
B
rit
ai
n 
in
 B
lo
om
. 

Ju
ne
 2
01
0 

 
S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

• 
G
re
en
 F
la
g 
aw
ar
ds
 (
x3
).
 

Ju
ly
 2
01
0 

 
S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

• 
R
e-
m
ea
su
re
 la
nd
sc
ap
e 
(a
ud
it)
 a
nd
 r
ef
in
e 
se
rv
ic
e.
 

S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
10
 

 
S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

 

Page 39



 
28
 

  
K

ey
 Im

p
ac

ts
 

K
ey

 O
b

je
ct

iv
e 

C
G

6 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
L

o
ca

l A
re

a 
A

g
re

em
en

t 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

T
ar

g
et

 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3 

 R
ed
uc
in
g 
D
et
rit
us
 

    
 � ���

 
 

    
  � ���

 
 

 N
I 1

95
(a

) 
- 
Im
pr
ov
ed
 s
tr
ee
t a
nd
 

en
vi
ro
nm
en
ta
l c
le
an
lin
es
s 
- 
le
ve
ls
 o
f l
itt
er
  

N
I 1

95
(b

) 
- 
Im
pr
ov
ed
 s
tr
ee
t a
nd
 

en
vi
ro
nm
en
ta
l c
le
an
lin
es
s 
- 
le
ve
ls
 o
f 

de
tr
itu
s 
 

N
I 1

95
(c

) 
- 
Im
pr
ov
ed
 s
tr
ee
t a
nd
 

en
vi
ro
nm
en
ta
l c
le
an
lin
es
s 
– 
le
ve
ls
 o
f g
ra
ffi
ti 

N
I 1

95
(d

) 
- 
Im
pr
ov
ed
 s
tr
ee
t a
nd
 

en
vi
ro
nm
en
ta
l c
le
an
lin
es
s 
– 
le
ve
ls
 o
f f
ly
-

po
st
in
g 

N
I 1

96
 –
 Im
pr
ov
ed
 s
tr
ee
t a
nd
 

en
vi
ro
nm
en
ta
l c
le
an
lin
es
s 
– 
fly
-t
ip
pi
ng
 

 

 8%
 

 9%
 

  1%
 

 0   2 

 8%
 

 9%
 

  1%
 

 0   2 

 8%
 

 9%
 

  1%
 

 0   2 

K
ey

 A
ct

io
n

s 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
R

es
o

u
rc

es
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 t
o

 
b

as
e 

b
u

d
g

et
 

L
ea

d
 O

ff
ic

er
 

• 
LA
A
 p
ro
je
ct
 w
or
ki
ng
 w
ith
 th
e 
C
ou
nt
y 
C
ou
nc
il.
   

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

 
S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

• 
C
om
pl
et
e 
re
vi
ew
 o
f s
w
ee
pe
r 
sc
he
du
le
s.
 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

  
S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

• 
F
ly
 ti
pp
in
g 
pr
oj
ec
t (
E
nv
iro
nm
en
ta
l S
er
vi
ce
s 
an
d 
H
ou
si
ng
).
 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

 
S
ue
 H
an
le
y 

             

Page 40



 
29
 

 T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
re
co
gn
is
es
 th
at
 it
 n
ee
ds
 to
 b
e 
a 
w
el
l-m
an
ag
ed
 o
rg
an
is
at
io
n 
to
 e
na
bl
e 
it 
to
 d
el
iv
er
 o
n 
its
 p
rio
rit
ie
s.
  W

hi
ls
t t
hi
s 
is
 n
ot
 a
 p
rio
rit
y 
in
 it
s 
ow
n 
rig
ht
 it
 is
 

es
se
nt
ia
l t
o 
un
de
rp
in
 th
e 
ac
hi
ev
em
en
t o
f i
ts
 p
rio
rit
ie
s 
an
d 
th
e 
ob
je
ct
iv
es
 li
st
ed
 b
el
ow
 w
ill
 c
on
tr
ib
ut
e 
to
 th
is
 a
im
. 

    
 

W
E

L
L

 M
A

N
A

G
E

D
  

O
R

G
A

N
IS

A
T

IO
N

 

K
ey

 O
u

tc
o

m
es

: 
   
 

• 
M
an
ag
in
g 
F
in
an
ce
s.
 

• 
G
ov
er
ni
ng
 th
e 
B
us
in
es
s.
 

• 
M
an
ag
in
g 
R
es
ou
rc
es
. 

• 
M
an
ag
in
g 
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
. 

• 
C
us
to
m
er
 P
ro
ce
ss
es
. 

• 
P
ol
iti
ca
l G
ov
er
na
nc
e.
 

• 
S
ha
re
d 
S
er
vi
ce
s.
 

• 
W
E
T
T
. 

• 
S
tr
at
eg
ic
 P
la
nn
in
g.
 

• 
Le
ar
ni
ng
 a
nd
 D
ev
el
op
m
en
t. 

• 
H
R
 M
od
er
ni
sa
tio
n.
 

• 
P
os
iti
ve
 E
m
pl
oy
ee
 C
lim
at
e.
 

 
 

K
ey

 Im
p

ac
ts
 

K
ey

 O
b

je
ct

iv
e 

W
M

1 
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
L

o
ca

l A
re

a 
A

g
re

em
en

t 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

T
ar

g
et

 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3 

M
an
ag
in
g 
F
in
an
ce
s 
- 
T
o 
ac
hi
ev
e 
ye
ar
 o
n 

ye
ar
 im
pr
ov
em
en
t i
n 
ou
r 
le
ve
l o
f U
se
 o
f 

R
es
ou
rc
es
 ju
dg
em
en
t s
co
re
 

  
    

  � ���
 

 

• 
U
se
 o
f R
es
ou
rc
es
 s
co
re
 fo
r 

M
an
ag
in
g 
F
in
an
ce
s 

 
 

M
in
im
um
 

sc
or
e 
of
 3
 

fo
r 
ea
ch
 

el
em
en
t 

K
ey

 A
ct

io
n

s 
 

T
im

es
ca

le
s 

R
es

o
u

rc
es

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 t

o
 b

as
e 

b
u

d
g

et
 

L
ea

d
 O

ff
ic

er
 

• 
In
te
gr
at
ed
 fi
na
nc
ia
l a
nd
 p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 r
ep
or
tin
g.
 

• 
B
ud
ge
ts
 a
lig
ne
d 
to
 p
rio
rit
ie
s 
th
ro
ug
h 
an
nu
al
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e/
C
M
T
 a
w
ay
 d
ay
 

an
d 
fin
an
ci
al
/s
er
vi
ce
 p
la
nn
in
g 
tim
et
ab
le
. 

• 
B
ud
ge
t c
on
su
lta
tio
n,
 in
 p
ar
tic
ul
ar
, b
ud
ge
t j
ur
y 
an
d 
on
-li
ne
 c
on
su
lta
tio
n.
 

Q
tr
 3
 2
01
0/
11
 

Ju
ly
 2
01
0 

 Ja
nu
ar
y 
20
11

 

    

Ja
yn
e 
P
ic
ke
rin
g 
 

 H
ug
h 
B
en
ne
tt 

  

Page 41



 
30
 

   

K
ey

 Im
p

ac
ts
 

K
ey

 O
b

je
ct

iv
e 

W
M

2 
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
L

o
ca

l A
re

a 
A

g
re

em
en

t 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

T
ar

g
et

 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3 

G
ov
er
ni
ng
 th
e 
B
us
in
es
s 
- 
T
o 
ac
hi
ev
e 
ye
ar
 

on
 y
ea
r 
im
pr
ov
em
en
t i
n 
ou
r 
le
ve
l o
f U
se
 o
f 

R
es
ou
rc
es
 ju
dg
em
en
t s
co
re
 

 
    

  � ���
 

 

• 
U
se
 o
f R
es
ou
rc
es
 s
co
re
 fo
r 

M
an
ag
in
g 
F
in
an
ce
s 

 
 

M
in
im
um
 

sc
or
e 
of
 3
 

fo
r 
ea
ch
 

el
em
en
t 

K
ey

 A
ct

io
n

s 
 

T
im

es
ca

le
s 

R
es

o
u

rc
es

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 t

o
 b

as
e 

b
u

d
g

et
 

L
ea

d
 O

ff
ic

er
 

• 
D
el
iv
er
y 
of
 c
as
ha
bl
e 
sa
vi
ng
s 
fr
om
 p
ro
cu
re
m
en
t p
la
n.
 

• 
R
ev
ie
w
 o
f d
ep
ar
tm
en
ta
l r
is
k 
re
gi
st
er
s.
 

O
n-
go
in
g 

Q
ua
rt
er
ly
 

 
Ja
yn
e 
P
ic
ke
rin
g 

 

K
ey

 Im
p

ac
ts
 

K
ey

 O
b

je
ct

iv
e 

W
M

3 
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
L

o
ca

l A
re

a 
A

g
re

em
en

t 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

T
ar

g
et

 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3 

M
an
ag
in
g 
R
es
ou
rc
es
 -
 T
o 
ac
hi
ev
e 
ye
ar
 o
n 

ye
ar
 im
pr
ov
em
en
t i
n 
ou
r 
le
ve
l o
f U
se
 o
f 

R
es
ou
rc
es
 ju
dg
em
en
t s
co
re
 

 
    

  � ���
 

 

• 
U
se
 o
f R
es
ou
rc
es
 s
co
re
 fo
r 

M
an
ag
in
g 
F
in
an
ce
s 

 
 

M
in
im
um
 

sc
or
e 
of
 3
 

fo
r 
ea
ch
 

el
em
en
t 

K
ey

 A
ct

io
n

s 
 

T
im

es
ca

le
s 

R
es

o
u

rc
es

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 t

o
 b

as
e 

b
u

d
g

et
 

L
ea

d
 O

ff
ic

er
 

• 
U
pd
at
e 
as
se
t m
an
ag
em
en
t p
la
n 
an
d 
di
sp
os
e/
re
ta
in
 a
ss
et
s 
as
 p
er
 

C
ou
nc
il’
s 
pr
io
rit
ie
s.
 

• 
R
ed
uc
e 
C
O
2 
em
is
si
on
s 
as
 p
er
 C
le
an
 a
nd
 G
re
en
 p
rio
rit
y.
 

 

O
n-
go
in
g 

 O
n-
go
in
g 

 
Ja
yn
e 
P
ic
ke
rin
g 

 H
ug
h 
B
en
ne
tt 

    

Page 42



 
31
 

K
ey

 Im
p

ac
ts
 

K
ey

 O
b

je
ct

iv
e 

W
M

4 
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
L

o
ca

l A
re

a 
A

g
re

em
en

t 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

T
ar

g
et

 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3 

M
an
ag
in
g 
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 -
 T
o 
ac
hi
ev
e 
ye
ar
 

on
 y
ea
r 
im
pr
ov
em
en
t i
n 
ou
r 
le
ve
l o
f U
se
 o
f 

R
es
ou
rc
es
 ju
dg
em
en
t s
co
re
 

 
    

  � ���
 

 

• 
U
se
 o
f R
es
ou
rc
es
 s
co
re
 fo
r 

M
an
ag
in
g 
F
in
an
ce
s 

 
 

M
in
im
um
 

sc
or
e 
of
 3
 

fo
r 
ea
ch
 

el
em
en
t 

K
ey

 A
ct

io
n

s 
 

T
im

es
ca

le
s 

R
es

o
u

rc
es

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 t

o
 b

as
e 

b
u

d
g

et
 

L
ea

d
 O

ff
ic

er
 

• 
D
ev
el
op
 d
at
a 
qu
al
ity
 s
tr
at
eg
y 
ac
tio
n 
pl
an
 a
nd
 r
ev
ie
w
 a
nn
ua
lly
. 

• 
D
ev
el
op
 c
or
po
ra
te
 p
ro
je
ct
 m
an
ag
em
en
t m
et
ho
do
lo
gy
. 

• 
D
ev
el
op
 V
F
M
 m
ea
su
re
s 
to
 tr
ac
k 
ef
fic
ie
nc
y 
ga
in
s.
 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

Ju
ne
 2
01
0 

Ju
ne
 2
01
1 

 
Ja
yn
e 
P
ic
ke
rin
g 

 H
ug
h 
B
en
ne
tt 

  

K
ey

 Im
p

ac
ts
 

K
ey

 O
b

je
ct

iv
e 

 W
M

5 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

L
o

ca
l A

re
a 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

T
ar

g
et

 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3 

 T
o 
m
ak
e 
se
rv
ic
es
 m
or
e 
ac
ce
ss
ib
le
, e
ffi
ci
en
t 

an
d 
cu
st
om
er
 fo
cu
ss
ed
 

 

    
 � ���

 
 

    
  � ���

 
 

• 
Lo
ca
l G
ov
er
nm
en
t E
qu
al
iti
es
 S
ta
nd
ar
d 

2 
2 

3 

K
ey

 A
ct

io
n

s 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
R

es
o

u
rc

es
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 t
o

 b
as

e 
b

u
d

g
et

 
L

ea
d

 O
ff

ic
er

 

• 
U
nd
er
ta
ke
 C
us
to
m
er
 S
er
vi
ce
 E
xc
el
le
nc
e 
ac
cr
ed
ita
tio
n.

 

• 
D
ev
el
op
 c
om
m
un
ity
 e
ng
ag
em
en
t s
tr
at
eg
y.

 

• 
U
nd
er
ta
ke
 e
qu
al
iti
es
 p
ee
r 
as
se
ss
m
en
t. 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

Ju
ne
 2
01
0 

 
Ja
yn
e 
P
ic
ke
rin
g 

      

Page 43



 
32
 

  

K
ey

 Im
p

ac
ts
 

K
ey

 O
b

je
ct

iv
e 

W
M

6 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

L
o

ca
l A

re
a 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

T
ar

g
et

 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3 

E
ns
ur
e 
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 p
ol
iti
ca
l g
ov
er
na
nc
e.
 

 

 � ���
 

 � ���
 

In
cr
ea
se
d 
el
ec
to
ra
l t
ur
no
ut
 

  T
B
C
 

 T
B
C
 

 T
B
C
 

K
ey

 A
ct

io
n

s 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
R

es
o

u
rc

es
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 t
o

 b
as

e 
b

u
d

g
et

 
L

ea
d

 O
ff

ic
er

 

• 
M
an
ag
e 
lo
ca
l e
le
ct
io
ns
. 

E
ac
h 
ye
ar
 

 
Ja
yn
e 
P
ic
ke
rin
g 

• 
D
ev
el
op
 a
nd
 d
el
iv
er
 o
ve
rv
ie
w
 a
nd
 s
cr
ut
in
y 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e.
 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

 
Ja
yn
e 
P
ic
ke
rin
g 

                       

Page 44



 
33
 

  

K
ey

 Im
p

ac
ts
 

K
ey

 O
b

je
ct

iv
e 

W
M

07
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
L

o
ca

l A
re

a 
A

g
re

em
en

t 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

T
ar

g
et

 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3 

D
ev
el
op
 a
 p
ro
gr
am
m
e 
of
 s
ha
re
d 
se
rv
ic
es
  

 

 
    

   
� ���
 

D
el
iv
er
y 
of
 s
av
in
gs
 a
s 
pe
r 
M
ed
iu
m
 T
er
m
 

F
in
an
ci
al
 P
la
n.
 

   
  

  

K
ey

 A
ct

io
n

s 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
R

es
o

u
rc

es
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 t
o

 b
as

e 
b

u
d

g
et

 
L

ea
d

 O
ff

ic
er

 

• 
R
ec
ru
it 
tr
an
sf
or
m
at
io
n 
te
am
. 

M
ay
 2
01
0 

 
K
ev
in
 D
ic
ks
 

• 
D
ev
el
op
 a
nd
 a
pp
ro
va
l t
ra
ns
fo
rm
at
io
n 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e.
 

S
ep
 2
01
0 

 
K
ev
in
 D
ic
ks
 

  

K
ey

 Im
p

ac
ts
 

K
ey

 O
b

je
ct

iv
e 

W
M

08
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
L

o
ca

l A
re

a 
A

g
re

em
en

t 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

T
ar

g
et

 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3 

D
ev
el
op
 a
 p
ro
gr
am
m
e 
of
 W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 

E
nh
an
ce
d 
T
w
o 
T
ie
r 
(W
E
T
T
) 
se
rv
ic
es
  

 

 
    

   
� ���
 

D
el
iv
er
y 
of
 s
av
in
gs
 a
s 
pe
r 
M
ed
iu
m
 T
er
m
 

F
in
an
ci
al
 P
la
n.
 

   
  

  

K
ey

 A
ct

io
n

s 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
R

es
o

u
rc

es
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 t
o

 b
as

e 
b

u
d

g
et

 
L

ea
d

 O
ff

ic
er

 

• 
P
ro
pe
rt
y 
S
er
vi
ce
 W
E
T
T
 to
 g
o 
liv
e.
 

Ju
ne
 2
01
0 

 
K
ev
in
 D
ic
ks
 

• 
R
eg
ul
at
or
y 
S
er
vi
ce
 W
E
T
T
 to
 g
o 
liv
e.
 

Ju
ne
 2
01
0 

 
K
ev
in
 D
ic
ks
 

• 
In
te
rn
al
 A
ud
it 
S
er
vi
ce
 W
E
T
T
 to
 g
o 
liv
e.
 

Ju
ne
 2
01
0 

 
K
ev
in
 D
ic
ks
 

       

Page 45



 
34
 

K
ey

 Im
p

ac
ts
 

K
ey

 O
b

je
ct

iv
e 

W
M

09
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
L

o
ca

l A
re

a 
A

g
re

em
en

t 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

T
ar

g
et

 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3 

S
tr
at
eg
ic
 P
la
nn
in
g 

 
    

   
� ���
 

N
/a
 

   
  

  

K
ey

 A
ct

io
n

s 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
R

es
o

u
rc

es
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 t
o

 b
as

e 
b

u
d

g
et

 
L

ea
d

 O
ff

ic
er

 

• 
S
uc
ce
ss
fu
l p
re
-e
xa
m
in
at
io
n 
m
ee
tin
g 
of
 d
ra
ft 
C
or
e 
S
tr
at
eg
y.

 
Ju
ne
 2
01
1 

 
Jo
hn
 S
ta
ni
la
nd
 

   

K
ey

 Im
p

ac
ts
 

K
ey

 O
b

je
ct

iv
e 

W
M

10
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
L

o
ca

l A
re

a 
A

g
re

em
en

t 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

T
ar

g
et

 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3 

T
o 
de
ve
lo
p 
a 
co
m
pr
eh
en
si
ve
 L
ea
rn
in
g 
an
d 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t P
ro
gr
am
m
e 
su
pp
or
tin
g 
th
e 

co
rp
or
at
e 
pr
io
rit
ie
s,
 in
di
vi
du
al
 n
ee
ds
 a
nd
 

w
or
kf
or
ce
 p
la
nn
in
g.
 

 

   
    

   
  � ���
 

• 
In
ve
st
or
s 
in
 P
eo
pl
e 
ac
cr
ed
ita
tio
n 
 

   
  

A
pr
il 
20
13
 

 

K
ey

 A
ct

io
n

s 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
R

es
o

u
rc

es
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 t
o

 b
as

e 
b

u
d

g
et

 
L

ea
d

 O
ff

ic
er

 

• 
D
ev
el
op
 c
or
po
ra
te
 w
or
kf
or
ce
 p
la
n.
 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 

 
Ja
yn
e 
P
ic
ke
rin
g 

• 
D
ev
el
op
 In
ve
st
or
s 
in
 P
eo
pl
e 
A
ct
io
n 
P
la
n.
 

A
pr
il 
20
13
 

 
Ja
yn
e 
P
ic
ke
rin
g 

          

Page 46



 
35
 

K
ey

 Im
p

ac
ts
 

K
ey

 O
b

je
ct

iv
e 

W
M

11
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
L

o
ca

l A
re

a 
A

g
re

em
en

t 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

T
ar

g
et

 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3 

H
R
 M
od
er
ni
sa
tio
n 

   
    

   
  � ���
 

N
/a
  

   
  

  

K
ey

 A
ct

io
n

s 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
R

es
o

u
rc

es
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 t
o

 b
as

e 
b

u
d

g
et

 
L

ea
d

 O
ff

ic
er

 

• 
H
ar
m
on
is
at
io
n 
of
 te
rm
s 
an
d 
co
nd
iti
on
s 

D
ec
 2
01
0 

(s
ub
je
ct
 to
 

T
ra
de
s 
U
ni
on
 

ag
re
em
en
t)
 

 
Ja
yn
e 
P
ic
ke
rin
g 

• 
C
om
pl
et
io
n 
of
 p
ay
ro
ll 
le
an
 s
ys
te
m
s 
pr
oj
ec
t 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

 
Ja
yn
e 
P
ic
ke
rin
g 

 

K
ey

 Im
p

ac
ts
 

K
ey

 O
b

je
ct

iv
e 

W
M

12
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
L

o
ca

l A
re

a 
A

g
re

em
en

t 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
10

/1
1 

T
ar

g
et

 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3 

P
os
iti
ve
 E
m
pl
oy
ee
 C
lim
at
e 

   
    

   
  � ���
 

• 
S
ta
ff 
su
rv
ey
 r
es
ul
ts
 

  
   

  
  

K
ey

 A
ct

io
n

s 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
R

es
o

u
rc

es
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 t
o

 b
as

e 
b

u
d

g
et

 
L

ea
d

 O
ff

ic
er

 

• 
C
re
at
io
n 
an
d 
de
liv
er
y 
of
 e
m
pl
oy
ee
 e
ng
ag
em
en
t p
ro
gr
am
m
e.
 

20
10
 a
nd
 

ea
ch
 y
ea
r 

th
er
ea
fte
r 

 
K
ev
in
 D
ic
ks
 

     

Page 47



 
36
 

11
. 

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
 In
 s
et
tin
g 
ou
t o
ur
 p
la
ns
 fo
r 
th
e 
B
or
ou
gh
 w
e 
re
co
gn
is
e,
 a
s 
a 
w
el
l 

m
an
ag
ed
 o
rg
an
is
at
io
n,
 th
at
 th
er
e 
ar
e 
a 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 r
is
ks
 th
at
 m
ay
 

im
pa
ct
 o
n 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
ac
hi
ev
in
g 
al
l w
e 
ha
ve
 s
et
 o
ut
 in
 th
is
 C
or
po
ra
te
 

P
la
n.
 W
e 
w
ill
 m
on
ito
r 
th
es
e 
ris
ks
 a
nd
 ta
ke
 m
iti
ga
tin
g 
ac
tio
ns
, w
he
re
 

pr
ac
tic
ab
le
, t
o 
m
in
im
is
e 
th
e 
im
pa
ct
 o
n 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
bu
t s
om
e 
ris
ks
 a
re
 

un
av
oi
da
bl
e.
 

 T
he
 k
ey
 r
is
ks
 a
re
 r
el
at
ed
 to
: 

 
• 

ec
on
om
ic
 c
ha
ng
es
 c
re
at
in
g 
ad
di
tio
na
l p
re
ss
ur
es
 o
n 
se
rv
ic
es
 

an
d 
re
so
ur
ce
s.
 

• 
ou
r 
ab
ili
ty
 to
 d
el
iv
er
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
w
he
n 
re
so
ur
ce
s 
ar
e 
re
st
ric
te
d 

or
 s
ys
te
m
s 
fa
il.
 

• 
th
at
 s
er
vi
ce
 im
pr
ov
em
en
ts
 d
o 
no
t r
es
ul
t i
n 
po
si
tiv
e 
ch
an
ge
s 

in
 u
se
r 
pe
rc
ep
tio
n.
 

• 
th
e 
de
liv
er
y 
of
 r
es
ili
en
ce
 a
nd
 e
ffi
ci
en
ci
es
 th
ro
ug
h 
pa
rt
ne
rs
hi
p 

w
or
ki
ng
. 

• 
th
at
 a
dv
an
ce
s 
in
 te
ch
no
lo
gy
 a
re
 n
ot
 u
til
is
ed
 to
 d
el
iv
er
 

ef
fic
ie
nc
ie
s 
an
d 
im
pr
ov
em
en
ts
 fo
r 
th
e 
cu
st
om
er
. 

• 
m
an
ag
in
g 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 th
e 
rig
ht
 th
in
gs
 a
re
 

de
liv
er
ed
, i
n 
th
e 
rig
ht
 w
ay
, f
or
 th
e 
rig
ht
 p
eo
pl
e.
 

 T
he
 C
ou
nc
il’
s 
R
is
k 
M
an
ag
em
en
t P
ol
ic
y 
re
qu
ire
s 
ef
fe
ct
iv
e 
m
an
ag
em
en
t 

of
 a
ll 
ris
ks
. T
he
 P
ol
ic
y 
re
la
te
s 
to
 a
ll 
ris
ks
 b
ot
h 
at
 s
tr
at
eg
ic
 a
nd
 s
er
vi
ce
 

le
ve
l. 
T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
ha
s 
es
ta
bl
is
he
d 
a 
R
is
k 
M
an
ag
em
en
t W

or
ki
ng
 G
ro
up
 

to
 m
on
ito
r 
pr
og
re
ss
 o
n 
th
e 
ac
tio
n 
pl
an
s 
de
ve
lo
pe
d 
to
 m
an
ag
e 
al
l 

ex
is
tin
g 
an
d 
em
er
gi
ng
 h
ig
h 
le
ve
l r
is
ks
.  

      

     
   
   
   
   
   
   

   
   
  

 
 

Page 48



 
37
 

12
. 

E
q

u
al

it
ie

s 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
ha
s 
on
e 
of
 th
e 
m
os
t d
iv
er
se
 p
op
ul
at
io
ns
 a
cr
os
s 

W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
.  
T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
re
co
gn
is
es
 th
e 
im
po
rt
an
ce
 o
f e
m
br
ac
in
g 

cu
ltu
ra
l d
iff
er
en
ce
s 
to
 s
ha
pe
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il.
   
 

 R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
pr
ov
id
es
 a
 w
id
e 
ra
ng
e 
of
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
to
 a
 

va
rie
ty
 o
f p
eo
pl
e 
an
d 
is
 o
ne
 o
f t
he
 la
rg
es
t e
m
pl
oy
er
s 
w
ith
in
 th
e 

B
or
ou
gh
.  
A
s 
su
ch
 it
s 
ac
tio
ns
 a
nd
 d
ec
is
io
ns
 a
ffe
ct
 th
e 
liv
es
 o
f e
ve
ry
on
e 

in
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
to
 s
om
e 
de
gr
ee
.  
 

 Y
ou
ng
 p
eo
pl
e 
ag
ed
 0
 –
 1
9 
ye
ar
s 
co
ns
tit
ut
e 
25
.1
%
 o
f t
he
 p
op
ul
at
io
n 

an
d 
pe
op
le
 a
ge
d 
60
 o
r 
ov
er
 c
on
st
itu
te
 1
9.
2%
 o
f t
he
 p
op
ul
at
io
n.
 T
hi
s 

co
nt
ra
st
s 
w
ith
 o
th
er
 a
re
as
 in
 W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 w
he
re
 th
e 
pr
op
or
tio
n 
of
 

yo
un
g 
pe
op
le
 is
 2
3.
5%
 o
f t
he
 p
op
ul
at
io
n 
an
d 
th
e 
pr
op
or
tio
n 
of
 p
eo
pl
e 

ag
ed
 6
0 
or
 o
ve
r 
is
 2
4.
6%
 o
f t
he
 p
op
ul
at
io
n.
   

  5
1%

 o
f R
ed
di
tc
h’
s 
po
pu
la
tio
n 
is
 fe
m
al
e;
 h
ow
ev
er
 it
 is
 p
ro
je
ct
ed
 th
at
 th
e 

m
al
e 
po
pu
la
tio
n 
w
ill
 h
av
e 
ex
pe
rie
nc
ed
 a
 g
re
at
er
 in
cr
ea
se
 b
y 
20
11
. 

 In
 th
e 
20
01
 c
en
su
s 
0.
18
%
 o
f p
eo
pl
e 
ag
ed
 1
6 
or
 o
ve
r 
de
fin
ed
 

th
em
se
lv
es
 a
s 
liv
in
g 
w
ith
 a
 p
ar
tn
er
 o
f t
he
 s
am
e 
se
x.
  T
he
 c
en
su
s 
do
es
 

no
t, 
ho
w
ev
er
, i
de
nt
ify
 th
e 
se
xu
al
 o
rie
nt
at
io
n 
of
 in
di
vi
du
al
s 
no
t l
iv
in
g 
in
 

sa
m
e 
se
x 
co
up
le
s.
 

 T
he
re
 is
 c
ur
re
nt
ly
 n
o 
st
an
da
rd
 m
ea
su
re
 o
f e
st
im
at
e 
of
 th
e 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 

di
sa
bl
ed
 p
eo
pl
e.
  H
ow
ev
er
, a
pp
ro
xi
m
at
el
y 
16
%
 o
f t
he
 p
op
ul
at
io
n 
ha
d 
a 

lo
ng
 te
rm
 li
m
iti
ng
 il
ln
es
s 
in
 2
00
1 
an
d 
fo
r 
th
os
e 
in
 th
e 
ov
er
-6
5 
ag
e 
gr
ou
p 

th
e 
pr
op
or
tio
n 
w
as
 4
8%
.  

 T
he
 B
la
ck
 a
nd
 E
th
ni
c 
M
in
or
ity
 p
op
ul
at
io
n 
co
ns
tit
ut
es
 6
.9
%
 o
f t
he
 to
ta
l 

po
pu
la
tio
n1
, t
he
 la
rg
es
t e
th
ni
c 
gr
ou
p 
be
in
g 
th
e 
P
ak
is
ta
ni
 g
ro
up
 w
hi
ch
 

co
ns
tit
ut
es
 2
.3
%
 (
1,
80
0)
 o
f t
he
 p
op
ul
at
io
n.
  O
th
er
 g
ro
up
s 
in
cl
ud
e 
B
la
ck
  

  B
rit
is
h,
 A
fr
ic
an
 a
nd
 C
ar
ib
be
an
, I
nd
ia
n,
 B
an
gl
ad
es
hi
, C
hi
ne
se
 a
nd
 

M
ix
ed
.  
T
he
re
 h
as
 a
ls
o 
be
en
 a
n 
in
flu
x 
of
 in
di
vi
du
al
s 
fr
om
 th
e 
co
un
tr
ie
s 

w
hi
ch
 jo
in
ed
 th
e 
E
ur
op
ea
n 
U
ni
on
 in
 2
00
4,
 w
ith
 th
e 
la
rg
es
t p
ro
po
rt
io
n 
of
 

th
es
e 
be
in
g 
P
ol
is
h.
   

 R
ed
di
tc
h 
al
so
 c
on
si
st
s 
of
 m
ul
ti-
fa
ith
 c
om
m
un
iti
es
.  
C
hr
is
tia
ni
ty
 r
em
ai
ns
 

th
e 
pr
ed
om
in
an
t f
ai
th
 in
 th
e 
di
st
ric
t a
nd
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
al
so
 h
as
 th
e 
la
rg
es
t 

pe
rc
en
ta
ge
 o
f i
nd
iv
id
ua
ls
 o
f M
us
lim
 fa
ith
 in
 W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 a
t 2
.4
%
 o
f 

th
e 
po
pu
la
tio
n.
  T
he
 B
ud
dh
is
t, 
H
in
du
, J
ew
is
h 
an
d 
S
ik
h 
re
lig
io
ns
 a
re
 

al
so
 r
ep
re
se
nt
ed
 a
nd
 1
2.
6%

 o
f t
he
 p
op
ul
at
io
n 
st
at
e 
th
ey
 h
av
e 
no
 

re
lig
io
n.
2  
 

     
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

1
 E
st
im
at
ed
 r
es
id
en
t p
op
ul
at
io
n 
by
 e
th
ni
c 
gr
ou
p 
an
d 
se
x,
 m
id
-2
00
6,
 O
N
S
 (
20
08
) 

2
 C
en
su
s 
2
0
0
1
. 

Page 49



 
38
 

 T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
w
ill
 tr
ea
t a
ll 
pe
op
le
 e
qu
al
ly
 w
he
th
er
 th
ey
 a
re
: 

• 
S
ee
ki
ng
 o
r 
us
in
g 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
se
rv
ic
es
 o
r 
ap
pl
yi
ng
 fo
r 
fu
nd
s;
 o
r 

• 
C
on
tr
ac
tin
g 
to
 s
up
pl
y 
or
 p
ur
ch
as
e 
go
od
s 
or
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
to
 o
r 
fr
om
 th
e 

C
ou
nc
il.
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

A
ll 
m
em
be
rs
 o
f t
he
 c
om
m
un
ity
 a
nd
 v
is
ito
rs
 to
 th
e 
B
or
ou
gh
 a
re
 e
nt
itl
ed
 

to
 e
xp
ec
t f
ai
r 
an
d 
eq
ua
l t
re
at
m
en
t i
n 
th
ei
r 
de
al
in
gs
 w
ith
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il.
  I
t 

is
 im
po
rt
an
t t
ha
t w
e 
ca
n 
de
m
on
st
ra
te
 th
at
 w
e 
up
ho
ld
 th
e 
pr
in
ci
pl
es
 o
f 

eq
ua
lit
y 
an
d 
di
ve
rs
ity
.  
 

 R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
ha
s 
un
de
rt
ak
en
 a
 s
el
f-
as
se
ss
m
en
t a
ga
in
st
   
   
   
 

th
e 
Lo
ca
l G
ov
er
nm
en
t E
qu
al
ity
 S
ta
nd
ar
d 
an
d 
as
se
ss
ed
 it
se
lf 
at
 L
ev
el
 2
 

of
 th
e 
E
qu
al
ity
 S
ta
nd
ar
d 
fo
r 
Lo
ca
l G
ov
er
nm
en
t. 
  H
ow
ev
er
, c
ha
ng
es
 to
 

th
e 
S
ta
nd
ar
d 
ar
e 
be
in
g 
in
tr
od
uc
ed
 a
nd
 th
es
e 
ch
an
ge
s 
w
ill
 b
e 

em
be
dd
ed
 w
ith
in
 th
e 
w
or
k 
of
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il.
   

 R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
w
ill
 p
ro
m
ot
e 
pr
oc
ur
em
en
t p
ra
ct
ic
es
 w
hi
ch
 

su
pp
or
t i
ts
 p
rio
rit
ie
s 
on
 e
qu
al
iti
es
 a
nd
 d
iv
er
si
ty
.  
T
hi
s 
w
ill
 in
cl
ud
e 
th
e 

pr
ov
is
io
n 
of
 a
dv
ic
e 
on
 e
qu
al
ity
 is
su
es
 to
 s
up
pl
ie
rs
 a
nd
 e
ns
ur
in
g 
th
at
 

co
nt
ra
ct
s 
pr
om
ot
e 
eq
ua
lit
y 
an
d 
di
ve
rs
ity
. 

 T
he
 E
qu
al
iti
es
 a
nd
 D
iv
er
si
ty
 A
ct
io
n 
P
la
n 
de
ve
lo
pe
d 
by
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
w
ill
 

be
 d
el
iv
er
ed
 a
cr
os
s 
th
e 
or
ga
ni
sa
tio
n.
  

 R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
w
ill
 p
ro
vi
de
 a
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
, s
en
si
tiv
e 
an
d 

ac
ce
ss
ib
le
 s
er
vi
ce
s.
  I
t w
ill
 n
ot
 d
is
cr
im
in
at
e 
on
 th
e 
gr
ou
nd
s 
of
 a
ge
, 

ra
ce
, d
is
ab
ili
ty
, e
th
ni
c 
or
ig
in
, g
en
de
r,
 s
ex
ua
lit
y 
or
 o
n 
an
y 
ot
he
r 

un
ju
st
ifi
ab
le
 g
ro
un
ds
.  

    

Page 50



 
39
 

  13
. 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

F
ra

m
ew

o
rk

 
  P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 m
an
ag
em
en
t i
s 
a 
us
ef
ul
 to
ol
 to
 a
ss
es
s 
ho
w
 th
e 
or
ga
ni
sa
tio
n 
is
 

im
pr
ov
in
g 
an
d 
to
 d
et
er
m
in
e 
w
ha
t s
te
ps
 a
re
 s
til
l r
eq
ui
re
d 
to
 a
ch
ie
ve
 it
s 

ob
je
ct
iv
es
. 

 E
ffe
ct
iv
e 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 m
an
ag
em
en
t r
eq
ui
re
s:
 

 
• 

S
ys
te
m
at
ic
al
ly
 d
ec
id
in
g 
an
d 
co
m
m
un
ic
at
in
g 
w
ha
t n
ee
ds
 to
 b
e 
do
ne
 

(a
im
s,
 o
bj
ec
tiv
es
, p
rio
rit
ie
s 
an
d 
ta
rg
et
s)
; 

• 
A
 p
la
n 
fo
r 
en
su
rin
g 
th
at
 it
 h
ap
pe
ns
 (
im
pr
ov
em
en
t, 
ac
tio
n 
or
 s
er
vi
ce
 

pl
an
s)
; 

• 
S
om
e 
m
ea
ns
 o
f a
ss
es
si
ng
 if
 th
is
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
ac
hi
ev
ed
 (
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 

m
ea
su
re
s)
; a
nd
 

• 
In
fo
rm
at
io
n 
re
ac
hi
ng
 th
e 
rig
ht
 p
eo
pl
e 
at
 th
e 
rig
ht
 ti
m
e 
(p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 

re
po
rt
in
g)
 s
o 
th
at
 d
ec
is
io
ns
 a
re
 m
ad
e 
an
d 
ac
tio
ns
 ta
ke
n.
 

 
T
hi
s 
m
ea
ns
 th
at
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
w
ill
: 

 
• 

cl
ea
rly
 d
ef
in
e 
its
 p
rio
rit
ie
s 
an
d 
ob
je
ct
iv
es
; 

• 
id
en
tif
y 
pr
oj
ec
ts
 w
ith
 m
ile
st
on
es
 a
nd
 ta
rg
et
 d
at
es
; 

• 
id
en
tif
y 
m
ea
su
re
s 
an
d 
se
t t
ar
ge
ts
 fo
r 
ac
hi
ev
em
en
t; 

• 
id
en
tif
y 
ris
ks
 a
nd
 m
an
ag
e 
th
em
; 

• 
al
lo
ca
te
 o
w
ne
rs
hi
p 
an
d 
re
sp
on
si
bi
lit
ie
s 
to
 n
am
ed
 o
ffi
ce
rs
; a
nd
 

• 
m
on
ito
r 
an
d 
re
po
rt
 p
ro
gr
es
s 
at
 ti
m
el
y 
in
te
rv
al
s.
 

 T
he
 C
ou
nc
il’
s 
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 M
an
ag
em
en
t F
ra
m
ew
or
k 
se
ts
 o
ut
 th
e 
st
ru
ct
ur
e 

an
d 
pr
oc
es
se
s 
to
 b
e 
fo
llo
w
ed
 a
nd
 c
an
 b
e 
ac
ce
ss
ed
 o
n 
ou
r 
w
eb
si
te
 a
t 

w
w
w
.r
ed
di
tc
hb
c.
go
v.
uk
. 

   

O
u
r 
P
ro
m
is
e 
to
 Y
o
u
 

 W
e 

ai
m

 t
o

 p
ro

vi
d

e 
h

ig
h

 q
u

al
it

y 
se

rv
ic

es
 f

o
r 

al
l o

u
r 

cu
st

o
m

er
s.

  W
e 

p
ro

vi
d

e 
a 

w
id

e 
ra

n
g

e 
o

f 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 a
im

 t
o

 d
el

iv
er

 a
n

d
 d

ev
el

o
p

 
se

rv
ic

es
 t

o
 m

ee
t 

o
u

r 
cu

st
o

m
er

s’
 n

ee
d

s.
 

 W
e 
ha
ve
 a
 C
us
to
m
er
 C
ha
rt
er
 th
at
 s
et
s 
ou
t t
he
 s
ta
nd
ar
ds
 o
f c
us
to
m
er
 s
er
vi
ce
 

yo
u 
ca
n 
ex
pe
ct
 fr
om
 u
s.
  Y
ou
 c
an
 s
ee
 th
is
 o
n 
ou
r 
w
eb
si
te
 a
t 

w
w
w
.r
ed
di
tc
hb
c.
go
v.
uk
. 

      T
o 
fin
d 
ou
t m
or
e 
ab
ou
t w
ha
t t
he
 B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
do
es
, v
is
it 
ou
r 
w
eb
si
te
 a
t 

w
w
w
.r
ed
di
tc
hb
c.
go
v.
uk
 o
r 
co
nt
ac
t: 

  
T
he
 P
ol
ic
y 
T
ea
m
 

 
T
ow
n 
H
al
l, 
W
al
te
r 
S
tr
an
z 
S
qu
ar
e,
 

 
R
E
D
D
IT
C
H
, W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 B
98
 8
A
H
 

 
T
el
ep
ho
ne
 0
15
27
 6
42
52
 

 
E
m
ai
l: 
 p
ol
ic
y.
te
am
@
re
dd
itc
hb
c.
go
v.
uk
 

     

  

Page 51



 
40
 

 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 1

 
 C

o
u

n
ci

l’s
 B

al
an

ce
d

 S
co

re
ca

rd
 

 T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
ha
s 
a 
ba
la
nc
ed
 s
co
re
ca
rd
 fo
r 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
th
re
e 
pr
io
rit
ie
s,
 w
hi
ch
 w
er
e 
ap
pr
ov
ed
 b
y 
F
ul
l C
ou
nc
il.
   
T
he
 s
co
re
ca
rd
 id
en
tif
ie
s 
th
e 
ke
y 

su
pp
or
t s
er
vi
ce
 a
ct
iv
iti
es
 r
eq
ui
re
d 
to
 d
el
iv
er
 th
e 
pr
io
rit
ie
s.
  A
 S
pe
ci
fic
, M
ea
su
ra
bl
e,
 A
gr
ee
d,
 R
ea
lis
tic
 a
nd
 T
ar
ge
te
d 
(S
M
A
R
T
) 
st
ra
te
gi
c 
ac
tio
n 
pl
an
 

fo
r 
th
e 
ba
la
nc
ed
 s
co
re
ca
rd
 h
as
 a
ls
o 
be
en
 a
gr
ee
d 
(s
ee
 A
pp
en
di
x 
2)
. 

  C
u

st
o

m
er

 
P

er
sp

ec
ti

ve
 

(C
P

) 
 

 

A
n

 E
n

te
rp

ri
si

n
g

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

(E
C

) 
  

S
af

e 
(S

) 
 

C
le

an
 a

n
d

 G
re

en
 (

C
G

) 
 

 F
in

an
ci

al
 a

n
d

 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

P
er

sp
ec

ti
ve

 
(F

P
) 

 

 
M

an
ag

in
g

 F
in

an
ce

s 
(i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

M
o

n
ey

) 
(F

P
1)

 

G
o

ve
rn

in
g

 t
h

e 
B

u
si

n
es

s 
(i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

M
o

n
ey

) 
 (

F
P

2)
 

M
an

ag
in

g
 R

es
o

u
rc

es
 

(i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 V

al
u

e 
fo

r 
M

o
n

ey
) 

 (
F

P
3)

 

M
an

ag
in

g
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

(i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 V

al
u

e 
fo

r 
M

o
n

ey
) 

(F
P

4)
 

  P
ro

ce
ss

 
P

er
sp

ec
ti

ve
 

(P
R

) 
  

C
u

st
o

m
er

 
P

ro
ce

ss
es

  
(P

R
1)

 

 
P

o
lit

ic
al

 G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

  
(P

R
2)

 

S
h

ar
ed

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
P

ro
ce

ss
es

 
(P

R
3)

 

 
W

E
T

T
 

 (
P

R
4)

 

 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 
(P

R
5)

 

 H
u

m
an

 
R

es
o

u
rc

es
 a

n
d

 
O

rg
an

is
at

io
n

al
 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

P
er

sp
ec

ti
ve

 
(H

R
O

D
) 

 
L

ea
rn

in
g

 a
n

d
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
 

(H
R

O
D

1)
 

 
H

u
m

an
 R

es
o

u
rc

e 
M

o
d

er
n

is
at

io
n

  
(H

R
O

D
2)

 

 
P

o
si

ti
ve

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

C
lim

at
e 

(H
R

O
D

3)
 

Page 52



 
41
 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 2
 

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n
 

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

K
ey

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

M
ea

su
re

 
H

o
w

 D
o

 W
e 

K
n

o
w

 W
e 

A
re

 
G

et
ti

n
g

 
T

h
er

e?
 

P
ro

je
ct

/A
ct

io
n

 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 

D
at

e 
R

es
o

u
rc

e 
L

ea
d

 M
em

b
er

 
(L

ea
d

 O
ff

ic
er

) 

A
n

 
E

n
te

rp
ri

si
n

g
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

(C
P

1)
 

 

C
lo
si
ng
 th
e 

G
ap
 

- 
W
in
ya
te
s 

C
en
tr
e 

 - 
A
re
a 
of
 

H
ig
he
st
 

N
ee
d 

    

C
rim
e 

R
ed
uc
tio
n 
an
d 

P
er
ce
pt
io
n 

M
ea
su
re
s 

 K
ey
 

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 

In
di
ca
to
rs
 A
s 

P
er
 A
gr
ee
d 

P
ro
po
sa
l 

      

S
ec
ur
ity
 

S
ys
te
m
 

In
st
al
le
d.
 

  Q
ua
rt
er
ly
 

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 

R
ev
ie
w
 

 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t o
f 

P
ro
je
ct
 D
el
iv
er
y 

P
la
n 

  E
st
ab
lis
h 

S
te
er
in
g 
G
ro
up
 

 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

    31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 

£1
00
,0
00
 

ca
pi
ta
l 

£5
00
,0
00
 L
A
A
 

R
ew
ar
d 
G
ra
nt
 

 N
ei
gh
bo
ur
ho
od
 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

O
ffi
ce
r 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 

fo
r 
C
om
m
un
ity
 

Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 a
nd
 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 

 (S
ue
 H
an
le
y)
 

2 
S
ta
r 

In
sp
ec
tio
n 

R
at
in
g 

H
ou
si
ng
 Q
ua
lit
y 

N
et
w
or
k 

A
ss
es
sm
en
t 

In
sp
ec
tio
n 

P
ro
je
ct
 P
la
n 

31
 M
ay
 2
01
0 

(p
la
n 
in
 p
la
ce
) 

H
ou
si
ng
 C
or
e 

M
an
ag
er
s 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 

fo
r 
H
ou
si
ng
, 

Lo
ca
l 

E
nv
iro
nm
en
t a
nd
 

H
ea
lth
 

 (J
oh
n 
S
ta
ni
la
nd
) 

 

 
H
ou
si
ng
 

    

Lo
ng
 T
er
m
 

F
in
an
ci
ng
 o
f 

H
ou
si
ng
 

S
er
vi
ce
 

R
es
ol
ve
d 

 

Le
ve
l o
f 

H
ou
si
ng
 D
eb
t 

S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 

an
d 
E
na
bl
es
 

Im
pr
ov
em
en
t 

H
ou
si
ng
 

R
ev
en
ue
 

A
cc
ou
nt
 

R
ev
ie
w
 

A
nn
ou
nc
em
en
t 

O
ct
 1
0 
to
 M
ar
 

11
 F
in
an
ci
al
 

C
al
cu
la
tio
n 

  

E
xt
er
na
l 

T
ec
hn
ic
al
 

S
up
po
rt
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 

fo
r 
H
ou
si
ng
, 

Lo
ca
l 

E
nv
iro
nm
en
t a
nd
 

H
ea
lth
 

 (J
oh
n 
S
ta
ni
la
nd
) 

Page 53



 
42
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

K
ey

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

M
ea

su
re

 
H

o
w

 D
o

 W
e 

K
n

o
w

 W
e 

A
re

 
G

et
ti

n
g

 
T

h
er

e?
 

P
ro

je
ct

/A
ct

io
n

 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 

D
at

e 
R

es
o

u
rc

e 
L

ea
d

 M
em

b
er

 
(L

ea
d

 O
ff

ic
er

) 

 
 

T
en
an
t 

S
at
is
fa
ct
io
n 

P
os
iti
ve
 T
en
an
t 

S
at
is
fa
ct
io
n 

S
co
re
 

T
en
an
t 

In
vo
lv
em
en
t 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

A
ug
us
t 2
01
0 

T
en
an
t 

In
vo
lv
em
en
t 

O
ffi
ce
rs
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 

fo
r 
H
ou
si
ng
, 

Lo
ca
l 

E
nv
iro
nm
en
t a
nd
 

H
ea
lth
 

 (J
oh
n 
S
ta
ni
la
nd
) 

A
de
qu
at
e 

S
up
pl
y 
of
 L
an
d 

fo
r 
E
co
no
m
ic
 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t o
f 

C
or
e 
S
tr
at
eg
y 

20
12
? 

(D
ep
en
de
nt
 o
n 

R
eg
io
na
l 

S
pa
tia
l 

S
tr
at
eg
y)
 

P
la
nn
in
g 
an
d 

R
eg
en
er
at
io
n 

T
ea
m
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 

fo
r 
P
la
nn
in
g,
 

E
co
no
m
ic
 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

an
d 
T
ra
ns
po
rt
 

 (J
oh
n 
S
ta
ni
la
nd
) 

 

 
E
co
no
m
ic
 

G
ro
w
th
 -
 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

   

Im
pr
ov
ed
 a
nd
 

M
od
er
ni
se
d 

B
or
ou
gh
 

E
co
no
m
y 

  

N
or
th
 

W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 

E
co
no
m
ic
 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

P
ro
po
sa
ls
 

A
pp
ro
ve
d 

 

S
et
 u
p 

es
ta
bl
is
hm
en
t 

st
ru
ct
ur
e 
fo
r 
th
e 

N
or
th
 

W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 

E
co
no
m
ic
 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

 

S
ep
te
m
be
r 

20
12
 

E
co
no
m
ic
 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

an
d 
T
ow
n 

C
en
tr
e 

M
an
ag
er
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 

fo
r 
P
la
nn
in
g,
 

E
co
no
m
ic
 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

an
d 
T
ra
ns
po
rt
 

  (J
oh
n 
S
ta
ni
la
nd
) 

 
E
co
no
m
ic
 

G
ro
w
th
 -
 

O
pe
ra
tio
ns
 

   

M
in
im
um
 o
f 3
 

E
ve
nt
s 
P
er
 

Y
ea
r 
fo
r 
S
M
E
s 

  B
us
in
es
s 

C
en
tr
e 
(x
3)
 

   

R
un
 3
 e
ve
nt
s.
 

    R
ep
or
t t
o 

M
em
be
rs
 w
ith
 

im
pl
em
en
ta
tio
n 

pl
an
 

 

E
ve
nt
s 
pl
an
s 

    R
ev
ie
w
 o
f 

B
us
in
es
s 

C
en
tr
es
 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

(a
nd
 e
ve
ry
 

ye
ar
 

th
er
ea
fte
r)
 

 Ju
ne
 2
01
0 

E
co
no
m
ic
 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

T
ea
m
 a
nd
 

B
us
in
es
s 

C
en
tr
e 

M
an
ag
er
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 

fo
r 
P
la
nn
in
g,
 

E
co
no
m
ic
 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

an
d 
T
ra
ns
po
rt
 

  (J
oh
n 
S
ta
ni
la
nd
) 

Page 54



 
43
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

K
ey

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

M
ea

su
re

 
H

o
w

 D
o

 W
e 

K
n

o
w

 W
e 

A
re

 
G

et
ti

n
g

 
T

h
er

e?
 

P
ro

je
ct

/A
ct

io
n

 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 

D
at

e 
R

es
o

u
rc

e 
L

ea
d

 M
em

b
er

 
(L

ea
d

 O
ff

ic
er

) 

 
Le
is
ur
e 
– 

A
bb
ey
 S
ta
di
um
 

   

In
co
m
e 
T
ar
ge
t 

 U
sa
ge
 T
ar
ge
t 

 (b
ot
h 
su
bj
ec
t t
o 

fin
al
is
at
io
n 
an
d 

ap
pr
ov
al
 o
f 

bu
si
ne
ss
 c
as
e)
 

A
pp
ro
va
l o
f 

B
us
in
es
s 
C
as
e 

 S
ta
di
um
 O
pe
n 

D
et
ai
le
d 
P
ro
je
ct
 

P
la
n 
to
 D
el
iv
er
 

S
ta
di
um
 

Ja
nu
ar
y 
20
10
 

  Ja
nu
ar
y 
20
12
 

  

P
ro
je
ct
 B
oa
rd
 

 £6
.6
m
 C
ap
ita
l 

B
ud
ge
t 

 C
om
bi
ne
d 

R
ev
en
ue
 

B
ud
ge
ts
 o
f 

H
ew
el
l R
oa
d 

an
d 
A
bb
ey
 

Le
is
ur
e 
C
en
tr
e 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 

fo
r 
Le
is
ur
e 
an
d 

T
ou
ris
m
 

 (S
ue
 H
an
le
y)
 

R
ed
uc
tio
n 
in
 

N
um
be
r 
of
 

V
ac
an
t U
ni
ts
 

A
nn
ua
l R
ev
ie
w
 

of
 T
ow
n 
C
en
tr
e 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

A
ct
io
ns
 

 

T
ow
n 
C
en
tr
e 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 

P
la
nn
in
g 
an
d 

R
eg
en
er
at
io
n 

T
ea
m
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 

fo
r 
Le
is
ur
e 
an
d 

T
ou
ris
m
 

 (J
oh
n 
S
ta
ni
la
nd
) 

 
T
ow
n 
C
en
tr
e 

   

P
hy
si
ca
l 

Im
pr
ov
em
en
t o
f 

P
ub
lic
 R
ea
lm
 

C
om
pl
et
io
n 
of
 

ex
is
tin
g 
pu
bl
ic
 

re
al
m
 s
tu
di
es
 

P
ro
gr
am
m
e 
of
 

im
pr
ov
em
en
ts
, 

st
ar
tin
g 
w
ith
 

“q
ui
ck
 w
in
s”
 

 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

T
ow
n 
C
en
tr
e 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 

fo
r 
Le
is
ur
e 
an
d 

T
ou
ris
m
 

 (J
oh
n 
S
ta
ni
la
nd
) 

           

Page 55



 
44
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

K
ey

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

M
ea

su
re

 
H

o
w

 D
o

 W
e 

K
n

o
w

 W
e 

A
re

 
G

et
ti

n
g

 
T

h
er

e?
 

P
ro

je
ct

/A
ct

io
n

 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 

D
at

e 
R

es
o

u
rc

e 
L

ea
d

 M
em

b
er

 

S
af

e 
 

R
ed
uc
in
g 

C
rim
e 
Le
ve
ls
 

    

T
ot
al
 C
rim
es
 

A
nn
ua
l T
ar
ge
ts
 

as
 p
er
 

A
pp
en
di
x 
3 

C
om
m
un
ity
 

S
af
et
y 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 P
la
n 

R
ev
is
ed
 e
ve
ry
 

A
pr
il 

C
om
m
un
ity
 

S
af
et
y 
T
ea
m
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 

fo
r 
C
om
m
un
ity
 

S
af
et
y 

 (S
ue
 H
an
le
y)
 

 
T
ac
kl
in
g 
th
e 

P
er
ce
pt
io
n 
of
 

C
rim
e 

 

P
la
ce
 S
ur
ve
y 

In
di
ca
to
rs
 

A
nn
ua
l S
ur
ve
y 

C
om
m
un
ity
 

S
af
et
y 

C
om
m
un
ic
at
io
ns
 

S
tr
at
eg
y 
A
ct
io
n 

P
la
n 

 Im
pr
ov
ed
 

se
cu
rit
y 
in
 

W
in
ya
te
s 
E
st
at
e 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

     M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 

C
om
m
un
ity
 

S
af
et
y 

M
ar
ke
tin
g 

O
ffi
ce
r 
(G
ra
nt
 

F
un
de
d)
  

 £5
00
,0
00
 L
A
A
 

R
ew
ar
d 
G
ra
nt
 

 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 

fo
r 
C
om
m
un
ity
 

S
af
et
y 

 (S
ue
 H
an
le
y)
 

 
R
ed
uc
in
g 
R
e-

of
fe
nd
in
g 

   

A
du
lt 
re
-

of
fe
nd
in
g 
ra
te
s 
 

 Y
ou
th
 r
e-

of
fe
nd
in
g 
ra
te
s 

R
e-
of
fe
nd
in
g 

A
ct
io
n 
P
la
n 

D
ev
el
op
 C
ou
nt
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 
w
ith
 

lo
ca
l a
ct
io
n 
pl
an
. 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

C
om
m
un
ity
 

S
af
et
y 
T
ea
m
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 

fo
r 
C
om
m
un
ity
 

S
af
et
y 

 (S
ue
 H
an
le
y)
 

 
D
ev
el
op
in
g 

C
om
m
un
ity
 

C
oh
es
io
n 

   

P
la
ce
 S
ur
ve
y 

In
di
ca
to
rs
 

    N
um
be
r 
of
 

H
at
e 
In
ci
de
nt
s 

A
nn
ua
l S
ur
ve
y 

C
ou
nt
y 
C
ou
nc
il 

D
el
iv
er
in
g 

S
tr
at
eg
y 
w
ith
 

B
or
ou
gh
 

di
m
en
si
on
 

 H
at
e 
In
ci
de
nt
 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
s 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

C
om
m
un
ity
 

S
af
et
y 
T
ea
m
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 

fo
r 
C
om
m
un
ity
 

S
af
et
y 

 (S
ue
 H
an
le
y)
 

 
A
nt
i-S
oc
ia
l 

B
eh
av
io
ur
 

   

P
la
ce
 S
ur
ve
y 

In
di
ca
to
rs
 

A
nn
ua
l S
ur
ve
y 

A
nt
i-S
oc
ia
l 

B
eh
av
io
ur
 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

(S
ta
tu
to
ry
 P
la
n)
 

 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

C
om
m
un
ity
 

S
af
et
y 
T
ea
m
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 

fo
r 
C
om
m
un
ity
 

S
af
et
y 

 (S
ue
 H
an
le
y)
 

Page 56



 
45
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

K
ey

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

M
ea

su
re

 
H

o
w

 D
o

 W
e 

K
n

o
w

 W
e 

A
re

 
G

et
ti

n
g

 
T

h
er

e?
 

P
ro

je
ct

/A
ct

io
n

 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 

D
at

e 
R

es
o

u
rc

e 
L

ea
d

 M
em

b
er

 

 
M
an
ag
in
g 
th
e 

N
ig
ht
 T
im
e 

E
co
no
m
y 

   

R
ed
uc
tio
n 
in
 

V
io
le
nt
 C
rim
e 

In
di
ca
to
r 

A
nn
ua
l T
ar
ge
ts
 

as
 p
er
 

A
pp
en
di
x 
3.
 

Li
ce
ns
in
g 
A
ud
its
 

 Li
ce
ns
in
g 
P
ol
ic
y 

R
ev
ie
w
 

O
n-
go
in
g 

  31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

W
E
T
T
 

R
eg
ul
at
or
y 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 

fo
r 
C
om
m
un
ity
 

S
af
et
y 

 (S
ue
 H
an
le
y)
 

                         

Page 57



 
46
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

K
ey

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

M
ea

su
re

 
H

o
w

 D
o

 W
e 

K
n

o
w

 W
e 

A
re

 
G

et
ti

n
g

 
T

h
er

e?
 

P
ro

je
ct

/A
ct

io
n

 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 

D
at

e 
R

es
o

u
rc

e 
L

ea
d

 M
em

b
er

 

C
le

an
 a

n
d

 
G

re
en

 
M
or
to
n 
S
ta
nl
ey
 

F
es
tiv
al
 

N
um
be
rs
 

A
tte
nd
in
g 

    S
at
is
fa
ct
io
n 

Le
ve
ls
 

 

A
ct
s 

C
on
fir
m
ed
. 

 Li
ce
ns
e 

C
on
fir
m
ed
. 

 In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re
 

H
ea
lth
 a
nd
 

S
af
et
y 
A
gr
ee
d.
 

P
ro
je
ct
 P
la
n.
 

A
ug
us
t E
ac
h 

Y
ea
r.
 

P
ro
je
ct
 G
ro
up
. 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 

fo
r 
Le
is
ur
e 
an
d 

T
ou
ris
m
 

 (S
ue
 H
an
le
y)
 

 
C
ou
nt
ry
si
de
 

C
en
tr
e 

R
ev
en
ue
 

S
av
in
gs
 

R
ep
or
t t
o 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
in
 

S
ep
te
m
be
r 

20
10
 

P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 

E
xe
rc
is
e 
(S
ep
t 

10
 to
 M
ar
 1
1)
. 

01
 A
pr
il 
20
11
 

E
xt
er
na
lis
at
io
n 

P
ro
je
ct
 T
ea
m
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 

fo
r 
Le
is
ur
e 
an
d 

T
ou
ris
m
 

 (S
ue
 H
an
le
y)
 

 
 

W
as
te
 

R
ec
yc
lin
g 
an
d 

R
ed
uc
tio
n 

K
G
 o
f R
es
id
ua
l 

W
as
te
 P
er
 

H
ou
se
ho
ld
 

(N
I1
91
) 

 In
cr
ea
se
 In
 

R
ec
yc
lin
g 
an
d 

R
eu
se
 W
as
te
 

T
ar
ge
t (
N
I1
92
) 

  

A
nn
ua
l t
ar
ge
ts
 

an
d 
m
on
th
ly
 

m
ea
su
re
m
en
t 

an
d 
re
po
rt
in
g.
 

W
as
te
 

M
in
im
is
at
io
n 

C
am
pa
ig
n.
 

 S
er
vi
ce
 

S
ta
nd
ar
ds
 a
nd
 

B
in
 S
iz
e.
 

 R
ol
l O
ut
 o
f 

G
ar
de
n 
W
as
te
 

 R
oa
d 
S
w
ee
pe
r 

D
et
rit
us
 

 

3 
Y
ea
r 
R
ol
lin
g 

P
ro
gr
am
m
e 

  20
11
/1
2 

   31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

  20
11
/1
2 

 

M
ed
iu
m
 T
er
m
 

F
in
an
ci
al
 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 

fo
r 
H
ou
si
ng
, 

Lo
ca
l 

E
nv
iro
nm
en
t a
nd
 

H
ea
lth
 

 (S
ue
 H
an
le
y)
 

    

Page 58



 
47
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

K
ey

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

M
ea

su
re

 
H

o
w

 D
o

 W
e 

K
n

o
w

 W
e 

A
re

 
G

et
ti

n
g

 
T

h
er

e?
 

P
ro

je
ct

/A
ct

io
n

 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 

D
at

e 
R

es
o

u
rc

e 
L

ea
d

 M
em

b
er

 

N
I 1
85
 

6%
 r
ed
uc
tio
n 

ov
er
 3
 y
ea
rs
 

(b
as
el
in
e 

08
/0
9)
 

 N
I 1
86
- 
pe
r 

ca
pi
ta
 r
ed
uc
tio
n 

in
 C
O
2 

em
is
si
on
s-
  

9%
 r
ed
uc
tio
n 

ov
er
 3
 y
ea
rs
 

(b
as
el
in
e 
20
05
) 

 

4%
 r
ed
uc
tio
n 
at
 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

(b
as
ed
 o
n 

08
/0
9 
ba
se
lin
e)
 

   6%
 r
ed
uc
tio
n 
at
 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

C
lim
at
e 

C
ha
ng
e 

S
tr
at
eg
y 
&
 

A
ct
io
n 
P
la
n 

  S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 

C
om
m
un
ity
 

S
tr
at
eg
y 
A
ct
io
n 

P
la
n 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 

C
lim
at
e 

C
ha
ng
e 

M
an
ag
er
 

 F
ut
ur
e 
bu
dg
et
 

bi
ds
 to
 M
T
F
P
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 

fo
r 
H
ou
si
ng
, 

Lo
ca
l 

E
nv
iro
nm
en
t a
nd
 

H
ea
lth
 

 (H
ug
h 
B
en
ne
tt)
 

  

 
C
lim
at
e 

C
ha
ng
e 

N
I 1
88
- 

P
la
nn
in
g 
to
 

ad
ap
t t
o 

C
lim
at
e 

C
ha
ng
e-
  

Le
ve
l 2
 b
y 
en
d 

of
 y
ea
r 
12
/1
3 

Le
ve
l  
by
 M
ar
ch
 

20
11
 

C
lim
at
e 

C
ha
ng
e 

S
tr
at
eg
y 
&
 

A
ct
io
n 
P
la
n 

 S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 

C
om
m
un
ity
 

S
tr
at
eg
y 
A
ct
io
n 

P
la
n 

 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 

C
lim
at
e 

C
ha
ng
e 

M
an
ag
er
 

 F
ut
ur
e 
bu
dg
et
 

bi
ds
 to
 M
T
F
P
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 

fo
r 
H
ou
si
ng
, 

Lo
ca
l 

E
nv
iro
nm
en
t a
nd
 

H
ea
lth
 

 (H
ug
h 
B
en
ne
tt)
 

  

 
La
nd
sc
ap
in
g 

S
at
is
fa
ct
io
n 

w
ith
 P
ar
ks
 a
nd
 

O
pe
n 
S
pa
ce
s 

(P
la
ce
 S
ur
ve
y)
 

 

In
di
ca
to
r 

M
ea
su
re
d 

E
ve
ry
 Y
ea
r 

B
rit
ai
n 
in
 B
lo
om
 

 G
re
en
 F
la
g 
x3
 

 R
e-
M
ea
su
re
 

La
nd
sc
ap
e 

(a
ud
it)
 a
nd
 

R
ed
ef
in
e 

S
er
vi
ce
 

 R
ev
ie
w
 

A
nn
ua
lis
ed
 

Ju
ne
 2
01
0 

 Ju
ly
 2
01
0 

 M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 

     S
ep
te
m
be
r 

20
10
 

M
ed
iu
m
 T
er
m
 

F
in
an
ci
al
 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 

fo
r 
H
ou
si
ng
, 

Lo
ca
l 

E
nv
iro
nm
en
t a
nd
 

H
ea
lth
  

 (S
ue
 H
an
le
y)
 

Page 59



 
48
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

K
ey

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

M
ea

su
re

 
H

o
w

 D
o

 W
e 

K
n

o
w

 W
e 

A
re

 
G

et
ti

n
g

 
T

h
er

e?
 

P
ro

je
ct

/A
ct

io
n

 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 

D
at

e 
R

es
o

u
rc

e 
L

ea
d

 M
em

b
er

 

H
ou
rs
 o
f 

La
nd
sc
ap
e 

O
pe
ra
tiv
es
 

 

 

 
D
et
rit
us
 

Im
pr
ov
ed
 

S
tr
ee
t a
nd
 

E
nv
iro
nm
en
ta
l 

C
le
an
lin
es
s 

(N
I1
95
a-
d)
 

(L
A
A
 in
di
ca
to
r)
 

 Im
pr
ov
ed
 

S
tr
ee
t a
nd
 

E
nv
iro
nm
en
ta
l 

C
le
an
lin
es
s 
– 

fly
 ti
pp
in
g 

   

In
di
ca
to
rs
 

M
ea
su
re
d 

E
ve
ry
 F
ou
r 

M
on
th
s 

     

LA
A
 P
ro
je
ct
 

W
or
ki
ng
 w
ith
 

C
ou
nt
y 
C
ou
nc
il 

 C
om
pl
et
e 

R
ev
ie
w
 o
f 

S
w
ee
pe
r 

S
ch
ed
ul
es
 

 F
ly
 T
ip
pi
ng
 

P
ro
je
ct
 

(E
nv
iro
nm
en
ta
l 

S
er
vi
ce
s 
an
d 

H
ou
si
ng
) 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

   31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

    31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

 

M
ed
iu
m
 T
er
m
 

F
in
an
ci
al
 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

 F
ut
ur
e 
F
un
di
ng
 

R
eq
ue
st
 

   F
ut
ur
e 
F
un
di
ng
 

R
eq
ue
st
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 

fo
r 
H
ou
si
ng
, 

Lo
ca
l 

E
nv
iro
nm
en
t a
nd
 

H
ea
lth
 

 (S
ue
 H
an
le
y)
 

               

Page 60



 
49
 

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

K
ey

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

M
ea

su
re

 
H

o
w

 D
o

 W
e 

K
n

o
w

 W
e 

A
re

 
G

et
ti

n
g

 
T

h
er

e?
 

P
ro

je
ct

/A
ct

io
n

 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 

D
at

e 
R

es
o

u
rc

e 
L

ea
d

 M
em

b
er

 

In
te
gr
at
ed
 

fin
an
ci
al
 &
 

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 

m
an
ag
em
en
t 

ta
bl
e 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 

(s
ta
rt
 d
at
e:
 

qu
ar
te
r 
3 
20
10
) 

  

S
er
vi
ce
 

ac
co
un
ta
nt
s 
&
 

bu
dg
et
 h
ol
de
rs
 

 

In
te
gr
at
ed
 

fin
an
ci
al
 a
nd
 

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 

in
fo
rm
at
io
n 

   

B
ud
ge
t a
lig
ne
d 

to
 p
rio
rit
ie
s 

 C
or
re
ct
iv
e 

ac
tio
ns
 b
as
ed
 

io
n 
in
te
gr
at
ed
 

in
fo
rm
at
io
n 

Q
ua
rt
er
ly
 

in
te
gr
at
ed
 

fin
an
ce
 &
 

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 

re
po
rt
s 
to
 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
&
 

O
ve
rv
ie
w
 a
nd
 

S
cr
ut
in
y 

 

M
ee
tin
gs
 w
ith
 

bu
dg
et
 h
ol
de
rs
 

 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 

S
er
vi
ce
 

ac
co
un
ta
nt
s 
&
 

bu
dg
et
 h
ol
de
rs
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 

H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 

C
or
po
ra
te
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

 (J
ay
ne
 

P
ic
ke
rin
g)
 

 

F
in
an
ci
al
 P
la
n 

tim
et
ab
le
 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 

S
er
vi
ce
 

ac
co
un
ta
nt
s 
&
 

bu
dg
et
 h
ol
de
rs
 

D
el
iv
er
 M
ed
iu
m
 

T
er
m
 F
in
an
ci
al
 

P
la
n 
&
 

st
at
ut
or
y 

ac
co
un
ts
 

 

B
ud
ge
t a
lig
ne
d 

to
 p
rio
rit
ie
s 

 U
nq
ua
lif
ie
d 

op
in
io
n 
on
 

ac
co
un
ts
 

B
al
an
ce
d 

th
re
e-
ye
ar
 p
la
n 

 A
cc
ou
nt
s 

su
bm
itt
ed
 o
n 

tim
e 

 

U
se
 o
f 

R
es
ou
rc
es
 

A
ct
io
n 
P
la
n 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 

S
er
vi
ce
 

ac
co
un
ta
nt
s 
&
 

bu
dg
et
 h
ol
de
rs
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 

H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 

C
or
po
ra
te
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

 (J
ay
ne
 

P
ic
ke
rin
g)
 

 
B
ud
ge
t J
ur
y 

Ja
n 
20
11
 &
 

an
nu
al
ly
 

O
nl
in
e 

co
ns
ul
ta
tio
n 

Ja
n 
20
11
 &
 

an
nu
al
ly
 

M
an

ag
in

g
 

F
in

an
ce

s 
(i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 
V

al
u

e 
fo

r 
M

o
n

ey
) 

(F
P

1)
 

B
ud
ge
t 

co
ns
ul
ta
tio
n 

        

B
ud
ge
t J
ur
y 

po
si
tiv
e 

fe
ed
ba
ck
 

F
ee
db
ac
k 
&
 

at
te
nd
an
ce
 

S
ch
oo
ls
 p
ro
je
ct
 

Ja
n 
20
11
 &
 

an
nu
al
ly
 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e 

D
ire
ct
or
- 

F
in
an
ce
 &
 

R
es
ou
rc
es
 

 D
ire
ct
or
 o
f 

P
ol
ic
y,
 

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 &
 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
s 

 S
en
io
r 

C
or
po
ra
te
 P
ol
ic
y 

&
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 

O
ffi
ce
r 

P
or
tfo
lio
 

H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 

C
or
po
ra
te
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

 (J
ay
ne
 

P
ic
ke
rin
g)
 

 (H
ug
h 
B
en
ne
tt)
 

 

Page 61



 
50
 

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

K
ey

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

M
ea

su
re

 
H

o
w

 D
o

 W
e 

K
n

o
w

 W
e 

A
re

 
G

et
ti

n
g

 
T

h
er

e?
 

P
ro

je
ct

/A
ct

io
n

 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 

D
at

e 
R

es
o

u
rc

e 
L

ea
d

 M
em

b
er

 

P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 

    

D
el
iv
er
y 
of
 

ca
sh
ab
le
 

sa
vi
ng
s 
in
 

pr
oc
ur
em
en
t 

In
te
gr
at
ed
 

fin
an
ci
al
 &
 

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 

re
po
rt
in
g 

P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 

A
ct
io
ns
 

 P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 

F
or
w
ar
d 
P
la
n 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 

  M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 

 

P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 

A
dv
is
or
 

 C
M
T
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 

H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 

C
or
po
ra
te
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

 Ja
yn
e 

P
ic
ke
rin
g 

 

G
o

ve
rn

in
g

 t
h

e 
B

u
si

n
es

s 
(i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 
V

al
u

e 
fo

r 
M

o
n

ey
) 

 (
F

P
2)
 

R
is
k 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

     

M
iti
ga
te
 

po
te
nt
ia
l r
is
ks
 

to
 th
e 
au
th
or
ity
 

Q
ua
rt
er
ly
 

re
vi
ew
 o
f 

de
pa
rt
m
en
ta
l 

ris
k 
re
gi
st
er
s 

 B
i-m
on
th
ly
 

re
vi
ew
 o
f 

co
rp
or
at
e 
ris
k 

re
gi
st
er
 

R
is
k 
S
tr
at
eg
y 
&
 

re
po
rt
s 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 

 
In
te
rn
al
 A
ud
it 
 

(W
E
T
T
- 

W
or
ce
st
er
 C
ity
) 

P
or
tfo
lio
 

H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 

C
or
po
ra
te
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

 Ja
yn
e 

P
ic
ke
rin
g 

Page 62



 
51
 

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

K
ey

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

M
ea

su
re
 

H
o

w
 D

o
 W

e 
K

n
o

w
 W

e 
A

re
 

G
et

ti
n

g
 

T
h

er
e?
 

P
ro

je
ct

/A
ct

io
n
 

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 
D

at
e 

R
es

o
u

rc
e 

L
ea

d
 M

em
b

er
 

M
an
ag
e 
A
ss
et
s 

E
ffe
ct
iv
el
y 

         

E
xt
er
na
l 

re
co
gn
iti
on
 o
f 

ef
fe
ct
iv
e 
as
se
ts
 

m
an
ag
em
en
t 

Q
ua
rt
er
ly
 

re
po
rt
in
g 

U
pd
at
e 
A
ss
et
s 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

P
la
n 

 D
is
po
se
 o
f /
 

re
ta
in
 a
ss
et
s 
as
 

pe
r 
C
ou
nc
il 

pr
io
rit
ie
s 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 

   M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 

P
ro
pe
rt
y 

S
er
vi
ce
s 
 

(W
E
T
T
- 

W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 

C
ou
nt
y 
C
ou
nc
il)
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 

fo
r 
C
or
po
ra
te
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

 (J
ay
ne
 

P
ic
ke
rin
g)
 

W
or
kf
or
ce
 

P
la
nn
in
g 

    

C
re
at
io
n 
of
 

w
or
kf
or
ce
 p
la
n 

 

R
ev
ie
w
 th
ro
ug
h 

pr
og
ra
m
m
e 

bo
ar
d 

S
er
vi
ce
-le
ve
l 

da
ta
, a
na
ly
si
s 
&
 

pl
an
s 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 

Le
ar
ni
ng
 &
 

O
rg
an
is
at
io
na
l 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

M
an
ag
er
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 

fo
r 
C
or
po
ra
te
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

 (D
eb
 P
oo
le
) 

M
an

ag
in

g
 

R
es

o
u

rc
es

 
(i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 
V

al
u

e 
fo

r 
M

o
n

ey
) 

(F
P

3)
 

N
at
ur
al
 

R
es
ou
rc
es
 

        

In
cr
ea
se
d 

re
cy
cl
in
g 
&
 

re
us
e 
fr
om
 

C
ou
nc
il’
s 
bu
lk
y 

co
lle
ct
io
ns
 

 Im
pr
ov
ed
 

ef
fic
ie
nc
y 
of
 

C
ou
nc
il’
s 
fle
et
 

 N
I 1
85
 

    N
I 1
86
- 
pe
r 

ca
pi
ta
 

re
du
ct
io
n 
in
 

          4%
 r
ed
uc
tio
n 
at
 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

(b
as
ed
 o
n 

08
/0
9 
ba
se
lin
e)
 

 6%
 r
ed
uc
tio
n 
at
 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

 

R
ec
yc
lin
g 
&
 

re
us
e 
pr
oj
ec
t 

w
ith
 W
C
C
 &
 

th
ird
 s
ec
to
r 

 G
re
en
 fl
ee
t 

re
vi
ew
 &
 a
ct
io
n 

pl
an
 

 C
lim
at
e 
C
ha
ng
e 

S
tr
at
eg
y 
&
 

A
ct
io
n 
P
la
n 

   S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 

C
om
m
un
ity
 

S
tr
at
eg
y 
A
ct
io
n 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 

C
lim
at
e 
C
ha
ng
e 

M
an
ag
er
 

 W
as
te
 

m
in
im
is
at
io
n 
 

  

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 

fo
r 
C
or
po
ra
te
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

 (H
ug
h 
B
en
ne
tt)
 

 (S
ue
 H
an
le
y)
 

Page 63



 
52
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

K
ey

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

M
ea

su
re
 

H
o

w
 D

o
 W

e 
K

n
o

w
 W

e 
A

re
 

G
et

ti
n

g
 

T
h

er
e?
 

P
ro

je
ct

/A
ct

io
n
 

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 
D

at
e 

R
es

o
u

rc
e 

L
ea

d
 M

em
b

er
 

 
C
O
2 

em
is
si
on
s-
  

9%
 r
ed
uc
tio
n 

ov
er
 3
 y
ea
rs
 

(b
as
el
in
e 
20
05
) 

 N
I 1
88
- 

P
la
nn
in
g 
to
 

ad
ap
t t
o 

C
lim
at
e 

C
ha
ng
e-
  

Le
ve
l 2
 b
y 
en
d 

of
 y
ea
r 
12
/1
3 

       Le
ve
l 2
 b
y 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

P
la
n 

 B
io
di
ve
rs
ity
 

pr
oj
ec
t (
va
lu
e 
of
 

gr
ee
n 
sp
ac
e)
 

Page 64



 
53
 

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

K
ey

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
 

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

M
ea

su
re
 

H
o

w
 D

o
 W

e 
K

n
o

w
 W

e 
A

re
 

G
et

ti
n

g
 

T
h

er
e?
 

P
ro

je
ct

/A
ct

io
n
 

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 
D

at
e 

R
es

o
u

rc
e 

L
ea

d
 M

em
b

er
 

D
at
a 
Q
ua
lit
y 

    

A
ch
ie
ve
 L
ev
el
 

3 
D
at
a 
Q
ua
lit
y 

S
co
re
 

D
at
a 
Q
ua
lit
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 
A
ct
io
n 

P
la
n 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t o
f 

D
at
a 
Q
ua
lit
y 

S
tr
at
eg
y 
A
ct
io
n 

P
la
n 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

(S
tr
at
eg
y 
in
 

P
la
ce
) 

P
ol
ic
y 
&
 

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 

T
ea
m
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 

H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 

C
or
po
ra
te
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

 (H
ug
h 
B
en
ne
tt)
 

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 &
 

P
ro
je
ct
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

   

P
os
iti
ve
 s
co
re
 

in
 a
nn
ua
l 

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 

m
an
ag
em
en
t 

as
se
ss
m
en
t b
y 

A
ud
it 

C
om
m
is
si
on
 

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

S
tr
at
eg
y 
A
ct
io
n 

P
la
n 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t o
f 

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

S
tr
at
eg
y 
A
ct
io
n 

P
la
n 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

(S
tr
at
eg
y 
in
 

P
la
ce
) 

P
ol
ic
y 
&
 

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 

T
ea
m
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 

H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 

C
or
po
ra
te
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

 (H
ug
h 
B
en
ne
tt)
 

  

M
an

ag
in

g
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
(i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 
V

al
u

e 
fo

r 
M

o
n

ey
) 

(F
P

4)
 

V
F
M
 m
ea
su
re
s 

     

E
vi
de
nc
ed
 

re
du
ct
io
ns
 in
 

un
it 
co
st
s 

C
om
pa
re
 1
0/
11
 

fig
ur
es
 to
 0
9/
10
 
V
fm
 

tr
an
sa
ct
io
na
l 

m
ea
su
re
s 

sp
re
ad
sh
ee
t 

Ju
ne
 2
01
1 

F
in
an
ce
 T
ea
m
 

 P
ol
ic
y 
&
 

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 

T
ea
m
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 

H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 

C
or
po
ra
te
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

 (J
ay
ne
 

P
ic
ke
rin
g)
 

 (H
ug
h 
B
en
ne
tt)
 

           

Page 65



 
54
 

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

K
ey

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

M
ea

su
re

 
H

o
w

 D
o

 W
e 

K
n

o
w

 W
e 

A
re

 
G

et
ti

n
g

 
T

h
er

e?
 

P
ro

je
ct

/A
ct

io
n

 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 

D
at

e 
R

es
o

u
rc

e 
L

ea
d

 M
em

b
er

 

C
us
to
m
er
 

S
er
vi
ce
 

E
xc
el
le
nc
e 

A
cc
re
di
ta
tio
n 

 C
us
to
m
er
 F
irs
t 

T
ra
in
in
g 

O
ve
ra
ll 

S
at
is
fa
ct
io
n 

   

U
nd
er
ta
ke
 s
el
f 

as
se
ss
m
en
t b
y 

D
ec
em
be
r 

20
10
 

 C
us
to
m
er
 F
irs
t 

T
ra
in
in
g 

P
ro
gr
am
m
e 
in
 

pl
ac
e.
 

 

S
et
 u
p 
w
or
ki
ng
  

gr
ou
p 
to
 

un
de
rt
ak
e 
se
lf 

as
se
ss
m
en
t 

 C
us
to
m
er
 F
irs
t 

P
t 1
 tr
ai
ni
ng
 

un
de
rt
ak
en
. 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 

    T
o 
be
 a
gr
ee
d 

w
he
n 
ne
w
 

H
ea
d 
of
 

C
us
to
m
er
 

S
er
vi
ce
 in
 p
os
t. 

 

H
ea
d 
of
 

C
us
to
m
er
 

S
er
vi
ce
 &
 te
am
s 

  Le
ar
ni
ng
 &
 

O
rg
an
is
at
io
na
l 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

M
an
ag
er
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 

H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 

C
or
po
ra
te
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

 (J
ay
ne
 

P
ic
ke
rin
g)
 

C
om
m
un
ity
 

E
ng
ag
em
en
t 

  
 

 
 

P
os
iti
ve
 

re
si
de
nt
 

fe
ed
ba
ck
 p
er
 

en
ga
ge
m
en
t 

ex
er
ci
se
 

D
el
iv
er
y 
of
 

C
om
m
un
ity
 

E
ng
ag
em
en
t 

S
tr
at
eg
y 
A
ct
io
n 

P
la
n 

C
om
m
un
ity
 

E
ng
ag
em
en
t 

S
tr
at
eg
y 
ag
re
ed
 

by
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

D
ire
ct
or
 o
f 

P
ol
ic
y,
 

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 &
 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
s 

 E
qu
al
iti
es
 

O
ffi
ce
r 

P
or
tfo
lio
 

H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 

C
or
po
ra
te
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

 (H
ug
h 
B
en
ne
tt)
 

P
ro
m
ot
io
n 
&
 

m
ar
ke
tin
g 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

C
u

st
o

m
er

 
P

ro
ce

ss
es

 
(P

R
1)

 
 

C
S
C
/W
eb
si
te
 

         

Im
pr
ov
ed
 

co
nt
en
t 

 In
cr
ea
se
d 
w
eb
 

us
ag
e 

 E
vi
de
nc
ed
 

im
pr
ov
em
en
t 

pe
r 
sy
st
em
 

re
vi
ew
ed
 

P
os
iti
ve
 

fe
ed
ba
ck
 

 N
o.
 o
f h
its
 &
 

tr
an
sa
ct
io
ns
 

 P
ro
gr
am
m
e 
fo
r 

sy
st
em
s 
re
vi
ew
 

co
m
pl
et
ed
 

A
gr
ee
m
en
t o
f 

pr
og
ra
m
m
e 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

IC
T
 T
ea
m
 

 C
om
m
un
ic
at
io
ns
 

T
ea
m
 

 C
us
to
m
er
 

S
er
vi
ce
 C
en
tr
e 

M
an
ag
er
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 

H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 

C
or
po
ra
te
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

 (J
ay
ne
 

P
ic
ke
rin
g)
 

 

 
E
qu
al
iti
es
 

%
 o
f p
eo
pl
e 

w
ho
 b
el
ie
ve
 

P
ee
r 

A
ss
es
sm
en
t 

  
Ju
ne
 2
01
0 

(P
ee
r 

F
un
di
ng
 

R
eq
ui
re
d 
fo
r 

P
or
tfo
lio
 

H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 

Page 66



 
55
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

K
ey

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

M
ea

su
re

 
H

o
w

 D
o

 W
e 

K
n

o
w

 W
e 

A
re

 
G

et
ti

n
g

 
T

h
er

e?
 

P
ro

je
ct

/A
ct

io
n

 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 

D
at

e 
R

es
o

u
rc

e 
L

ea
d

 M
em

b
er

 

pe
op
le
 fr
om
 

di
ffe
re
nt
 

ba
ck
gr
ou
nd
s 

ge
t o
n 
w
el
l 

to
ge
th
er
 in
 th
ei
r 

lo
ca
l a
re
a 

an
d 
G
ap
 

A
na
ly
si
s 

  C
om
m
un
ity
 

F
or
um
 

 Le
ve
l 2
 L
G
 

E
qu
al
iti
es
 

S
ta
nd
ar
d 

 P
ro
gr
am
m
e 
of
 

co
m
m
un
ity
 

co
he
si
on
 e
ve
nt
s 

    

A
ss
es
sm
en
t)
 

 O
n-
go
in
g 

  D
ec
em
be
r 

20
11
 

  O
n-
go
in
g 

E
qu
al
iti
es
 

O
ffi
ce
r 

C
or
po
ra
te
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

 (J
ay
ne
 

P
ic
ke
rin
g)
 

 

                 

Page 67



 
56
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

K
ey

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

M
ea

su
re

 
H

o
w

 D
o

 W
e 

K
n

o
w

 W
e 

A
re

 
G

et
ti

n
g

 
T

h
er

e?
 

P
ro

je
ct

/A
ct

io
n

 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 

D
at

e 
R

es
o

u
rc

e 
L

ea
d

 M
em

b
er

 

O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 

S
cr
ut
in
y 

     

O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 

S
cr
ut
in
y 
re
po
rt
s 

lin
ke
d 
to
 C
ou
nc
il 

pr
io
rit
ie
s 
&
 

sh
ap
in
g 
po
lic
y 

de
ve
lo
pm
en
t 

O
ve
rv
ie
w
 

m
on
ito
rin
g 
&
 

fe
ed
in
g 
in
to
 

F
or
w
ar
d 

P
la
nn
in
g 

P
ro
ce
ss
 

 S
cr
ut
in
y 
ho
ld
 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
to
 

ac
co
un
t 

O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 

S
cr
ut
in
y 
W
or
k 

P
ro
gr
am
m
e 

 A
nn
ua
l 

O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 

S
cr
ut
in
y 
re
po
rt
 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

H
ea
d 
of
 L
eg
al
, 

D
em
oc
ra
tic
 &
 

E
qu
al
iti
es
 

 S
cr
ut
in
y 

O
ffi
ce
rs
 

 S
en
io
r 
S
ol
ic
ito
r 

P
or
tfo
lio
 

H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 

C
or
po
ra
te
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

  (J
ay
ne
 

P
ic
ke
rin
g)
 

E
le
ct
io
n 

E
le
ct
io
n 

D
el
iv
er
ed
 

S
uc
ce
ss
fu
lly
 

w
ith
 In
cr
ea
se
d 

D
em
oc
ra
tic
 

P
ar
tic
ip
at
io
n 

 

D
el
iv
er
y 
of
 

D
em
oc
ra
tic
 

R
eg
en
er
at
io
n 

P
ro
je
ct
s 

th
ro
ug
h 

D
em
oc
ra
cy
 

Y
ea
r 

(C
ou
nc
ill
or
 

en
ga
ge
m
en
t; 

yo
un
g 
pe
op
le
/ 

sc
ho
ol
s;
 

m
in
or
ity
 

gr
ou
ps
) 

 D
el
iv
er
y 
of
 

E
le
ct
io
n 

C
om
m
is
si
on
 

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 

S
ta
nd
ar
ds
 

 

E
le
ct
io
ns
 

P
ro
je
ct
 P
la
n 

 S
ha
re
d 
S
er
vi
ce
 

S
LA
 

 P
ro
gr
am
m
e 
of
 

E
ve
nt
s 

M
ay
 2
01
1 

E
le
ct
io
ns
 T
ea
m
 
P
or
tfo
lio
 

H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 

C
or
po
ra
te
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

 (J
ay
ne
 

P
ic
ke
rin
g)
 

 

P
o

lit
ic

al
 

G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 
(P

R
2)

 

M
od
er
n 

C
ou
nc
ill
or
 

P
ro
gr
am
m
e 

   

P
ro
gr
am
m
e 
in
 

P
la
ce
 a
nd
 in
 

P
ro
gr
es
s 

P
os
iti
ve
 

F
ee
db
ac
k 
fr
om
 

M
em
be
rs
 a
nd
 

O
ffi
ce
rs
 

 M
od
er
n 

C
ro
ss
 

F
er
til
is
at
io
n 
of
 

P
ra
ct
ic
e.
 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

Le
ga
l a
nd
 

D
em
oc
ra
tic
 

T
ea
m
 

 Le
ar
ni
ng
 &
 

O
rg
an
is
at
io
na
l 

P
or
tfo
lio
 

H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 

C
or
po
ra
te
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

 (J
ay
ne
 

Page 68



 
57
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

K
ey

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

M
ea

su
re

 
H

o
w

 D
o

 W
e 

K
n

o
w

 W
e 

A
re

 
G

et
ti

n
g

 
T

h
er

e?
 

P
ro

je
ct

/A
ct

io
n

 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 

D
at

e 
R

es
o

u
rc

e 
L

ea
d

 M
em

b
er

 

 
C
ou
nc
ill
or
 

P
ro
gr
am
m
e 

S
te
er
in
g 
G
ro
up
 

es
ta
bl
is
he
d 

 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

M
an
ag
er
 

P
ic
ke
rin
g)
 

 
 

M
em
be
r 

S
ta
nd
ar
ds
 

      

O
pe
n,
 

tr
an
sp
ar
en
t &
 

ac
ce
ss
ib
le
 

de
ci
si
on
 m
ak
in
g 

pr
oc
es
s 

A
ct
iv
e 

pa
rt
ic
ip
at
io
n 

w
ith
 s
ta
nd
ar
d 

pr
oc
es
s 

 S
ou
nd
 e
th
ic
al
 

fr
am
ew
or
k 

G
ov
er
na
nc
e 

w
ith
 

pa
rt
ne
rs
hi
ps
 

co
nf
id
en
ce
 

pr
ot
oc
ol
 

 O
ffi
ce
r/
M
em
be
r 

C
od
e 
of
 

C
on
du
ct
 w
ith
 

tr
ai
ni
ng
. 

 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

H
ea
d 
of
 L
eg
al
, 

D
em
oc
ra
tic
 &
 

E
qu
al
iti
es
 

 S
en
io
r 
S
ol
ic
ito
rs
 

 S
ta
nd
ar
ds
 

C
om
m
itt
ee
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 

H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 

C
or
po
ra
te
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

 (J
ay
ne
 

P
ic
ke
rin
g)
 

 

 
S
tr
on
g 
Le
ad
er
 

C
ha
ng
e 
to
 

C
on
st
itu
tio
n 
as
 

R
eq
ui
re
d 
by
 

La
w
. 

C
ha
ng
in
g 
th
e 

C
on
st
itu
tio
n 

an
d 
G
et
tin
g 
th
e 

M
od
el
 to
 W
or
k 

Im
pl
em
en
ta
tio
n 

P
la
n 
A
gr
ee
d 
 

31
 D
ec
em
be
r 

20
10
 

Le
ga
l a
nd
 

D
em
oc
ra
tic
 

T
ea
m
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 

H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 

C
or
po
ra
te
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

 (J
ay
ne
 

P
ic
ke
rin
g)
 

            

Page 69



 
58
 

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

M
ea

su
re
 

H
o

w
 D

o
 W

e 
K

n
o

w
 W

e 
A

re
 

G
et

ti
n

g
 

T
h

er
e?
 

P
ro

je
ct

/A
ct

io
n
 

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 
D

at
e 

R
es

o
u

rc
e 

L
ea

d
 M

em
b

er
 

T
ra
ns
fo
rm
at
io
n 

T
ea
m
 

     

T
ra
ns
fo
rm
at
io
n 

T
ea
m
 in
 p
la
ce
 

Jo
b 

D
es
cr
ip
tio
ns
 

pr
od
uc
ed
 

 R
ec
ru
itm
en
t 

pr
oc
es
s 

in
iti
at
ed
 

R
ec
ru
itm
en
t o
f 

te
am
 

  In
pu
t o
f R
IE
P
 

M
ay
 2
01
0 

H
ea
d 
of
 

T
ra
ns
fo
rm
at
io
n 

 C
hi
ef
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 

 R
IE
P
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 

H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 

C
om
m
un
ity
 

Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 

an
d 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 

 (K
ev
in
 D
ic
ks
) 

S
h

ar
ed

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

(P
R

3)
 

P
ro
gr
am
m
e 
P
la
n 

    

A
pp
ro
ve
d 

P
ro
gr
am
m
e 

P
la
n 
in
 p
la
ce
 

S
ta
ke
ho
ld
er
 

G
ro
up
 

es
ta
bl
is
he
d 

C
M
T
/S
M
T
 &
 

S
ta
ke
ho
ld
er
s 

W
or
ki
ng
 G
ro
up
 

P
ro
gr
am
m
e 
of
 

W
or
k 

S
ep
t 2
01
0 

T
ra
ns
fo
rm
at
io
n 

T
ea
m
 

 C
M
T
/S
M
T
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 

H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 

C
om
m
un
ity
 

Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 

an
d 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 

 (K
ev
in
 D
ic
ks
) 

 
                

Page 70



 
59
 

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

K
ey

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

M
ea

su
re

 
H

o
w

 D
o

 W
e 

K
n

o
w

 W
e 

A
re

 
G

et
ti

n
g

 
T

h
er

e?
 

P
ro

je
ct

/A
ct

io
n

 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 

D
at

e 
R

es
o

u
rc

e 
L

ea
d

 M
em

b
er

 

P
ro
pe
rt
y 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

  

£1
5k
 s
av
in
gs
 

fr
om
 Y
ea
r 
1 

M
on
ito
rin
g 
S
LA
 

de
liv
er
 

P
ro
je
ct
 P
la
n 

Ju
ne
 2
01
0 

T
ra
ns
fo
rm
at
io
n 

T
ea
m
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 

H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 

C
or
po
ra
te
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

 (J
ay
ne
 

P
ic
ke
rin
g)
 

 
R
eg
ul
at
or
y 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

  

£1
26
k 
fr
om
 

Y
ea
r 
1 

M
on
ito
rin
g 
th
e 

jo
in
t C
om
m
itt
ee
 

de
liv
er
 

P
ro
je
ct
 P
la
n 

Ju
ne
 2
01
0 

T
ra
ns
fo
rm
at
io
n 

T
ea
m
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 

H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 

C
or
po
ra
te
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

 (J
ay
ne
 

P
ic
ke
rin
g)
 

 

W
E

T
T

 (
P

R
4)

 

In
te
rn
al
 A
ud
it 

   

S
us
ta
in
ed
 u
se
 

of
 R
es
ou
rc
es
 

S
co
rin
g 

M
on
ito
rin
g 
S
LA
 

de
liv
er
 

P
ro
je
ct
 P
la
n 

Ju
ne
 2
01
0 

T
ra
ns
fo
rm
at
io
n 

T
ea
m
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 

H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 

C
or
po
ra
te
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

 (J
ay
ne
 

P
ic
ke
rin
g)
 

 
        

Page 71



 
60
 

     P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

K
ey

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

M
ea

su
re

 
H

o
w

 D
o

 W
e 

K
n

o
w

 W
e 

A
re

 
G

et
ti

n
g

 
T

h
er

e?
 

P
ro

je
ct

/A
ct

io
n

 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 

D
at

e 
R

es
o

u
rc

e 
L

ea
d

 M
em

b
er

 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 
(P

R
5)

 
 

C
or
e 
S
tr
at
eg
y 

 
A
do
pt
ed
 C
or
e 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

S
uc
ce
ss
fu
l p
re
-

ex
am
in
at
io
n 

m
ee
tin
g 
(J
un
e 

20
11
 T
B
C
) 

Lo
ca
l 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

S
ch
em
e 

Ja
n 
20
12
 

(T
B
C
) 

S
tr
at
eg
ic
 

P
la
nn
in
g 

M
an
ag
er
 

 S
tr
at
eg
ic
 

P
la
nn
in
g 
T
ea
m
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 

H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 

P
la
nn
in
g,
 

E
co
no
m
ic
 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

an
d 
T
ra
ns
po
rt
 

 (J
oh
n 

S
ta
ni
la
nd
) 

                    

Page 72



 
61
 

    P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

K
ey

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

M
ea

su
re

 
H

o
w

 D
o

 W
e 

K
n

o
w

 W
e 

A
re

 
G

et
ti

n
g

 
T

h
er

e?
 

P
ro

je
ct

/A
ct

io
n

 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 

D
at

e 
R

es
o

u
rc

e 
L

ea
d

 M
em

b
er

 

Im
pr
ov
ed
 

E
m
pl
oy
ee
 s
ki
lls
 

&
 c
ap
ac
ity
 

 

C
re
at
io
n 
of
 

w
or
kf
or
ce
 p
la
n 

 

R
ev
ie
w
 th
ro
ug
h 

pr
og
ra
m
m
e 

bo
ar
d 

S
er
vi
ce
-le
ve
l 

da
ta
, a
na
ly
si
s 
&
 

pl
an
s 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 

Le
ar
ni
ng
 &
 

O
rg
an
is
at
io
na
l 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

M
an
ag
er
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 

H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 

C
or
po
ra
te
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

 (K
ev
in
 D
ic
ks
) 

 
D
el
iv
er
 II
P
 

ac
tio
n 
pl
an
 

A
pr
 2
01
3 

L
ea

rn
in

g
 a

n
d

 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
(H

R
&

O
D

1)
 

E
ffe
ct
iv
e 
&
 

co
ns
is
te
nt
 

pe
op
le
 

m
an
ag
em
en
t &
 

de
ve
lo
pm
en
t 

pr
oc
es
se
s 

A
ch
ie
ve
 II
P
 

A
cc
re
di
ta
tio
n 

E
xt
er
na
l 

as
se
ss
m
en
t 

fr
om
 W
M
Q
C
 

 
C
re
at
e 
ne
w
 jo
in
t 

ap
pr
ai
sa
ls
 

sc
he
m
e 

D
ec
 2
01
0 

Le
ar
ni
ng
 &
 

O
rg
an
is
at
io
na
l 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

M
an
ag
er
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 

H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 

C
or
po
ra
te
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

 (K
ev
in
 D
ic
ks
) 

P
ro
du
ct
io
n 
of
 

po
lic
y 
pr
op
os
al
 

pa
ck
ag
e 
fo
r 

co
ns
ul
ta
tio
n 

S
ep
t 2
01
0 

H
ar
m
on
is
at
io
n 

P
ro
je
ct
 

(P
ol
ic
ie
s 
/ 

T
er
m
s 
&
 

C
on
di
tio
ns
) 

K
ey
 m
aj
or
 

po
lic
ie
s 

ha
rm
on
is
ed
 

ac
ro
ss
 b
ot
h 

C
ou
nc
ils
 

F
or
tn
ig
ht
ly
 

m
ee
tin
gs
 o
f H
R
 

ad
vi
so
rs
 a
cr
os
s 

bo
th
 C
ou
nc
ils
 

C
on
su
lta
tio
n 

ex
er
ci
se
 

D
ec
 2
01
0 

(s
ub
je
ct
 to
 

un
io
n 

ag
re
em
en
t)
 

H
R
 T
ea
m
s 

(B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 &
 

R
ed
di
tc
h)
 

 U
ni
on
s 

P
or
tfo
lio
 

H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 

C
or
po
ra
te
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

 (J
ay
ne
 

P
ic
ke
rin
g)
 

H
R

 
M

o
d

er
n

is
at

io
n

 
(H

R
&

O
D

2)
 

P
ay
ro
ll 
(le
an
 

sy
st
em
s)
 

A
 m
or
e 

ef
fe
ct
iv
e 
&
 

ef
fic
ie
nt
 s
ys
te
m
 

P
ro
je
ct
 p
la
n 
on
 

ta
rg
et
 

P
ay
ro
ll 
au
di
t. 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

H
R
 T
ea
m
s 

 T
ra
ns
fo
rm
at
io
n 

T
ea
m
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 

H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 

C
or
po
ra
te
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

 (J
ay
ne
 

P
ic
ke
rin
g)
 

 
  

Page 73



 
62
 

     P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

K
ey

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

M
ea

su
re

 
H

o
w

 D
o

 W
e 

K
n

o
w

 W
e 

A
re

 
G

et
ti

n
g

 
T

h
er

e?
 

P
ro

je
ct

/A
ct

io
n

 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 

D
at

e 
R

es
o

u
rc

e 
L

ea
d

 M
em

b
er

 

P
o

si
ti

ve
 

E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

C
lim

at
e 

(H
R

&
O

D
3)

 

Im
pr
ov
ed
 

em
pl
oy
ee
 

en
ga
ge
m
en
t 

T
ak
e-
up
 o
f 

su
pp
or
t/w
el
lb
ei
ng
 

op
po
rt
un
iti
es
 

 A
tte
nd
an
ce
 a
t 

so
ci
al
 e
ve
nt
s 

 %
 s
ta
ff 
ag
re
ei
ng
 

th
ey
 a
re
 

co
ns
ul
te
d 
ab
ou
t 

th
in
gs
 th
at
 a
ffe
ct
 

th
em
 (
B
D
C
 s
ta
ff 

su
rv
ey
) 

 

E
m
pl
oy
ee
 

su
rv
ey
 

(s
ta
nd
ar
di
se
d 

an
d 
al
ig
ne
d 

su
rv
ey
) 

C
re
at
io
n 
of
 

em
pl
oy
ee
 

en
ga
ge
m
en
t 

pr
og
ra
m
m
e 

20
10
/1
1 

se
pa
ra
te
. 

 20
11
/1
2 
(s
in
gl
e 

su
rv
ey
) 

 

Le
ar
ni
ng
 &
 

O
rg
an
is
at
io
na
l 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

M
an
ag
er
 

 O
rg
an
is
at
io
na
l 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

B
ud
ge
t 

P
or
tfo
lio
 

H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 

C
or
po
ra
te
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t 

 (K
ev
in
 D
ic
ks
) 

      

Page 74



 
63
 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 3
 

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

  
 A
 to
ta
l o
f 1
98
 N
at
io
na
l I
nd
ic
at
or
s 
(N
Is
) 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
in
 u
se
 s
in
ce
 A
pr
il 
20
08
.  
O
f t
he
 1
98
 in
di
ca
to
rs
 o
nl
y 
64
 a
pp
ly
 a
t t
he
 D
is
tr
ic
t C
ou
nc
il 
le
ve
l a
nd
 o
f 

th
os
e 
th
er
e 
ar
e 
on
ly
 1
7 
th
at
 a
re
 c
ol
le
ct
ed
 b
y 
di
st
ric
t c
ou
nc
ils
.  
T
hi
s 
si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
 r
ed
uc
tio
n 
ha
s 
gi
ve
n 
us
 th
e 
op
po
rt
un
ity
 to
 fo
cu
s 
ou
r 
at
te
nt
io
n 
on
 

lo
ca
l p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 m
ea
su
re
s 
th
at
 b
et
te
r 
re
fle
ct
 o
ur
 p
rio
rit
ie
s.
 

    

T
ar

g
et

s 
P

I R
ef

 
P

I D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 

H
o

S
 

R
ep

o
rt

in
g

 
F

re
q

u
en

cy
 

S
et

 t
ar

g
et

s 
o

r 
b

as
el

in
e 

in
 2

01
0?

 

20
09

/1
0 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

10
/1

1 
11

/1
2 

12
/1

3 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

 –
 A

n
 e

n
te

rp
ri

si
n

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 

 
i) 
A
re
as
 o
f H
ig
he
st
 N
ee
d 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
S
ee
 s
ep
ar
at
e 
A
re
as
 o
f H
ig
he
st
 N
ee
d 

(A
O
H
N
) 
pr
op
os
al
. 

A
ng
ie
 

H
ei
gh
w
ay
 

A
 

B
 

N
/a
 

P
ro
po
sa
l 

co
nt
ai
ns
 

ta
rg
et
s 

P
ro
po
sa
l 

co
nt
ai
ns
 

ta
rg
et
s 

P
ro
po
sa
l 

co
nt
ai
ns
 

ta
rg
et
s 

 
In
di
ca
to
rs
 a
ls
o 
to
 b
e 
ag
re
ed
 w
ith
 p
ar
tn
er
s 

th
ro
ug
h 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
. 

A
ng
ie
 

H
ei
gh
w
ay
 

A
 

B
 

N
/a
 

P
ro
po
sa
l 

co
nt
ai
ns
 

ta
rg
et
s 

P
ro
po
sa
l 

co
nt
ai
ns
 

ta
rg
et
s 

P
ro
po
sa
l 

co
nt
ai
ns
 

ta
rg
et
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
ii)
 H
ou
si
ng
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

B
V
 2
12
 
A
ve
ra
ge
 ti
m
e 
ta
ke
n 
to
 r
e-
le
t l
oc
al
 

au
th
or
ity
 h
ou
si
ng
 (
da
ys
) 

Li
z 
T
om
pk
in
 

Q
 

T
 

23
 

-v
e 

-v
e 

-v
e 

N
I 1
55
 

N
um
be
r 
of
 a
ffo
rd
ab
le
 h
om
es
 d
el
iv
er
ed
 

A
ng
ie
 

H
ei
gh
w
ay
 

Q
 

T
 

11
1 

64
 

10
5 

98
 

N
I 1
56
 

N
um
be
r 
of
 h
ou
se
ho
ld
s 
oc
cu
py
in
g 

te
m
po
ra
ry
 a
cc
om
m
od
at
io
n 
 

Li
z 
T
om
pk
in
 

Q
 

T
 

7 
15
 

15
 

15
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
iii
) 
E
co
no
m
ic
 g
ro
w
th
 -
 s
tr
at
eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

N
I 1
71
 

N
ew
 b
us
in
es
s 
re
gi
st
ra
tio
n 
ra
te
 

(b
us
in
es
se
s)
 

R
ut
h 
B
am
fo
rd
 

A
 

T
 

- 
+v
e 

+v
e 

+v
e 

N
I 1
72
 

%
ag
e 
of
 s
m
al
l b
us
in
es
se
s 
sh
ow
in
g 

em
pl
oy
m
en
t g
ro
w
th
  

R
ut
h 
B
am
fo
rd
 

A
 

T
 

- 
+v
e 

+v
e 

+v
e 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 75



 
64
 

T
ar

g
et

s 
P

I R
ef

 
P

I D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 

H
o

S
 

R
ep

o
rt

in
g

 
F

re
q

u
en

cy
 

S
et

 t
ar

g
et

s 
o

r 
b

as
el

in
e 

in
 2

01
0?

 

20
09

/1
0 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

10
/1

1 
11

/1
2 

12
/1

3 

 
iv
) 
E
co
no
m
ic
 g
ro
w
th
 –
 o
pe
ra
tio
na
l 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
B
us
in
es
s 
ev
en
ts
 p
er
 a
nn
um
  

R
ut
h 
B
am
fo
rd
 

A
 

B
 

- 
3 

3 
3 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
v)
 L
ei
su
re
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
N
um
be
r 
of
 v
is
ito
rs
 to
 th
e 
A
bb
ey
 S
ta
di
um
 

&
 H
ew
el
l R
oa
d 
S
w
im
m
in
g 
P
oo
l  

Jo
hn
 G
od
w
in
 

M
 

T
 

29
1,
08
1 

29
6,
90
3 

30
2,
84
1 

N
/a
 

 
N
um
be
r 
of
 v
is
ito
rs
 to
 P
al
ac
e 
T
he
at
re
  

Jo
hn
 G
od
w
in
 

M
 

T
 

44
,8
57
 

45
,7
54
 

46
,6
69
 

47
,6
03
 

 
N
um
be
r 
of
 p
eo
pl
e 
vi
si
tin
g 
le
is
ur
e 
ce
nt
re
s 
 
Jo
hn
 G
od
w
in
 

M
 

T
 

56
5,
15
7 

57
6,
46
0 

58
7,
98
9 

60
3,
08
1 

 
N
um
be
r 
of
 v
is
ito
rs
 to
 th
e 
M
us
eu
m
 &
 

B
or
ds
le
y 
A
bb
ey
 c
en
tr
e 

Jo
hn
 G
od
w
in
 

Q
 

T
 

15
,0
68
 

15
,3
69
 

15
,6
77
 

15
,9
90
 

 
N
um
be
r 
of
 o
ve
r 
60
’s
 s
w
im
m
in
g 
us
ag
e 

Jo
hn
 G
od
w
in
 

M
 

T
 

8,
99
6 

9,
17
6 

8,
25
8 

8,
25
8 

 
N
um
be
r 
of
 u
nd
er
 1
6’
s 
sw
im
m
in
g 
us
ag
e 

Jo
hn
 G
od
w
in
 

M
 

T
 

23
,2
03
 

23
,6
67
 

18
,9
34
 

18
,9
34
 

 
A
tte
nd
an
ce
 a
t C
om
m
un
ity
 E
ve
nt
s 

Jo
hn
 G
od
w
in
 

Q
 

T
 

42
,4
00
 

43
,2
48
 

44
,1
12
 

44
,9
95
 

 
A
tte
nd
an
ce
 a
t C
om
m
un
ity
 C
en
tr
es
 

Jo
hn
 G
od
w
in
 

Q
 

T
 

15
1,
65
0 

15
4,
68
3 

15
7,
77
7 

16
0,
93
2 

 
A
tte
nd
an
ce
 a
t S
po
rt
s 
de
ve
lo
pm
en
t 

S
es
si
on
s 

Jo
hn
 G
od
w
in
 

M
 

T
 

59
,7
41
 

60
,9
35
 

62
,1
53
 

63
,3
96
 

 
A
tte
nd
an
ce
 a
t A
rt
s 
D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

S
es
si
on
s 

Jo
hn
 G
od
w
in
 

M
 

T
 

98
5 

10
,0
48
 

10
,2
49
 

10
,4
54
 

 
N
um
be
r 
of
 v
is
it 
to
 th
e 
A
V
C
C
 

Jo
hn
 G
od
w
in
 

Q
 

S
ee
 p
ag
e 66
 

S
ee
 p
ag
e 66
 

S
ee
 p
ag
e 66
 

S
ee
 p
ag
e 66
 

S
ee
 p
ag
e 66
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
iv
) 
T
ow
n 
C
en
tr
e 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
N
um
be
r 
of
 v
ac
an
t u
ni
ts
 in
 T
ow
n 
C
en
tr
e 

R
ut
h 
B
am
fo
rd
 

A
 

B
 

- 
N
/a
 

N
/a
 

N
/a
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 2

 –
 S

af
e 

 
i) 
A
ct
ua
l c
rim
es
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

N
I 1
5 

S
er
io
us
 v
io
le
nt
 c
rim
e 
ra
te
 

A
ng
ie
 

H
ei
gh
w
ay
 

M
 

T
 

0.
98
 

-v
e 

-v
e 

-v
e 

N
I 1
6 

S
er
io
us
 a
cq
ui
si
tiv
e 
cr
im
e 
ra
te
 

A
ng
ie
 

H
ei
gh
w
ay
 

M
 

T
 

0.
98
 

-v
e 

-v
e 

-v
e 

 
T
ot
al
 c
rim
e 

A
ng
ie
 

M
 

T
 

11
.5
1 

-v
e 

-v
e 

-v
e 

Page 76



 
65
 

T
ar

g
et

s 
P

I R
ef

 
P

I D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 

H
o

S
 

R
ep

o
rt

in
g

 
F

re
q

u
en

cy
 

S
et

 t
ar

g
et

s 
o

r 
b

as
el

in
e 

in
 2

01
0?

 

20
09

/1
0 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

10
/1

1 
11

/1
2 

12
/1

3 

H
ei
gh
w
ay
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
ii)
 P
er
ce
pt
io
n 
of
 th
e 
B
or
ou
gh
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

N
I 1
7 

P
er
ce
pt
io
ns
 o
f a
nt
i-s
oc
ia
l b
eh
av
io
ur
 (
%
) 

A
ng
ie
 

H
ei
gh
w
ay
 

A
 

T
 

21
.1
 

+v
e 

+v
e 

+v
e 

N
I 2
1 

D
ea
lin
g 
w
ith
 lo
ca
l c
on
ce
rn
s 
ab
ou
t a
nt
i-

so
ci
al
 b
eh
av
io
ur
 a
nd
 c
rim
e 
is
su
es
 b
y 
th
e 

lo
ca
l c
ou
nc
il 
an
d 
po
lic
e 
(%
) 

A
ng
ie
 

H
ei
gh
w
ay
 

A
 

T
 

24
.8
 

+v
e 

+v
e 

+v
e 

N
I 2
7 

U
nd
er
st
an
di
ng
 o
f l
oc
al
 c
on
ce
rn
s 
ab
ou
t 

an
ti-
so
ci
al
 b
eh
av
io
ur
 a
nd
 c
rim
e 
is
su
es
 b
y 

th
e 
lo
ca
l c
ou
nc
il 
an
d 
po
lic
e 
(%
) 

A
ng
ie
 

H
ei
gh
w
ay
 

A
 

T
 

25
.1
 

+v
e 

+v
e 

+v
e 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
iii
) 
D
ev
el
op
in
g 
co
m
m
un
ity
 c
oh
es
io
n 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

N
I 0
01
 

%
 o
f p
eo
pl
e 
w
ho
 b
el
ie
ve
 p
eo
pl
e 
fr
om
 

di
ffe
re
nt
 b
ac
kg
ro
un
ds
 g
et
 o
n 
w
el
l t
og
et
he
r 

in
 th
ei
r 
lo
ca
l a
re
a 
(P
la
ce
 S
ur
ve
y)
 

A
ng
ie
 

H
ei
gh
w
ay
 

A
 

T
 

72
 

+v
e 

+v
e 

+v
e 

B
V
 1
74
 
T
he
 n
um
be
r 
of
 r
ac
ia
l i
nc
id
en
ts
 r
ec
or
de
d 

by
 th
e 
au
th
or
ity
 p
er
 1
00
,0
00
 p
op
ul
at
io
n 

A
ng
ie
 

H
ei
gh
w
ay
 

Q
 

T
 

23
.8
8 

-v
e 

-v
e 

-v
e 

B
V
 1
75
 
T
he
 p
er
ce
nt
ag
e 
of
 r
ac
ia
l i
nc
id
en
ts
 th
at
 

re
su
lte
d 
in
 fu
rt
he
r 
ac
tio
n 
(%
) 

A
ng
ie
 

H
ei
gh
w
ay
 

Q
 

T
 

10
0 

10
0 

10
0 

10
0 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
iv
) 
A
lc
oh
ol
 / 
ni
gh
t t
im
e 
ec
on
om
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

N
I 4
1 

P
er
ce
pt
io
ns
 o
f d
ru
nk
 o
r 
ro
w
dy
 b
eh
av
io
ur
 

as
 a
 p
ro
bl
em
 (
%
) 

A
ng
ie
 

H
ei
gh
w
ay
 

A
 

T
 

30
.8
 

-v
e 

-v
e 

-v
e 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 3

 –
 C

le
an

 a
n

d
 G

re
en
 

 
i) 
M
or
to
n 
S
ta
nl
ey
 F
es
tiv
al
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
N
um
be
r 
of
 v
is
ito
rs
 to
 th
e 
fe
st
iv
al
 

Jo
hn
 G
od
w
in
 

A
 

T
 

4,
00
0 

(0
8/
09
) 

6,
12
2 

6,
24
2 

6,
36
7 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
ii)
 C
ou
nt
ry
si
de
 C
en
tr
e 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 77



 
66
 

T
ar

g
et

s 
P

I R
ef

 
P

I D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 

H
o

S
 

R
ep

o
rt

in
g

 
F

re
q

u
en

cy
 

S
et

 t
ar

g
et

s 
o

r 
b

as
el

in
e 

in
 2

01
0?

 

20
09

/1
0 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

10
/1

1 
11

/1
2 

12
/1

3 

 
N
um
be
r 
of
 v
is
ito
rs
 

Jo
hn
 G
od
w
in
 

M
 

T
 

33
5,
02
5 

34
1,
72
6 

34
8,
56
0 

35
5,
53
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
iii
) 
W
as
te
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

N
I 1
91
 

R
es
id
ua
l w
as
te
 p
er
 h
ou
se
ho
ld
 (
K
G
s)
 

G
uy
 R
ev
an
s 

M
 

T
 

57
4.
94
 

-v
e 

-v
e 

-v
e 

N
I 1
92
 

%
ag
e 
w
as
te
 r
e-
us
ed
, r
ec
yc
le
d 
or
 

co
m
po
st
ed
 

G
uy
 R
ev
an
s 

M
 

T
 

28
.3
0 

+v
e 

+v
e 

+v
e 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

iv
) 
C
lim
at
e 
C
ha
ng
e 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

N
I 1
85
 

C
O
2 
re
du
ct
io
n 
fr
om
 L
oc
al
 A
ut
ho
rit
y 

op
er
at
io
ns
 p
re
vi
ou
s 
12
 m
on
th
s 
(A
pr
il 
- 

M
ar
ch
) 
(%
) 

H
ug
h 
B
en
ne
tt 

A
 

T
 

 
3 

3 
3 

N
I 1
86
 

P
er
 c
ap
ita
 r
ed
uc
tio
n 
in
 C
O
2 
em
is
si
on
s 
in
 

th
e 
LA
 a
re
a 
(%
) 

H
ug
h 
B
en
ne
tt 

A
 

T
 

- 

9%
 

re
du
ct
io
n 

on
 2
00
5 

ba
se
lin
e 

-v
e 

-v
e 

N
I 1
88
 

P
la
nn
in
g 
to
 a
da
pt
 to
 c
lim
at
e 
ch
an
ge
 

(L
ev
el
 0
 -
 lo
w
 p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
, L
ev
el
 4
 -
 h
ig
h 

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
) 

H
ug
h 
B
en
ne
tt 

A
 

T
 

- 
2 

2 
3 

N
I 1
94
 

A
ir 
qu
al
ity
 -
 %
 r
ed
uc
tio
n 
in
 N
O
x 
an
d 
P
M
10
 

em
itt
ed
 th
ro
ug
h 
lo
ca
l a
ut
ho
rit
y’
s 
es
ta
te
 

an
d 
op
er
at
io
ns
 fo
r 
pr
ev
io
us
 1
2 
m
on
th
s 

(A
pr
il 
- 
M
ar
ch
) 
(%
) 

H
ug
h 
B
en
ne
tt 

A
 

T
 

- 

9%
 

re
du
ct
io
n 

on
 2
00
5 

ba
se
lin
e 

-v
e 

-v
e 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
v)
 L
an
ds
ca
pe
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
S
at
is
fa
ct
io
n 
w
ith
 p
ar
ks
 a
nd
 o
pe
n 
sp
ac
es
 

(%
) 

G
uy
 R
ev
an
s 

A
 

T
 

T
B
C
 

+v
e 

+v
e 

+v
e 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

vi
) 
D
et
rit
us
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

N
I 1
95
a 

Im
pr
ov
ed
 s
tr
ee
t a
nd
 e
nv
iro
nm
en
ta
l 

cl
ea
nl
in
es
s 
- 
le
ve
ls
 o
f l
itt
er
 

G
uy
 R
ev
an
s 

*3
 p
er
 y
ea
r 

T
 

8%
 

8%
 

8%
 

8%
 

N
I 1
95
b 

Im
pr
ov
ed
 s
tr
ee
t a
nd
 e
nv
iro
nm
en
ta
l 

cl
ea
nl
in
es
s 
- 
le
ve
ls
 o
f d
et
rit
us
 

G
uy
 R
ev
an
s 

*3
 p
er
 y
ea
r 

T
 

26
%
 

9%
 

9%
 

9%
 

N
I 1
95
c 

Im
pr
ov
ed
 s
tr
ee
t a
nd
 e
nv
iro
nm
en
ta
l 

G
uy
 R
ev
an
s 

*3
 p
er
 y
ea
r 

T
 

2%
 

1%
 

1%
 

1%
 

Page 78



 
67
 

T
ar

g
et

s 
P

I R
ef

 
P

I D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 

H
o

S
 

R
ep

o
rt

in
g

 
F

re
q

u
en

cy
 

S
et

 t
ar

g
et

s 
o

r 
b

as
el

in
e 

in
 2

01
0?

 

20
09

/1
0 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

10
/1

1 
11

/1
2 

12
/1

3 

cl
ea
nl
in
es
s 
- 
gr
af
fit
i 

N
I 1
95
d 

Im
pr
ov
ed
 s
tr
ee
t a
nd
 e
nv
iro
nm
en
ta
l 

cl
ea
nl
in
es
s 
- 
fly
-p
os
tin
g 

G
uy
 R
ev
an
s 

*3
 p
er
 y
ea
r 

T
 

0%
 

0%
 

0%
 

0%
 

N
I 1
96
 

Im
pr
ov
ed
 s
tr
ee
t a
nd
 e
nv
iro
nm
en
ta
l 

cl
ea
nl
in
es
s 
– 
fly
 ti
pp
in
g 
(L
ev
el
 1
 -
 G
oo
d,
 

Le
ve
l 4
 -
 P
oo
r)
 

G
uy
 R
ev
an
s 

Q
 

T
 

T
B
C
 

2 
2 

2 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 4

 –
 W

el
l m

an
ag

ed
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

N
I 1
57
a 

P
ro
ce
ss
in
g 
of
 m
aj
or
 p
la
nn
in
g 
ap
pl
ic
at
io
ns
 

de
te
rm
in
ed
 w
ith
in
 1
3 
w
ee
ks
 

H
ea
d 
of
 

P
la
nn
in
g 

M
 

T
 

10
0%

 
85
%
 

85
%
 

85
%
 

N
I 1
57
b 

P
ro
ce
ss
in
g 
of
 m
in
or
 p
la
nn
in
g 
ap
pl
ic
at
io
ns
 

de
te
rm
in
ed
 w
ith
in
 8
 w
ee
ks
 

H
ea
d 
of
 

P
la
nn
in
g 

M
 

T
 

95
.2
4%

 
85
%
 

85
%
 

85
%
 

N
I 1
57
c 

P
ro
ce
ss
in
g 
of
 o
th
er
 p
la
nn
in
g 
ap
pl
ic
at
io
ns
 

de
te
rm
in
ed
 w
ith
in
 8
 w
ee
ks
 

H
ea
d 
of
 

P
la
nn
in
g 

M
 

T
 

98
.1
6%

 
90
%
 

90
%
 

90
%
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
N
um
be
r 
of
 c
om
pl
ai
nt
s 
re
ce
iv
ed
 

H
ea
d 
of
 

C
us
to
m
er
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

M
 

- 
78
 

N
/a
 

N
/a
 

N
/a
 

 
N
um
be
r 
of
 c
om
pl
im
en
ts
 r
ec
ei
ve
d 

H
ea
d 
of
 

C
us
to
m
er
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

M
 

- 
28
8 

N
/a
 

N
/a
 

N
/a
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

N
I 1
81
 

T
he
 n
um
be
r 
of
 c
ha
ng
es
 o
f c
irc
um
st
an
ce
s 

w
hi
ch
 a
ffe
ct
 c
us
to
m
er
s'
 H
ou
si
ng
 B
en
ef
it 
/ 

C
ou
nc
il 
T
ax
 B
en
ef
it 
en
tit
le
m
en
t w
ith
in
 th
e 

ye
ar
 

T
er
es
a 

K
ris
tu
na
s 

Q
 

T
 

13
.4
 d
ay
s 

-v
e 

-v
e 

-v
e 

B
V
79
bi
 
T
he
 a
m
ou
nt
 o
f H
ou
si
ng
 B
en
ef
it 

ov
er
pa
ym
en
ts
 r
ec
ov
er
ed
 a
s 
a 
pe
rc
en
ta
ge
 

of
 a
ll 
H
B
 o
ve
rp
ay
m
en
ts
 

T
er
es
a 

K
ris
tu
na
s 

Q
 

T
 

75
.9
9%

 
+v
e 

+v
e 

+v
e 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
N
um
be
r 
of
 p
eo
pl
e 
us
in
g 
th
e 
D
ia
l-A
-R
id
e 

se
rv
ic
e 

A
ng
ie
 

H
ei
gh
w
ay
 

M
 

T
 

32
,8
65
 

33
,6
87
 

34
,5
29
 

35
,3
92
 

 
N
um
be
r 
of
 p
eo
pl
e 
us
in
g 
th
e 
S
ho
pm
ob
ili
ty
 
A
ng
ie
 

M
 

T
 

19
,5
54
 

20
,0
43
 

20
,5
44
 

21
,0
53
 

Page 79



 
68
 

T
ar

g
et

s 
P

I R
ef

 
P

I D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 

H
o

S
 

R
ep

o
rt

in
g

 
F

re
q

u
en

cy
 

S
et

 t
ar

g
et

s 
o

r 
b

as
el

in
e 

in
 2

01
0?

 

20
09

/1
0 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

10
/1

1 
11

/1
2 

12
/1

3 

se
rv
ic
e 

H
ei
gh
w
ay
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C
us
to
m
er
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
– 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 c
al
ls
 

re
so
lv
ed
 a
t f
irs
t p
oi
nt
 o
f c
on
ta
ct
 

H
ea
d 
of
 

C
us
to
m
er
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

M
 

B
 

N
/a
 

N
/a
 

N
/a
 

N
/a
 

 
C
us
to
m
er
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
– 
pe
rc
en
ta
ge
 o
f c
al
ls
 

an
sw
er
ed
 (
%
) 

H
ea
d 
of
 

C
us
to
m
er
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

M
 

T
 

86
 

+v
e 

+v
e 

+v
e 

 
C
us
to
m
er
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
– 
av
er
ag
e 
sp
ee
d 
of
 

an
sw
er
 (
se
co
nd
s)
 

H
ea
d 
of
 

C
us
to
m
er
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

M
 

T
 

32
 

-v
e 

-v
e 

-v
e 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
%
 s
at
is
fie
d 
w
ith
 th
e 
w
ay
 th
e 
co
un
ci
l r
un
s 

th
in
gs
 

 
A
 

T
 

43
 

+v
e 

+v
e 

+v
e 

 
%
 a
gr
ee
 th
at
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
pr
ov
id
es
 v
al
ue
 

fo
r 
m
on
ey
  

 
A
 

T
 

34
 

+v
e 

+v
e 

+v
e 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

B
V
 0
12
 
T
he
 n
um
be
r 
of
 w
or
ki
ng
 d
ay
s/
sh
ift
s 
lo
st
 to
 

th
e 
lo
ca
l a
ut
ho
rit
y 
du
e 
to
 s
ic
kn
es
s 

ab
se
nc
e 
pe
r 
F
T
E
 s
ta
ff 
m
em
be
r 
(d
ay
s)
 

T
er
es
a 

K
ris
tu
na
s 

M
 

 
9.
02
 

8.
5 

8.
0 

8.
0 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

B
V
 0
08
 
%
 o
f i
nv
oi
ce
s 
pa
id
 b
y 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
w
ith
in
 

30
 d
ay
s 
of
 r
ec
ei
pt
 

 

T
er
es
a 

K
ris
tu
na
s 

M
 

T
 

93
.5
5 

98
 

98
 

98
 

 
%
 o
f i
nv
oi
ce
s 
pa
id
 b
y 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
w
ith
in
 

10
 d
ay
s 
of
 r
ec
ei
pt
 

T
er
es
a 

K
ris
tu
na
s 

M
 

B
 

N
/a
 

N
/a
 

N
/a
 

N
/a
 

   

Page 80



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\3\3\AI00004331\StratfordOnAvonDraftCoreStrategyConsultationResponseReport
FINAL0.DOC/14.04.10/LW 

STRATFORD-ON-AVON DRAFT CORE STRATEGY – CONSULTATION 
RESPONSE 
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  To be appointed at the Annual Meeting 
Relevant Head of Service Ruth Bamford (Acting) 
Non-Key Decision  
Appendix 2 to this report contains exempt information as defined in S.100 of the 
Local Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006, as it relates to potential negotiations for the 
acquisition of land or property and the Council’s negotiating position may be 
compromised should potential terms be disclosed.  For this reason it is felt that 
the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information 
 
1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
1.1 To seek Members’ retrospective approval of a response to the Stratford-on-

Avon District Consultation Core Strategy.  The consultation period began on 
25th February 2010 and ran for 6 weeks until 8th April 2010; during which 
time comments were invited from relevant stakeholders and the general 
public.  Officers from Redditch Borough Council sent a response before the 
consultation deadline (8th April), a copy of which is included at Appendix A. 

 
1.2 The response that Officers have sent relates to the area of land known as 

‘Winyates Green Triangle’ that is located within Stratford-on-Avon District 
but has been identified to meet the development needs of Redditch 
Borough.  The requirement for this site to be used to meet Redditch’s 
development needs is stated in the West Midlands Regional Spatial 
Strategy Panel Report.  The site is 12 hectares in size and the Panel Report 
states that it should be designated for employment use.  The Stratford-on-
Avon Consultation Core Strategy includes a section on ‘Meeting the Needs 
of Redditch’ which has a proposed policy approach to deal with this land. 
Members are now invited to endorse the Officer response.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 The Committee is asked to RESOLVE that 

 
the response from Redditch Borough Council to the Stratford-on-Avon 
Consultation Core Strategy (Appendix A) be retrospectively endorsed. 

 

Agenda Item 6Page 81



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\3\3\AI00004331\StratfordOnAvonDraftCoreStrategyConsultationResponseReport
FINAL0.DOC/14.04.10/LW 

3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The West Midlands Regional Spatial Strategy (WMRSS) provides the 

framework for the Redditch Borough and Stratford-on-Avon District Core 
Strategy Development Plan Documents.  The WMRSS is currently being 
reviewed in three phases.  The first phase which concerns the Black 
Country has been completed.  The second phase sets development targets 
for each of the local authority areas in the West Midlands.  The Phase Two 
review of the WMRSS was subject to a Public Inquiry in spring 2009 and the 
Panel Report into this inquiry was published in September 2009.  

 
3.2 The Panel Report specifies that Redditch Borough should provide a total of 

68 hectares of employment land between 2006 and 2026.  As it is a well 
established fact that Redditch Borough cannot accommodate all of its 
development requirements within the Borough boundary, the Panel Report 
also states that of the 68 hectares, at least 12 hectares will be provided 
within Stratford-on-Avon District west of the A435.  This area west of the 
A435 is known as Winyates Green Triangle.  Also, up to 37 hectares (of the 
68 hectares allocated for Redditch Borough) is to be provided in 
Bromsgrove District.  

 
3.3 In terms of housing provision, the target set for Redditch Borough in the 

WMRSS Panel Report is 7,000 dwellings between 2006 and 2026.  This 
target has also been split; around 4,000 dwellings within Redditch and 
around 3,000 dwellings in Bromsgrove District adjacent to the Redditch 
Boundary.   

 
4. KEY ISSUES 
 
4.1 The consultation period for the Stratford-on-Avon Consultation Core 

Strategy finished on 8th April 2010.  An Officer response to the consultation 
was submitted to Stratford-on-Avon Council in advance of the consultation 
deadline and is included at Appendix A. 

 
4.2 The Stratford-on-Avon Consultation Core Strategy makes provision for 

Redditch-related growth in two draft policies.  Draft Policy CS.2 makes 
provision for the land located between the A435 road and the Borough 
Boundary to be designated as an Area of Development Restraint (ADR).  As 
stated in the Officer response (Appendix A), Officers consider that the policy 
should allow for more flexibility in relation to the future use of this land. 

 
4.3 Draft Policy REDD.1 is the second policy which makes provision for 

Redditch-related growth within Stratford-on-Avon District, in particular, the 

Page 82



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\3\3\AI00004331\StratfordOnAvonDraftCoreStrategyConsultationResponseReport
FINAL0.DOC/14.04.10/LW 

Winyates Green Triangle site.  Although the draft policy is in line with 
WMRSS requirements, there is some question over the viability of the site 
which has been identified following completion of a Transport Assessment 
completed by consultants Morgan Tucker (this study is subject to a separate 
report to this committee).  As a result of the evidence in the Transport 
Assessment Officers have suggested that the policy should allow flexibility 
for an alternative use, if it is found that employment use is not viable.  

 
4.4 The final comment Officers have made requests that the ‘Schedule of 

Infrastructure Projects’ included in the Consultation Core Strategy makes 
provision for access to the Winyates Green Triangle Site. 

 
4.5 RBC Officers will continue to work with Officers at Stratford-on-Avon District 

Council to resolve the issues raised in the Officer response at Appendix A.  
 
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 There are financial implications associated with resolving cross-boundary 

issues between Redditch Borough and Stratford-on-Avon District.  This can 
be managed within existing Development Plans budgets 

 
6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 The Borough Council is required to produce a Core Strategy Development 

Plan Document under the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as 
amended).  There are cross-boundary planning issues between Redditch 
Borough and Stratford-on-Avon District that need to be resolved through the 
Core Strategy process of each Authority. 

 
7. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 The Core Strategy Development Plan Document (DPD) will eventually 

replace many policies within the Borough of Redditch Local Plan No.3.  It 
will be the first Development Plan Document to be produced as part of 
Redditch Borough’s Local Development Framework (LDF) and forms part of 
the development plan for the area.  The West Midlands Regional Spatial 
Strategy sets the regional planning framework and also forms part of the 
development plan for Redditch Borough. 

 

Page 83



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\3\3\AI00004331\StratfordOnAvonDraftCoreStrategyConsultationResponseReport
FINAL0.DOC/14.04.10/LW 

8. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
 Employment related development at the Winyates Green Triangle Site 

would contribute to Key Objective EC3 ‘Improving Economic Development’ 
and the Council Priority to have an ‘Enterprising Community’ 

 
9. RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY 

CONSIDERATIONS 
 
 If the officer response to the Stratford-on-Avon Consultation Core Strategy 

is not endorsed there is a risk that cross-boundary development issues 
between Redditch Borough and Stratford-on-Avon District may not be 
resolved. 

 
10. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None identified. 
 
11. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None identified. 
 
12. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET 

MANAGEMENT 
 
 None identified. 
 
13. CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY 
 
13.1 There is a designated Special Wildlife Site within the administrative area of 

Redditch Borough that may be affected by the access to the Winyates 
Green Triangle Site.  Consultants have been appointed to carry out an 
ecological assessment of the Special Wildlife Site to assess this and make 
recommendations.  

 
13.2 National planning policy has a requirement to address adaptation to and 

mitigation of the effects of climate change.  The Core Strategy and other 
Local Development Documents will seek to implement this at a local level.     

 
14. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None identified. 
 

Page 84



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\3\3\AI00004331\StratfordOnAvonDraftCoreStrategyConsultationResponseReport
FINAL0.DOC/14.04.10/LW 

15. GOVERNANCE/PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None identified. 
 
16. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF 

CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998 
 
 None identified. 
 
17. HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None identified. 
 
18. LESSONS LEARNT 
 

Redditch Borough Council has previously submitted representations to 
neighbouring authorities planning consultations.  As there are cross-
boundary issues to be resolved between Redditch Borough and Stratford-
on-Avon District it is particularly important to submit representations to 
ensure to the aspirations of Redditch Borough are included in any emerging 
policy.  

 
19. COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 
 
 The Stratford-on-Avon Core Consultation Core Strategy has been subject to 

a period of public consultation between 25th February and 8th April 2010.  
The consultation opportunity was advertised in the Redditch Advertiser on 
24th March 2010.  

 
20. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

No 

Chief Executive 
 

No 

Executive Director (S151 Officer) 
 

No 

Executive Director – Leisure, Cultural, 
Environmental and Community Services 
 

No 

Executive Director – Planning & Regeneration, 
Regulatory and Housing Services  
 

No 

Director of Policy, Performance and No 

Page 85



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\3\3\AI00004331\StratfordOnAvonDraftCoreStrategyConsultationResponseReport
FINAL0.DOC/14.04.10/LW 

Partnerships 
 
Head of Service 
 

Yes 

Head of Resources  
 

No 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

No 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 

 
21. WARDS AFFECTED 
 
 The Winyates Green Triangle site is located adjacent to Winyates Ward. 
 
22. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 – Officer Response to Stratford-on-Avon District Consultation 
Core Strategy.   

Appendix 2 – Update on development options (Confidential) 

 
23. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Stratford-on-Avon District Consultation Core Strategy (February 2010) 
 
24. KEY 
 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name: Alexa Williams. Planning Officer 
E Mail: alexa.williams@redditchbc.gov.uk 
Tel: ext 3081        
 
 

Page 86



   
 

Executive 
Committee  

 

Appendix A 
 

 

26th May 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\3\3\AI00004331\StratfordOnAvonDraftCoreStrategyConsultationResponseAppendixA0.doc7.4.10jw 

Mr Paul Harris 
Stratford-upon-Avon District Council  
Elizabeth House 
Church Street 
Stratford upon Avon  
Warwickshire 
CV37 6HX         
 
 

    Please contact: Alexa Williams on Ext: 3376 
alexa.williams@redditchbc.gov.uk 

 
23rd March 2010 

 
 

Dear Mr Harris, 
 
Redditch Borough Council Representations on ‘Directions for Stratford-on-Avon District 
Consultation Core Strategy’ 
 
Further to the earlier discussions with Mr Staves and yourself, officer consideration has now been given 
to your Council’s Consultation Core Strategy.  
 
Redditch Borough Council Officers would firstly like to thank you for making provision for Redditch-
related growth in your Consultation Core Strategy in line with the West Midlands Regional Spatial 
Strategy (WMRSS) Phase 2 Review.  The cross-boundary needs of Redditch Borough are addressed 
in draft Policy CS.2 and Proposal REDD 1.  
 
Draft Policy CS.2 part I. refers to Land adjacent to Redditch within Stratford-on-Avon District. RBC 
Officers are supportive of your commitment to work closely with Redditch Borough and Bromsgrove 
District Councils to co-ordinate development on the edge of Redditch and for the provision made at 
Winyates Green Triangle for Redditch-related employment development. Officers do however, have 
some concerns regarding your proposals for the area of land between the A435 and the Borough 
Boundary. Draft Policy CS.2 proposes that this area of land is designated as an Area of Development 
Restraint (ADR) for possible future development. This is interpreted by Officers to mean development 
beyond the plan period of the Stratford-on-Avon Core Strategy. The land adjacent to this within 
Redditch Borough is currently designated as ADR (known as the A435 ADR) through the Borough of 
Redditch Local Plan No.3. However, to meet the development targets set for Redditch Borough in the 
WMRSS Panel Report it is necessary to allocate the A435 ADR for development.  
 
RBC Officers do not think that the land adjacent to the A435 ADR should be designated as ADR and 
are currently of the view that the WMRSS Panel Report development targets for Redditch Borough will 
be difficult to achieve, particularly at the A435 ADR. Therefore, it may be necessary for Redditch 
Borough Council to discuss with Stratford-on-Avon and Bromsgrove District Councils alternatives for 
meeting any shortfall in achieving the 4000 dwellings and 31 hectares of employment land required 
within Redditch Borough. RBC Officers consider that the Redditch and Stratford-on-Avon Core Strategy 
policies should be flexible with regard to housing and employment provision. Therefore, in terms of a 
change to Policy CS.2, RBC Officers are seeking flexibility and are requesting that the strip of land 
between the Borough Boundary and the A435 is not designated as an ADR, but is made available for 

Page 87



   
 

Executive 
Committee  

 

Appendix A 
 

 

26th May 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\3\3\AI00004331\StratfordOnAvonDraftCoreStrategyConsultationResponseAppendixA0.doc7.4.10jw 

development in the Core Strategy plan period to allow, if necessary, for it to be developed alongside 
the A435 ADR within Redditch Borough.      
 
The second policy which makes provision for Redditch cross-boundary growth is draft Policy REDD.1. 
This policy makes provision for approximately 12 hectares of employment development at the area of 
land known as Winyates Green Triangle.  This provision is in line with the WMRSS Panel Report but it 
should be noted that the figures quoted in paragraph 7.11 regarding the employment allocation for 
Redditch Borough are from the WMRSS Preferred Option and have been revised in the Panel Report. 
The employment target for Redditch Borough, as set in the Panel Report is an indicative long term 
requirement of 68 hectares of which 31ha is to be provided within Redditch Borough, 12ha is to be 
provided in Stratford-on-Avon District and 25ha in Bromsgrove District.  
 
As you are aware, the Consultants Morgan Tucker have completed a study into the alternative access 
points to the Winyates Green Triangle site. The study suggests that, due to the cost of accessing the 
site it is likely that it will not be economically viable to develop the site for employment purposes for the 
foreseeable future. Therefore, if public funding is not available to enable the appropriate access for 
employment use on this site, it may be necessary to consider alternative uses. The site could, for 
example, be allocated for housing development that would have been accommodated in Bromsgrove 
District, with Bromsgrove District taking additional employment land to compensate. RBC Officers 
would therefore request that the Winyates Green Triangle site is allocated for employment use but 
allows flexibility for an alternative use should employment use not be viable. I would also like to draw 
your attention to Redditch Borough Council’s response to your previous Core Strategy Consultation 
(letter dated 6th March 2009) in which RBC Members made a specific request for the Winyates Green 
Triangle site to be restricted to B1 (Business) use only.  
 
With regards to the wording of draft Policy REDD.1, RBC Officers would request that in the ‘Specific 
Requirements’ the reference to the mature hedgerow be amended to read ‘retain and where necessary, 
replace the mature hedgerow along the western boundary of the site which is a designated Special 
Wildlife Site’ to draw further attention to the importance of this feature. A study of the Special Wildlife 
Site is due to be commissioned shortly. RBC Officers would request that reference should be made to 
this study in your policy to ensure that its findings are given due consideration in relation to any 
proposal on the site.  
 
Finally, RBC Officers consider it may be necessary to make provision for the access to Winyates Green 
Triangle in the ‘Schedule of Infrastructure Projects’ that accompanies the Core Strategy.   
 
 
It is anticipated that formal endorsement of this response will be given at a meeting of the Executive 
Committee on 26th May 2010. We look forward to working with you on this matter in the future.  
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
 
Alexa Williams 
Planning Officer 
Development Plans  
 

Page 88



Page 89
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 90



Page 91
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 92



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\4\7\AI00003747\EmploymentLandReviewReportFINAL0.DOC/4.5.10/LW 

EMPLOYMENT LAND REVIEW UPDATE  
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  To be appointed at the Annual Meeting 
Relevant Head of Service Ruth Bamford, Head of Planning and 

Regeneration 
Key Decision   
 
 
1.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 

The report seeks the endorsement of the Employment Land Review update 
for 2009/10.  This replaces the Employment Land Review for 2008/9.  The 
Employment Land Review being a factual monitoring document, 
endorsement is also sought for officers to review and prepare the 
Employment Land Review update annually in the future, subject to there 
being no issues highlighted from monitoring. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
 The Committee is asked to RECOMMEND that: 
 

1) the Employment Land Review as attached in Appendix A be 
endorsed as part of the Local Development Framework Evidence 
Base; and 

 
2) for the 2010/11 period onwards, Authority be delegated to Officers 

(Head of Planning and Regeneration) to review and annually 
update the Employment Land Review, subject to there being no 
indication that policies need to be reviewed. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Employment Land Review was approved for consultation purposes on 

the 27th March 2009.  The document attached at Appendix A represents an 
update to the previous Employment Land Review.  There is a need to 
update the Employment Land Review for the following reasons: 

 
a) To take account of the new Planning Policy Statement 4 (published 

29th December 2009); 
 
b) The West Midlands Regional Spatial Strategy Revision is an emerging 

piece of work.  The need to update the Employment Land Review 
offers the opportunity for the review to take account of the Proposed 

Agenda Item 7Page 93



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\4\7\AI00003747\EmploymentLandReviewReportFINAL0.DOC/4.5.10/LW 

changes to the revision.  These proposed changes are significantly 
different to the version of the RSS that the Employment Land Review 
previously considered; 

 
c) Several sites which had planning permission during the completion of 

the Employment Land Review have since seen their permissions 
expire.  There is a need to re-assess these sites to identify whether or 
not they are still suitable for employment purposes; 

 
d) To assess some sites which were not assessed through the 

Employment Land Review to identify whether or not they are suitable 
for employment purposes. 

 
3.2 This Employment Land Review update seeks to achieve the above updates 

and in doing so, provides a portfolio of local employment sites to meet local 
and strategic planning objectives for the Borough.  

 
4. KEY ISSUES 
 
4.1 The Borough of Redditch needs to identify an employment land supply of 

33.3ha.  Although the total requirement is 70.3ha of which 12ha is to be 
provided in Stratford-on-Avon District and a maximum of 25ha to be 
provided in Bromsgrove District. 

 
4.2 This updated Employment Land Review identifies sufficient potential 

employment sites to meet the 33.3ha requirement.  Actual allocations of 
land for employment to meet the requirements are to be made in the 
forthcoming Site Allocations and Policies DPD. 

 
4.3 The findings of the study form part of the evidence base for the Local 

Development Framework and specifically the development of the Core 
Strategy. 

 
4.4 For some of the identified employment sites it is recommended that they be 

developed solely for offices.  Where this is the case the Employment Land 
Review proposes that these sites be progressed through a more detailed 
planning document such as a Supplementary Planning Document to ensure 
that the appropriate end use is brought forward. 

 
4.5 A mixed use proposal is recommended at the Land to the Rear of Alexandra 

Hospital.  This should therefore be designated as a Strategic site in the 
Core Strategy given the importance of the site in its potential contribution of 

Page 94



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\4\7\AI00003747\EmploymentLandReviewReportFINAL0.DOC/4.5.10/LW 

offices and residential development towards meeting Redditch's 
development targets. 

 
4.6 There is a need to identify sites to meet a five year rolling reservoir of 

readily available sites.  The Employment Land Review identifies sites to 
meet the reservoir requirement.  

 
4.7 In addition to this, the Employment Land Review identifies potential 

employment land sites that are more likely to come forward in the longer 
term.  These sites are either considered to require greater infrastructure 
requirements to enable any development to come forward or there is a level 
of uncertainty as to when the site could come forward. 

 
4.8 As part of the Employment Land Review consultation was undertaken with 

landowners to ascertain viability of sites.  Although a deadline was set for 
landowners to respond, not all responses have been received.  At this stage 
it is proposed that until the landowner identifies a site is not viable, the site 
be progressed and not withstanding any other issues the site be considered 
as a potential employment site.  

 
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 This assessment was funded from existing Development Plans budgets.  

Redditch Borough Council Officers carried out the production of this report 
in-house. 
 

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

The Employment Land Review update forms part of the Core Strategy 
evidence base.  Redditch Borough Council is required, under the Planning 
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, to produce a Core Strategy DPD.  
Without a credible and robust evidence base to draw upon the production of 
a Core Strategy is at risk of being found ‘unsound’.  The Employment Land 
Review update helps to inform policies in the Core Strategy. 

 
7. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 

The Employment Land Review update will inform the continuing preparation 
of the Core Strategy.  The Core Strategy will replace many policies within 
the Borough of Redditch Local Plan No.3.  It will be the first Development 
Plan Document (DPD) to be produced as part of Redditch Borough 
Council’s Local Development Framework (LDF) and forms part of the 
development plan for the area. 

Page 95



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\4\7\AI00003747\EmploymentLandReviewReportFINAL0.DOC/4.5.10/LW 

 
 
 
8. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 

Employment development would contribute to an Enterprising Community, 
and will contribute to objective EC3. 

 
9. RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY 

CONSIDERATIONS 
  
 The Core Strategy requires a credible and robust evidence base to 

formulate appropriate policies.  Without the evidence base to rely on, the 
delivery of the Core Strategy would be at risk.  There are policies in the 
Core Strategy that rely upon the Employment Land Review evidence, 
therefore not adopting the Employment Land Review update could put at 
risk the achievement of a credible Core Strategy. 
 

10. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 

None identified. 
 
11. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

None identified. 
 
12. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET 

MANAGEMENT 
 

None identified. 
 
13. CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY 
 
13.1 The Employment Land Review identifies potential sites to meet long term 

Employment Land Requirements.  Allocations will formally be made through 
a Site Allocation Development Plan Document.  When development does 
occur there will be an inevitable impact on the environment.  However in 
order to minimise impact the site assessment process considered 
environmental implications. 

 
13.2 National planning policy has a requirement to address adaptation to and 

mitigation of the effects of climate change.  The Core Strategy and other 
Local Development Documents will seek to implement this at a local level. 

Page 96



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\4\7\AI00003747\EmploymentLandReviewReportFINAL0.DOC/4.5.10/LW 

 
 
 
14. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 
 

None identified. 
 
15. GOVERNANCE/PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
  

None identified. 
 
16. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF 

CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998 
  

None identified. 
 
17. HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
  

None identified. 
 
18. LESSONS LEARNT 
 

None identified. 
 
19. COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 
 

As part of the update process consultation was undertaken with landowners 
in order to assess viability of sites. 

 
20. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

Yes 

Chief Executive 
 

No 

Executive Director (S151 Officer) 
 

No 

Executive Director – Leisure, Cultural, 
Environmental and Community Services 
 

No 

Executive Director – Planning & Regeneration, 
Regulatory and Housing Services  
 

No 

Page 97



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\4\7\AI00003747\EmploymentLandReviewReportFINAL0.DOC/4.5.10/LW 

Director of Policy, Performance and 
Partnerships 
 

No 

Head of Service 
 

Yes 

Head of Resources  
  

No 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

No 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 

 
21. WARDS AFFECTED 
 

All wards. 
  
22. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix A - Employment Land Review update 
  
23. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Employment Land Review Stage 1 (2009) 
 
Employment Land Review Stage 2 (2009) 
 
Employment Land Review Stage 3 (2009) 

 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name: Ashley Baldwin 
E Mail: ashley.baldwin@redditchbc.gov.uk 
Tel: 01527 64253 (Ext: 3376) 
 

Page 98



 
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

EXECUTIVE  
COMMITTEE 
  26th May 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\2\4\AI00004424\LocalDevelopmentFrameworkEvidenceBaseWinyatesGreenTrian
gleTransportAssessmentFINAL0.doc7.4.10JW  amended 14.04.10/LW 

LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK EVIDENCE BASE – WINYATES 
GREEN TRIANGLE TRANSPORT ASSESSMENT 
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  To be appointed at the Annual Meeting 
Relevant Head of Service Ruth Bamford (Acting) 
Non-Key Decision  
 
1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
 To seek Member’s endorsement of a Transport Assessment for the 

Winyates Green Triangle site prepared by Morgan Tucker Consulting 
Engineers.  The Winyates Green Triangle site is located within Stratford-on-
Avon District adjacent to the Redditch Borough Boundary.  The site has 
been recommended for employment use to meet the needs of Redditch 
Borough in the West Midlands Regional Spatial Strategy Phase Two 
Review. 

  
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 The Committee is asked to RESOLVE that 
 
 the Winyates Green Triangle Transport Assessment prepared by 

Morgan Tucker Consulting Engineers (November 2009) (Appendix A) is 
endorsed as part of the Local Development Framework Evidence Base 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The West Midlands Regional Spatial Strategy (WMRSS) provides the 

framework for the Redditch Borough and Stratford-on-Avon District Core 
Strategy Development Plan Documents.  The WMRSS is currently being 
reviewed in three phases.  The first phase which concerns the Black 
Country has been completed.  The second phase sets development targets 
for each of the local authority areas in the West Midlands.  The Phase Two 
review of the WMRSS was subject to a Public Inquiry in spring 2009 and the 
Panel Report into this inquiry was published in September 2009. 

 
3.2 The Panel Report specifies that Redditch Borough should provide a total of 

68 hectares of employment land between 2006 and 2026.  As it is a well 
established fact that Redditch Borough cannot accommodate all of its 
development requirements within the Borough boundary, the Panel Report 
also states that of the 68 hectares, at least 12 hectares will be provided 

Agenda Item 8Page 99



 
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

EXECUTIVE  
COMMITTEE 
  26th May 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\2\4\AI00004424\LocalDevelopmentFrameworkEvidenceBaseWinyatesGreenTrian
gleTransportAssessmentFINAL0.doc7.4.10JW  amended 14.04.10/LW 

within Stratford-on-Avon District west of the A435.  This area west of the 
A435 is known as Winyates Green Triangle. 

 
3.3 Based on extensive research undertaken by Redditch Borough Council, it is 

considered that a number of industries in the Borough could benefit from 
diversification.  To this end, it has been concluded that a Diversification Park 
would be the most beneficial way of achieving such an aim.  The 
advantages of developing such a park could add to the economic vitality of 
the Borough and the wider locality.  The land at Winyates Green Triangle is 
ideally located and Officers consider that it could potentially be suitable to 
be developed as a ‘Diversification Park’.  The Transport Assessment was 
therefore carried out based on a proposed ‘Diversification Park’ use for the 
Winyates Green Triangle site. 

 
4. KEY ISSUES 
 
4.1 The purpose of the Transport Assessment was to investigate and advise on 

the transport and highways issues associated with the proposed 
diversification park.  The aim was to produce a transport assessment which 
would meet the requirements of both Worcestershire County Council and 
Warwickshire County Council as the respective highway authorities.  Five 
notional access points to the Winyates Green site were identified and 
evaluated in the Transport Assessment by the Consultants:  

 
Option 1 Roundabout on Far Moor Lane 
Option 2 Staggered Crossroads on Far Moor Lane 
Option 3 A435 Birmingham Road Traffic Signals 
Option 4 A4023 Coventry Highway Roundabout 
Option 5 A4023 Coventry Highway Traffic Signals 

 
4.2 In summary, capacity testing revealed that a traffic signal junction on the 

A435 Birmingham Road, (Option 3) designed to the requirements of 
Warwickshire County Council would not perform adequately in either the AM 
or PM peaks in 2017 and that the junction would become congested.  Both 
a traffic signal solution and a roundabout option on the A4023 Coventry 
Highway (Options 4 and 5) would perform within capacity in both AM and 
PM peaks and that the junctions would be well within capacity.  However, in 
view of significant construction costs, safety and environmental issues with 
Options 4 and 5, the Consultants concluded that a new roundabout junction 
on Far Moor Lane (Option 1) would provide the best overall access solution 
to serve the Diversification Park. 

Page 100



 
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

EXECUTIVE  
COMMITTEE 
  26th May 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\2\4\AI00004424\LocalDevelopmentFrameworkEvidenceBaseWinyatesGreenTrian
gleTransportAssessmentFINAL0.doc7.4.10JW  amended 14.04.10/LW 

4.3 Notwithstanding the above Consultant’s conclusions, some reservations 
have been expressed by the Development Control Engineer for 
Worcestershire County Council.  Although geometrically acceptable, the 
capacity of Far Moor Lane may prove to be an issue.  Previous applications 
on the site have raised many neighbour objections in relation to access off 
Far Moor Lane and this location does not provide the most direct form of 
access from the primary road network.  In the opinion of the Engineer, the 
better option would be to access the development from a roundabout on the 
A4023 Coventry Highway.  

 
4.4 The findings of the Transport Assessment raise some concerns over the 

viability of the site for employment use.  This issue has been raised in the 
Officer response to the Stratford-on-Avon District Consultation Core 
Strategy which is the subject of a separate report. 

 
4.5 This Transport Assessment, if endorsed by Members will form part of the 

evidence base for the Local Development Framework and will be used to 
inform decision making on the future use of the Winyates Green Triangle 
site. 

 
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 There are financial implications associated with resolving cross-boundary 

issues between Redditch Borough and Stratford-on-Avon District.  This can 
be managed within existing Development Plans budgets. 
 

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 The Borough Council is required to produce a Local Development 

Framework under the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as 
amended).  There are cross-boundary planning issues between Redditch 
Borough and Stratford-on-Avon District that need to be resolved through the 
LDF process of each Authority. 

 
7. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 Redditch Borough’s Local Development Framework (LDF) forms part of the 

development plan for the area.  The West Midlands Regional Spatial 
Strategy sets the regional planning framework and also forms part of the 
development plan for Redditch Borough. 

 

Page 101



 
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

EXECUTIVE  
COMMITTEE 
  26th May 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\2\4\AI00004424\LocalDevelopmentFrameworkEvidenceBaseWinyatesGreenTrian
gleTransportAssessmentFINAL0.doc7.4.10JW  amended 14.04.10/LW 

8. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
 Employment related development at the Winyates Green Triangle Site 

would contribute to Key Objective EC3 ‘Improving Economic Development’ 
and the Council Priority to have an ‘Enterprising Community’. 

 
9. RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY 

CONSIDERATIONS 
 
 None identified. 

 
10. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None identified. 
 
11. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
  None identified. 
 
12. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET 

MANAGEMENT 
 
 None identified. 
 
13. CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY 

 
13.1 There is a designated Special Wildlife Site within the administrative area of 

Triangle Site.  Consultants have been appointed to carry out an ecological 
assessment to assess where a potential access from Far Moor Lane would 
have the least impact on the Special Wildlife Site. 

 
13.2  National planning policy has a requirement to address adaptation to and 

mitigation of the effects of climate change.  The documents that comprise 
the Local Development Framework will seek to implement this at a local 
level. 

 
14. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 
  
 None identified. 
 
 

Page 102



 
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

EXECUTIVE  
COMMITTEE 
  26th May 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\2\4\AI00004424\LocalDevelopmentFrameworkEvidenceBaseWinyatesGreenTrian
gleTransportAssessmentFINAL0.doc7.4.10JW  amended 14.04.10/LW 

15. GOVERNANCE/PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
  
 None identified. 
 
16. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF 

CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998 
  
 None identified. 
 
17. HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
  
 None identified. 
 
18. LESSONS LEARNT 
 
 None identified. 
 
19. COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 
 
 None. 
 
20. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

No 

Chief Executive 
 

No 

Executive Director (S151 Officer) 
 

No 

Executive Director – Leisure, Cultural, 
Environmental and Community Services 
 

No 

Executive Director – Planning & Regeneration, 
Regulatory and Housing Services  
 

No 

Director of Policy, Performance and 
Partnerships 
 

Yes 

Head of Service 
 

Yes 

Head of Resources  
 

No 

 

Page 103



 
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

EXECUTIVE  
COMMITTEE 
  26th May 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\2\4\AI00004424\LocalDevelopmentFrameworkEvidenceBaseWinyatesGreenTrian
gleTransportAssessmentFINAL0.doc7.4.10JW  amended 14.04.10/LW 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

No 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 

 
21. WARDS AFFECTED 
 

The Winyates Green Triangle site is located adjacent to Winyates Ward. 
 
22. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix 1 – Winyates Green Triangle Transport Assessment. Completed 

by Morgan Tucker Consulting Engineers, November 2009 
 
23. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Stratford-on-Avon Consultation Core Strategy 
 

  
 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name: Name: Alexa Williams, Planning Officer 
E Mail: alexa.williams@redditchbc.gov.uk 
Tel: ext 3081 
 

Page 104



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\4\3\AI00004342\WorcestershireSupportingPeopleStrategy201013Final0.DOC/16.
04.10/LW 

WORCESTERSHIRE SUPPORTING PEOPLE STRATEGY 2010/13 
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  Cllr Brandon Clayton, Portfolio Holder 

for Housing, Local Environment and 
Health 

Relevant Head of Service Angie Heighway, Head of Community 
Services 

Key Decision  
 
 
1.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
1.1 Nationally the Supporting People programme offers housing related support 

to over a million vulnerable people in the UK.  The Worcestershire 
Supporting People programme provides strategically planned housing-
related support services to vulnerable people with the goal of supporting 
them to achieve a range of outcomes that will improve their quality of life. 

 
1.2 A new Supporting People Strategy for the period 2010 - 2013 has been 

developed by the Worcestershire Supporting People Team.  A draft copy of 
the new strategy was circulated by the Housing Policy Manager to all 
Members in March for consultation and the opportunity for comments to be 
submitted directly to the Supporting People Manager. 

 
1.3 The Strategy now comes before the Executive Committee for approval.  The 

document is also in the process of being considered for approval by the 
County Council and the other District Councils within Worcestershire. 

  
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
1) That the Supporting people Strategy 2010/13 attached at Appendix 1 

be approved and 
 
2) Officers bring a report to a future Executive Committee on the financial 

impact to the Council on any possible future Supporting People 
funding cuts. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Supporting People programme within Worcestershire is helping more 

than 20,000 vulnerable people each year to attain or maintain 
independence, through the provision of housing related support services.  
This includes older people, people with mental health issues, learning 

Agenda Item 9Page 105



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\4\3\AI00004342\WorcestershireSupportingPeopleStrategy201013Final0.DOC/16.
04.10/LW 

disabilities, physical disabilities, homeless, offenders, teenage parents, 
travellers, people with alcohol problems, people who have suffered from 
domestic violence, young people at risk and young people leaving care. 

 
3.2 The Supporting People programme was launched in April 2003 and 

comprises of a funding, quality monitoring and needs assessment 
programme for housing related support services.  Prior to Supporting 
People, housing related support was funded in a number of different ways 
and was not strategically planned and co-ordinated. 

 
3.3 The Supporting People programme is administered by Worcestershire 

County Council on behalf of the Worcestershire Supporting People 
Partnership, which consists of representatives of the 6 District/Borough 
Councils, the Primary Care Trust and West Mercia Probation Service as 
well as Worcestershire County Council.  The County Council in its role of 
administering authority, issues contracts to providers, makes payments and 
has responsibility for ensuring that the programme is effectively 
administered, delivered and produces the expected outcomes.  The County 
Council has the responsibility for the finances of Supporting People and the 
responsibility to work with its partners to deliver the best possible services 
within the resources available.  Part of this responsibility is to ensure a 
robust Supporting People Strategy is in place setting out the direction in 
which services will change and develop to meet the needs of the local area. 

 
3.4 The previous SP Strategy 2005 – 2010 that was approved by the Executive 

Committee has now expired and following consultation with a broad range 
of partners and stakeholders is being replaced by the Strategy set out at 
Appendix 1 of this report. 

 
4. KEY ISSUES 
 
4.1 The Supporting People Strategy 2010-2013 informs and embeds the 

commissioning intentions and priorities for helping the most vulnerable and 
excluded to contribute to wider society within Worcestershire.  In addition it 
sets out how service users and providers can become a more integral 
element within the commissioning of the programme.  The intention is for 
the most vulnerable people within the County to have services which are 
appropriate and responsive to individual needs and expectations thus 
preventing the need for intrusive intervention at the point of crisis. 

 
4.2 The strategy sets out the direction the programme for the next 3 years in 

meeting vulnerable client needs, becoming more flexible and creative in 

Page 106



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\4\3\AI00004342\WorcestershireSupportingPeopleStrategy201013Final0.DOC/16.
04.10/LW 

meeting the rising demand for support services, taking into account 
changing demographics within the county. 

 
4.3 As from April 2010, the Supporting People programme grant will become 

part of the Local Area Agreement's Area Based Grant (ABG).  The 3 year 
strategy outlines the intention to align all current and future commissioned 
projects and their outcomes to those of the LAA priorities; thus ensuring 
local priorities within the County can be fulfilled in partnership.  This is 
particularly important as under new arrangements effective from April 2010, 
the Supporting People Programme Grant and Administration budgets loose 
their ring fenced protection under these new funding arrangements. 

 
4.4 Proposed budget allocation (recurrent) for 2010/11  
 

By service  £  By district  
Older People  5,553,557  Non recurrent  616,201  
Learning 
Disabilities  

805,349  Bromsgrove  573,234  

Mental Health  947,515  Countywide  4,696,613  
Other  4,014,765  Malvern Hills  221,796  
Physical 
Disabilities  

828,980  Redditch  1,493,803  

Young People  1,886,633  Various  1,416,628  
Non recurrent  616,201  Worcester  2,271,287  
Total  14,653,000  Wychavon  1,266,994  
  Wyre Forest 2,096,444 
  Total  14,653,000  

 
 
4.5 The strategy details the approach of the programme in aligning all 117 

contracts to meet LAA priorities, a financial benefits model which identifies 
significant public cost savings as a result of these preventative services, and 
a range or projects the programme seeks to commission in 2010/11. 

 
4.6 Following changes to procurement rules a large number of Supporting 

People contracts will be required to go through a competitive tendering 
process over the Strategy period. Worcestershire County Council 
Procurement Team will be working with the Supporting People Team to 
identify those contracts that will require a competitive tendering process.  

 
4.7 Scrutiny of current needs analysis and evaluation of the current supply 

profile has led the Supporting People Team to select, within the context of 
the changing needs and available resources, the following commissioning 

Page 107



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\4\3\AI00004342\WorcestershireSupportingPeopleStrategy201013Final0.DOC/16.
04.10/LW 

priorities for each client group.  All service provision will also achieve the 
following: 

 
a) Deliver the vision of this strategy, and align to the key County priorities; 
 
b) Meet the needs of vulnerable people in the county, and seek to engage 

with the most chaotic; 
 
c) Be flexible in approach to engage with such a diverse range of needs; 
 
d) Be sustainable and have the ability to attract additional funding as a 

result of our investment; 
 
e) Be cost effective, providing value for money; 
 
f) Fit with the strategic priorities of the Worcestershire Supporting People 

Partnership; 
 
g) Be high quality; 
 
h) Demonstrate that the client groups being supported are prioritised for 

our support; 
 
i) Provision also is commissioned on needs evidence, and remains 

tenure neutral. 
 
4.8 Older People  
 

a) Early intervention services for older people, particularly with mental 
health needs. 

 
b) Low-level preventative housing related intervention as provided by 

home improvement agencies, community alarms and assistive 
technology. 

 
c) Provision of a countywide floating support that meets the needs of the 

most vulnerable irrespective of their tenure. 
 
d) To provide low level support where appropriate within existing and new 

models of housing support provision. 
 
e) To identify the additional outcomes that may be achieved through 

social inclusion activity, for instance volunteering. 

Page 108



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\4\3\AI00004342\WorcestershireSupportingPeopleStrategy201013Final0.DOC/16.
04.10/LW 

 
f) Also refer to Learning Disability, Physical Disability and Sensory 

Impairment, in addition to Mental Health commissioning intentions for 
this client group. 

 
4.9 Mental health  
 

a) To undertake a strategic needs analysis of mental health provision 
within Worcestershire.  The review will provide a strategic framework 
for commissioning intentions for Worcestershire's Supporting People 
programme seeking to add value to existing provision, create a real life 
account for gaps in provision, identify opportunities for joint 
commissioning and create alignment to Local Area Agreement 
priorities. 

 
b) Within existing provision, increase the awareness of mental health 

issues and capacity build to assist programmes in early identification of 
someone's mental health deterioration. 

 
c) Within existing provision, support the drive for an equitable provision of 

mental health support programmes providing community based 
support, opportunities for training, education, employment, housing and 
support to develop networks and assist move on. 

 
d) Within existing provision, support the drive for equitable provision of 

support for people with a mental health illness to return to their home 
or supported living arrangements at the earliest opportunity that their 
condition allows.  This provision should include a coordination of multi 
agency support in regard to health, housing and social care agreed 
with patients and their carers. 

e) Ensure appropriate choice is developed within Supporting People 
initiatives to aid recovery, increase social integration, enable 
maintenance of social networks and provide opportunities for increased 
independence, including return to appropriate employment. 

 
f) Within existing mental health provision, ensure move on is a priority, to 

ensure independent living opportunities. 
 

4.10 Learning disabilities  
 

a) Provision should seek to enhance greater choice and control, the use 
of community-based activities, with greater opportunities to integrate 
with increased accessibility, an emphasis on leisure, work and learning 

Page 109



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\4\3\AI00004342\WorcestershireSupportingPeopleStrategy201013Final0.DOC/16.
04.10/LW 

opportunities regardless of disability and, importantly, a desire to 
ensure that social contact with friends is maintained. 

 
b) Ensure that provision identifies the needs of carers, in addition to the 

service user. 
 
c) Ensure that programmes within our portfolio achieve multi faceted 

outcomes, and that provision works alongside each other with the 
adaptability to meet choice and control expectations. 

 
4.11 Physical Disability and sensory impairments  
 

a) To undertake a strategic needs analysis of physical disability and 
sensory impairment provision within Worcestershire.  Working in 
partnership with key stakeholders the review will provide a strategic 
framework for commissioning intentions for Worcestershire's 
Supporting People programme seeking to add value to existing 
provision, create a real life account for gaps in provision, identify 
opportunities for joint commissioning and create alignment to Local 
Area Agreement priorities. 

 
b) To ensure that existing provision and any newly commissioned 

provision is enabling people to access supported housing and low level 
housing related support, in addition to identifying social inclusion 
activity. 

 
4.12 Gypsy and Travellers 
 

a) To carry out a strategic review of the Gypsy and Traveller community 
within Worcestershire.  The recommendations of this review will 
provide support for investment decisions to be made within the lifetime 
of this strategy. 

 
b) Within existing provision, ensure that Gypsies and Travellers are 

recognised within the diversity and training of providers; 
 
c) Work strategically with Children Services and stakeholders where 

appropriate to support families in existing provision seeking support, 
specifically around education or access, and health.  Providers will be 
expected to work closely with Health Visitor's/practitioners about 
specialist health support available to this community. 

 

Page 110



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\4\3\AI00004342\WorcestershireSupportingPeopleStrategy201013Final0.DOC/16.
04.10/LW 

d) Identify the needs of older communities specifically in terms of 
adaptations and health. 

 
4.13 Young People at risk 
 

a) Preventative work: early prevention and advice, mediation, home 
visiting, school based work and assessment and local authority advice 
in housing. 

 
b) Accommodation and support: supported lodgings, nightstops, 

emergency accommodation, forms of move on from hostels and 
floating support. 

 
c) Person-specific services: complex needs and high vulnerability, health, 

learning and work, BME young people, tackling anti social behaviour 
and offenders and offending, identifying opportunities for contribution to 
positive activities agenda. 

 
d) Provision of a greater range of housing options and support, which 

contributes to the prevention of homelessness and repeat 
homelessness.  This includes specific issues within mainstream 
housing and support including substance misuse issues, youth 
offending behaviour, learning disabilities and difficulties including 
Asperser's Syndrome, dyspraxia, minority ethnic groups particularly 
unaccompanied asylum seekers, teenage parents and young people 
who are pregnant and young victims and survivors of domestic abuse, 
and care leavers. 

 
4.14 Teenage parents  
 

a) Provision of short-term transitional services to make the move to 
independent living. 

 
b) Floating support and coordinating services, enabling access to health 

and well being support through to training, education, employment and 
benefits support. 

 
c) Development of move on support functions, for instance life coaching / 

mentoring to aid and support transitions. 
 

Page 111



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\4\3\AI00004342\WorcestershireSupportingPeopleStrategy201013Final0.DOC/16.
04.10/LW 

4.15 Homelessness   
 

a) Ensure preventive agenda is extended throughout the County, 
including the introduction of a single service gateway and improved 
systems such as common monitoring and assessment. 

 
b) Crisis intervention: emergency access accommodation and street 

outreach, often dealing with high vulnerability and complex needs. 
 
c) Supported independent living: supported accommodation for single 

homeless people, offenders and substance mis-users. 
 
d) ‘Preparation for independent living’: floating support, which can be 

generic or specialist.  Some focuses solely on crisis intervention work, 
some are specialist services and other floating support moves with the 
person through different types of accommodation. 

 
e) Ensure provision continues to complement housing strategies 

countywide, and remains equitable based on need. 
 
f) Development of move on support functions, for instance life coaching / 

mentoring to aid and support transitions. 
 

4.16 Substance misuse  
 

a) The provision of Low-level and floating support for individuals with 
drugs and alcohol problems; 

 
b) Complementing low-level community interventions and alignment to 

the strategic direction of the Drug and Alcohol Action Team partnership 
c) Provision to address the demand profile within the County, and 

remains equitable. 
 
d) Development of move on support functions, for instance life coaching / 

mentoring to aid and support transitions. 
 

4.17 Offenders  
 

a) Ensure that provision of effective offending behaviour support 
programmes (housing related needs) aimed at the low / medium and 
high risk offenders, within the community, are implemented effectively 
to reduce and stop further offending based on research and 
intelligence in terms of need per district. 

Page 112



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\4\3\AI00004342\WorcestershireSupportingPeopleStrategy201013Final0.DOC/16.
04.10/LW 

 
b) Ensure housing related provision supports offenders in accessing 

training and employment opportunities. 
 
c) Ensure that we have a mix of low, medium and high risk offenders 

within the current portfolio of provision. 
 
d) Development of move on support functions, for instance life coaching / 

mentoring to aid and support transitions. 
 

4.18 Domestic violence  
 

a) Ensure that Supporting People provision is available to meet a 
targeted response to the needs of specific vulnerable groups including 
Gypsy and Traveller Communities; Rural Communities; Vulnerable 
Adults – drugs, alcohol, mental health, older people; Young Adults. 

 
b) Work in Partnership with the Domestic Abuse unit, ensuring a portfolio 

of provision is applied throughout the county specifically looking at both 
prevention (including perpetrator programmes) and recovery / 
resettlement programmes. 

 
c) Work in conjunction with the WFADA in regard to a Safer Housing 

strategy, including a needs assessment of need and options within the 
county. 

 
d) Continue to work strategically with WFADA on improving practice 

through training, service standards and outcome / data monitoring with 
current provision within the Supporting People programme in 
Worcestershire. 

e) To work strategically with the Domestic Abuse Forum to ascertain the 
needs of the County and allocate resource to meet identified housing 
related needs. 

 
f) Development of move on support functions, for instance life coaching / 

mentoring to aid and support transitions. 
 
4.19 Additional requirements: 
 

A comprehensive and integrated needs analysis for the following groups will 
also be commissioned to assist with actions within future annual plans; 
 
a) Training Needs Analysis for providers supporting HIV/AIDS. 

Page 113



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\4\3\AI00004342\WorcestershireSupportingPeopleStrategy201013Final0.DOC/16.
04.10/LW 

 
b) Refugees and migrant communities. 
 
c) Carers for all client groups. 
 

4.20 The strategy will be accompanied by an annual work plan, which will detail 
and organise activity to achieve the requirements of the strategy.  An 
element of this work plan will be to ascertain the distribution of funding per 
District.  Currently, there is not an equal split of funding by District.  This is 
based on the way SP commissions its provision – on need and priority 
target areas.  Demographic and existing provision will determine the level of 
support needed by District, and countywide provision will offer support per 
District also on need.  The initial stage of the work plan focuses on the 
distribution of funding, identify changing demographics and ensure that 
allocation is representative. 
 

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 The County Council as the Administering Authority bears the full financial 

risk of the Supporting People programme and has the right to veto any 
decisions made by the Supporting People Partnership if likely to 
compromise the financial position of the County Council. 

 
5.2 There are no financial implications for Redditch Borough Council with regard 

to the programme.  The administration (carried out by the County Council) 
for the SP programme is fully subsidised by grant funding from Department 
for Communities and Local Government (DCLG). 

 
5.3 The Programme's recurrent budget for 2010/11 has been set by DCLG at 

£14.5million.  This recurrent budget is expected to be fully commissioned on 
provision and assessed to be meeting value for money and addressing the 
priority needs of the county in regard to these client groups. 

 
 
6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 There are no legal implications for Redditch Borough Council as the County 

Council as the Administering Authority bears the full risk of the Supporting 
People programme and has the right to veto any decisions made by the 
Supporting People Partnership if likely to compromise the position of the 
County Council. 

 
 

Page 114



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\4\3\AI00004342\WorcestershireSupportingPeopleStrategy201013Final0.DOC/16.
04.10/LW 

7. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 There are no policy implications for Redditch Borough Council. 
 
8. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
8.1 Enterprising Community – Improved services to assist vulnerable residents 

with education, training and employment opportunities enabling those 
generally excluded to contribute to wider society within Redditch. 

 
8.2 Safe - Improved standard of support and preventative services for 

offenders, subsistence mis-users, young people at risk and those suffering 
domestic violence will assist in building community confidence and allow 
residents and visitors to be safe and feel safe. 

 
8.3 Clean and Green - Reduction of homelessness and support for a broad 

range of vulnerable clients in assisting then to live independently helps build 
community cohesion and therefore reduces any negative impact upon the 
environment. 

 
9. RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY 

CONSIDERATIONS 
  

The County Council as the Administering Authority bears the full financial 
and legal risk of the Supporting People programme. 
 
Redditch Borough Council has a number of contracts with Supporting 
People for services it provides and possible future cuts to the budget may 
have an impact on the Council’s financial resources and service provision. 
 
There may be the requirement for current supporting people funded 
services provided by the Council to be competitively tendered at the end of 
the contract period. This may result in the Council loosing the contract. 
 

10. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 

Increased outcomes for vulnerable clients aligned to the priorities set out in 
the Local Area Agreement. 

 
 

Page 115



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\4\3\AI00004342\WorcestershireSupportingPeopleStrategy201013Final0.DOC/16.
04.10/LW 

11. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

All Supporting People services have to comply with Equality and Diversity 
policies which are measured under the Quality Assessment Framework 
when commissioned or reviewed. 

 
12. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET 

MANAGEMENT 
 

All Supporting People services tested for VFM under the Quality 
Assessment Framework when commissioned or reviewed. 

 
13. CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY 
 

None. 
 

14. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 
  

None. 
 
15. GOVERNANCE/PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
  

None. 
 
16. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF 

CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998 
  

A number of Supporting People services will assist in the reduction of crime 
and the fear of crime. 

 
17. HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
  

A number of Supporting People services will assist in improving the health 
and well being of residents reducing the health inequality in Redditch and 
the County. 

 
18. LESSONS LEARNT 
 

None. 
 
 
 
 

Page 116



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\4\3\AI00004342\WorcestershireSupportingPeopleStrategy201013Final0.DOC/16.
04.10/LW 

19. COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 
 

The Worcestershire Supporting People team have undertaken considerable 
engagement with stakeholders and service users in the preparation of this 
strategy. 

 
20. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

Yes 

Chief Executive 
 

Yes 

Executive Director (S151 Officer) 
 

Yes 

Executive Director – Leisure, Cultural, 
Environmental and Community Services 
 

Yes 

Executive Director – Planning & Regeneration, 
Regulatory and Housing Services  
 

Yes 

Director of Policy, Performance and 
Partnerships 
 

Yes 

Head of Service 
 

Yes 

Head of Resources  
 

Yes 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

Yes 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

Yes 

 
21. WARDS AFFECTED 
 

All wards. 
 
22. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 - Worcestershire Supporting People Strategy 2010/13 
 
 

Page 117



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\4\3\AI00004342\WorcestershireSupportingPeopleStrategy201013Final0.DOC/16.
04.10/LW 

23. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None. 
 

24. KEY 
 
 . 
 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name:  Matthew Bough 
E Mail: matthew.bough@redditchbc.gov.uk 
Tel:      01527 64252 ext:3120 
 

Page 118



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26TH May 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\4\AI00004457\CapitalProvisionforAsbestosRemovalFINAL0.DOC/010410rb 

FINANCIAL REPORT ON THE CAPITAL BUDGET PROVISION FOR 2009/10, 
2010/11 AND 2011/12 FOR ASBESTOS REMOVAL   
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  Cllr B Clayton, Portfolio Holder for 

Housing, Local Environment and 
Health 

Relevant Head of Service Liz Tompkin, Head of Housing Services 
Key Decision  

 
1.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
1.1 To report on the actual expenditure and overspend for Asbestos removal in 

2009/10; 
 
1.2 To request additional capital funding for Asbestos removal in 2010/11. 
 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
The Committee is asked to RECOMMEND that:- 
 
1) funding of the shortfall in the Asbestos Removal Capital contract 

budget 2009/10 in the sum of up to £120,000 be approved; 
 
2) up to £175,000 additional Capital funding for Asbestos Removal for 

the years 2010/11 and 2011/12 be approved; 
 
3) funding from the Housing Revenue Account for the cost of 

borrowing for the above bids estimated at £15,500 for 2010/11 and 
£28,000 for 2011/12 be approved; and 

 
to RESOLVE that, subject to the Council’s approval of the budgetary 
implications, as specified separately above, and consequent adjustment of 
the Capital Programme 
 
4) approval be given to incur up to the expenditure detailed in 1 and 2 

above for the purposes detailed in the report, in accordance with 
Standing Order 41. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Following the introduction of the Control of Asbestos Regulations in 2006 

and the stringent requirements, in particular regarding the disposal of 

Agenda Item 10Page 119



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26TH May 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\4\AI00004457\CapitalProvisionforAsbestosRemovalFINAL0.DOC/010410rb 

asbestos, it was agreed that this work would be put out to tender in order 
that the Council could employ a Licensed Asbestos contractor. 

 
3.2 Removal of asbestos involves the use of disposable workwear, respiratory 

protective equipment, specialist vacuum cleaners and asbestos waste 
containers.  The disposal of asbestos is a clearly defined and regulated 
process requiring a Waste Carriers Licence and stringent safety procedures 
are in place during the disposal process.  Asbestos can only be disposed of 
at licensed disposal sites. 

 
4. KEY ISSUES 
 
4.1 Asbestos fibres can cause cancer and lung diseases. 

 
4.2 We have many Council homes that have airing cupboards and Artex coated 

ceilings/walls containing asbestos. Asbestos was used as a heat and fire 
retardant material for such uses as to form a boiler plinth below a central 
heating boiler, insulation for the inside of an airing cupboard and within 
Artex providing a fire retardant covering to ceilings and walls.  

 
4.3 Asbestos only becomes a dangerous material if it is damaged or disturbed 

e.g. if an Artex coated wall becomes damp and we need to remove the 
Artex coating this would need to be done in a controlled manner because of 
the asbestos particles contained within. Sometimes it is difficult to 
determine whether Artex is present so for health and Safety reasons the 
area will be tested by the Contractor and if positive the specialist process of 
removal begins. 

 
4.4 Only qualified personnel can carry out removal and disposal of asbestos 

and Redditch Borough Council does not have suitably qualified staff or the 
necessary equipment required to carry out this work.  Towards the end of 
the current contract we will examine the possibility of bringing this work in-
house but costs to provide this service will be high. 

 
4.5 We have a duty of care to our tenants to ensure that asbestos within their 

homes is managed and dealt with appropriately. It is essential that the 
removal of asbestos is carried out as soon as is practicable for the safety of 
both the Council’s in-house tradesmen / Contractors who carry out repair 
works to properties and also for the safety of our tenants. 

 
4.6 Findings of asbestos that are classed as notifiable e.g. asbestos insulation 

boards found in airing cupboards, have to be notified to the Health and 
Safety Executive. 

Page 120



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26TH May 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\4\AI00004457\CapitalProvisionforAsbestosRemovalFINAL0.DOC/010410rb 

 
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

Changes in the control of asbestos in particular relating to the removal and 
disposal of asbestos have increased costs significantly as all works must 
now carried be out by a Licensed Contractor. When budgets were first 
agreed for asbestos removal the scale of works and costs were 
underestimated due to lack of knowledge about the impact/cost the new 
regulations would impose. 
At the start of the financial year, floor tiles were considered to contain a 
very low level of asbestos so were being removed/repaired by R&M and 
Void Operatives. However two Officers from the Capital team attended an 
Asbestos training course in August 2009 and it was highlighted that 
although the asbestos content in floor tiles is very low they should only be 
removed by competent personnel in a controlled manner to ensure the 
safety of all employees and tenants.  
Whereas we had been able to remove and replace individual damaged tiles 
we now have to replace all floor tiles within a room (if they are known to 
contain asbestos).  We did not become aware that this would increase 
costs significantly until the beginning of 2010 when the budget went into 
overspend. We moved money from non essential Decent Homes work to 
top up the budget but unfortunately we still overspent. It is accepted that we 
should have reported this before the end of the Financial year. 

 
6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

The Council has a duty to carry out repairs and maintenance to its housing 
stock which includes the control/removal of asbestos.  The Health and 
Safety Executive’s Control of Asbestos regulations came into force in 2006 
and guidance was issued to ensure that compliance with the regulations 
was adhered to.  Since the regulations have come into force additional 
measures have been suggested to avoid contamination by either the 
workforce or occupants of buildings/houses containing asbestos. 

 
7. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 

The contract for Asbestos Servicing was procured by Redditch Borough 
Council, using the Standing Order 46 tendering and procurement policy, in 
2007 and is in force until 2012  

 

Page 121



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26TH May 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\4\AI00004457\CapitalProvisionforAsbestosRemovalFINAL0.DOC/010410rb 

8. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
8.1 Providing a safe and cleaner and greener environment for our tenants and 

the residents of Redditch 
 
9. RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY 

CONSIDERATIONS 
 
9.1 The risk of not controlling/removing asbestos from our properties would 

contravene the Control of Asbestos Regulations and could put both our staff 
and tenants health at risk. 

 
10. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 We have a duty of care to our tenants to ensure that asbestos within their 

homes is managed and dealt with appropriately 
 
11. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 None 
 
 
12. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET 

MANAGEMENT 
 
12.1 The removal of damaged asbestos is a requirement by the Council in order 

to adhere to the Health and Safety Executive’s Control of Asbestos 
regulations 

 
 
13. CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY 
 

By removing damaged asbestos and replacing it with high quality safe and 
environmentally friendly materials we are working towards improving the 
environment and sustainability of our Council properties.  The Asbestos 
Contractor’s Environmental Policy advises they use environmentally friendly 
materials wherever possible. 

 
14. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 
 
14.1 None. 
 
 

Page 122



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26TH May 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\4\AI00004457\CapitalProvisionforAsbestosRemovalFINAL0.DOC/010410rb 

15. GOVERNANCE/PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
 
15.1 None. 
 
16. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF 

CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998 
 
16.1 None. 
 
17. HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
17.1 None 
 
18. LESSONS LEARNT 
 
18.1 None. 
 
19. COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 
 
19.1  Tenants will not be consulted about asbestos removal as this is a legal 

obligation which we have to adhere to. 
 
20. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

yes 

Chief Executive 
 

no 

Executive Director (S151 Officer) 
 

no 

Executive Director – Leisure, Cultural, 
Environmental and Community Services 
 

no 

Executive Director – Planning & Regeneration, 
Regulatory and Housing Services  
 

no 

Director of Policy, Performance and 
Partnerships 
 

no 

Head of Service 
 

no 

Head of Resources  
  

no 

Page 123



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26TH May 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\4\AI00004457\CapitalProvisionforAsbestosRemovalFINAL0.DOC/010410rb 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

no 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

no 

 
21. WARDS AFFECTED 
 
 All Wards 
 
22. APPENDICES 
 
 None. 
 
 
23. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None. 
 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name:  Pam Wilkins 
E Mail: pam.wilkins@redditchbc.gov.uk 
Tel: Ext: 3896 
 

Page 124



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 
 

 

SPRING INDUSTRY PUBLIC ART PROJECT  
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  Councillor Anderson, Portfolio Holder 

for Leisure and Tourism 
Relevant Head of Service John Godwin, Head of Leisure and 

Cultural Services 
Non-Key Decision  
 
1.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
1.1 This report sets out the background to a proposed public art project relating 

to the Redditch spring industry. It communicates how the project would be 
taken forward if approved, including the management, staffing and resource 
implications. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
 The Committee is asked to RECOMMEND that 
 
1) as part of the Borough Council’s commitment to the provision of 

public art, a project to celebrate and commemorate the spring 
industry in Redditch be approved.  The project will create a fitting and 
permanent artwork with in the town centre to reflect the positive 
contribution to the economy and community that the spring industry 
has provided; and  
  

2) a financial contribution of £2000 towards the programme be approved, 
to be funded from General Fund revenue balances.  

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 In the early autumn of 2009 Councillor Hall approached the Arts 

Development Manager about a Mayoral initiative to promote more public art 
in Redditch as well as celebrate and commemorate the spring industry in 
Redditch.  

 
3.2 Officers from the Economic Development and Planning teams joined 

preliminary discussions because of the respective  business engagement 
opportunities and potential implications concerning planning policy. In 
addition the Portfolio Holder for Planning, Economic Development and 
Transport (Councillor Macmillan) and Portfolio Holder for Leisure and 
Tourism (Councillor Anderson) took part in the initial discussions and 
agreed to support the development of Councillor Hall’s proposal.  

Agenda Item 11Page 125



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 
 

 

 
3.3 Businesses from the spring industry in the Redditch Borough 

(manufacturers and suppliers) and representatives from NEW College’s Art 
Department were invited to two meetings held in the Town Hall held in 
December 2009 and February 2010 to learn more about the project idea. 
The meetings facilitated a broad discussion on the history and future of the 
industry. Councillor Hall led the meetings on behalf of the Council and was 
supported by Councillors Macmillan and Anderson as representatives of the 
Executive. 

 
3.4 Of the 17 companies represented across both meetings, all attendees 

agreed their support for the project idea. (Responses were received from 
approximately one third of businesses invited to the meetings.) Four 
companies registered their interest in being on a project steering group. 

 
3.5 Councillors Hall and Officers now wish to formalise the proposal as an RBC 

project and develop the  project brief to design, procure, construct and 
install a piece of public art in the town centre area to celebrate and 
commemorate the spring industry. We are currently exploring where the 
most suitable location for the project will be however the preferred location 
at this stage is Peakman Street in the town centre due to historical 
significance of this location in relation to the birth of the town’s Spring 
industry. Further detail about the historical significance of the proposed 
location is available in 4.5 of this report.  

    
4. KEY ISSUES 
 
4.1 The artwork would be a statement of pride, recognising the Borough’s 

industrial heritage and the importance of the town’s productive output. 
Spring manufacturers were keen to support the initiative, from the context of 
both commemorating the industry’s history and celebrating its current 
situation.  As Members will be aware there are a wide range of spring 
companies in the Borough, involved in every stage of spring making from 
development through to manufacture. The industry supplies local, national 
and international markets in the automotive, defence, aerospace, cosmetic 
and medical industries.  Businesses hope the project will promote the 
industry locally and contribute to safeguarding the industry’s future in 
Redditch.  

 
4.2 The project aims include contributing to enhancing the positive “sense of 

place” in the Borough in Redditch and developing a creative project to 
improve the quality of the environment in Redditch’s town centre in line 
with current RBC priorities around environment and economic viability. 

Page 126



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 
 

 

The project will also contribute to the delivery of the Council’s arts policy 
which prioritises the development of public art and the key deliverables 
contained with in the Leisure and Culture Service plan which committed the 
department to 1) working cross departmentally to explore how best the arts 
can contribute to the Council’s overarching priorities and how the arts can 
be utilised  as a tool in order to contribute to priorities other than arts for arts 
sake; and 2) the development of public art across the Borough. 

 
4.3 The proposed project process would be:  
 
1) Finalise the project methodology documents and indicative project plans..  
2) Establish a cross cutting officer/Member steering group. This will be made 
up of representatives from the Spring Industry (we have already received 
nominations); Officers from Leisure & Culture, EDU and Planning 
(including a senior RBC officer), to the portfolio holders for Leisure and/or  
Culture and Economy and Planning and Councillor Hall.  

3) Produce an artist’s brief for NEW College suitable to the agreed resources 
available, request submission of artist’s proposals, select a design and 
artist, identify the exact  location within the already confirmed approximate 
location in the Peakman Street area of the town centre. 

4) Consult with the wider community and submit a planning application at 
which stage the design will be approved by elected members. 

5) Fabricate and install artwork. 
6) Official opening and promotion campaign.  
7) A project evaluation and impact assessment would be undertaken.  

 
 At this stage it is envisaged that the project will be completed in the first 

quarter of 2012. 
 
4.4 NEW College artist Kerry Sherlock has agreed to work with the Council to 

develop an artist’s brief, taking into consideration the industry’s heritage and 
the current range of products produced within the local industry. The brief 
will examine options for a suitable subject / theme, materials, in kind support 
and resources available from the industry itself (for example scrap springs 
and machinery), scale, functionality versus aesthetics, moving versus static, 
durability and permanence, health and safety and ongoing maintenance 
implications. NEW College and the Arts Development service are 
considering how work on this project could be incorporated into coursework 
for students taking the 2-year arts diploma course - to enhance community 
involvement and ownership by local young people. 

 
4.5 The most well-known spring manufacturer (Herbert Terry and Sons) had 

significant links with the town centre area – from their first workshop in 

Page 127



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 
 

 

Beoley Road in the late 1880s to manufacturing in Millsbro Road in the 20th 
century. Members of the Terry family lived in Peakman Street.    

 
4.6 Alternative locations outside the town centre were considered but rejected. 

Spring manufacturers are located across the Borough - there is no single 
site representing the heart of current production. Installing artwork on a 
roundabout or prominent verge would necessitate a large-scale – and 
therefore costly, structure that officer considered would be inappropriate..  

 
4.7 It is proposed Councillor Hall chair the steering group given that the project 

idea began as his Mayoral initiative and for consistency as he has led 
correspondence and meetings with spring firms and NEW College to date. 

 
4.8 Roles and Responsibilities of the steering group are follows. 
 
 Councillor Hall: Chair of steering group and project advocate. 
 
 Project Sponsor: Head of Leisure and Culture 
  
 Project Lead: Arts Development Manager with responsibility for overseeing 

the management of the project, and taking a lead in terms of artistic advice 
in partnership with NEW College. 

  
 Industry Liaison: Economic Development Officers:  
 
 Community Engagement - NEW College, development of artists brief in 

partnership with RBC. Lead participation management with NEW College 
diploma students. 

 
 Implementation Works: Capital and landscaping officers, Town centre 

manager and planning officers.  
 
4.9 All spring manufacturers interested in the project will receive an e-newsletter  

update each quarter to advise them of progress and the upcoming elements 
of the project plan.  

 
 
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
5.1 The proposed budget for the project is a fixed cost of £3,500 of which RBC 

will be contributing £2,000. There are some optional ideas for the scheme 
which could be utilised if additional external  funding is secured as the 
project develops. However, the proposed sources of that fixed budget are: 

Page 128



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 
 

 

Expenditure 
 
 Planning application: £170 
 Community consultation: £100 
 Professional artist support: £1500 
 Installation costs: £400 

Materials (in addition to local business donated materials/equipment hire): 
£650  

 Interpretation panel: £250 
 Contingency: £430  
 
 Total: £3500 
 
5.2   Income : 
 
£2000 : RBC  
£700 : Business sponsorship 
£800: Redditch School of Art Trust 
 
Total : £3500 
 
        The £2000 contribution will act as leverage to secure the Redditch School of 

Art Trust contribution and local business support. 
 
5.3 In kind support will be provided from partner organisations to progress the 

project as required and will include materials, capacity and expertise in key 
specialist areas, community engagement and communications/promotion.  
Partners include: New College, local business/ employer input and CYP 
organisations. 

 
5.4    Ongoing costs of maintaining the work from existing arts development  
        budgets and from in kind partner support (NEW College) as and when   
        necessary. 
  
6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 None 
 
7. POLICY IMPLICATIONS  
 
7.1 This project supports the Arts Development policy for the Council. Two of 

the “Values” for the policy state that we prioritise “Participation” and 
“Education Training, Employment and Life long Learning”. Two of the aims 

Page 129



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 
 

 

say “To prioritise young people’s engagement in the arts” and “To support 
active participation in the arts by local people”. 

 
7.2   The project supports the delivery of the Town centre strategy which includes 

reference to the development of public art to increase the quality of the local 
environment , develop a stronger sense of place in Redditch, and help with 
public orientation and signposting within the town centre.   

 
8. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES  
 
8.1 This project would contribute to the Council’s objective to develop a 
enterprising/economically viable Borough by creating a piece of public art 
which recognises the social and economic impact of the springs industry in 
Redditch. The project provides indirect benefits to the EDU who can take the 
opportunity to build relationships or consult with local businesses and in so 
doing ascertain local business needs. Local Spring Industry representatives 
have indicated that it would encourage them to bring their customers/external 
partners to the town centre in order to make clear that the Borough Council 
are proud of the local Spring Industry. These visits would encourage 
businesses to spend money in  the local economy. 

 
8.2  This piece of quality art work also supports the Council’s objective to develop  
a “quality environment”  in the Borough.  

 
8.3 The project supports the work of the artsinredditch (air) partnership (cultural 
theme group to the Redditch LSP) who fully endorse the programme. The 
development of Public Art is incorporated into the partnership’s work 
programme and incorporates into their mission to “increase participation in the 
arts” National Indicator 11. 

 
 
9. RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY 

CONSIDERATIONS 
  
9.1 The relevant officers from the Planning/Landscape and Capital will be 

consulted in order to ensure that the piece of work is safe and suitable for 
permanent installation in a public place. A process of ongoing H & S checks 
will take place throughout the project’s delivery and following the completion 
of the project. . 
  

 

Page 130



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 
 

 

10. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 If approved the project will enhance the physical environment in the town 

centre and celebrate one of the Borough’s important industries – impacting 
on a number of residents and local businesses.  

 
10.2 Relevant Officers will be informed and consulted as required throughout the 

project. Spring manufacturers who have previously noted their interest in the 
project will be updated on progress regularly. A full public consultation will 
take place when a design and location have been identified. 

 
11. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 None 
 
12. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET 

MANAGEMENT 
 
12.1  A considerable amount of artistic input, design and the production of the 

public art is provided voluntarily by local young emerging artists, support by 
a professional artist. This therefore represents good value for money and 
an effective use of council resources to mitigate the overall cost of the 
project to RBC.   

 
13. CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY 
 
13.1 The project may be able to utilise – and hence recycle – some redundant 

materials from spring manufacturing although no formal decision has yet to 
be made on the materials for the artwork. 

 
14. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 
  
14.1 None 
 
15. GOVERNANCE/PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
  
15.1 None 
 

Page 131



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 
 

 

16. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF 
CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998 

  
16.1 We will consult with our colleagues in community safety to ensure CCTV 

coverage is not disrupted by the works undertaken and that any designs 
produced consider community safety implications.   

 
17. HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
  
17.1 None 
 
18. LESSONS LEARNT 
 
18.1  None 
 
19. COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 
 
19.1 In total 75 spring-related companies were invited to a meeting regarding the 

initial project idea. 17 companies agreed their support for the project idea, 
with 4 interested in being members of the steering group. The steering 
group will meet regularly throughout the rest of the process and they will 
arrange a public consultation event once designs are near completion 
serving to cover our ongoing commitment to community consultation as part 
of this programme.  

 
19.2 The project will also facilitate links between education providers and 

employers and provide opportunities for young people to participate in arts 
related activities and stimulate work experience opportunities between the 
local springs industry and local young people. 

 
20. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

Yes 

Chief Executive 
 

Yes 

Executive Director (S151 Officer) 
 

Yes 

Executive Director – Leisure, Cultural, 
Environmental and Community Services 
 

Yes 

Executive Director – Planning & Regeneration, 
Regulatory and Housing Services  

No 

Page 132



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 
 

 

 
Director of Policy, Performance and 
Partnerships 
 

Yes 

Head of Service 
 

Yes 

Head of Resources  
  

No 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

No 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 

 
21. WARDS AFFECTED 
 
 All Wards 
  
22. APPENDICES 
 
 None 
 
23. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 None 

 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name:  Jonathan Cochrane  and Lara Williams 
E Mail: jonathan.cochrane@redditchbc.gov.uk    
                      lara.williams@redditchbc.gov.uk 
Tel:      (01527) 64252 extn 3487 & extn 3115 
 
 

Page 133



Page 134



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 

 

G/Executive/2010/26.5.10.WETT Regulatory Service - Delegation To Joint Committee/13.5.10/jw 

WETT REGULATORY SERVICE _ DELEGATION TO JOINT COMMITTEE 
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  Councillor Mike Braley, Portfolio Holder 

for Corporate Management 
Relevant Head of Service Claire Felton, Head of Legal, Equalities 

and Democratic Services 
Non-Key Decision  
 
 
1.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
1.1 The Regulatory Service for Worcestershire comes into being on 1st June 

2010 and this report asks the Executive Committee to delegate to the Joint 
Committee which has been established to deliver this service on behalf of 
the participating Councils, the functions of the Regulatory service that are 
Executive functions.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
 The Executive Committee is asked to RESOLVE that  
 

the functions of the Regulatory Service, insofar as they are Executive 
functions, be delegated to the Joint Committee of the Worcestershire 
Enhanced Two-Tier (WETT) Regulatory Service   

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 As part of the Worcestershire Enhanced Two-Tier programme of Shared 

Services Members have agreed to participate in the establishment of a 
Worcestershire-wide Regulatory Service, with Bromsgrove District Council 
as the employing authority, from 1st June 2010. 

 
3.2 This is achieved by establishing a Joint Committee under the Local 

Government Act 1972; section 20 Local Government Act 2000 and the 
Local Authorities (Arrangements for the Discharge of Functions)(England) 
Regulations 2000. 

 
3.3 Functions of the Authority are the responsibility of the Council or the 

Executive under the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) 
(England) Regulations 2000. 

 
3.4 The Council has delegated to the Joint Committee the functions of the 

Regulatory Service that are Council functions and this report asks the 

Agenda Item 12Page 135



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 

 

G/Executive/2010/26.5.10.WETT Regulatory Service - Delegation To Joint Committee/13.5.10/jw 

Executive Committee to do the likewise for the Joint Committee to carry out 
its functions from 1st June 2010. 

 
4. KEY ISSUES 
 
 To delegate to the Joint Committee the functions of the Regulatory Service 

that are Executive functions to enable the WETT Regulatory Service to 
become operational on 1st June 2010 

 
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None identified  
 
6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 Section 101(5) of the  Local Government Act 1972 as amended allows two 

or more local authorities to arrange for the discharge of any of their 
functions jointly and, where arrangements are in force for them to do so, 
they may arrange for the discharge of those functions by a Joint Committee. 

 
6.2 s 20 of the Local Government Act 2000 and The Local Authorities 

(Arrangements for the Discharge of Functions (England)Regulations 2000 
made thereunder provide the mechanism for making these arrangements 
for a local authority under executive arrangements (leader and cabinet). 

 
6.3 Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 

2000 prescribes those functions which are or may be executive functions of 
a local authority under executive arrangements  

 
7. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None 
 
8. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
 This action progresses the Council’s resolution to participate in a unified 

Regulatory Service for the Worcestershire Councils. 
 
9. RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY 

CONSIDERATIONS 
 
9.1 The main risks associated with the details included in this report are: 
 

Page 136



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 

 

G/Executive/2010/26.5.10.WETT Regulatory Service - Delegation To Joint Committee/13.5.10/jw 

• The Regulatory Service not being properly empowered to deliver its 
services. 

• Legal Challenge to actions or decisions of the Regulatory Service. 
 

9.2   Currently the risk identified in the first and second bullet point in is not 
addressed by any risk register  

 
Taking the action proposed by this Report will ensure that those functions 
that are the responsibility of the Executive, are delegated to the Joint 
Committee and protect against the two risks referred to. 

 
10. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
 N/A 
 
11. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None 
 
12. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET 

MANAGEMENT 
 
 None 
 
13. CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY 
 
 None 
 
14. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None 
 
15. GOVERNANCE/PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
 
 This action is part of governance arrangements for the Shared Service 
 
16. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF 

CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998 
 
 None 
 

Page 137



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 

 

G/Executive/2010/26.5.10.WETT Regulatory Service - Delegation To Joint Committee/13.5.10/jw 

17. HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None 
 
18. LESSONS LEARNT 
 
 N/A 
 
19. COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 
 
 None 
 
20. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

 

Chief Executive 
 

 

Executive Director (S151 Officer) 
 

 

Executive Director – Leisure, Cultural, 
Environmental and Community Services 
 

 

Executive Director – Planning & Regeneration, 
Regulatory and Housing Services  
 

 

Director of Policy, Performance and 
Partnerships 
 

 

Head of Service 
 

Yes 

Head of Resources  
  

 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

Yes 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

 

 
21. WARDS AFFECTED 
 

No specific Ward relevance. 

Page 138



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 

 

G/Executive/2010/26.5.10.WETT Regulatory Service - Delegation To Joint Committee/13.5.10/jw 

 
22. APPENDICES 
 
 None 
23. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

The Local Government Act 1972. 
The Local Government Act 2000 and Regulations made thereunder. 

 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name:  Clare Flanagan 
E Mail: clare.flanagan@redditchbc.gov.uk 
Tel: (01527) 64252 x 3173 

Page 139



Page 140



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 

 

 

IRRECOVERABLE DEBT REPORT 
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  Councillor Clayton, Portfolio Holder for 

Housing, Local Environment and 
Health 

Relevant Head of Service Liz Tompkin – Head of Housing 
Non-Key Decision  
This report contains exempt information as defined in S.100 of the Local 
Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006, as it contains the personal details of 
individuals.  For this reason it is felt that the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information 
 
1.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to consider writing off 15 cases of irrecoverable 

debt amounting to £43,175.92 
  
 It is considered by Officers that all appropriate debt recovery action has 

been attempted to recover the debts listed in Appendix 1 of this report and 
 no further action can be taken to enforce payments. 
 
 NB: If a debt is written off, it can be retrieved and pursued if it comes to the 

Council’s attention that the debtor now has the means to pay the debt.  
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
 The Committee is asked to RESOLVE that the debts totalling 

£43,175.92 detailed in the schedule attached to this report will be 
written off as irrecoverable 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
 The detail of the report is contained within the attached schedule. 
 
4. KEY ISSUES 
 
4.1 The key issues are detailed within the attached schedule.  Details are 

specific to each case listed. 
 
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Provision is made within the Council’s budget for write off’s 

Agenda Item 13Page 141



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 

 

 

 
5.2 The table below shows the current position to 31st March 2010 by debt type. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 Under Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, a local authority   

must make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs 
and appoint an Officer to oversee such administration. 

 
6.2 The appendix of this report is exempt in accordance with S.100 of the Local 

Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006, as it contains the personal details of 
individuals.  For this reason it is felt that the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 

 
7. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 The joint chief Executive and Executive Director of Planning, Regeneration, 

Regulatory and Housing Services are the designated Officers for this 
purpose, and write off’s require their sanction.  If a debt is written off, it can 
be retrieved and pursued if it comes to the Council’s attention that the 
debtor now has the means to pay the debt.  In the case of County Court 
Judgements, the Council can pursue payments for up to 6 years after the 
judgement is given. 

 
8. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
 Recovery of debts and management of accounts links to the Well Managed 

Organisation Council Corporate priority. 
 
 
 

Debt Type Debit 
raised  

Payments  Written-
off  

Written off 
against debit 
raised  

Council Tax £34,409,753 £34,516,673 £44,447 0.12%  
Non Domestic 
Rates 

 
£33,849,368 

 
£36,144,857 

 
£154,489 

 
0.45% 

Sundry Debts 
(GF inc OAB) 

 
£4,602,107 

 
£5,381,683 

 
£177,975 

 
3.86% 

Sundry Debts 
(HRA inc FT’s) 

 
£782,194 

 
£796,122 

 
£169,599 

 
21% 

Page 142



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 

 

 

 
9. RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY 

CONSIDERATIONS 
 
 None identified. 
 
10. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None identified. 
 
11. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None identified. 
 
12. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET 

MANAGEMENT 
 
 None identified. 
 
13. CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY 
 
 None identified. 
 
14. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None identified. 
 
15. GOVERNANCE/PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None identified. 
 
16. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF 

CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998 
 
 None identified. 
 
17. HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None identified. 
 
18. LESSONS LEARNT 
 
 None identified. 

Page 143



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 

 

 

 
19. COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 
 
 None identified. 
 
20. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

No 

Chief Executive 
 

No 

Executive Director (S151 Officer) 
 

No 

Executive Director – Leisure, Cultural, 
Environmental and Community Services 
 

No 

Executive Director – Planning & Regeneration, 
Regulatory and Housing Services  
 

Yes 

Director of Policy, Performance and 
Partnerships 
 

No 

Head of Service 
 

Yes 

Head of Resources  
  

Yes 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

No 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 

 
21. WARDS AFFECTED 
 
 The Wards affected by the contents of this report are detailed in the 

attached appendix. 
 
22. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix 1 – Schedule of irrecoverable debts. 
 
 

Page 144



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  26th May 2010 

 

 

 
23. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Personal recovery files (not for publication). 
 
24. KEY 
 

A = Letter or Recovery 
B = Visit 
C = Bailiff 
D = Internal Trace 
E = External Trace 
F = Attempted AOE (Attachment of Earnings Order) 
G = Attempted ABO (Attachment of Benefits Order) 
H = Committal Procedure 
I  = Collection Agency 
J = Attempted Legal Recovery 
SWL = Saffron Waiting List 
S = Saffron Rents System Checked 
HB = Housing Benefits System Checked 
IS = Other Internal Systems Checked 

 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name:  Judy Braithwaite (Income Recovery Team Leader) 
E Mail: judy.braithwaite@redditchbc.gov.uk 
Tel:      01527 534020 or Extn: 3803 
 

Page 145



Page 146



Page 147
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 154



 
  

Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

 

17th March 2010 
 

 

 Chair 
 

 

 

MINUTES Present: 
  

Councillor Phil Mould (Chair),   and Councillors K Banks, G Chance, 
R King, J Pearce, D Taylor and D Thomas 
 

 Also Present: 
 

  Councillor J Brunner (Portfolio Holder for Community Safety) 
 

 Officers: 
 

 M Bough, R Griffin, A Heighway, S Horrobin, D Kesterton, S Lacey, S 
Morgan, G Revans and L Tompkin 
 

 Committee Services Officer: 
 

 J Bayley, J Divala and I Westmore 
 
 

192. APOLOGIES AND NAMED SUBSTITUTES  
 
Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillors Smith 
and Fry. 
 

193. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND OF PARTY WHIP  
 
There were no declarations of interest nor of any Party Whip. 
 

194. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the minutes of the meetings held on 3rd and 24th February 2010 
be confirmed as correct records and signed by the Chair. 
 

195. ACTIONS LIST  
 
The Committee considered the latest version of the Actions List and 
specific mention was made of the following matter: 
 
Action 5 – The Civil Parking Enforcement Scheme 

 

Agenda Item 14Page 155



  
OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

17th March 2010 
 

The majority of the actions listed had been completed. However, it 
was noted that the tour of those areas of Central Ward where the 
Civil Parking Scheme was in operation had still to be organised. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the Actions List be noted. 
  

196. CALL-IN AND PRE-SCRUTINY  
 
Councillors Thomas, Pearce and Banks informed the Committee 
that they had concerns about the decisions taken by the Executive 
Committee at its meeting on 10th March 2010 regarding the 
Voluntary Sector Grants Applications 2010/11(Minute 269). These 
Members indicated that they wished this matter to be called-in for 
the reasons set out in written submissions that were tabled at the 
meeting. 
 
A further meeting of the Committee was arranged at which the call-
in was to be considered. It was agreed that the Committee should 
meet on Monday 22nd March 2010. The role at this subsequent 
meeting of Councillor Chance, a member of the Committee and, 
coincidentally, the Chair of the Grants Panel was clarified for the 
benefit of those present. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
a meeting be convened on 22nd March 2010 at which the 
decisions of the Executive Committee in respect of the 
Voluntary Sector Grants Applications 2010/11(Minute 269) 
would be considered by the Committee. 
 

197. TASK & FINISH REVIEWS - DRAFT SCOPING DOCUMENTS  
 
There were no scoping documents for the Committee to review. 
 

198. TASK AND FINISH GROUPS - PROGRESS REPORTS  
 
The Committee received reports in relation to current reviews: 
 
a) Local Strategic Partnership – Chair, Councillor W Norton 
 

The meeting was informed that the Group had produced a 
report detailing a number of interim recommendations arising 
from the work that had been undertaken to date. Councillor 
Norton explained that these initial recommendations focused 
on those matters that could be most easily addressed by the 
Council and Partnership. 

Page 156



  
OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

17th March 2010 
 

 
It was acknowledged that performance management would 
prove a more difficult area on which to make 
recommendations for improvement. The role of the Group 
was seen as primarily in devising a structure for performance 
management but there was uncertainty as to what aspects of 
the Partnership’s activities might most usefully be monitored. 
 
The Committee commended the Group on its work and 
noted that other authorities had uncovered similar issues in 
respect of their Local Strategic Partnerships. A final report 
from the Group was expected to be completed by June 2010. 
 

b) Joint Worcestershire Hub – Redditch representative, 
Councillor J Pearce 

 
It was reported that no further meetings had been held since 
the initial meeting of the Group. However, members of the 
Group had visited both the main Hub facility and various 
district Hub facilities as part of an evidence gathering 
exercise. 
 
Local Strategic Partnership 
 
RECOMMENDED that 
 
Engagement recommendations: ensuring that the 
Redditch Partnership involves the public in its work: 
 
1) following pre-scrutiny by the LSP Task and Finish 

Group, the proposed format and content of the 
Redditch Partnership’s revamped website 
coverage, to be hosted by Redditch Borough 
Council, be endorsed; 
 

2) an event, along the lines of the We are Redditch 
exhibition, be held every year in a form 
determined appropriate by Officers;  
 

3) the Redditch Partnership and appropriate partners 
should publicise their work and invite public 
reaction by providing regular updates in Redditch 
Matters; 

 
4) the Redditch Partnership should hold and 

advertise an Annual Meeting, as required by the 
terms of the Partnership’s protocol, which 

Page 157



  
OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

17th March 2010 
 

partners, potential partners and members of the 
public could attend; 

 
Accountability recommendations: ensuring the 
transparency and openness of the partnership: 

 
5) a new item be added to the full Council agenda 

requiring the Leader of the Council to deliver 
regular updates on the work of the Redditch 
Partnership since the previous meeting of the 
Council;  

 
6) the Leader of the Council formally deliver an 

Annual Report to the last scheduled full Council 
meeting of the municipal year covering the work 
of the Redditch Partnership by formalising the 
current practice of delivering an annual “State of 
the Borough” address;  

 
7) information about the Redditch Partnership and 

LSPs should be provided for Members’ 
consideration as part of the Member induction 
process;  

 
8) a training event focusing on LSPs should be 

provided as a standard part of the Member 
training programme each year; and 

 
RESOLVED that 
 
9) the Changing Places report should be considered 

as part of the subsequent Local Area Agreement 
Task and Finish review; 

 
10) the membership of the Local Area Agreement 

Task and Finish Group should be drawn from the 
membership of the LSP Task and Finish Group; 
and 

 
Task and Finish Group – Progress Reports 
 
11) the progress reports be noted. 

 
199. CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY PANEL - CHAIR'S UPDATE  

 
The Chair of the Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Panel, Councillor 
Chance, gave a brief update report on the work of the Panel. 
Councillor Chance reported that the Panel was in process of 

Page 158



  
OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

17th March 2010 
 

working on a draft protocol and also that the Panel had agreed to 
co-opt a member of the Police Authority but that such a co-opted 
member would not be one who was currently sitting on the 
Executive Committee. The Chair also reported that the Panel had 
agreed on the work items and that the members were in process of 
identifying their first piece of work. 
 
However, the Members of the Committee observed that the 
Community Safety Advisory Panel had a similar remit to the Crime 
and Disorder Scrutiny Panel and therefore agreed that this 
duplication was unnecessary and recommended that the Panel be 
discontinued. 
 
RECOMMENDED that 
 
the Community Safety Advisory Panel be discontinued; and 
  
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted.  
 

200. BUS PASS SCHEME - COUNTY PROVISION  
 
Officers reported that Government was in process of introducing 
some changes surrounding the concessionary bus pass scheme, 
the major implication being that the County would take over 
administration of the scheme from the Districts. Officers also stated 
that a lot of consultation had taken place at County level on how the 
concessionary fares were administered. The members therefore 
agreed that it would be appropriate for the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee to continue to monitor developments with regards to 
County provision of the Bus Pass Scheme. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
1) regular updates be provided to the Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee regarding developments on the Bus 
Pass Scheme, and  

 
2) the report be noted.  
 

201. COUNCIL FLAT COMMUNAL CLEANING - CONSULTATION 
REPORT  
 
Members discussed the outcome of the consultation process 
following the Council Flat Communal Cleaning review and 
expressed disappointment at the low response rate. Members then 

Page 159



  
OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

17th March 2010 
 

noted that a further and more targeted consultation work involving 
other stakeholders should take place on the issue. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted.  
 

202. QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT - THIRD QUARTER 2009/10  
 
Officers presented a Quarterly Budget Report for the Third Quarter 
2009/10. The report highlighted that there had been some savings 
for the period arising from vacancies across the authority. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the Quarterly report be noted.  
 

203. QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORT - THIRD QUARTER 
2009/10  
 
Officers informed the Committee that a structure called The 
Performance Management Group had been established to review 
performance against performance indicators (PI’s) across the 
Council and to escalate concerns regarding underperformance to 
Senior Management Team. Officers also reported that the system 
of measuring performance had changed and that Council was now 
increasingly using neighbouring authorities to measure its 
performance, whereas previously Redditch had been part of a 
national “family group” of authorities. 
 
Overall, officers reported that there had been positive improvement 
in most of the National Indicators. However, in areas where there 
was underperformance, officers stated that there were recovery 
plans whose specific details could be made available to the 
Members if requested. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the Performance report be noted. 
 

204. UPDATE ON FLY TIPPING AND THE PROGRESS OF THE 
"WORTH IT" CAMPAIGN  
 
Members received a presentation regarding recent performance in 
relation to tackling fly tipping and considered details that might be 
included in an Improvement Action Plan to address the problem. 
 

Page 160



  
OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

17th March 2010 
 

Members also questioned what impact the installation of security 
access systems to locations such as Woodrow flats had had on 
rates of fly tipping in those areas. Officers undertook to provide 
further information for the Committee following the meeting.  
 
Overall, the Committee commended the officers for the 
improvements made in this area but also advised that more needed 
to be done in enforcement, raising of public awareness and 
increasing Community involvement, for example, by talking to 
schools.  
 
RESOLVED that 
 
1) the draft Improvement Action Plan be endorsed.  
 
2) updates be provided on progress in relation to tackling 

fly tipping in the Borough at subsequent meetings of the 
Committee.  

 
3) the report be noted.   
 

205. PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR COMMUNITY SAFETY - ANNUAL 
REPORT  
 
The Committee received an annual report from Councillor Brunner, 
Portfolio Holder for Community Safety.  
 
A number of issues were highlighted during the report, some of 
which were: 
 

1) The Committee observed that the Community Safety Panel 
did not hold any meetings in the previous year and wanted 
to know why this had happened. 

2) The Committee also noted that Redditch Fire Authority as a 
member of the Community Safety Partnership had its 
crewing levels reduced and wanted to know if this crewing 
reduction was having an impact on community safety. 

 
Councillor Brunner reported that the Community Safety Panel did 
not hold any meeting because Members did not request such a 
meeting. As regards the operational problems being faced by the 
Fire Authority, Councillor Brunner reported that she felt it was 
outside her remit to comment on another Partner’s internal 
management. However, the Portfolio Holder stated that there were 
no safety incidents or concerns reported as a result of the issues 
stated above.  
 

Page 161



  
OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

17th March 2010 
 

The Committee reiterated that it was the responsibility of the 
Portfolio Holder to call for Community Safety Panel meetings and 
advised that it would be best to establish communication between 
the Fire Authority and the Portfolio Holder to share on the effects 
that operational problems were likely to have on Community Safety.  
 
The Portfolio Holder also reported on a number of areas where 
progress had been achieved. The Committee commended the 
officers for job well done. Some of the areas were: 
 
Licensing operations 
 
It was reported licensing operations had been boosted in areas 
such as door security at night clubs; audit of licensed premises; 
licensing of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire taxis where a 
Handbook containing details of taxi drivers had been introduced; 
and deployment of a Project Liaison and Enforcement officer who 
carried out random checks on areas where private hire taxis 
operated.  
 
Bus Shelter 
 
It was reported that old bus shelters had been removed and 
replaced with new ones resulting in less anti social behaviours in 
areas around the shelters. 
 
Other Bespoke Projects 
 
It was reported that one of the projects, the 5 aside football pitches, 
proved extremely popular among young people and the first phase 
had been completed. As a result of this project’s success in the 
Borough, it was reported that the project was being rolled out 
Countywide as best practice. The Portfolio Holder also reported that 
there was an improvement in Hate Crime reporting as a result of 
introduction of some leaflets such as “See no evil, Hear no evil and 
Speak no evil” 
 
Underpass Project 
 
It was reported that a lot of young people were involved in this 
project and it had proved very successful. 
 
Home Security Project 
 
It was reported that this project had been advertised in Redditch 
Matters. The Portfolio Holder stated that prototype gates were 
installed in alleyways and as a result there had been reduction in 
anti social behaviour. 

Page 162



  
OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

17th March 2010 
 

 
CCTV 
 
The Portfolio Holder reported that there were no immediate plans to 
expand the service but that the merger of two existing control 
centres was ongoing. The team had digital covert surveillance that 
could be deployed as a last resort but the Council was looking to 
employ mobile overt systems in addition to the present fixed overt 
cameras as this represented a more effective use of the Council’s 
assets. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 
 

206. QUESTIONS FOR THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR COMMUNITY 
LEADERSHIP AND PARTNERSHIP  
 
Members considered the questions to be put to the Portfolio Holder 
for Community Leadership and Partnership, Councillor Carole 
Gandy, to address in her Annual Report. The following questions 
were agreed: 
 
1) What was your view of the LSP Task and Finish Group’s 

recommendations? 
 
2) What do you feel should be the priority of your Portfolio? 
 
3) What do you believe are the: 
 

a) strengths; 
b) weaknesses; 
c) opportunities; and 
d) threats 

 
of working in partnership? 

 
4) What approach do you intend to take to disseminate 

information about and performance details for the Local Area 
Agreement (LAA)? 

 
5) What has been most challenging about your role as Portfolio 

Holder for Community Leadership and Partnership? 
 

207. CENTRE FOR PUBLIC SCRUTINY - GOOD SCRUTINY AWARDS  
 
Members received a brief update on the submission from the 
Council for the Centre for Public Scrutiny’s Good Scrutiny Awards. 

Page 163



  
OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

17th March 2010 
 

Councillors R King and Thomas were due to attend the Conference 
and Awards Ceremony. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 
 

208. REFERRALS  
 
There were no referrals. 
 

209. WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Support Officer reported a change to 
the current Work Programme, this being that the pre- scrutiny of the 
Business Centre Review which was previously postponed to the 
meeting of the Committee on 7th April 2010 had been further 
postponed to the Committee’s meeting in June 2010. 

 
RESOLVED that 
 
1) the Work Programme be noted; and 

 
2) the changes stated in the preamble above be 

incorporated into the current Programme.  
  
 
 

 
 

 Chair 
 

The Meeting commenced at 7.00 pm 
and closed at 9.00 pm 

Page 164



 
  

Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

 

22nd March 2010 
 

 

 Chair 
 

 

MINUTES Present: 
  

Councillor Phil Mould (Chair),  and Councillors K Banks, G Chance, 
W Norton, J Pearce, D Taylor and D Thomas 
 

 Also Present: 
 

 Councillors M Braley, C Gandy, N Hicks and M Shurmer and M Collins 
(Vice-Chair, Standards Committee) 
 

 Officers: 
 

 A Heighway, M Bough, C Felton and S Hanley 
 

 Committee Services Officer: 
 

 J Bayley, J Divala and I Westmore 
 
 

210. APOLOGIES AND NAMED SUBSTITUTES  
 
Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillors R 
King and Smith. 
 

211. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND OF PARTY WHIP  
 
Councillor Thomas declared a personal interest in Item 3 (Voluntary 
Sector Grant Applications 2010/11 – Call-in) as detailed separately 
at Minute 212 below. 
 

212. VOLUNTARY SECTOR GRANTS APPLICATIONS 2010/11 - 
CALL-IN  
 
The Committee considered the call-in of the decisions taken by the 
Executive Committee at its meeting of 10th March 2010 in 
approving the recommendations of the Grants Panel in respect of 
the Voluntary Sector Grants Applications 2010/11. The call-in had 
been instigated by Councillors Thomas, Banks and Pearce. 
 
Councillors Thomas and Pearce had detailed a number of concerns 
prior to the meeting and these were outlined within the report 
attached to the agenda. To assist the Committee in its deliberations 
Officers circulated a timeline for the adoption process for the 

Page 165



  
OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

22nd March 2010 

 
revised Grants Policy and correspondence between the Grants 
Panel and Third Sector organisations outlining these new 
arrangements. 
 
Councillor Thomas expressed her disappointment at the apparent 
delay in implementing the new Shopping, Investing and Giving 
Policy as recommended by the Third Sector Task and Finish Group 
in 2008, of which she had been the Chair. In particular, there was 
concern that the Shopping element had not been brought into effect 
as this potentially represented the most significant proportion of the 
funding available to the Third Sector. The five organisations which 
had previously been core-funded by the Council had been provided 
with written notice that their funding was not guaranteed from April 
2010 onwards. 
 
The Leader of the Council, Councillor Gandy, referred to the 
timescales within which the Policy had been adopted and whether 
any unreasonable delay had occurred. It was noted that the 
Shopping element had been subject to further consideration during 
the second half of 2009 following proposals to revise the Policy that 
had been made by the relevant Portfolio Holder. Under these 
circumstances, Officers were not in a position to implement the 
Policy until it had been fully approved. Capacity issues in terms of 
Officer support had been recognised, leading to measures being 
taken to provide additional support, but this had not been a 
significant issue in respect of the Shopping element of the Policy. 
 
The scoring criteria upon which the individual grants applications 
had been assessed was discussed. There was a degree of 
confusion as to the content of the agreed Policy in this regard and 
Officers apologised for an error in both the application guidance and 
in the Executive Committee report which suggested that only new 
projects not previously funded by the Council had been considered 
for funding. Officers clarified that the Council’s adoption of the 
Shopping, Investing and Giving model provided the latitude for the 
authority to shop, invest or give without a commitment to do all 
three and with no particular allocation to the three strands. Without 
the prioritisation to or allocation of money for the three strands the 
Council had chosen not to shop for 2010/11. 
 
Councillor Pearce raised the issue of the correspondence between 
the Council and the five previously core-funded organisations, the 
expectations that could have arisen as a result of this 
communication and the requirement to treat Third Sector 
organisations equitably. Representatives of the Grants Panel 
explained that its communication with the five organisations had the 
intention of mitigating the risk to those organisations and the 
Council, but that they had been scored against the same criteria as 

Page 166



  
OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

22nd March 2010 

 
all other applicants for funding and had achieved the five best 
scores overall. Properly audited accounts had been provided for 
each of these organisations and it was made clear that Officers had 
made every effort to encourage local third sector organisations to 
apply for funding. It was confirmed that the proper policy, as it 
existed at the time, had been applied, although it was conceded 
that the policy required review to ensure that it might better assist 
the process and those applying for grant funding. 
 
It was noted that no concerns had been raised in December 2009 / 
January 2010 when the intention to not undertake the Shopping 
element of the overall Policy had been agreed. It was also noted 
that none of the specific grants agreed at the meeting on 10th 
March could reasonably be questioned given the explanation 
provided by Officers and Members involved in the Grants allocation 
process. However, it was accepted that there were issues around 
the grants process that required further consideration outside of the 
present meeting. It was noted that the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee had an important role to play in monitoring the 
implementation of recommendations that it made to the Executive. 
It was also requested that Members receive additional training on 
the call-in process and the conduct of meetings convened to 
consider matters that were the subject of call-in. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
no further action be taken in respect of the call-in of the 
decisions taken on Voluntary Sector Grants Applications 
2010/11 by the Executive Committee on 10th March 2010. 

 
(Prior to consideration of this item, and in accordance with the 
requirements of Section 81 of the Local Government Act 2000, 
Councillor Thomas declared a personal interest in view of her 
employment by Redditch Carers’ Careline.) 
 
 

 
 

 Chair 
 

The Meeting commenced at 7.00pm 
and closed at 8.30pm 

Page 167



Page 168



 
 

 

Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

  

 

Wednesday, 7th April, 2010 

 

 

 Chair 
 

 

 

MINUTES Present: 
  

Councillor Phil Mould (Chair), and Councillors K Banks, G Chance, 
R King, W Norton and J Pearce 
 

 Also Present: 
 

 Councillor C Gandy 
 

 Officers: 
 

 J Staniland 
 

 Committee Services Officer: 
 

 J Bayley and A Scarce 
 
 

213. APOLOGIES AND NAMED SUBSTITUTES  
 
Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillors 
Smith, Taylor and Thomas. 
 

214. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND OF PARTY WHIP  
 
There were no declarations of interest nor of any Party Whip. 
 

215. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the minutes of the meetings held on 17th and 22nd March 2010 
be confirmed as correct records and signed by the Chair. 
 

216. ACTIONS LIST  
 
The Committee considered the latest version of the Actions List and 
specific mention was made of the following matters: 
  
 
 

Page 169



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

Wednesday, 7th April, 2010 

 

 

a) Action 4 – Civil Parking Enforcement Scheme 
 

Members confirmed that the tour of the areas where the civil 
parking scheme was in operation, had still not taken place.  It 
was agreed that Officers should resolve this matter as 
quickly as possible. 

 
b) Action 8 – Fly Tipping and Security Access Systems 
 

Officers confirmed that the information regarding the impact 
of the secure access system on levels of fly tipping in the 
Woodrow Centre had been circulated via email on 1st April 
2010. 
 

c) Action 10 – Centre for Public Scrutiny’s Annual Conference 
 

Officers advised Members that a place had been booked for 
Councillor Thomas to attend the conference. 

 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 
 
 

217. CALL-IN AND PRE-SCRUTINY  
 
There were no call-ins. 
 
Members were advised that, at the Executive Committee meeting 
held on 31st March 2010, the Communications Strategy 2010-2013 
had been recommended for approval to full Council.  Reference had 
been made in this strategy to a number of the Neighbourhood 
Groups Task and Finish Group’s recommendations.  This 
demonstrated that action was already being taken to implement the 
Group’s proposals. 
 
The Local Strategic Partnership Task and Finish Group’s interim 
report had been considered at the same meeting of the Executive 
Committee.  The recommendations contained in that report had 
been referred to the next meeting of the Local Strategic Partnership 
for consideration. 
 
The appointment of Councillor J Pearce as Vice-Chair of the Crime 
and Disorder Scrutiny Panel had also been endorsed by the 
Executive and recommended to full Council. 
 

Page 170



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

Wednesday, 7th April, 2010 

 

 

RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 
 

218. TASK & FINISH REVIEWS - DRAFT SCOPING DOCUMENTS  
 
There were no draft scoping documents for the Committee to 
review. 
 

219. TASK AND FINISH GROUPS - PROGRESS REPORTS  
 
The Committee received reports in relation to current reviews: 
 
a) Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) 
 

The Task and Finish Group continued to gather evidence 
and had spoken to two witnesses since the previous report.  
Some of the wording in the recommendations had been 
changed and most of the recommendations had been 
endorsed by the Executive Committee.  which had referred 
the report for the consideration of the LSP. 
 

b) Joint Worcestershire Hub Review 
  

One meeting had taken place since the last report to the 
Committee.  Currently the Group were awaiting reports from 
the members who had visited the various hubs.  The main 
action of the group seemed to be to review the governance 
of hub rather than the system in its entirety.  There appeared 
to be some sensitivity amongst Members around looking at 
area hubs.  One of the difficulties seemed to be that there 
were individual ways in which the area hubs were operated 
and this would not be conducive to working together as there 
was no consistency.  It was difficult to see what the Group 
was trying to achieve as they were still in the early stages of 
investigation.   
 
Councillor Pearce commented that if any members had 
questions they would like to have raised she would be 
pleased to pass these on to the Group. 

 
RESOLVED that 
 
the reports be noted. 
 

220. CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY PANEL - CHAIR'S UPDATE  

Page 171



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

Wednesday, 7th April, 2010 

 

 

 
Since the previous report to the Committee no further meetings had 
been held.  The next scheduled meeting would be on 15th July 
2010 and prior to this meeting a training session would take place 
on 17th June 2010.  Invitations to attend would be sent to all 
members.   
 
It was confirmed that a letter had been sent to West Mercia Police 
to invite them to nominate a co-opted member to join the Panel.  To 
date no response had been received. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 
 

221. BUS PASS SCHEME: COUNTY PROVISION - UPDATE  
 
There had been no further developments since the previous 
meeting of the Committee.   
 
The Chair explained that this subject had been put on the agenda 
as a standing item in view of the implications of the changes which 
would take place for both the district and the whole of the county.  
Members discussed the difficulties in monitoring the new scheme 
and the financial implications, which were likely to be significant. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 
 
 

222. GOOD SCRUTINY AWARDS SUBMISSION  
 
The Committee noted that the submission had been sent to the 
Centre for Public Scrutiny and an acknowledgement had been 
received.  The submission had been endorsed by Inspector Ian 
Joseph of the West Mercia Police, Councillor Gandy and the Chief 
Executive, Kevin Dicks.  Members were advised that the 
submission deadline had been extended and therefore it was likely 
that the short listing date would also be affected by this. 
 
Members asked that Councillor Gandy and the Chief Executive note 
their gratitude.  They also agreed that a letter should be dispatched 
to Inspector Joseph thanking him for his support. 
 
RESOLVED that 

Page 172



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

Wednesday, 7th April, 2010 

 

 

 
the report be noted. 
 

223. PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR COMMUNITY LEADERSHIP AND 
PARTNERSHIP  
 
The Chair welcomed Councillor Gandy, the Portfolio Holder for 
Community Leadership and Partnership, to the meeting.  Councillor 
Gandy presented her report in accordance with the questions set 
out by the Committee. 
 
a) What was your view of the LSP Task and Finish Group’s 

recommendations? 
 

Councillor Gandy explained that many of the 
recommendations had already been implemented and 
confirmed that the Redditch Partnership Manager, who had 
recently been appointed, would assist the LSP with the 
delivery of work that had previously proved difficult to 
undertake.  The Constitutional Review Working Party had 
recommended that from May 2010 ‘Leader’s Items’ should 
be a standing item on the agenda for full Council and the 
minutes of LSP management board meetings attached to the 
full Council agenda papers.  
 
Concerns had been raised during the Executive Committee 
meeting over how the recommendations should be 
presented to the LSP as it was felt that the Council could not 
tell the LSP that it must adopt the recommendations made by 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  It was therefore felt 
they should go directly to the LSP for endorsement.  This 
view was subject to question because the Council was the 
lead organisation for the LSP.  However, Councillor Gandy 
was confident that the recommendations would be accepted. 
 

b) What do you feel should be the priority of your Portfolio? 
 
 Councillor Gandy felt that communicating with residents and 

promoting all the good things that the Council was doing in 
the town was a priority.  This could be either on an individual 
basis, through the Redditch Community Forum or through 
third sector organisations.  She expressed the view that the 
Council must continue to explain to residents what it was 
trying to achieve.  Therefore, to date there had been seven 
road shows and she hoped to organise more of these events 
after the elections to provide an opportunity to talk to 

Page 173



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

Wednesday, 7th April, 2010 

 

 

residents on a one to one basis.  Members were also 
advised that the Leader’s column in the local newspaper had 
been useful in promoting the good things that had been 
achieved in the town. 

 
c) What do you believe are the (of working in partnership): 
 
 i) Strengths 
 

Councillor Gandy felt that partnership working helped 
to avoid duplication and provided an opportunity to 
pool resources and knowledge, gained through input 
from a wider group of experts.  Partnership working 
also spread the load and helped to encourage a 
shared ambition.  Through working in partnership local 
organisations could develop greater understanding of 
local problems. 

 
 ii) Weaknesses 
 

A lack of finance and staff capacity together with 
limited accountability and dissemination of information 
were felt to be weaknesses. 

 
 iii) Opportunities 
  

Councillor Gandy felt the opportunities available 
included improved joint working and being able to get 
across a single message that the Council would not 
be able to achieve alone. 

 
 iv) Threats 
 

Financial cuts were a serious threat and there was a 
possibility under those circumstances that people 
would retreat to “silo working”.  Consequently, there 
was a danger that the partnership would become a 
talking shop. 

 
d) What approach do you intend to take to disseminate 

information about and performance details for the Local Area 
Agreement (LAA)? 

 
 The Partnership was committed to introducing a 

Communications Strategy, which would address the 
dissemination of information.  Local LAA targets had to be 

Page 174



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

Wednesday, 7th April, 2010 

 

 

adhered to and monitored on at least a quarterly basis to 
ensure they were maintained.  However, the Council had no 
control over the number of LAA targets, which were reported 
annually to Council.  Furthermore, Councillor Gandy 
confirmed that the Council had no control over the national 
targets. 

 
e) What has been most challenging about your role as Portfolio 

Holder for Community Leadership and Partnership? 
 
 Councillor Gandy advised that the biggest challenge was to 

encouraging people to believe that the Council did want to 
listen to and take notice of them.  In addition, she had been 
working hard to gain a more powerful voice for Redditch at a 
regional level.  In particular, this was being attempted 
through participating in regional/county partnerships as 
increasingly this was the most effective way to obtain 
additional funding for and attention to the area. 

 
After general discussion, the Chair thanked Councillor Gandy for 
attending the meeting and for providing Members with a 
comprehensive response to the questions that had been raised. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 
 

224. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ANNUAL REPORT  
 
The Committee was advised that the Annual Report encompassed 
the four key principles of scrutiny as identified by the Centre for 
Public Scrutiny (CfPS), the organisation set up to promote effective 
scrutiny in local government.  The symbols representing these 
principles were featured, where appropriate, throughout the report. 
 
Members discussed and agreed that the following points should be 
retained in the Annual Report: 
 
a) The Council’s Budget Setting Process  
 

Attempts had been made during the year to enable the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to contribute to the budget 
setting process.  However, in late 2009 members of the 
Committee had expressed concern that they had not been 
provided with an opportunity to pre-scrutinise the reports that 
had been produced as part of the budget setting process.  This 

Page 175



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

Wednesday, 7th April, 2010 

 

 

concern had been recorded in the Annual Report and 
members agreed to retain the request within the report that the 
Executive Committee and Officers help to ensure that the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee could play a more 
constructive role in the budget setting process in future years. 
 

b) Areas for further development 
 
The process of Portfolio Holder Annual Reports before the 
Committee had continued throughout the year.  A number of 
members and Officers had suggested that this process could 
be strengthened to ensure that the Portfolio Holders were held 
to account for their work.  
 
The level of public awareness of the scrutiny process in the 
borough was also considered to be a weakness, though it was 
acknowledged that the extensive consultation undertaken by 
the Neighbourhood Groups Task and Finish had started to 
address this to some extent.  Members agreed that further 
work should be undertaken in the new year to promote scrutiny 
further and it was suggested that topics of interest to the public 
would need to be selected for policy reviews to encourage 
public engagement with the process. 
 

c) Good Scrutiny Awards 
 

It was agreed that on balance the Overview and Scrutiny 
process in Redditch was operating very effectively and this 
had been demonstrated through the Council’s first submission 
in the CfPS Good Scrutiny Awards.  Members agreed that the 
Council should continue to submit applications to this awards 
process in future years to highlight the Council’s positive work 
in this area. 

 
The Committee concluded that although Officer support had been 
reduced they were happy with the amount of work that the 
Committee had been able to achieve in the year.  The Committee 
took the opportunity to thank the Scrutiny Officer for her hard work 
in supporting them over the year.  The Committee also thanked the 
Chair for chairing the meetings and giving members the opportunity 
for open discussion. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 
 

Page 176



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

Wednesday, 7th April, 2010 

 

 

225. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY: WORK PROGRAMME PLANNING 
EVENT  
 
The Committee was advised that it should plan collectively for the 
Scrutiny Work Programme Planning Event and it would be helpful if 
Members could identify suitable dates as early as possible.   
 
Members discussed the following potential topics that could be 
included on the agenda for the event: 
 
a) The Budget Setting Process: 

 
The Committee agreed that it might be useful to invite a senior 
Financial Services Officer to attend the event alongside 
members of the Executive Committee.  A full and frank 
discussion could then be undertaken regarding ways in which 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee could realistically 
contribute to the budget setting process in a constructive 
manner. 

 
b) Communications 
 

Members commented that it might be appropriate to invite an 
Officer from the Council’s Communications Team to attend the 
event.  This Officer could help to advise Members about ways 
to increase public awareness and engagement with the 
scrutiny process. 

 
c) Portfolio Holder Annual Reports 

 
To address one of the weaker elements of the scrutiny process 
identified in the committee’s Annual Report it was noted that 
the subject of Portfolio holder Annual Reports could be 
discussed with members of the Executive Committee during 
the course of the event. 

 
d) Topics for Scrutiny 2010/11 

 
A primary aim of the event would be to discuss and identify 
topics that could potentially form the focus of policy review and 
development work during the course of the year. 

 
Members also discussed scrutiny related training opportunities.  
They agreed that it would not be suitable to suggest this for 
inclusion on the event’s agenda as it could elongate the process 
and distract attention from planning the Work Programme for the 

Page 177



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

Wednesday, 7th April, 2010 

 

 

year.  However, they agreed that, due to the minimal funding 
available to support individual Councillors’ training requirement in 
house training events provided a greater opportunity for Members 
to attend. 
 
The Committee felt that the final programme for the event should be 
agreed by the new membership of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee in the 2010/11 municipal year.  They therefore 
concurred that their suggestions should be noted for consideration 
at the first meeting of the Committee in 2010/11. 
 
RESOLVED that 
1) the agenda for the Work Programme Planning event be 

considered in further detail at the meeting of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee on 2nd June 2010; and 

 
2) the report be noted. 

226. WORCESTERSHIRE JOINT SCRUTINY MEETING  
 
The Committee was informed that this had been a productive 
meeting producing some good ideas following in depth discussion 
covering the pros and cons of joint scrutiny.  Topics for discussion 
had included the current Worcestershire Hub Task and Finish 
review, the Worcestershire Enhanced Two Tier (WETT) process 
and partnership working.   
 
During the course of the meeting it became apparent that scrutiny 
operated in different ways in each area.  An agreement had been 
reached that a joint working protocol should be developed as soon 
as possible.  This would be dealt with through the Worcestershire 
Scrutiny Officers’ Network.  The Scrutiny Officers met quarterly and 
it was agreed that the Chair, Vice Chair and Officers’ meetings 
would similarly be held quarterly.   It was anticipated that the next 
meeting would take place in July 2010. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 
 
 

227. REFERRALS  
 
There were no referrals. 
 
 

228. WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 178



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

Wednesday, 7th April, 2010 

 

 

 
It was noted that at a meeting on 24th February 2010 it had been 
agreed that Executive Committee members be invited to attend the 
meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 28th April 
2010.  This invitation had been extended to provide an opportunity 
for both sets of members to consider presentations on the subjects 
of the Gender Equalities Scheme and Youth Employment at 
Redditch Borough Council. 
 
Members were advised that an Introduction to Overview and 
Scrutiny training session would take place on 10th June 2010 and 
would be delivered by the Scrutiny Officer.  In addition, on 17th 
June training on the subject of Crime and Disorder Scrutiny would 
be extended to all members as only the members of the Panel had 
received this training to date.  This session would be delivered by 
the Scrutiny Officer and the Head of Community Services, together 
with a member’s perspective from the Chair of the Panel. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the Committee’s Work Programme be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting commenced at 7.00 pm 
and closed at 8.05 pm 

Page 179



Page 180



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL AND REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

SHARED SERVICES BOARD 
 

20th APRIL 2010 at 5.30pm 
 

THE COUNCIL HOUSE, BROMSGROVE 
 

PRESENT: 
 
Councillors Roger Hollingworth (Chairman), Steve Colella, Geoff Denaro and Stephen Peters 
(Bromsgrove District Council) 
 
Councillors Carole Gandy, Mike Braley (substituting for Colin MacMillan), Malcolm Hall and Bill 
Hartnett (Redditch Borough Council) 
 
In Attendance: Jane Matheson (Audit Commission) 
 
Officers: Kevin Dicks, John Staniland, Claire Felton, Clare Flanagan and Ivor Westmore. 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 
 An apology for absence was received from Councillor Colin MacMillan. 
 
2. MINUTES 
 

The minutes of the previous meeting of the Board held on 1st March 2010 were agreed as 
a correct record. 

 
3. MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES 
 
 a) Target Setting 
 

In response to the suggestion that the set of 13 targets for the Chief Executive, Kevin 
Dicks, to work towards was excessive, an additional paper was circulated by Councillor 
Denaro demonstrating how the initial list of targets had subsequently been rationalised 
following consultation with Garth Wood of the West Midlands Leaders' Board. 
 
Members sought clarification on the role of the Board in relation to the assessment of Mr 
Dicks performance against the targets which had been set for him. Claire Felton explained 
that neither Redditch Borough Council nor the Board had the right to formally monitor his 
performance and it was simply through Mr Dicks willingness to submit to this level of 
scrutiny of his performance that such a situation pertained. Mr Dicks expanded on this by 
indicating that he was willing to provide a written undertaking of this nature which would in 
any event be covered through changes to his contract of employment. 
 
b) Climate Change 
 
Mr Dicks undertook to establish whether any progress had been made in respect of the 
suggestion that a Joint Climate Change Panel be established. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 15Page 181



c) Future Shared Services Programme / Transformation 
 
The meeting was informed that CMT had agreed that the focus for further shared services 
and transformational activity should be around customer interaction. The Shared Services 
Programme was to be reviewed and proposals brought forward for Members' consideration 
in due course. 
 
d) Heads of Service Vacancies 
 
Mr Dicks provided a brief update on the progress in filling the vacant posts of Head of 
Customer Services and Head of Planning & Regeneration, noting that both posts would 
shortly be the subject of a final interview process involving the senior management team. 
 
e) Worcestershire Enhanced Two Tier (WETT) Programme 
 
Mr Dicks informed Members of the latest progress in relation to the WETT programme. It 
was noted that the Joint Committee to oversee the shared Regulatory Service was to be set 
up in shadow form from May. Audit Services and Property Services were both moving 
forward. It was noted that Leaders and Chief Executives across the County had 
acknowledged that progress on this first phase should be evaluated before any further 
county-wide shared services were pursued.  
 

4. AUDIT COMMISSION REPORT ON SHARED SERVICES 
 
Jane Matheson, performance specialist at the Audit Commission with responsibility for 
Bromsgrove District and Redditch Borough Councils, introduced a report into the shared 
services arrangement between the two authorities. 
 
The report commenced with a brief overview of the context within which the arrangement 
had been established, with a restatement of the expectation articulated by the Communities 
and Local Government Department (CLG) that authorities should explore different ways of 
working. It was clear that the shared services arrangement offered both great opportunities 
and introduced a number of risks. One of the key findings of the review had been the strong 
desire within both organisations to make the arrangement work. 
 
Whilst it was clear that both Officers and Members were clear about the potential risks 
there was felt to be some benefit to be gained from a more general discussion taking place 
within and between the authorities about the potential risks that might emerge. Likewise, it 
was felt that a discussion around an overall contingency, such as a fall-back position or an 
exit strategy, would be prudent. It was noted that Kevin Dicks was to take this 
recommendation to the forthcoming meeting of the Chief Officer Reference Group, a 
meeting facilitated by the IDeA, so as to raise the matter formally and gain a view from 
those authorities who were engaged in similar shared services arrangements. 
 
Conflicts of interest were being addressed very adequately, with legal and technical advice 
being sought when appropriate, and robust and mature discussions had been undertaken 
over the division of costs between the authorities.  
 
Governance arrangements were considered effective, although there was a recognition that 
these would require review at some point in the future. The importance of all Members of 
each authority receiving the papers in respect of the shared services arrangements, 
particularly when key decisions were being considered, was stressed. The Audit 
Commission review had predated the appointment of the Director of Policy, Performance 
and Partnerships which rendered the recommendation made in that regard obsolete. 
 

Page 182



Overall, the tone of the report was positive and the Audit Commission highlighted the desire 
to make things right first time and to achieve buy-in to the process, citing good 
communication with staff as a strength. 
 
In response to a query regarding follow-up work, the Audit Commission representative 
suggested that they were considering carrying out a number of quick 'health-checks' that 
were not detailed or too intrusive but which would provide a level of assurance going 
forward that the arrangement was continuing to progress. 
 
Members welcomed the report and noted that the recommendations that had been made 
by the Audit Commission were already being addressed by the Senior Management Team 
 
It was AGREED that the Audit Commission Shared Services Review, its associated 
Recommendations and Action Plan be accepted and noted. 
 

5. FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT 
 
The Board received a report that set out a draft Overarching Strategic Alliance / Shared 
Services Framework Agreement that was proposed as a replacement for the existing 
Concordat between the two authorities. Officers explained that the progress towards a 
greater sharing of services and the appointment of a Senior Management Team required a 
more formal agreement to be put in place. The draft Framework Agreement had been 
based on instructions from Members and the recommendations arising from the Audit 
Commission report. In concert with this new framework was a revised set of Terms of 
Reference for the Shared Services Board, but this did not propose any change to the non-
decision making nature of that body. 
 
There was concern expressed from some quarters that the timescales set out within the 
original Concordat had been altered and the first opportunity for termination of the 
agreement put back should such an eventuality arise. Claire Felton explained that the 
revised timescales took into account factors that the previous Concordat could not. The 
transformation agenda and the agreement of an expiry date for the current contract for the 
shared Chief Executive post-dated the Concordat, as did the installation of the Senior 
Management Team. Mrs Felton noted that a reversal of this increasingly close relationship 
would require a correspondingly prolonged period for any withdrawal from the arrangement.  
 
In response to a query, Mr Dicks informed the meeting that the Board had already agreed 
the principles around activity-based costings at paragraph 7.2. The review of the cost 
sharing bases for community safety, elections, payroll and procurement were currently 
being reviewed in light of these agreed principles. 
 
There was discussion around the subject of conflict resolution. Whilst there was a 
realisation that the instances of such conflicts arising were difficult to envisage there was an 
acknowledgement that the Framework Agreement could be enhanced to make provision for 
such eventualities. It was proposed that a sub-paragraph be included within Paragraph 9 to 
the effect that: 
 
'In the event of the dispute resolution process being activated, both the Leaders of each 
Council and the Shared Services Board should be advised.' 
 
A second matter that Members suggested could enhance the Framework Agreement was 
some provision to provide financial protection to either of the authorities in the event that 
the other either went to the extent of unilaterally withdrawing or engineered a situation 
wherein it would be difficult or impossible for the present arrangement to continue.  
 

Page 183



The Board then proceeded to a discussion of the implications of either party seeking to end 
the relationship prior to 1st April 2013 whereupon Mr Dicks declared an interest, in view of 
the fact that Members would be discussing the terms and conditions of his employment by 
the two authorities, and left the room. 
 
Mrs Felton informed Members that the relationship of the two authorities to Mr Dicks was 
different in that he was an employee of Bromsgrove District Council. It was stated that a 
detailed breakdown of the potential costs involved to both sides had been developed by 
Officers. Mrs Felton indicated that Officers could incorporate wording in a draft Framework 
Agreement to cover the possible 'constructive dismissal' scenario that had been put forward 
by Members. 
 
Officers proposed an addition to the draft Framework Agreement, this being a further sub-
paragraph to paragraph 11.4 stating that an independent arbitrator be invited to take a view 
on any costs/payments involved. Members agreed this insertion. It was also agreed that 
paragraph 11.6 be clarified to indicate that the costs referred to were in relation to the cost 
of the arbitration. 
 
(At this point in the proceedings Mr Dicks was invited to re-enter the room) 
 
It was noted that there was an error in the draft Framework Agreement at paragraph 11.3 
and that the earliest date upon which any such notice would take effect should be 31st 
March 2015 and not 31st March 2016. 
 
Councillor Hartnett wished it to be recorded that he had voted against the extension of the 
termination period from one to two years. 
 
It was RECOMMENDED to both Councils that 
 
1) the Overarching Strategic Alliance / Shared Services Framework Agreement, 
 as amended, be approved; and 
 
2) the Leader of each Council be authorised to sign it on behalf of that authority. 
 

6. ECONOMIC REGENERATION AND DEVELOPMENT IN NORTH WORCESTERSHIRE 
 
John Staniland introduced a report proposing a way forward for the development of an 
Economic Regeneration and Development Strategy for North Worcestershire and a model 
for joint working through integration of the three economic development teams. Inspira 
Consulting Ltd had been commissioned to undertake a review of the potential benefits of a 
North Worcestershire Economic Development Strategy and Members considered the 
outcome of that work. 
 
It had been concluded that that there was enough commonality across Redditch Borough, 
Bromsgrove District and Wyre Forest District Councils, adequate strategic justification for 
pursuing a shared approach and a sound rationale underpinning the proposal. Wyre Forest 
District Council had been suggested as the lead authority given its track record in economic 
development and regeneration. 
 
Members were content that the Unions which represented the staff in the affected teams 
could be given the assurance that the ethos driving this scheme was the securing of 
significant economic advantage to North Worcestershire and that cost savings through 
reductions in staffing were not a motivating factor behind this proposal. However, it was 
acknowledged that an absolute guarantee over potential redundancies could not be 
provided. 

Page 184



 
Members welcomed the report and the proposals contained therein. One amendment was 
proposed and agreed, this being to qualify paragraph 4.18 c) through insertion of the words 
"...investigate the feasibility of..." following the words "in time,". It was noted that detailed 
proposals would follow an 'in principle' agreement by all three authorities, should that be 
forthcoming. 
 
 
It was RECOMMENDED that 
 
1) the four principal recommendations from the Inspira report 'Review of 
 Economic Regeneration & Development  - Strategy & Arrangements be agreed 
 as amended; 
 
2) both Redditch Borough Council's Executive Committee and Bromsgrove 
 District Council's Cabinet approve the delivery of a North Worcestershire 
 Economic and Regeneration service by a single team hosted by Wyre Forest 
 District Council; and 
 
3) an Implementation Plan be agreed between the three Councils with effect from 
 1st October 2010 or such other date as may be agreed by the three Councils, 
 this Implementation Plan to deal with those matters set out in paragraph 4.27 
 of the report submitted to the Board. 
 

7. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
It was AGREED that the next meeting be held on Thursday 24th June 2010 at 5.30pm 
at Bromsgrove Council House. 
 
 

The meeting closed at 7.19pm 

Page 185



Page 186



Overarching Shared Services Framework Agreement – Appendix to Council report #2 

Dated :         2010  
 
 
Overarching Strategic Alliance/Shared Services Framework Agreement 
 
Between  
 
 
(1) BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL of The Council House, Burcot 

Lane, Bromsgrove, Worcestershire B60 1AA (“Bromsgrove”) 
 
and 
 
(2) REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL of The Town Hall, Walter Stranz 

Square, Redditch B98 8AH  ("Redditch"); 
 
together called “the parties” 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
(1) Bromsgrove and Redditch have agreed that they will develop a 

Strategic Alliance/shared services arrangement and have entered a 
Concordat to establish an agreed framework to take this forward 

 
(2) The legal basis for the Strategic Alliance is Section 2 of the Local 

Government Act 2000 and in relation to the staffing arrangements to 
support the alliance is Section 113 of the Local Government Act 1972 
which enables each authority to place staff at the disposal of the other  

 
(3) The parties have agreed a vision for the Strategic Alliance, a set of 

aims and a set of general principles and values to underpin the 
implementation of the Strategic Alliance  

 
(4) Bromsgrove and Redditch have appointed a shared Chief Executive to 

manage this process and the term of the shared Chief Executive runs 
until 31 March 2013 

 
(5) A Corporate Management Team comprising three Executive Directors, 

one Director and ten Heads of Services will take office on 20 April 2010 
and will be placed at the disposal of both Bromsgrove and Redditch for 
the purposes of their functions 

 
IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS 

 
1 Definitions and Interpretation 
 

1.1 In the Agreement the following words and phrases shall have 
the following meanings: 

   
 

Page 187



Overarching Shared Services Framework Agreement – Appendix to Council report #2 

 
“Authority” means either Bromsgrove or Redditch and 
“authorities” means both Bromsgrove and Redditch  
 
“Business Case” means a detailed proposal presented to the 
Shared Services Board in relation to an existing or proposed 
area for the delivery of shared services which shall set out the 
service delivery, staffing, property, data sharing and cost 
implications of implementation. 
 
”Concordat” means the (non legally enforceable) agreement 
entered into by the parties to set out the framework for the 
development of the Strategic Alliance which is superceded by 
the signing of this Agreement 
 
“Exit Strategy” means a strategy and details to facilitate an exit 
from this Agreement and an end to some or all Shared Services 
 
“Initial term” means the period from the date of this Agreement 
to the 31 March 2013 
 
“Seconded Officer(s)” means any officer(s) employed by either 
Bromsgrove or Redditch placed at the disposal of the other for 
the purposes of discharging Shared Services and any function of 
the other authority  
 
“Shared Service” means a service provided by a single team of 
officers employed by either Bromsgrove or Redditch for both 
Bromsgrove and Redditch  
 
“Shared Services Board” (“SSB”) means the joint member board 
established by the parties to drive forward and oversee the 
operation of the Strategic Alliance 
 
“Strategic Alliance” means the commitment between the parties 
to work closely together and develop shared services across 
both authorities and also means the arrangements between the 
parties to implement this commitment. 
 

1.2 Words importing the singular number shall include the plural and 
vice versa. 

 
1.3 Titles and headings to clauses are for convenience only and 

shall not affect the construction or interpretation of the 
Agreement.   

 
1.4 Notwithstanding any breach of this Agreement by any party, and 

without prejudice to any other rights which the other party or 
parties may have in relation to it, the other party or parties may 
elect to continue to treat this Agreement as being in full force 

Page 188



Overarching Shared Services Framework Agreement – Appendix to Council report #2 

and effect and to enforce its or their rights under this Agreement.  
The failure of any party to exercise any right under this 
Agreement, including any right to terminate this Agreement and 
any right to claim damages, shall not be deemed a waiver of 
such right for any continuing or subsequent breach. 

 
2  Principles 

 
2.1 The parties will work together to seek to achieve the Vision of 

the Strategic Alliance which is that the authorities intend, under 
the management of a shared Chief Executive, to identify and 
establish joint working arrangements and a shared approach to 
the delivery of services that will improve the quality of people’s 
lives in the two authorities and deliver greater value for money.    
 

2.2 The parties will work together to deliver the Aims of the Strategic 
Alliance which are:  
 

• To increase the levels of customer satisfaction through 
the improvement of services; 

• To produce realistic cash saving in order to deliver 
improved services and limit Council tax increases; 

• To strengthen and share skills, expertise and learning in 
order to deliver better services; 

• To preserve and enhance the special and distinctive 
characteristics within each locality area; and  

• To increase the authorities’ influence locally, regionally 
and nationally in order to secure a better deal for all their 
communities 

 
2.3 The parties will work together in accordance with the Principles 

and Values underlying the Strategic Alliance which are 
 

• The maintenance of excellent working relations between 
members and officers for the mutual benefit of both 
authorities; 

• Effective and open communication; 
• Mutual trust between the authorities; and 
• Approaching issues from a positive standpoint with an 

emphasis on problem solving to overcome barriers rather 
than letting barriers become obstacles to progress. 

 
2.4 The parties recognise that the commitment to the Strategic 

Alliance is long term and that the development of shared 
services will take place in an incremental way through 
agreement by each of the authorities 

 
2.5 Accountability for services delivered through joint working 

between the parties shall remain with the authority with whom 
the statutory responsibility lies. 

Page 189



Overarching Shared Services Framework Agreement – Appendix to Council report #2 

 
2.6 The parties agree that the Concordat previously agreed between         

them shall be superceded by the provisions of this Agreement. 
 

3 Governance 
 

3.1 The parties have established a Shared Services Board (“SSB”) 
comprising members from each authority. 

 
3.2  The proposed terms of reference of the SSB are set out in 

Appendix 1 of this Agreement. They are subject to review by the 
SSB and then recommendation on to and the agreement of each 
authority. 

 
3.3 For the avoidance of doubt the parties confirm that the SSB has 

no decision making powers. 
 

3.4 The parties may amend the terms of reference of the SSB from 
time to time as the Strategic Alliance develops. Any such 
amendment shall be agreed by each authority, taking into 
account any recommendation from the SSB. 

 
3.5 Each authority shall continue to have autonomy in decision 

making but shall take into account the views and 
recommendations of the SSB in considering any issue relating to 
the Strategic Alliance. 

 
3.6 The SSB shall consider proposals for extending the scope of the 

shared services delivered jointly through the Strategic Alliance. 
The proposals shall be presented as a detailed Business Case 
which the SSB shall consider and recommend a way forward to 
each authority. 

 
4. Term 
 

4.1 This Agreement shall commence on 20 April 2010 and shall 
continue until terminated by either party in accordance with the 
provisions of Clause 9.2 of this Agreement or by mutual consent. 

 
4.2 The parties confirm their commitment to the long term nature of 

the Strategic Alliance and recognise that withdrawal from the 
Alliance would create significant implications for service delivery 
and for staff. 

 
5 Review 
 

5.1 The parties shall review the operation of this Agreement by no 
later than 1 August each year to assess whether or not the 
arrangements contained in this Agreement continue to meet the 

Page 190



Overarching Shared Services Framework Agreement – Appendix to Council report #2 

requirements of both parties and are delivering the Vision and 
Aims of the Strategic Alliance.   

 
 
6 Staffing Arrangements 
 

6.1 Bromsgrove and Redditch shall each place at the disposal of the 
other for the purposes of discharging Shared Services and any 
function of the authority the services of officers employed by that 
authority (“the Seconded Officers”).   

 
6.2 Without prejudice to the generality of clause 6.1 Bromsgrove 

and Redditch shall place at the disposal of the other authority: 
 
6.2.1 Executive Directors; 
 
6.2.2` Directors; 

 
6.2.3 Heads of Service; 

 
6.2.4 Officers employed in Shared Services; 
 
6.2.5 Any other officers employed by Bromsgrove or Redditch 
who are required to provide services to the other authority. 

 
6.3 Bromsgrove and Redditch acknowledge that any Seconded 

Officer placed at the disposal of the other authority will have 
been consulted beforehand on an individual basis in accordance 
with s113 of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 
6.4 For superannuation purposes service rendered by an officer of 

one authority whose services are placed at the disposal of the 
other is service rendered to the authority by whom he is 
employed but any such officer shall be treated for the purposes 
of any enactment relating to the discharge of local authorities’ 
functions as an officer of the other local authority.  

 
6.5 An officer whose services are placed at the disposal of the other 

authority shall be treated as an officer of the authority for the 
purposes of any enactment relating to the discharge of local 
authorities’ functions. 

 
6.6 Nothing in this Agreement will be construed or have effect as 

construing any relationship of employer and employee between 
officers placed by their employing authority to the other authority 
and that other authority. 

 
6.7 Where an officer is placed by his/her employing authority at the 

disposal of the other authority, such other authority shall not do 
anything that would breach the employment contract of that 

Page 191



Overarching Shared Services Framework Agreement – Appendix to Council report #2 

Seconded Officer and shall have no authority to vary the terms 
of the employment contract of the Seconded Officer nor make 
any representations to such officer in relation to the terms of 
such employment contract. 

 
6.8 The parties shall consult with each other as often as may be   

necessary in relation to the management of the Seconded 
Officers.   

 
6.9 The parties will consult each other before proceeding to fill any 

staff vacancy where the vacant post might contribute to the 
delivery of shared services.  

 
6.10 The employing authority of a Seconded Officer shall continue to 

manage, appraise and (if necessary) discipline the Seconded 
Officer during any period in which the Seconded Officer is 
placed at the disposal of the other authority.  

 
6.11   The parties shall provide each other with such information and 

assistance as they may reasonably require in order to carry out 
their obligations in respect of the Seconded Officers.  

 
6.12 The parties are committed to working together to seek to 

harmonise terms and conditions of all staff of Bromsgrove and 
Redditch as far as reasonably practicable (in accordance with 
good employment practices). 

 
 
7 Cost of Shared Services 
 

7.1 The parties are committed to the fundamental principles that any 
savings generated by the Strategic Alliance will be shared 
across the authorities on an equitable basis and that any costs 
associated with the Strategic Alliance and the delivery of shared 
services will be shared equally unless specifically agreed 
otherwise. 

 
7.2  Without prejudice to clause 7.1 each Shared Service shall be 

funded by Bromsgrove and Redditch on an activity-based 
costing basis.   

 
7.3  Each Business Case prepared in respect of an existing or 

proposed Shared Service shall specify the allocation of cost in 
accordance with an appropriate mechanism of cost sharing 
which will be specific to each business case and as agreed by 
both Councils on a case-by-case basis. 

 
7.4  The parties will work together to ensure that the details of the full  

financial implications of the Strategic Alliance are available to 

Page 192



Overarching Shared Services Framework Agreement – Appendix to Council report #2 

each authority in order that they can be fully taken into account 
in each authority’s budget setting and review. 

 
8 Insurance 
 

8.1 The parties will each take out and maintain in full force with a 
reputable insurance company adequate employee liability 
insurance cover in respect of officers employed by the party and 
those seconded to it in accordance with this Agreement. 

 
9 Conflicts 

 
9.1 If any situation arises where there is a potential or actual conflict 

of interest or a perceived conflict of interest between 
Bromsgrove and Redditch, the shared Chief Executive shall: 

 
9.1.1 Draw such conflict to the notice of the Executive Director 

with responsibility for Bromsgrove and the Executive 
Director with responsibility for Redditch in writing; 

 
9.1.2 Remove himself from all aspects of the decision-making 

process in relation to the situation; 
 
9.1.3 Provide the Executive Directors with such resources as 

they require to ensure that the interests of each authority 
are appropriately represented including taking 
independent professional advice or seeking independent 
third party support if appropriate; and 
 

9.1.4   Notify the Leaders of each Council and the Shared 
Services Board.  

 
9.2 On receipt of notice under clause 9.1 each Executive Director 

shall immediately: 
 
9.2.1  represent only the interests of the authority for which 

they have responsibility to the best of his or her ability; 
 
9.2.2 notify the Section 151 officer and the Monitoring Officer of 

the circumstances of the conflict; 
 
9.2.2 ensure that officers instructed to provide them with 

support are clearly informed that a conflict between the 
two authorities exists and are notified to which authority 
the Executive Director is reporting; and 

 
9.2.3 ensure that officers are not or might not be compromised 

in any way in performing their duties on behalf of either or 
both of the authorities; 

 

Page 193



Overarching Shared Services Framework Agreement – Appendix to Council report #2 

9.3 If it becomes apparent to an Executive Director acting on receipt 
of a notice under clause 9.1 that the interests of the authority for 
which he or she has responsibility or the position of any officer 
supporting him or her will or might be compromised the 
Executive Director shall immediately make arrangements for 
independent professional advice or independent third party 
support. 
 

9.4 The parties shall ensure that procedures and safeguards are in 
place to identify such conflicts at an early stage. 
 

9.5 The parties shall keep a written record of any such conflicts 
which have been identified and how such conflicts have been 
resolved. 

 
10 Dispute Resolution 
 

10.1 Initially, if the parties are unable to agree a matter arising under 
the terms of this Agreement, such dispute shall be referred to 
the Executive Director with responsibility for Bromsgrove and the 
Executive Director with responsibility for Redditch with a view to 
resolution. 

 
10.2 Should the dispute remain unresolved, the matter shall be 

referred to the Leaders of the two authorities with a view to 
resolution. 
 

10.3 Should the dispute still remain unresolved, the parties shall seek 
to resolve it amicably by using an alternative dispute resolution 
procedure acceptable to them both before pursuing any other 
remedies available to them. 

 
10.4 If any party fails or refuses to agree to or participate in the 

alternative dispute resolution procedure or the dispute is not 
resolved to the satisfaction of any party within 90 days after it 
has arisen, the dispute shall be referred to arbitration. 

 
10.5 Such arbitration shall be undertaken by a single arbitrator to be 

agreed upon by the parties.  In default of agreement, the 
arbitrator shall be appointed in accordance with a nomination 
from the President or any Vice-President for the time being of 
the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators.  The arbitration shall be 
undertaken in accordance with the provisions of the Arbitration 
Act 1996 and the costs of the arbitration shall be shared equally 
between Bromsgrove and Redditch. 

 
11 Termination and Exit Strategy 
 

11.1 Neither authority may seek unilaterally to terminate or withdraw 
from the Strategic Alliance either in whole or in part during the 

Page 194



Overarching Shared Services Framework Agreement – Appendix to Council report #2 

initial term i.e. until after 31 March 2013 (the expiry date of the 
current secondment agreement relating to the shared Chief 
Executive). 

 
11.2 If either authority wishes to consider unilateral 

termination/withdrawal from the Strategic Alliance in whole or in 
part following the expiry of the initial term, it shall first raise its 
concerns and/or proposals at the SSB (or any successor joint 
forum or joint decision making body) 

 
11.3 If either authority, following such discussion, then wishes to 

consider termination of the Strategic Alliance, it shall give at 
least two years’ notice of such termination, to expire on 31 
March in any year. For the avoidance of doubt this means that 
the earliest date an authority is able to give two years’ notice of 
termination/withdrawal shall be 1 April 2013 and the earliest date 
any such notice shall take effect is 31 March 2015 

 
11.4 Upon termination of this Agreement whether by mutual consent 

or through notice of termination in accordance with clause 11.3 
or otherwise the parties shall agree an Exit Strategy to include 
determination of issues relating to: 

 
11.4.1 employment and redundancy; 

 
11.4.2 asset management; 
 
11.4.3 IT;  
 
11.4.4 documents and information compiled or acquired by the 

parties during the Term of the Agreement; 
 
11.4.5  any costs, expenses or other payments arising as a 

result of the termination of this Agreement, to be 
apportioned fairly and equitably taking into account all 
relevant circumstances. 

 
11.5 If the parties are unable to agree an Exit Strategy the parties 

shall agree to appoint an independent arbitrator who shall 
prepare an Exit Strategy on behalf of both authorities and which 
both authorities shall implement. 

 
11.6       In default of agreement, the arbitrator shall be appointed in 

accordance with a nomination from the President or any Vice-
President for the time being of the Chartered Institute of 
Arbitrators and the costs of the arbitration shall be shared 
equally between Bromsgrove and Redditch, unless the Arbitrator 
decides otherwise. 

 

Page 195



Overarching Shared Services Framework Agreement – Appendix to Council report #2 

11.7   The parties agree that the key principles in the preparation and 
implementation of any Exit Strategy shall be continuity of 
excellent service delivery and fair treatment of staff. 

 
12 Variation and Waiver 
 

12.1 No modification variation or amendment to this Agreement shall 
be effective unless agreed by the parties in writing. 

 
13 Third Parties 
 

13.1 It is agreed for the purposes of the Contract (Rights of Third 
Parties) Act 1999 that this Agreement is not intended to and 
does not give to any person who is not a party to this Agreement 
any rights to enforce any provisions contained in this 
Agreement. 

 
14 Governing Law and Jurisdiction 
 

14.1 This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the law of England and Wales. 

 
 
Signed etc 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 196



Overarching Shared Services Framework Agreement – Appendix to Council report #2 

 
Appendix One 

 
 
 

 
Terms of Reference of the Shared Services Board “SSB”1 

 
 
The SSB is a joint member forum comprising four members from Bromsgrove 
and four members from Redditch. Each authority will nominate its four 
members who may be Executive or Non-Executive members but who will 
include the Leader of each authority. The meeting venues will alternate 
between the two authorities’ offices and the Leader of the host authority will 
chair each meeting.  
 
The SSB is not a decision making body and for the avoidance of doubt it is not 
a Joint Committee of the two authorities. 
 
Its meetings will not be formal meetings of the either authority although its 
meetings will be open to the public (except where confidential/exempt 
business has to be conducted in private) and a record of its discussions will 
be made available to all members of both authorities 
 
The prime purpose of the SSB is to drive forward and oversee the Strategic 
Alliance between Bromsgrove and Redditch. 
 
Its specific responsibilities are  
 

• To review frequently (and at least on an annual basis as required by 
this Agreement) the operation of the Strategic Alliance between the 
authorities and the overall delivery of shared services by the authorities 

 
• To make recommendations to each authority on the overall way 

forward for the Strategic Alliance 
 

• To establish and monitor appropriate performance indicators for shared 
services provided under joint arrangements including financial and 
service delivery indicators 

 
• To consider Business Cases setting out the detail of a proposed new 

area for the joint delivery of shared services including the service 
delivery, staffing, property, data sharing and costs implications of 
implementation 

 
• To recommend the way forward in relation to individual Business 

Cases to each authority.  

                                                 
1 These are draft terms of reference for consideration by the SSB and then for onward recommendation 
to each authority for adoption. They can be amended at any time if both authorities agree. 

Page 197



Overarching Shared Services Framework Agreement – Appendix to Council report #2 

 
• To consider and address any concerns about the Strategic Alliance 

raised by each authority 
 

• To ensure that members of each authority are regularly updated on the 
operation and progress of the Strategic Alliance. 

Page 198



 
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE   26th May 2010 

 

 

ADVISORY PANELS, WORKING GROUPS, ETC -  UPDATE REPORT  
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  Corporate Management 
Relevant Head of Service Legal, Equalities and Democratic 

Services 
Non-Key Decision 
 
1.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
 To provide, for monitoring / management purposes, an update on the work 

of the Executive Committee’s Advisory Panels, and similar bodies which 
report via the Executive Committee. 

  
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

The Committee is asked to RESOLVE that 
 
subject to Members’ comments, the report be noted. 
 

3. UPDATES 
 

A. ADVISORY PANELS 
 

 Meeting : Lead Members / 
Officers :   
 
(Executive Members 
shown underlined) 

Position : 

(Oral updates to  be 
provided at the meeting by 
Lead Members or Officers, 
if no written update is 
available.) 

1.  Climate Change 
Advisory Panel 
(formerly 
Environment 
Advisory Panel 

Chair Cllr B Clayton / 
 
Guy Revans. 

Last meeting - 9th March 
2010. 

 

2.  Community Safety 
Advisory Panel 

 

Chair Cllr Brunner / 
Vice-Chair 
Cllr Banks 

Angie Heighway 

Date to be arranged. 

 

Agenda Item 17Page 199



 
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE   26th May 2010 

 

 

3.  Economic Advisory 
Panel 

Chair Cllr MacMillan 

John Staniland / 
Georgina Harris 

 

Last meeting – 8th February 
2010. 

 

4.  Housing Advisory 
Panel 

 

Chair Cllr B Clayton /  
Vice-Chair 
Cllr Pearce 

Jackie Smith 

Last meeting – 17th 
November 2009. 
 
 

5.  Leisure Contracts 
Advisory Panel   
 

 

Chair Cllr Anderson /  
Vice-Chair 
Cllr MacMillan 

Ken Watkins / 
Kevin Cook 

Last meeting – 1st February 
2010. 

 

 

6.  Customer Services 
Advisory Panel 

Chair Cllr  Braley  

Jackie Smith /  
Jane Smith 

Last meeting – 10th 
December 2009. 

 

7.  Planning Advisory 
Panel 

 

Chair Cllr  MacMillan / 
Vice-Chair  

Cllr Chalk 

John Staniland /  
Ruth Bamford 

Last meeting – 12th May 
2010; 

 

 

 

 
B. OTHER MEETINGS 
 

8.  Constitutional 
Review Working 
Party 

Chair Cllr MacMillan / 
Vice Chair  
Cllr Braley 

Steve Skinner 

Last meeting - 
24th February 2010. 

9.  Grants Panel 

 

Chair Cllr Chance / Vice 
Chair  

Cllr Braley  

Angie Heighway 

Next meeting – to be 
arranged. 
 

 

Page 200



 
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE   26th May 2010 

 

 

 

10.  Independent 
Remuneration 
Panel 

Independent Members / 
Chair Mr Andrew Powell 

 

Last meeting – 5th February 
2010. 

 

11.  Member 
Development 
Steering Group 

 

Chair Cllr MacMillan  / 
Vice-Chair Cllr Brunner 

Steve Skinner / Trish 
Buckley 

Last meeting – 23rd March 
2010 

 

12.  Procurement 
Steering Group 

Chair Cllr Braley / Vice-
Chair Cllr Hall 

Sue Hanley 

Last meeting – 18th 
January 2010. 

 

13.  Church Hill District 
Centre – Members’ 
Panel 

Chair Cllr B Clayton  

Rob Kindon / Jim 
Prendergrast 

Last meeting – 13th April 
2010. 

 
 
22. APPENDICES 
 
 None. 
 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name:   Ivor Westmore  
E Mail:  ivor.westmore@redditchbc.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 64252 (Extn. 3269) 

Page 201



Page 202



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE   26th May 2010 

 

 

ACTION MONITORING 
 
Portfolio 
Holder(s) /         
Responsible 
 Officer  

Action requested Status 

13th January 
2009 
 

  

 
 
Cllr Gandy / 
Executive 
Committee 

Third Sector Task and Finish Group 
 
The Executive to consider the further work 
to be undertaken (detailed in 
recommendation 5) and come back with 
suggestions for further work in due course. 
 

 
 
Awaiting further 
consideration by 
relevant 
Members. 

27th January 
2010 
 

  

Cllr Gandy / 
A Heighway 

Single Equalities Scheme 
 
Members requested that a report/action 
plan be submitted to a future meeting of the 
Committee or Council detailing what the 
Council, as Community Leader, expected 
to receive in terms of education provision 
for the Borough and its children and young 
people. 
 

 

Cllr Braley / 
Property 
Services 
Manager /  
B Haycock 

Easemore Road Site – Consultation with 
Tenants 
 
Officers undertook to carry out a basic 
check of all such Leases held by the 
Council by the end of the financial year. 

 

3rd February 
2010 

  

Cllr Braley / 
T Kristunas 

Initial Estimates 2010/11 
 
Officers to write, in the first instance, to 
Worcestershire County Council highlighting 
the increasing pressure on the Council’s 
budgets for staff pensions. 

 

Agenda Item 18Page 203



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE   26th May 2010 

 

 

 
Cllr Braley / 
B Barr 

Corporate Sickness Statistics 
 
Officers were asked to provide Councillor 
Hartnett with information regarding the SLA 
with Worcestershire County Council for the 
provision of Occupational Health services. 
 

 

M Braley / J 
Pickering 

Quarterly Monitoring Of Formal 
Complaints And Compliments - Quarter 
3, September To December 2009 
 
Officers undertook to speak to Councillor 
Shurmer following the meeting in respect of 
problems concerning the disabled blue 
badge scheme about which he had been 
notified by a number of residents. 
 

 

   
Note: No further debate should be held on the above 

matters or substantive decisions taken, without 
further report OR unless urgency requirements are 
met. 

Report period: 
13/01/09 to 31/3/10 

 

Page 204


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Council Plan 2010 / 2013
	Council Plan - RBC Corporate Plan 2010-2013

	6 Stratford-on-Avon District Draft Core Strategy - Consultation Response
	Stratford On Avon Draft Core Strategy - Consultation Response - Appendix A
	SOA - Draft Core Strategy - Confidential Appendix - WGT
	Development Options in Stratford District

	7 Employment Land Review Update
	8 Local Development Framework Evidence Base - Winyates Green Triangle Transport Assessment
	9 Worcestershire Supporting People Strategy 2010 to 2013
	10 Capital Budget Provision 2009/10 and 2011/12 for Asbestos Removal
	11 Spring Industry Public Art Project
	12 WETT Regulatory Service - Delegation to Joint Committee
	13 Irrecoverable Debts
	Irrecoverable Debt Appendix 1

	14 Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	Minutes , 22/03/2010 Overview and Scrutiny
	Minutes , 07/04/2010 Overview and Scrutiny

	15 Shared Services Board - Recommendations
	SSB Appendix - Overarching Shared Service Framework Agreement

	17 Advisory Panels - update report
	18 Action Monitoring

